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68F., TAIPEI 101 TOWER, No. 7, Sec. 5, Fax {EH + 886 (2) 8101 6667
Xinyi Road, Taipei City 11049, Taiwan (R.0.C.) Internet  #83E kpmg.com/tw
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BE Hen BE ek
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FREE BB RBM $ 149,844 570,456 142,554 592,740
i & S Y A R e o s - - 46,306 192,540
A B IR 5,037 19,176 4,859 20,204
BEMERGE 73,681 280,504 146,648 609,762
] # 108,297 412,287 134,874 560,806
&WMEE 17,368 66,120 21,698 90,220
TSN A NES 59,325 225,850 4,931 20,503
SF-HBMELCEMNER - - 25,309 105,235
JEWERE & 8,794 33,479 - -
BREMBREE 6438 24,509 9,134 37.979
EREBEELH 428784 1,632,381 536,313 2229989
HRBEA
5 & 258,428 983,835 267,095 1,110,581
JE M AR B4 B AR 299,126 1,138,773 349,892 1,454,851
AT E 20R 163 621 152 632
Bl — e L08R 71,444 271,987 78,256 325,388
SRHEE 66 251 14,925 62,058
B4 RARAT R 132,418 504,115 76,065 316,278
HHEFRRGEE 97.396 370,787 - -
MBFAES 859,041 3,270,369 786,385 3,269,788
Atk
JEAFIE 2R £ A 510,401 1,943,097 575,591 2,393,307
A AR H 16,973 64,616 18,071 75,139
BAREbHE N —ENBH 392,022 1,492,428 390,433 1,623,420
RhE M E A 1,886 7,180 1.856 7717
k8- Ri- Ry 921,282 3.507.321 985.951 4,099,583
RE(AEAAEFR (62.241) (236.952) (199,566) (829.795)
BALBERRGEAE 366,543 1,395.429 336.747 1,400,194
A
BATR AWK —— FH 2 H 1,131 4,306 1,288 5,356
BIEERFRER 41,142 156,628 44,155 183,596
BEAEARE 7,375 28,077 9,186 38,195
kRS &1 103 392 - -
RS AELT 49.751 189.403 54.629 227.147
HEFH $ 316,792 1,206,026 282,118 1,173,047
HE% R
AR EH
): S S $ 327,882 1,248,247 131,153 545,334
* # 156,548 595.978 245.435 1,020,519
AN RMFREAMS 484,430 1,844,225 376,588 1,565,853
JEiEHIg R (167.638) (638.199) (94.470) (392.806)
b ¥ % $ 316,792 1,206,026 282,118 1,173,047
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$ 1,544,838 5,881,198 1,801,501 7,490,641
(1,468.119) (5,589.129) (1.618,296) (6.728.875)

76,719 292,069 183,205 761,766

42,704 162,574  (50,408) (209,596)
19,580 74,541 26906 111,875
(44,113) (167.938)  (45,709)  (190,058)
(177,582)  (676,055) (155417) (646,224)
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1065 & 1054 K
#* % HE% B % MEe%
PEEGHIRALRE:
EN PR L] $ (167,033) (635,895) (92,740) (385,613)
HEARAR
WHEBEE
B E E Pk 4,719 17,965 4,807 19,988
WE BB REBIE 29,154 110,989 27,851 115,804
B A 27,223 103,638 14,653 60,927
HEME - BERRGHEROLSE) (1,225) (4,664) 2,103 8,744
FEVCE 5 BRAR R H A USRS RS 4R (B B) (11,926) (45,403) 43,901 182,540
R R AR 28,000 106,596 - -
15 B RAEBR 20,474 77,945 5,165 21,476
JEMCE SRORE AR - - 39,155 162,806
A A (2,057) (7,831) (1,946) (8,091)
HHFBEHRM T EA B RA - - (1,282) (5,331)
AT AR 3R 156 594 160 665
BREMESG DAL A (19,580) (74,541) (26,906) (111,875)
Fra ik L NG ESE N O (1,598) (6,084) (2,185) (9,085)
BAs A XA B EH (8,088) (30,791) 4,931) (20,503)
HEMB LA MER 157 598 - -
W% EIBEB A 65,409 249011 100.545 418.065
HEEEHMMLEE AREHE
MEEEHBHIEEZ P EE
BT HESR BREHAEEERERY (i) 45,240 172,229 (79,568) (330,844)
T RHD (Hpe) (12,978) (49,407) 11,755 48,877
JE A — P8 S N B gy ARIB R D (M o) 16,987 64,670 (9,559) (39,746)
JE AR AR B D (74,018) (281,786) (169,789) (705,983)
B3k imid & HIE o 103 392 - -
SEEEHMMZ AFI R EH LY (73.915) (281.394) (169.789) (705.983)
REEEHHEMTAER GBI RFEH A (24.666) (93.902) (247.161) (1.027.696)
FAEIE B A 40,743 155,109 (146.616) (609.631)
PEEEZRLANE (126,290) (480,786) (239,356) (995,244)
EAF 458 (11,391) (43,366) (12,652) (52,607)
A & 2,057 7,831 3,199 13,301
EAH & (27.223) (103.638) (14,653) (60.927)
BEFHZHRALAH (162.847) (619.959) (263.462) (1.095.477)
HEFEHZREARE !
BRI SRAT IR R D 14,421 54,901 4,115 17,110
HEME BB RRBIAFRE 11,789 44,881 13,361 55,555
VR R B A 8] - - 8,759 36,420
BREME - BE R (35,860) (136,519) (33,254) (138,270)
REBVER - - (33) (137)
BV & N - - 17,266 71,792
1 % JE SR B B9 P AT 2008 - - 60,000 249,480
#E F B A 8) PR BRI (154) (586) - -
— M EEE A B 11,670 44,428 - -
AT S N 8) SRR (120 (457) - -
HEFGHZFRALAA 1,746 6.648 70214 291,950
EREHZIRLAE:
HEBATREMER R 493,073 1,877,129 597,198 2,483,149
HEEK (499,066) (1,899,944) (554,091) (2,303,910)
HRBEME KIS (1,955) (7,443) (183) (761)
BB — RIS 5] JRIE R BB - - 21,492 89,364
AT & 8RR ATAFHOR 223,716 851,687 114,461 475,929
XA WG A 8) kB 2 A (2,507) (9,544) - -
BUFHE A ) JRIE I & (42) (160) - -
EEFGZFRAEAA 213.219 811,725 178,877 743,771
BERHUALRHERALZTYE 4,235 16,122 (2.800) (11,641)
AYMRLRHERLHER(EDIEK 56,353 214,536 (17,171) (71,397)
B RERHERLSHBER 76,065 289.579 93,236 387.675
MEARLRYHERLBE $ 132.418 504,115 76,065 316,278
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EqcMeHTta
106.12.31 105.12.31
wEH REFERT *"EH wEETRT
— AR 2 B BB — R AT Z B BB
. - EUECY s % HEeRmHEGD FERRYEHE K 0 _FARNSE 0 % HASSHEMGR) FRUKNEE %
HMRE
1100 ALRHAERD 504,115 10 - 504,115 10 316,278 6 - 316,278 6
1170 FE R $H R 883,589 18 - 883,589 18 1,237,558 23 - 1,237,558 23
1180 FEMHER AR — B A S 271,987 6 - 271,987 6 325,388 6 - 325,388 6
1200 E2UN X% 3 255,184 5 (107.167) 148,017 3 217,293 4 (115,430 101,863 2
130X % 983,835 20 - 983,835 20 1,110,581 20 - 1,110,581 21
1412 fi RN 621 - 489 L1 - 632 - 1,199 1,831 -
1476 A BHA-—NY - - 251 251 - - - 62,058 62,058 1
1475 ERHFE 251 - (251) - - 62,058 - (62.058) - -
1479 EhiHEA - - 107,167 107,167 3 - - 115,430 115,430 1
1461 HHERRGT A 370,787 __ 8 (147.414) 223373 ___ 6 - - - - -
R E A 3270369 __ 67 _(146,925) 3123444 66 3.269.788 _ 59 1,199 3.270.987 __ 60
FRGHEE
1551 R EREZRE 225,850 5 - 225,850 5 20,503 - - 20,503 -
1600 FEAE - BB RS 570,456 12 - 570,456 12 592,740 11 - 592,740 11
1760 BEMASESE 280,504 6 (33.316) 247,188 5 609,762 11 (138,795) 470,967 9
1780 BHAE 66,120 t - 66,120 1 90,220 2 - 90,220 2
1805 LE: 412,287 8 - 412,287 8 560,806 10 - 560,806 10
1840 BEAERTE 24,509 - 2,497 27,006 1 37,979 1 1,795 39,774 i
1932 E2 0P &N 33,479 1 - 33,479 L - - - - -
1942 REBIMEH — HRA - - - - - 105,235 2 - 105,235 2
1960 R R - - - - - 192,540 4 - 192,540 4
1985 EBEMAEE 19176 _ - 17.149 36325 1 20204 _ - 44,603 64807 __ 1
FRAGRESH 1.632,381 _ 33 (13,670 1618711 _ 34 2220980 _ 41 92.397) 2,137,592 __ 40
o2 L3 4,902,750 __ 100 _ (160,595) 4,742,155 _ 100 5,499,777 __ 100 91,198) 5,408,579 _ 100
B RS — - - -
bR B -%i 9
2170 T AT HR AR 1,242,414 25 - 1,242,414 25 1,810,198 33 - 1,810,198 33
2200 L3N 208 700,683 14 (228,573) 472,110 11 583,109 11 (444,751 138,358 3
2230 AIFATAFH AR 64,616 i - 64.616 1 75.139 1 - 75,139 1
2355 BAuEn-—ney 7,180 - - 7,180 - 7717 - - 7717 -
2322 — B R R 1,492,428 30 - 1,492,428 30 1,623,420 30 - 1,623,420 30
2399 H A A - - 222.360 222360 __ 17 - - 438911 438911 __ 8
Pt 3K Eoa 3,507.321 70 (6:213) 3,501,108 __ 74 4,099,583 _ 75 (5.840) 4093743 __ 75
ELaA 00K o
2540 Rt 4306 - - 4306 - 5356 - - 535 -
2570 BIEMARAK 156,628 3 99,770) 56,858 1 183,596 3 (124,179) 59,417 1
2613 Bamfm—Ens 28,077 1 - 28,077 1 38,195 1 - 38,195 1
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CORPORATE INFORMATION
DNEIEH

EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS
Mr. Hung Tsung Chin
(resigned as Chairman but remained as an Executive Director
with effect from 18 August 2017)
Mr. Chen Wei Chun
(appointed as Chief Financial Officer
with effect from 30 November 2017)
Ms. Chen Mei Huei
(resigned as an Executive Director and Chief Executive Officer
with effect from 18 August 2017)
Mr. Liao Wen |
(resigned with effect from 18 August 2017)
Mr. Frank Karl-Heinz Fischer
(resigned with effect from 18 August 2017)

NON-EXECUTIVE DIRECTOR

Mr. Kuo Jen Hao
(appointed with effect from 18 August 2017)

INDEPENDENT NON-EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS
Mr. Lau Yau Cheung (Chairman)
(appointed as an Independent Non-Executive Director with
effect from 7 August 2017 and appointed as Chairman
with effect from 18 August 2017)
Mr. Li Chak Hung
Mr. Wu Chia Ming
Mr. Han Chien Shan
(resigned with effect from 7 August 2017)

AUDIT COMMITTEE
Mr. Li Chak Hung (Committee Chairman)
(appointed as Committee Chairman
with effect from 18 August 2017)
Mr. Lau Yau Cheung
(appointed with effect from 7 August 2017)
Mr. Wu Chia Ming
(resigned as Committee Chairman but remained as a member
with effect from 18 August 2017)
Mr. Han Chien Shan
(resigned with effect from 7 August 2017)
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CORPORATE INFORMATION (Continued)

DNEER (&)

REMUNERATION COMMITTEE
Mr. Wu Chia Ming (Committee Chairman)
(appointed as Committee Chairman
with effect from 18 August 2017)
Mr. Lau Yau Cheung
(appointed with effect from 7 August 2017)
Mr. Li Chak Hung
(resigned as Committee Chairman but remained as a member
with effect from 18 August 2017)
Mr. Hung Tsung Chin
(resigned with effect from 18 August 2017)
Mr. Han Chien Shan
(resigned with effect from 7 August 2017)

NOMINATION COMMITTEE
Mr. Lau Yau Cheung (Committee Chairman)
(appointed as Committee Chairman
with effect from 7 August 2017)
Mr. Li Chak Hung
(appointed with effect from 18 August 2017)
Mr. Wu Chia Ming
Mr. Han Chien Shan
(resigned with effect from 7 August 2017)
Mr. Hung Tsung Chin
(resigned with effect from 18 August 2017)

HEAD OFFICE AND PRINCIPAL PLACE OF BUSINESS
Units 04-05, 16th Floor, Nam Wo Hong Building, 148 Wing Lok Street

Sheung Wan, Hong Kong

REGISTERED OFFICE

Clarendon House, 2 Church Street, Hamilton
HM 11, Bermuda

COMPANY SECRETARY
Mr. Young Ho Kee Bernard

(resigned with effect from 2 January 2018)
Ms. Lee Suet Lai

(appointed with effect from 2 January 2018)

AUTHORISED REPRESENTATIVE
Mr. Hung Tsung Chin
Mr. Young Ho Kee Bernard

(resigned with effect from 2 January 2018)
Ms. Lee Suet Lai

(appointed with effect from 2 January 2018)
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CORPORATE INFORMATION (Continued)

NEER (&)

PRINCIPAL BANKERS

Agricultural Bank of China Limited

Bank SinoPac

CTBC Bank Co,, Ltd.

Industrial and Commercial Bank of China Limited
Taishin International Bank Co., Ltd.

AUDITOR
BDO Limited
Certified Public Accountants

LEGAL ADVISOR

Minter Ellison

SHARE REGISTRAR AND TRANSFER OFFICE

In Hong Kong

Computershare Hong Kong Investor Services Limited

Shops 1712-1716, 17th Floor, Hopewell Centre
183 Queen'’s Road East, Wanchai
Hong Kong

In Taiwan

KGI Securities Co., Ltd.

5F., No.2, Section 1, Chongging South Road
Zhongzheng District, Taipei City 100, Taiwan

In Bermuda

Conyers Corporate Services (Bermuda) Limited
Clarendon House

2 Church Street

Hamilton HM 11

Bermuda

CORPORATE WEBSITE

www.sandmartin.com.hk

STOCK CODE
Hong Kong 482
Taiwan 910482
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CHAIRMAN'S LETTER TO SHAREHOLDERS
ETRIBREE

Dear shareholders,

On behalf of the board (the “Board”) of the directors (the “Directors”) of
Sandmartin International Holdings Limited (the “Company”, together with
its subsidiaries collectively referred to as the “Group”), | am pleased to
present the annual results of the Group for the year ended 31 December
2017.

For the Group, the year of 2017 was a challenging one as the financial
performance of the Group had underperformed due to several internal
and external factors. Internally, the Group has been restructuring its
manufacturing segments to improve staff utilization and to terminate
production lines with low efficiency. In anticipation of the booming and
progressive digitalization of the pay television market in India, some of the
production lines of the Group are moving to India. Further, the reallocation
of funding for the development of the satellite TV broadcasting business
adversely impacted the business performance of other segments of the
Group. Externally, the Group has been struggling with the changes in
product mix to cater to the latest market appetites and the ongoing
competition from other original equipment manufacturers, especially
those from the People’s Republic of China (“PRC").

During the year ended 31 December 2017, the Group has continued

to invest in the satellite TV broadcasting business which is correlated

to our manufacturing and trading of electronic products business. The
Group's 51%-owned subsidiary, My HD Media FZ-LLC ("MyHD") launched
the GOBX Project with Middle East Broadcasting Center (“MBC"), a
renowned broadcaster in Middle East since October 2016. The satellite
TV broadcasting business is still in the development stage to build up
customer bases by purchasing high quality and highly demand television
content and promoting them to new subscribers. It incurred substantial
amounts of programming costs including payment for content fees,
renting satellite transponders, purchase of set-top boxes and payment
for dealer's commission for marketing and promotion. As this satellite TV
broadcasting business is a long-term investment project and the high
running costs-per-subscriber before the subscription revenue achieved
break-even, the Group recorded a segment loss of HK$147,971,000 from
the satellite TV broadcasting segment for the year ended 31 December
2017.The Group expects the customer base to continue growing in the
coming years.
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CHAIRMAN'S LETTER TO SHAREHOLDERS (Continued)
ETRBBRRERE (&)

Meanwhile, the Group is looking for other potential business partners or N EFgIVeEMEBETERRHIIEEER
investors to cooperate with the Group in the satellite TV broadcasting REBAEEETHEERRG XSG - B8NS -
business. In particular, the Group entered into a strategic cooperation AEBR-_ZT—+tFT+HERFTRABER QA
agreement with TongFang Global Limited in December 2017 for the I BE S 1R 3 - AR AMyHDEYVER B 5 S 48
distribution of television sets and SmartHome equipment in the Middle AR B Kb FEHE [ 55 85 5 45 4 J2 SmartHome (%5 8E
East and North Africa region by leveraging the existing distribution RE)RE - BEI—F K] EB& MyHDIITRZ=F
network of MyHD. In response to the “One Belt One Road Initiative”, —tF+ AR RHBERALAERZ
MyHD also entered into a cooperation agreement with China Educational LA BMyHDE E 2 B R ERMBE NP R - hdE
Channels in October 2017 for the broadcasting of channels operated by KIEM (TMEMA ]) BB BHBEBRAEE
China Educational Channels in the Middle East, Mediterranean and Africa B SE 8

("MEMA") region via the satellite broadcasting channels supplied by MyHD.

After nearly thirty years of development, the Group has become KBE=THEMER AEEEKAEEBEN®
a trustworthy brand which distributes quality products and offers M BETHHEEERRREZEFRERBO M
professional integration services for the pay television industry. We will MER BMKESRASBEREEERKINGR
continue to strengthen our brand through various brand management 98 o R P 2 -

strategies.

Lau Yau Cheung FE

Chairman 2l 4h 7
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BUSINESS OVERVIEW AND MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

EHBREREEENWED T

FINANCIAL HIGHLIGHT AND BUSINESS OVERVIEW

The Group recorded a significant decrease in gross profit from 10.17%

for the year ended 31 December 2016 to 4.97% for the year ended 31
December 2017 due to the subscription revenue of the satellite TV
broadcasting segment not being able to cover the substantial amount

of programming costs incurred for the satellite TV broadcasting business.
Programming costs included payment for content fees, renting satellite
channels and transponders and purchase of set-top boxes. The gross profit
margin of the Group excluding the satellite TV broadcasting segment
decreased from 14.24% for the year ended 31 December 2016 to 13.29%
for the year ended 31 December 2017.

MEDIA ENTERTAINMENT PLATFORM RELATED
PRODUCTS

In 2017, the Group's media entertainment platform related products
segment faced fierce market competition from other set-top box
manufacturers in the PRC and lost some of its purchase orders due to the
shortage of funding from the Group before the completion of the open
offer ("Open Offer") of the Company, which led to a 37.52% decrease in
revenue as compared with the year ended 31 December 2016. Other
reasons for the significant decline in segment revenue were as follows:

(i) The Group stopped shipment of goods to certain customers in
Morocco due to increase in their credit risk;

(i) The delay in phase 3 and phase 4 digitalisation of pay TV in India,
which reduced the revenue from this new emerging market;

MBREREBEHRE
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BUSINESS OVERVIEW AND MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS (Continued)

EBHMENEERBNWED N (&)

(i) Starting from the fourth quarter in 2017, the prices of raw materials
such as central processing units (“CPU"), integrated circuits (“IC")
and random access memory (‘RAM”) increased substantially due to
the shortage of wafers, a crucial material for the production of CPU
and IC.

- Segment revenue of media entertainment platform
related products was approximately HK$237,214,000
(2016: HKS$379,652,000).

- Segment results from operations were approximately
HK$30,868,000 (2016: HK$12,325,000), which included
reversal of impairment loss on trade and other receivables
of HK$23,405,000 for the year ended 31 December 2017.

- Segment margin was 13.01% which increased by 9.76
percentage-point as compared with the segment margin of
3.25% for the year ended 31 December 2016.

Outlook

The market competition is even more fierce than before due to direct
competition from other set-top box manufacturers in the PRC, and the
substantial increase in prices of raw materials consequently reduced the
profit margin of our products in the end. Therefore, we are exploring new
markets for our future development, for example television digitalization
in India which would create a great opportunity for us to sell our television
set-top boxes, one of our main products in this segment.

OTHER MULTIMEDIA PRODUCTS

In 2017, the market competition remained intense, however the Group's
other multimedia products segment was able to deliver an increase in
revenue by 8.74% as compared with the year ended 31 December 2076.
Major products of this segment included high definition multimedia
interface ("HDMI") cables, multimedia accessories, external batteries and
retractable chargers. Segment results dropped by 23.52% due to the
decrease in profit margin for the electronic products amidst the fierce
competition in the industry.

Sandmartin International Holdings Limited 2 5 T BEIFR = R H R A A
2017 Annual Report & 3§

(i) BZE—EFENEFEEMIG PREDS
(fcPul) ~ &R ER ([1C)) REE#TELED
B ([RAM ) ERMBERASF EHRA
BN A BEECPURICFIENBEM
e

- RS T SHEERN D A
#95237,214,0008 T (ZF — R F
379,652,0005% 7T ) °

- REKEEBNDHERR
30,868,000 7T ( Z & — /R4 ¢
12,325000870) ' BREREZEZ=Z
—tF+ A=+ HILFEROE
IR B 5 BR 3% T2 H fth & UK IE A R (B S
1823,405,00058 TT

- DEFEERAE1301% REE T
—NF+-AZt+—BIEFENDSE
R E3.25%_F Fo.761EE 2 2h e

A

A=

HREHRAPEEGEESRERNERHT
AR R FHEBANBIENZESTERMBEERTE
ISR FREBOBEE AR - Fit - LAIE/RKR
RERRAFTS PN NENERBBEE R
BMPAEE-—FENETERZ —ERRIAREER
e o

HtZREEmM

R-ZZE—tF mHERFOAB BERAEENE
MERBEMDHBPRABRBE _T—RF+_H
=+ —RHIEFEENE74% - Z DN FTEERE
ERBZEEED ([HOM ) BE - ZHEEBE M-
SNEBM R AT AR T E RS o D BD A T F23.52%
THRNEFERNMBEREINNITREFRAM
TR



BUSINESS OVERVIEW AND MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS (Continued)

EBHMENEERBNWED N (&)

- Segment revenue of other multimedia products was approximately
HK$260,280,000 (2016: HK$239,353,000).

- Segment results from operations were approximately
HK$18,335,000 (2016: HK$23,973,000).

- Segment margin was 7.04% which decreased by 2.98 percentage-
point as compared with the segment margin of 10.02% for the year
ended 31 December 2016.

Outlook

We are enhancing our product portfolio and developing new businesses.
One of our major projects is the business of original design manufacturing
production and distribution arrangement with a multinational technology
company of computer electronic equipment. We believe this project will
achieve fruitful growth for this segment.

SATELLITE TV EQUIPMENT AND ANTENNA
PRODUCTS

The launch of new models of satellite TV equipment in late 2016 and the
optimization of product mix maintained the profitability of this segment,
with a decrease of 16.18% in revenue but with a slight increase of 1.93%
in segment results compared with the year ended 31 December 2016.
Low noise blocking down converters (“LNB") remained one of the major
products of this segment, and North America was our largest market for
revenue contribution.

- Segment revenue of satellite TV equipment and antenna products
was approximately HK$980,263,000 (2016: HK$1,169,525,000).

- Segment results from operations were approximately
HK$106,425,000 (2016: HK$104,407,000).

- Segment margin was 10.86%, which increased by 1.93 percentage-
point as compared with the segment margin of 8.93% for the year
ended 31 December 2016.

Outlook

For the year ended 31 December 2017, the profitability of this segment
showed a slight growth. LNBs are receiving devices mounted on satellite
dishes used for reception, which collect radio waves from the satellite
dishes and facilitate the transmission of satellite television signals. We
believe this product will continue to grow gradually in this segment.
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BUSINESS OVERVIEW AND MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS (Continued)

EBHMENEERBNWED N (&)

SATELLITE TV BROADCASTING

The significant loss from operations in this segment was due to the
acquisition of MyHD, a limited liability company incorporated in Dubai,
United Arab Emirates which had become a 51%-owned subsidiary of the
Company since 5 July 2016. MyHD is headquartered in Dubai Media City. It
is principally engaged in the business of providing Direct-to-Home satellite
television broadcasting services in 22 countries in MEMA, which has 60
million households. The satellite TV broadcasting business of MyHD is

still in its development stage of building up its customer base and MyHD
incurred significant losses due to the high running costs per subscriber
before subscription revenue reached break-even. Although the market for
satellite TV broadcasting remained competitive during 2017, the segment
still successfully increased its market share, which led to a 470.68%
increase in revenue as compared with the year ended 31 December 2016.

- Segment revenue of satellite TV broadcasting was approximately
HK$65,862,000 (2016: HKS11,541,000).

- Segment losses from operations were approximately
HK$147,971,000 (2016: HK$69,670,000).

- Segment loss margin was 224.67% which decreased by 379
percentage-point as compared with 603.67% for the year ended 31
December 2016.

Outlook

With the successful launch of GOBX in October 2016, GOBX will be a
growth factor for the satellite pay television business of MyHD in the
MEMA region. Based on past historical information of the number of
subscribers, the number of subscribers of MyHD has been increasing after
the launch of GOBX project in Saudi Arabia in collaboration with MBC, one
of the largest television operators and content providers in the Middle
East.
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BUSINESS OVERVIEW AND MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS (Continued)
EBEBENREEEBNWED

(&)

Based on the Company'’s investment experience in Dish Media Network
Limited (the “"Dish Media"), a pay television operator in Nepal (which

is owned as to approximately 47.12% by the Company), and its market
knowledge in MEMA, the pay television operations is a capital intensive
investment project, which requires large amounts of funding in its initial
stage of investment and takes several years to develop localised content
and subscriber base before it turns into a cash cow business. We believe
that the subscribers of the satellite TV broadcasting business in MEMA will
continue to grow.

GEOGRAPHICAL RESULTS

AFRICA

ASIA

Segment revenue for Africa for the year ended 31 December

2017 was approximately HK$12,973,000, as compared with

the year ended 31 December 2016 which was approximately
HK$71,794,000.

81.93% drop in segment revenue as compared with the year ended
31 December 2016.

Africa’s portion accounted for approximately 0.84% of the Group's
total revenue for the year ended 31 December 2017 (2016: 3.99%).

Segment revenue for Asia for the year ended 31 December

2017 was approximately HK$176,252,000, as compared with

the year ended 31 December 2016 which was approximately
HK$268,484,000.

34.35% drop in segment revenue as compared with the year ended
31 December 2016.

Asia’s portion accounted for approximately 11.41% of the Group's
total revenue for the year ended 31 December 2017 (2016: 14.90%).

EUROPE

Segment revenue for Europe for the year ended 31 December
2017 was approximately HK$198,355,000, as compared with

the year ended 31 December 2016 which was approximately
HK$157,281,000.

26.12% growth in segment revenue as compared with the year
ended 31 December 2016.

Europe’s portion accounted for approximately 12.84% of the
Group's total revenue for the year ended 31 December 2017 (2016:
8.73%).
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BUSINESS OVERVIEW AND MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS (Continued)
ERBENRETEENWED T (&)

MIDDLE EAST PR

- Segment revenue for the Middle East for the year ended 31 — REBEZZE—tF+_A=1+—HILFER
December 2017 was approximately HK$96,091,000, as compared OB Hﬂl]\”}%% 091,000 MEE_F
with the year ended 31 December 2016 which was approximately —RNFFZ A=+ —BIEFEL E62,522,000
HK$62,522,000. BT
53.69% growth in segment revenue as compared with the year - DERAEBE T —RF+_A=1+—H
ended 31 December 2016. IEFE ML R53.69% °
the Middle East's portion accounted for approximately 6.22% of the — REE-E—tF+=-A=+—H Jtifth”:f:'
Group's total revenue for the year ended 31 December 2017 (2016: RO EAREBBUAL2% (ZF
3.47%). F:347%) °

NORTH AMERICA =M

Segment revenue for North America for the year ended 31
December 2017 was approximately HK$1,000,050,000, as compared
with the year ended 31 December 2016 which was approximately
HK$1,148,707,000.

12.94% drop in segment revenue as compared with the year ended
31 December 2016.

North America’s portion accounted for approximately 64.73% of
the Group's total revenue for the year ended 31 December 2017
(2016: 63.76%).

SOUTH AMERICA

Segment revenue for South America for the year ended 31
December 2017 was approximately HK$59,491,000, as compared
with the year ended 31 December 2016 which was approximately
HK$90,364,000.

34.17% drop in segment revenue as compared with the year ended
31 December 2016.

South America’s portion accounted for approximately 3.85% of the
Group's total revenue for the year ended 31 December 2017 (2016:
5.02%).
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Outlook

As our business in Europe, North America and Middle East have continued AREMERM EEZEMRPRNEHBBEEER
to attain good performance and share more of our Group's revenue, we HHERRMOEEZAREEHKA - Bt BEMER
shall focus in these regions in future. BEsRELipE-
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BUSINESS OVERVIEW AND MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS (Continued)

EBHRENEERBNWED N (&)

OPEN OFFER

On 20 March 2017, the Company announced an Open Offer of
1,967,295,201 open offer shares (the "Open Offer Shares”) on the basis of
three Open Offer Shares for every two shares of the Company then held
on the 12 May 2017 at the subscription price of HK$0.12 per Open Offer
Share. The completion of the Open Offer took place on 19 July 2017.
1,967,295,201 Open Offer Shares were allotted and issued pursuant to the
Open Offer and the net proceeds after deduction of expenses from the
Open Offer were approximately HK$223.7 million which was intended

to apply for such net proceeds as to (i) HK$138.5 million for repayment
of bank and other borrowings of the Group; (ii) HK$67 million for the
development of the Direct-to-Home satellite television service in MEMA,;
and (iii) HKS$ 15 million for general working capital of the Group as set out
in the prospectus of the Company dated 28 June 2017 (the “Prospectus”).

Details of the Open Offer were disclosed in the announcements of the
Company dated 20 March 2017, 15 June 2017 and 18 July 2017; the
circular of the Company dated 24 May 2017; and the Prospectus.
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FINANCIAL REVIEW
L i 3CI

REVENUE

Revenue for the year ended 31 December 2017 was approximately
HK$1,544.8 million, representing a decline of 14.25% compared with
approximately HK$1,801.5 million for the year ended 31 December 2016.
The decrease in revenue was mainly due to the underperformance of the
Group's media entertainment platform related products segment during
the year.

LOSS ATTRIBUTABLE TO SHAREHOLDERS

Loss attributable to shareholders of the Company was approximately
HK$105.8 million for the year ended 31 December 2017 representing an
increase of 36.16%, compared with approximately HK$77.7 million for year
ended 31 December 2016. The loss mainly arose from the loss absorbed
from the Group's satellite TV broadcasting segment as the subscription
revenue was not able to cover the programming costs of the satellite TV
broadcasting.

LOSS PER SHARE

Calculation of basic loss per share for the year ended 31 December 2017
was based on the loss attributable to shareholders of the Company and
the weighted average number of 2,352,317,330 (2016: 1,457,505,237 as
restated) ordinary shares in issue during the year. Basic loss per share was
4.5 HK cents for 2017, as compared with 5.3 HK cents as restated for the
year ended 31 December 2016.

FINANCE COSTS

The Group's finance costs for the year ended 31 December 2017 was
approximately HK$27.2 million, compared to approximately HK$14.7
million for the year ended 31 December 2016. The increase in finance costs
was mainly due to the increase in the average interest rates in bank and
other borrowings.

INCOME TAX

Income tax for the year ended 31 December 2017 was approximately
HK$8.8 million (2016: HKS14.6 million).
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FINANCIAL REVIEW (Continued)
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NET ASSET VALUE PER SHARE

Calculation of net asset value per share was based on the net asset value of
the Group of HK$316.8 million (2016: HK$282.1 million) and 3,278,825,335
ordinary shares issued at 31 December 2017 (2016: 1,311,530,134 ordinary
shares). Net asset value per share at 31 December 2017 was HK$0.097
(2016: HKS0.215).

LIQUIDITY AND FINANCIAL RESOURCES

As at 31 December 2017, the overall cash and cash equivalent of the Group
was HK$132.4 million (2016: HK$76.1 million). The Group's major financial
resources was derived from cash generated from financing activities and
internal generated cash flow.

The Group's current ratio (ratio of current assets to current liabilities) was
0.93 as at 31 December 2017 (2016: 0.80).

As at 31 December 2017, the Group's total borrowings were approximately
HK$402.4 million (2016: HK$402.8 million). The gearing ratio (total
borrowings over total assets of the Group) increased from 30.45% as at 31
December 2016 to 31.25% as at 31 December 2017.

USE OF PROCEEDS FROM THE OPEN OFFER

As stated in the Prospectus, the Company intended to apply the estimated
net proceeds from the Open Offer of approximately HK$220.5 million from
the Open Offer as to (i) HK$138.5 million for repayment of bank and other
borrowings of the Group; (ii) HK$67 million for the development of the
Direct-to-Home satellite television services in MEMA; and (iii) HK$15 million
for general working capital of the Group.

On 19 July 2017, the Company received net proceeds from the Open
Offer in the sum of approximately HK$223.7 million after deduction of the
relevant expenses.
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FINANCIAL REVIEW (Continued)
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As at 31 December 2017, an accumulated amount of approximately
HK$222.2 million of the net proceeds from the Open Offer was utilized

in accordance with the intended use as stated in the Prospectus. The
Company used (i) approximately HK$136 million for repayment of bank
and other borrowings of the Group; (i) approximately HK$67.3 million
for the development of the Direct-to-Home satellite television services in
MEMA; and (i) approximately HK$18.9 million for general working capital
of the Group. As at 31 December 2017, the unutilized net proceeds from
the Open Offer was approximately HKS1.5 million and will be used as
general working capital of the Group.

CHARGES ON ASSETS

As at 31 December 2017, the Group's general banking facilities including
bank loans and other borrowings were secured by the following assets
of the Group: (i) bank deposits of HK$66,000, (ii) property, plant and
equipment with a carrying value of HK$123.0 million, (iii) investment
properties of HK$73.7 million, (iv) trade receivables of HK$131.6 million,
(v) inventory of HK$206.4 million, (vi) assets classified as held for sale of
HK$97.4 million and (vii) pledge of the Company's interest in Pro Brand
Technology, Inc.

FOREIGN EXCHANGE EXPOSURE

The Group's sales and purchases were denominated mainly in US dollars
and Renminbi ("RMB"). The Group was exposed to certain foreign currency
exchange risk but it does not expect future currency fluctuations to cause
material operation difficulties on the ground that the recent pressure
from appreciation of RMB was manageable. However, management
continuously assesses the foreign exchange risks, with an aim to minimise
the impact of foreign exchange fluctuations on business operations.

CONTINGENT LIABILITIES

The Group did not have any significant contingent liabilities as at 31
December 2017 (2016: Nil).
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FINANCIAL REVIEW (Continued)
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LITIGATION

(1)

HCA 2948/2016

On 29 November 2016, the Company was served a writ of
summons (“Writ 1”) taken out by Zhi, Charles, as the Plaintiff (the
“Plaintiff”) against (i) Mr. Hung Tsung Chin (an executive director),
(i) Ms. Chen Mei Huei, (i) Mr. Liao Wen |, (iv) Mr. Akihiro Nagahara
("Mr. Nagahara”), (v) Mr. Sia Meow Leng, (vi) the Underwriter

and (vii) the Company (collectively “Writ 1 All Parties”) as the
defendants under action number HCA 2948/2016 in the High Court
of Hong Kong (the “Court”). Details of Writ 1 are set out in the
announcement of the Company dated 29 November 2016.

On 17 May 2017, the Company’s legal representative received a
facsimile from the Official Receiver's Office informing the Company
that the Plaintiff was adjudged bankrupt (the “Bankrupt”) on

26 April 2017 in HCB No. 5395/2016 and the Official Receiver

was appointed as the provisional trustee of the property of the
Bankrupt. The Official Receiver stated that under section 12(1)

and 58(1) of the Bankruptcy Ordinance (Cap 6), on the making

of a bankruptcy order, all the property of a bankrupt including

all things in action shall vest in the Official Receiver. The effect of
the bankruptcy order is that the Bankrupt was divested of and
ceased to have any interests in either his assets or his liabilities.
The Bankrupt would have no locus to commence or proceed with
the Proceedings unless the Official Receiver agreed to assign the
right of action to him. The Official Receiver also stated that, after
considering all of the relevant documents, it would not adopt the
proceedings under action number HCA No. 2948/2016 in the Court.

At the hearing held on 19 May 2017, after considering the

notice of discontinuance filed by the Bankrupt, the stance of the
Official Receiver and the submissions of the Company’s legal
representatives, the Court dismissed the court action under
action number HCA 2948/2016 against the Company, Hung Tsung
Chin, Chen Mei Huei and Liao Wen | with costs to be paid by the
Bankrupt.

B
(1) HCA 2948/2016
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FINANCIAL REVIEW (Continued)
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(2)

(3)

HCA 3346/2016 (2)

On 22 December 2016, the Company was served a writ of
summons (“Writ 2") taken out by the Plaintiff against (i) Mr. Hung
Tsung Chin, (i) Ms. Chen Mei Huei, (iii) Mr. Liao Wen |, (iv) Mr.

Frank Karl-Heinz Fischer, (v) Mr. Chen Wei Chun (an executive
director), (vi) Yuming Investment Management Limited and (vii) the
Company (collective “Writ 2 All Parties”) as the defendants under
action number HCA 3346/2016 in the Court. Details of Writ 2 are
set out in the announcement of the Company dated 22 December
2016.

The Company has been notified by the Company’s legal
representative that on 20 September 2017, the Court made an
order by consent that, among other things, the proceedings
against the Company, Hung Tsung Chin, Chen Mei Huei and Liao
Wen | be dismissed with costs of the proceedings be paid by the
Plaintiff, to be taxed if not agreed.

HCMP 284/2017 (3)

On 11 February 2017, the Company was served a writ of summons
("Writ 3") taken out by the Plaintiff, Kim Sungho, Kim Kyungsoo,
Lim Hang Young and Joung Jong Hyun as the plaintiffs (the “Writ
3 Plaintiffs”) against the Company, the executive directors of the
Company, the auditor of the Company and other party as the
defendants (the “Writ 3 Defendants”) under action number HCMP
284/2017 in the Court. Details of the Writ 3 are set out in the
announcement of the Company dated 13 February 2017.

On 10 April 2017, the Company was served a summons under
action number HCMP No.284/2017 taken out by the Writ 3
Plaintiffs against the Writ 3 Defendants (“Summons”). Details of the
summons are set out in the announcement of the Company dated
11 April 2017.

At a Court hearing held on 13 April 2017, the application by

Zhi Charles (“1st Plaintiff”) for an injunction order pursuant to
Summons was dismissed by the Court with costs payable by the
Tst Plaintiff to the Writ 3 Defendants, including the Company, who
were present at the hearing.
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(4)

(5)

HCCW 90/2017 (4)

On 23 March 2017, the Company was served a winding-up
petition (the “Petition”) dated 23 March 2017 filed by Zhi, Charles
("Petitioner”) against the Company, directors of the Company and
other party ("“Respondents”) in the proceedings in HCCW 90/2017
Details of the Petition are set out in the announcement of the
Company dated 24 March 2017.

On 29 March 2017, a striking-out summons was filed by the
Company to apply for an order to strike out the Petition in the
Court. On 21 April 2017, the Petition was struck out and the
proceedings therein was dismissed by the Court.

HCMP 1044/2017 (5)

The Company was served an originating summons under section
740 of the Companies Ordinance (Cap.622) (“Summons 2") on

5 May 2017 filed by Fung Chuen as the plaintiff (“Summons 2
Plaintiff") against the Company as the defendant under action
number HCMP No.1044/2017 in the Court. Details of Summons

2 are set out in the announcement of the Company dated 5 May
2017.

In the Summons 2, the Summons 2 Plaintiff applied to the Court
for, among others, the following orders (the “"Application”):

(i) The Summons 2 Plaintiff and/or his authorized agent be
authorized to inspect and make copies of the documents in
relation to the investment in Dish Media and the Debtors;

(ii) The Summons 2 Plaintiff and/or his authorized agent be
authorized to inspect and make copies of the documents in
relation to the investment in MyHD; and

(iii) The Summons 2 Plaintiff and his authorized agent be
authorized to inspect and make copies of the documents in
relation to the open offer announced by the Company on
24 October 2016 and the Open Offer.

HCCW 90/2017
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The Company was advised by its Hong Kong legal advisers

in relation to the aforesaid litigation of the Group that if the
Application is granted by the Court, the likely orders which would
be made by the Court are that the Summons 2 Plaintiff and its
authorised agent will be entitled to inspect and make copies of
the requested documents (in full or in part), and that the Company
shall pay costs of the Application to the Summons 2 Plaintiff (to be
taxed if not agreed).

Pursuant to the order of the Court dated 17 October 2017 (the
“Order dated 17 October 2017"), it was ordered that the Company
shall produce to the Summons 2 Plaintiff those documents listed in
the schedule of the Order dated 17 October 2017. On 27 October
2017, the Company filed a notice of appeal (“Notice of Appeal”) to
the Court for a stay of execution of the Order dated 17 October
2017 pending the final determination of the appeal.

On 15 December 2017, the Court held that the appeal had no
reasonable prospect of success and ordered that the Company's
application for stay be refused but that the time for the Company
to comply with the Order dated 17 October 2017 be extended to 5
January 2018.

On 22 December 2017, the Company amended its Notice of
Appeal and applied to the Court of Appeal of Hong Kong for a stay
of execution of the Order dated 17 October 2017 pending final
determination of the appeal (“Stay Application”). Pursuant to order
dated 22 December 2017, an interim stay of the Order dated 17
October 2017 pending determination of the Stay Application was
granted.

The Stay Application is now scheduled to be heard on 17 April
2018.
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(6)

HCCW 207/2017

On 6 July 2017, the Company was served a petition for winding-
up dated 5 July 2017 ("Winding-Up Petition”) filed by Fung
Chuen ("Winding Up Petitioner”) against the Company (“1st
Winding-Up Respondent”), Mr. Hung Tsung Chin (“2nd Winding-
Up Respondent”) and Ms. Chen Mei Huei (“3rd Winding-Up
Respondent”) in the proceedings HCCW No.207/2017.

Pursuant to the Winding-Up Petition, the Winding Up Petitioner
petitioned for (i) an order that the Company be wound up by the
Court under section 327(3)(c) of the Companies (Winding-Up and
Miscellaneous Provisions) Ordinance (Cap.32) of the Laws of Hong
Kong; (i) an order that a liquidator be appointed by the Court to
investigate into the affairs of the Company upon the winding-up
of the Company; (iii) an order that the 2nd and/or 3rd Winding-

Up Respondents do account to the Company for such payments
or dispositions which they had procured to be made for their own
benefit and/or for the benefit of entities substantially owned or
controlled by them and or other than for the Company's proper
purpose and operation of its business; (iv) an order that costs of the
Petitioner and the Company be paid by the 2nd and 3rd Winding-
up Respondents and (v) such other order as the Court thinks fit and
appropriate.

On 10 July 2017, a summons to apply for a validation order was
issued by the Company, 2nd and 3rd Winding-Up Respondents. At
the hearing held on 17 August 2017, a validation order was granted
by the Court on the terms as follows: the following disposition of
property and transfer of shares of the Company shall not be void by
virtue of the provisions of section 182 of the Companies Ordinance
(Cap 32) of Laws of Hong Kong: (a) payment made (or to be made)
into and out of the Company's bank account in the ordinary course
of business of the Company between the date of presentation of
the Winding-Up Petition and the date of judgment on the Winding-
Up Petition; (b) disposition of property of the Company made (or
to be made) in the ordinary course of business for proper value
between the date of presentation of the Winding-Up Petition and
the date of judgment on the Winding-Up Petition; and (c) allotment
and issuance of 1,967,295,201 shares of the Company pursuant to
the Open Offer and use of the proceeds from the Open Offer by the
Company. The Court has also ordered the Winding-Up Petitioner

to pay the costs of the validation order to the 1st, 2nd and 3rd
Winding-Up Respondents.

HCCW 207/2017

MN-B—+F+ AN AATEERSR
([BREEAR-_ZE—+F+ATEHM
EBRE  BARE ([F—FBEEA])
SRR A ([FFBWEA]) MEE

BT ([FZBBBEADBLNEESE
BE(BBREBE])  FRERAHCCW

207/2017 °

REBEBEBREFE BREFAZRATS
T BER B S AR RMKBE LA E32
BRE 58 KRGS 5P 53273) (0%
ISR (NHERZREBFRARKAT
BRENARAEHETAS: (NE R
HEFREEAREAENAER HRE
BE L BEASEHNERBORRMER X
RARARNEE B REERBZINEM
FEMELNERNRABENRIZEE
MEFARARBRNERAE _—_RE=F
BWEAM  RWERR SR EREE W
Hihap < o

RZE—+tF+ATH ARQF - E_KE
CEBWEARHERERASZEE R
T—tFENATEREBETZRN  AREHE
BRAS EEBGERT BARREIEN
T EME R DB SRERBAMNE32
ERAEPIE121EMMRERBER: @R
B EREFEAHMMBEREFE R
BRI AR B EEBBREPRARRZ
BITERPEARE L 2 X (M) B
MR ARRIRRREREFEBHME
BEFEHFEAHERARR B EELBR
PEL (BB ER) 2 EMABEBEZER
BRE: MOBREBEARBEELEREITARNT
1,967,295 201 IR tn RE A AR A AREE
FriSRIE - ER A BEBREARE —
FoREZBEBWEASINEBRAUSHE
)EHO

Sandmartin International Holdings Limited 22 55 T EIBR = iR G BR A &

2017 Annual Report & 3§




FINANCIAL REVIEW (Continued)
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On 30 August 2017, the Company applied for another validation
order under section 182 of the Companies Ordinance (Cap 32) of
Laws of Hong Kong, which provides that any transfer of the shares
of the Company shall not be void by virtue of the said section. The
validation order was also granted by the Court on 25 October 2017.
On 4 December 2017, the Company filed and served its points of
defence (“Points of Defence”) of the 1st Winding-Up Respondent.
On 11 December 2017, the 2nd and 3rd Winding-Up Respondents
filed and served the Points of Defence of the 2nd and 3rd Winding-
Up Respondents. Pursuant to a consent order dated 31 January
2018, the Winding-Up Petitioner should file and serve his points

of reply (“Points of Reply”) to the Company's Points of Defence on
5 February 2018. As at the date of approval of the consolidated
financial statements, the Winding-Up Petitioner has yet to file and
serve his Points of Reply and has yet to apply for a time extension
for the same to be filed out of time.

The case management hearing is now scheduled to be heard on
25 April 2018, during which the Court will set down the procedural
timetable for the parties to comply with under the Winding-Up
Petition. It is expected that it would take approximately 1-2 years
(depending upon the Court’s schedule) before the Winding-Up
Petition would be set down for the substantive hearing.

ARBITRATION

On 29 September 2011, the Group entered into a conditional agreement
(the "Agreement”) with an independent individual third party (the
“Original Shareholder”) and Technosat Technology JLT FZE (“Technosat”, a
company incorporated in Dubai, which was wholly owned by the Original
Shareholder), to subscribe for 375 new shares in Technosat at a cash
consideration of US$7,500,000 (equivalent to HK$58,170,000), amounting
to 15% of Technosat's enlarged capital. Technosat is set up to be engaged
in operation of digital TV and radio platform, pay TV channel, and sales and
supply of TV set top boxes.
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As at 30 June 2012, the Group had paid a deposit of US$2,500,000
(equivalent to HK$19,467,000) to Technosat to acquire new shares in
Technosat which was fully provided for impairment in prior year. Pursuant
to the terms of the Agreement, the Group is required to pay a further
US$5,000,000 in relation to the subscription of this 15% equity interest

in Technosat. The subscription is not yet completed up to the date of
approval of this report as the conditions precedent of the subscription

of new shares in Technosat including the consent and approval by
government authority in Dubai has not been fulfilled.

Despite the Group's repeated request for information, there were

no satisfactory response from the Original Shareholder or Technosat
(“Counterparties”) regarding the current status and the procurement of
obtaining government approval from the government authority in Dubai.
The Group has engaged legal counsel to act for the Group and started
dispute resolution proceedings against the Original Shareholder and
Technosat.

On 21 January 2013, the legal counsel of the Original Shareholder and
Technosat served a notice to the Group’s legal counsel for a claim on the
further payment of US$5,000,000 in relation to the subscription of this 15%
equity interest in Technosat.

The Group's legal counsel has replied on behalf of the Group on 11
February 2013 in response to the claim of the Original Shareholder and
Technosat defending the claim as the directors of the Company consider
such claim invalid, as the conditions precedent of the subscription of new
shares in Technosat has not been fulfilled and constituted a breach of the
Agreement.

The Group's legal counsel had repeated request on the Original
Shareholder and Technosat to commence the next step on mediation, but
there was no satisfactory response from the legal counsel of the Original
Shareholder and Technosat up to the dealing set by August 2014. At the
date of approval of this report, the Group's legal counsel confirmed that
there was no update on the arbitration.
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The Group continues to improve its corporate governance practices,
emphasizing the attainment and maintenance of a quality Board, sound
risk management and internal controls, and high transparency and
accountability to the shareholders of the Company (“Shareholders”).
The Board and the management are committed to the principles of
good corporate governance consistent with prudent management

and enhancement of shareholder value. The Board believes that good
corporate governance will bring long-term benefits to the Shareholders
and the Group.

During the year ended 31 December 2017, the Company has applied the
principles and has complied with the code provisions of the Corporate

"

AEEFENREELCRERTHR TEBERER
—EERMNEFS REMNEREERAIES
WHARRBRR ([RER])BEER HEREE-
EEghEREMERTNARREERRSRER
BENREECXEARA -EFSHE RENDE
EEARBBEREAEBGEREEMNS -

BHE-_ZT—+tF+-_A=+—HILFE XQF
EEMEEBERIMBERAR ([BRFT])ES

ERA (T EmRA) M+ (hERER
STRD B RAIRE ST (REERTR) 85T RIEX
(T=FRIMGES L) - MERE T SRt N i F 69 & 832 i T

Governance Code (“Code Provision(s)”) as contained in Appendix 14 of the
Rules Governing the Listing of Securities (the “Listing Rules”) on The Stock
Exchange of Hong Kong Limited (the “Stock Exchange”), except for certain

deviations as specified and explained below with considered reasons for
such deviations.

1. Under Code Provision A.1.1, the board should meet regularly
and board meetings should be held at least four times a year at

approximately quarterly intervals.

During the year ended 31 December 2017, two regular board

meetings had been held to review and approve the interim results

and annual results of the Group at approximately half-yearly
intervals. Going forward, the Board will strive to comply with this

Code Provision and hold at least four times a year at approximately

quarterly intervals.

2. Under Code Provision A.2.7, the chairman should at least
annually hold meetings with non-executive directors (including
independent non-executive directors) without the executive
directors present.

The Chairman of the Board did not hold a meeting with the
non-executive Director without the executive Directors present.
However, during the year, the Chairman of the Board had board
committee meetings with other independent non-executive
Directors without the executive Directors present to discuss the
questions which arose at such meetings.
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Under Code Provision A.5.6, the nomination committee should
have a policy concerning diversity of board members, and should
disclose the policy or a summary of the policy in the corporate
governance report.

The nomination committee will take into account a number of
factors, including but not limited to gender, age, educational
background, or professional experience when identifying and
making recommendations to the Board on the selection of
individuals nominated for directorships. The Board will review from
time to time the need for the policy to be in written form.

Under Code Provision A.6.6, each director should disclose to the
issuer at the time of appointment, and in a timely manner for any
change, the number and nature of offices held in public companies
or organisations and other significant commitments.

Each Director has disclosed to the Company at the time of
appointment the number and nature of offices held in public
companies or organisations and other significant commitments
and will inform the Company when any subsequent change arises.

Under Code Provision A.6.7, independent non-executive directors
and other non-executive directors should attend general meetings.

Mr. Wu Chia Ming, an independent non-executive Director, was
unable to attend the special general meeting held on 24 April 2017
and the annual general meeting held on 12 June 2017 due to other
engagements while Mr. Han Chien Shan and Mr. Li Chak Hung,
independent non-executive Directors, were unable to attend the
special general meeting held on 24 April 2017, the annual general
meeting held on 12 June 2017 and the special general meeting
held on 15 June 2017 due to other engagements.

In view of their absence, Mr. Hung Tsung Chin had arranged for
another Director and member of management, who were well-
versed in the Company’s business and affairs, to attend the general
meetings and communicate with the Shareholders.

Under Code Provision A.7.1, an agenda and accompanying board
papers should be sent, in full, to all directors. These should be sent
in a timely manner and at least 3 days before the intended date of a
board or board committee meeting (or other agreed period).

For those board meetings which were held on ad hoc basis, an
agenda and the relevant board papers were provided to the Board
for consideration when they became available.
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7. Under Code Provision C.1.2, management should provide all 7.
members of the board with monthly updates giving a balanced
and understandable assessment of the issuer’s performance,
position and prospects in sufficient detail to enable the board as a
whole and each director to discharge their duties under rule 3.08
and chapter 13.

During the year, due to the changes of chief financial officers

of the Company (“Chief Financial Officer(s)"), management had
provided all members of the Board with updates giving a balanced
and understandable assessment of the Company's performance,
position and prospects on a request basis.

8. Under Code Provision C.2.5, the issuer should have an internal audit 8.
function.

Since the resignation of the internal audit manager in March
2017, the Company looked for a new replacement while the audit
committee oversaw the internal audit function. Following the
appointment of the new internal audit manager in February 2018,
he has taken up the internal audit function.

9. Under Code Provision E.1.4, the board should establish a 9.
shareholders’ communication policy and review it on a regular
basis to ensure its effectiveness.

The Company considers that effective communication with
Shareholders is essential for enhancing investor relations and
investor understanding of the Group's business performance and
strategies. During the year, the Company endeavored to maintain
an on-going dialog with Shareholders and in particular, through
annual general meeting and other general meetings. The Company
will review the need for having a shareholders’ communication
policy on a regular basis.
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Compliance with the Model Code BFEESA

The Company has adopted the Model Code for Securities Transactions by AAREHEM EMRAUMERT (ETMBEITAESE
Directors of Listed Issuers (the “Model Code”) as set out in Appendix 10 TRAEXSNEESR) ([BREFRERES
of the Listing Rules as the code of conduct for dealing in securities of the BEEARARABFANTAEN KEEERE 28
Company by the Directors. After specific enquiry, all Directors confirmed EEMRABEEREBE_T—LtF+A=1+—H1E
that they have complied with the required standard regarding securities FE—HETRETAUMSEHEISF I IV ELE
transactions set out in the Model Code throughout the year ended Ale RARIRBZEZE_T—+tF+A=T—HIEF
31 December 2017. No incident of non-compliance was noted by the EXTMBEETRTERENMF-

Company for the year ended 31 December 2017.
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Board of Director
Composition

As at 31 December 2017, the Board consists of two executive Directors,
namely, Mr. Hung Tsung Chin and Mr. Chen Wei Chun (Chief Financial
Officer), one non-executive Director, namely, Mr. Kuo Jen Hao and three
independent non-executive Directors, namely, Mr. Lau Yau Cheung
(Chairman), Mr. Li Chak Hung and Mr. Wu Chia Ming. An updated list of the
Directors and their roles and functions is published on the websites of the
Stock Exchange and of the Company respectively.

Mr. Hung Tsung Chin is the husband of Ms. Chen Mei Huei, a former
executive Director and resigned as executive Director on 18 August 2017.
Ms. Chen is currently a director of several subsidiaries of the Company
and the chief executive officer in the satellite TV broadcasting business

of the Group (“Satellite Broadcasting Services Business Division”). Save as
disclosed above, none of the other Directors has or maintained any family
relationship with any of the other Directors.

Independent Non-Executive Directors

The independent non-executive Directors are of sufficient number and
calibre for their views to carry weight. The functions of independent non-
executive Directors include:

bringing an independent view and judgment at board meetings;
taking the lead where potential conflicts of interests arise;
serving on board committees if invited; and

scrutinizing the Company's performance and monitoring
performance reporting.

The independent non-executive Directors have made a positive
contribution to the development of the Company’s strategies and policies
through independent, constructive and informed comments. They benefit
the Board and the board committees by their skills, expertise, varied
backgrounds and qualifications through regular attendance and active
participation at the meetings of the Board and the board committees.
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Composition of the Board is disclosed, and the independent non-
executive Directors are identified, in all corporate communications to the
Shareholders.

Confirmation of Independence

The independence of the independent non-executive Directors has

been assessed in accordance with the applicable Listing Rules. Each of
the independent non-executive Directors has made an annual written
confirmation of independence pursuant to rule 3.13 of the Listing Rules.
The Company is of the view that all independent non-executive Directors
meet the guidelines for assessing independence set out in rule 3.13 of the
Listing Rules and are independent.

Roles and Functions of the Board and the Management

The Board assumes responsibility for leadership and control of the
Company; and is collectively responsible for directing and supervising

the Company’s affairs. The Board is fully responsible for the formulation

of business policies and strategies in relation to the business operation of
the Group, including dividend policy and risk management strategies. The
management is delegated the authority and responsibilities by the Board
for the day-to-day management and operation of the Group.

Appointment, Continuation of Appointment and Re-election
of Directors

All executive Directors have entered into service agreements with the
Company while the non-executive Director and all independent non-
executive Directors have entered into letters of appointment with the
Company with a specific term of three years and one year, respectively
setting out key terms and conditions of their appointments. All Directors
are subject to retirement in accordance with the Bye-Laws of the Company
(the “Bye-Laws").
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According to the Bye-Laws, (i) Directors appointed by the Board either to RIBAR (ESeRAEHERTRAMRREES
fill a casual vacancy on the Board or as an addition to the existing Board BEENEANESEREBRERRAA T —ER
shall hold office only until the next following annual general meeting of REFAE URZASLMEEREEET: &
the Company and shall then be eligible for re-election; and (ii) at each (IR EBERFRBEFRG L ER=902—FF (3
annual general meeting, one-third of the Directors for the time being (or, MEEMNHEEWIE=0C) 2B AAKERETHE
if their number is not a multiple of three (3), the number nearest to but B=n—vHEB)ERERT HERES (BIEX
not greater than one-third) shall retire from office by rotation provided EEETABRNES) B=F2LARKRRBEFRK
that every Director (including those appointed for a specific term) shall ELRE-R B BEEENHEHRZR=F-

be subject to retirement at an annual general meeting at least once every
three years. As such, no Directors have a term of appointment longer than
three years.

Board Meetings E=geR

During the year ended 31 December 2017, the Directors have made active HE_Z—tHFT_A=1T—HIHE E=EE
contribution to the affairs of the Group and 15 board meetings were held HASEERELBEBER  WRITISAEEEE
to consider, among other things, various transactions contemplated by the wOUBE (AP AEEHET2ETER MU
Group and to review and approve the interim results and annual results of MEBRERESENTHEERFEEE -

the Group.
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Attendance Record of Directors

The attendance record of Directors at the meetings of the Board, the
board committees and the Shareholders held during the year ended 31

December 2017 is set out below:

Name of Directors

Executive Directors

Mr. Hung Tsung Chin

Ms. Chen Mei Huei (resigned on
18 August 2017)

Mr. Liao Wen | (resigned on
18 August 2017)

Mr. Frank Karl-Heinz Fischer (resigned on
18 August 2017)

Mr. Chen Wei Chun
Non-Executive Director
Mr. Kuo Jen Hao (appointed on
18 August 2017)
Independent Non-Executive Directors
Mr. Lau Yau Cheung (Chairman)
(appointed on 7 August 2017)

Mr. Li Chak Hung

Mr.Wu Chia Ming

Mr. Han Chien Shan (resigned on
7 August 2017)

Board
Meetings
Ezgeld
Number of
meetings
attended /
Number of
meetings held
HEESE
RE,/
BUEENRE
HTES
AR S A 15/15
BEELL (RZZ—+F 6/8
NR+N\BEE)
BYREE(RZZE—tF 3/8
AV R WANEE 3:9)
Frank Karl-Heinz Fischer5t 4 5/8
(R=F—+tFNATNR
B fE)
BREEHLE 15/15
FHTES
BARRE(RZZ—LF 4/7
NATNBEZRE)
BUFHTES
ApErE (ER) 8/8
(R=F—tF
NAtBEZME)
FERERE 14/15
REALE 14/15
BEIWEE(RZE—LF 6/7
NRtHEE)
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Audit Nomination Remuneration
Committee Committee Committee General
Meetings Meetings Meetings Meetings
BEREESEE REZE8S8H FHMzEe23 BRRAE
Number of Number of Number of Number of
meetings meetings meetings meetings
attended / attended / attended / attended /
Number of Number of Number of Number of
meetings held meetings held meetings held meetings held
HEEEH HEEEN HEEZEN HEER
R/ R/ RE/ MR,/
BTEENAY BT830KE BT83MNRE BTEENAY
N/A A 172 172 23
N/A R N/A & N/A R iE 0/3
N/A T ER N/A a8 N/A TR 03
N/A T A N/A 138 N/A @R 03
N/A T A N/A 1 iE N/A i A 3/3
N/A RN F N/A i@ N/A i A N/A A3 A
1/1 22 22 N/A A3 A
3/3 /1 3/3 0/3
3/3 2/3 3/3 13
2/2 0/1 0/1 0/3
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Access to Information

All Directors are kept informed on a timely basis of major changes that
may have affected the Group's business, including those changes to
relevant rules and regulations and are able to make further enquiries
when necessary. The Board has also agreed that the Directors may seek
independent professional advice in performing their directors’ duties at
the Company'’s expense.

Directors and Officers Liability Insurance

The Company has arranged appropriate insurance coverage on directors’
and officers' liabilities in respect of any legal actions taken against the
Directors and senior management arising out of corporate activities. The
insurance coverage is reviewed on an annual basis.

Directors’ Training and Professional Development

During the year ended 31 December 2017, the Company organized a
training session for all Directors on 31 October 2017. Such training session
covers updates on the Listing Rules and connected transactions and
continuing connected transactions. Reading materials were provided to
the Directors on the latest developments or updates in directors’ duties
and responsibilities and requirements of the Listing Rules.

All Directors confirmed that they have complied with the Code Provision
on directors’ training. The Company has received from each of the
Directors his confirmation on taking continuous professional training.
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Chairman and Chief Executive Officer FERHMTR

The roles of the chairman and the chief executive officer are separate to ITREATRBERLEOBUZEE L FMEMN
reinforce independence, accountability and responsibility. Mr. Lau Yau REAM - EESFXRENFEELEBEHEAREER
Cheung, the Chairman of the Board, is responsible for the formulation ERRB - EEREARNETEBER 2 BEE
of development strategies, investment decision making, overall project BRE RBEFS THRRESGEEREHM
planning at the Group level, leading the Board and ensuring that the B MATREXERR AR EENREREREE
board functions properly and effectively, whilst Mr. Hung Tsung Chin, the HRRETYEHEER Ht2HE8ER B
chief executive officer of several subsidiaries of the Company which are 5% 28 R A2 AT LA &@IE% BERRNEES 2
mainly engaged in manufacturing and trading of the media entertainment ETHEAR ((NEREEETFEREBL]) 2
platform related products, other multimedia products, integration of TR AAEREREEEFEMEBBHAE
signal and traffic communication and satellite TV equipment and antenna EEEER—MREE-

("Manufacturing and Trading of Electronic Products Business Division”)
is responsible for the management of the daily operation and general
administration of the Manufacturing and Trading of Electronic Products
Business Division.

Ms. Chen Mei Huel, the chief executive officer of the Satellite Broadcasting FEERREEBITATRREELLEEHE
Services Business Division, is responsible for the development of ﬁ?%ﬁﬁﬁ%?%%ﬁé‘@&$% (BIE2FEINER
the Satellite Broadcasting Services Business Division and the overall E)NEREEL

management of the Group including all overseas offices.

Board Committees EEZEY

The Board has established three committees with specific written terms of EEgORU-HZEe HAEETHNBES
reference to oversee particular aspects of the Company's affairs. B UERAQNAFTHEHES-

Audit Committee EREES

The Audit Committee was established in 17 March 2005 with written terms EZEEeRN _ZEERAF=-_A++tAKY  BAE

of reference, which are posted on the websites of the Stock Exchange and EFARBESE ZBESE D 5B F AR
of the Company respectively. All the members of the Audit Committee are FrRAREHE F - BREESNMENEHYAB
independent non-executive Directors, namely Mr. Li Chak Hung, Mr. Lau SEMITEE AR LELE BPHELEERRSE
Yau Cheung and Mr. Wu Chia Ming. Mr. Li Chak Hung, who has appropriate A -F2EEERB EMBRAUBETEENTE
professional accounting qualifications as required under the Listing Rules, BHHER WEZAARERZESEIR HMESTZ
was appointed as the chairman of the Audit Committee. None of the ZEEXNEARRAIZEAMBIESEZ A

members of the Audit Committee is a former partner of the auditors of the
Company.
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The principal duties of the Audit Committee include, among other things:
(i) being primarily responsible for making recommendations to the

Board on the appointment, re-appointment and removal of the external
auditor, and to approve the remuneration and terms of engagement of
the external auditor; (ii) reviewing and monitoring the external auditor’s
independence and objectivity and the effectiveness of the audit process in
accordance with applicable standards; (iii) developing and implementing
a policy on engaging an external auditor to supply non-audit services;
(iv) monitoring the integrity of the Company’s financial statements

and the annual report and accounts, half-year report and, if prepared

for publication, quarterly reports, before submission of the financial
statements and reports to the Board, and reviewing significant financial
reporting judgments contained in them; (v) reviewing the Company’s
financial control, risk management and internal control systems; and

(vi) discussing the risk management and internal control systems with
management to ensure that management has performed its duty to
have effective systems. The Audit Committee may seek any necessary
information from employees within its terms of reference and obtain
independent professional advice, at the Company's expense, to perform
its responsibilities if it considers necessary. During the year ended 31
December 2017, the Audit Committee held three meetings to review
annual results, interim audit planning and interim results. The attendance
record of individual Directors at the audit committee meetings is set out
on page 30 of the annual report.

Nomination Committee

The Nomination Committee was established in 17 March 2005 with
written terms of reference, which are posted on the websites of the

Stock Exchange and of the Company respectively. All the members of the
Nomination Committee are independent non-executive Directors, namely,
Mr. Lau Yau Cheung (chairman), Mr. Li Chak Hung and Mr. Wu Chia Ming.

EZZEENIZRE (EFeRi)  )x2855%
INERZEBMNET EFEZEREERNESRM
B WHOEINEZ SR BB R EEBIER (i)ig
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ZERRF BB (iR INEZ EEM IR M IEZ R
BHIEWE - TUAIT: (VAZESEIEXE @
BHRERBER  ERARBNYBREARFE
WMENMKE - FFERER (BBTE) ZERED
TEMN WEMAREREBREMSEEYERRNE
ARER: VR AARNPFEE BREE LA
HEsmRs: RVviiEBEEENmRARERERATE
ERERS BREEECBTBERYLBRMN RS-
ERLZEeNLERERECERTERMEERE
BAHERRERBLEXZERN (BEABRARTX
) UEZERTEBS REBEE-_Z—tF+=A
= t+t—HLEFERA BRZEEHABRT=ZREH
gl FEES P HIEZA 8 R EIZEE - A7
EEHRERZESRRENE LBz RNRERE
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The principal duties of the Nomination Committee include, among other REZEENTERE (AHEHE)  ((RIESFS
things: (i) reviewing the structure, size and composition of the Board and B - ABURAER - W ABLE AR AR
making recommendations on any proposed changes to the Board to MBS EESHELINEHRLER: (WA
complement the Company’s corporate strateqy; (i) identifying individuals HBEHERAETESENEMA L ITHERA
suitably qualified to become board members and selecting or making FAATHEEFAM M AESSRHEER  (i)aT
recommendations to the Board on the selection of individuals nominated BZEMIERTEENRE LN RIVHEESEZARE
for directorships; (iii) assessing the independence of independent non- FEAUREFETAENETREEZS -

executive Directors; and (iv) making recommendations to the Board on the
appointment or re-appointment of Directors and succession planning for

Directors.

The Nomination Committee may seek any necessary information REZEGREBEGETETERMESER
from employees within its terms of reference and obtain independent FIRER RENBYEEZLRN (ERABARAX
professional advice, at the Company’s expense, to perform its ) UNEZERITERE RBE=Z—tF+=A
responsibilities if it considers necessary. During the year ended 31 —t—HIEFEAN REZEEEAT=ZRZHNU
December 2017, the Nomination Committee held three meetings to BN EIRTEZRFRTESTIRENESE
review the nomination of independent non-executive Director and non- Eelk B RUBR2E - EARESHER
executive Director; and change in composition of board committee and HLEEERENTHRANRFREE -

changes of Chief Financial Officers. The attendance of individual Directors
at the nomination committee meetings is set out on page 30 of the annual

report.

Remuneration Committee FMZzEES

The Remuneration Committee was established in 17 March 2005 with FTMEEER _ETRF-ATtHKY BAE
written terms of reference, which are posted on the websites of the HA]ARBERE ZBEBEC SR EHNER
Stock Exchange and of the Company respectively. All the members of FrkARaf - -FNEESNMBEXNENY AB
the Remuneration Committee are independent non-executive Directors, VIEHITES  BREPLAE (EF) B LsE
namely, Mr. Wu Chia Ming (chairman), Mr. Lau Yau Cheung and Mr. Li Chak MRS

Hung.

The principal duties of the Remuneration Committee include, among other FHZEENEERE (APEE)  ORAQRY
things: (i) making recommendations to the Board on the Company's policy AEBESERSRETEENZBEHNEE KRS -
and structure for all remuneration of Directors and senior management of MERRHESR: WHEESSMIICEAHR

the Group; (ii) reviewing and approving the management’s remuneration BEEmgsa kEtERENFIEZ  RiilmES
proposals with reference to the Board's corporate goals and objectives; ERFZENEERSREEBOHHES-

and (iii) making recommendations to the Board on the remuneration
packages of individual Directors and senior management.
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The Remuneration Committee may seek any necessary information

from senior management within its terms of reference and obtain
independent professional advice, at the Company’s expense, to perform
its responsibilities if it considers necessary. During the year ended 31
December 2017, the Remuneration Committee held three meetings to
review proposed remuneration packages of Directors and Chief Financial
Officer. The attendance of individual Directors at the remuneration
committee meetings is set out on page 30 of the annual report.

The remuneration of the members of the senior management (other than
Directors) by band for the year ended 31 December 2017 is set out below:

Remuneration band

FHEE e RAREREEERFTERRASRER
BEDRMBEMN MEIRBYEXZA(BERAL
RAXN)  UZERTEBRE RBE-_T—tF
TZA=Z+-HLEFER FHZESERT =X
CRUABTEFTRUBENFHEE - ENEF L
FHEMEZE RN CHANAFRE0E -

HE-_Z—+F+_-_A=+—HLFE =aKERE
BRE (TERES)NFMEEDT

Number of individuals

s = AR
HK$0 - HK$ 1,000,000 0%1,000,0007 7T 3
HK$1,000,001 - HK$2,000,000 1,000,00178 7T £2,000,0007 7T 2
HK$2,000,001 - HK$3,000,000 2,000,0017% 7T 223,000,000/ JT 1

Further particulars regarding Directors’ emoluments and the five highest
paid employees as required to be disclosed pursuant to Appendix

16 to the Listing Rules are set out in note 11(a) and note 11(b) to the
consolidated financial statements of the Group.

CORPORATE GOVERNANCE POLICY AND DUTIES

The Board is responsible for performing the duties on corporate
governance functions set out below:

m developing and reviewing the Company'’s policies and practices on
corporate governance and making recommendations to the Board;

(2) reviewing and monitoring the training and continuous professional
development of Directors and senior management;

(3) reviewing and monitoring the Company’s policies and practices on
compliance with legal and regulatory requirements;

RIFELEMRANET NEFRENERESTH R
hfismFEENE —THBERRAERGEEUTE
R EE11@)&11(0b) °

ERESHRREBE

EFORERETANCREAMENATHE

) HERRHALANHCEEARERER
o F R

) e NEREENRRERENEIINSE
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B BARERARAEETERLREERTES
MR BR N E AR
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(4) developing, reviewing and monitoring the code of ethics and
compliance manual (if any) applicable to employees and directors;
and

(5) reviewing the Company's compliance with the Code Provisions and

disclosure in the Corporate Governance Report.

During the year, the Board has reviewed the Company'’s policies and
practices on corporate governance.

Company Secretary

Mr. Young Ho Kee Bernard has confirmed that he has taken no less than 15
hours of relevant professional training during the year ended 31 December
2017. Mr. Young has resigned as the company secretary of the Company
due to his pursuit of career development and the Board has appointed Ms.
Lee Suet Lai as the company secretary of the Company both with effect
from 2 January 2018. Ms. Lee has confirmed that she has taken no less
than 15 hours of relevant professional training during the year ended 31
December 2017.

Accountability and Audit
Financial Reporting

The Board endeavours to present to Shareholders a balanced and
understandable assessment of the Group's performance, position and
prospects. Accordingly, appropriate accounting policies are selected

and applied consistently, and judgements and estimates made by the
management for financial reporting purpose are prudent and reasonable.
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The adoption of relevant new and revised HKFRSs that became effective
during the year has no significant impact on the Group's results of
operation and financial position as disclosed in note 2 to the financial
statements.

External Auditors and their Remuneration

The external auditors perform independent review or audit of the financial
statements prepared by the management. BDO Limited ("BDO”") has been
engaged as the Company's external auditor.

For the year ended 31 December 2017, the fees charged to the financial
statements of the Group in respect of BDO's statutory audit and other
service amounted to approximately HK$ 1,750,000 and HK$250,000
respectively. The fees of recurring audit services of subsidiaries performed
by other auditors and the fees of provision of other services were
approximately HK$2,290,000.

Internal Controls

The Board has overall responsibility for maintaining a sound and effective
system of internal control which is designed and operated to provide
reasonable assurance that the Company’s business objectives in the
following areas are achieved:

Effectiveness and efficiency of operations, including the
achievement of performance and operating targets and the
safeguarding of assets by the management;

Reliability of financial and operating information provided by the
management, including management accounts and statutory
financial reports; and

Compliance with applicable laws and regulations by each business
unit.

AN B HRER M 2P IR AR BT RARER
R 2 AARERTR] M AE AT Z B TS R 5 Y R M R
SENEERMBRAELEERTE -
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The Company has put and continues to place considerable emphasis AARTHERTSHESEEREFRMELA
on maintaining and enhancing the effectiveness of its system of FRES I RATH AN EE o BIR AR A BIH) A HPEEIEIELS
internal control. Under the Company’s internal control framework, risk EREERANPETHEZREEABEREERFAEA
management and internal control are primarily the collective responsibility B RARAZATHNHELSRME U TEEE
of every manager and employee. For consistent compliance by every THREEEDRBEESRERE  BAmT

person in the Company, the following key control policies and measures
are implemented in the everyday activities, which are summarized below:

1. Overall control environment, including code of ethics governing 1.
staff conduct within the Group, and whistle blowing policy;

2. Management of financial and non-financial risks, including at the 2.
Company level the risk management functions of the Board, at
the business unit level management’s ongoing monitoring of
operational and other risks;

3. Major controls systems and processes, including budgetary and 3.
cost controls, financial reporting systems and processes for timely
and quality management reporting, and corporate policies and
procedures for approvals, reviews and segregation of duties in
everyday activities;

4. In relation to ongoing compliance monitoring and internal control 4.
reviews, the company secretary undertakes to monitor overall of
compliance with the Listing Rules. The internal audit manager
directly reports to the Audit Committee and is engaged to conduct
independent reviews on the internal control and risk management;
and

5. The Audit Committee has reviewed the adequacy and effectiveness 5.
of the Company’s internal controls, including financial, operational
and compliance controls and risk management. It has also
considered the adequacy of resources, qualifications and
experience of staff of the accounting and financial reporting
functions and their training programme and budget.

Sandmartin International Holdings Limited 2 5 T BEIFR = R H R A A
2017 Annual Report & 3§

BEREEHRE BREEAKEE TRTH
BREST A RBWBR

M RIFVHERRER  BRRAGERL
EXefEREERE EEXBEMLER
tEEENEEREMARSFERES:

TEEFIRGLRE BREBRE MK AR
# MBERRFLREARfER RED
MERRE UREEBREYATEERE
FETHERL BRLREEE D

RIFEERA RN AT EERE
- ARWERAERRERH LTRANZE
SER MR E K EERNERLZEQE
HERN ABEHAREZERARERET
BUER R

ERREERNARFTARNEE (BEH
Bo2ERARERERELARREE)RE
RARBR INE B N E R a7
HNER BIEERKEREDRA UK
BTIHRIIMNEBRERERRE



CORPORATE GOVERNANCE REPORT (Continued)

TERERME (M)

In conducting these reviews, the following reports and activities are
considered:

self-assessments made by management of various business units
and subsidiaries of their material controls and risk management
activities undertaken with reference to The Committee of
Sponsoring Organizations of the Treadway Commission (“COSO")
enterprise risk management framework. The documentation
supporting the self-assessments was subject to review by internal
audit; and

self-assessments made by business units and Group Finance of the
resources, qualifications and experience of staff of the accounting
and financial reporting functions and their training programmes.
The main conclusions are that:

- the resources in the accounting and finance functions are
adequate;

- the qualifications and experience of the staff of the
accounting and finance functions are satisfactory overall;
and

- the training activities and budgets have been continually
given considerable attention during the year and are
satisfactory.

The Board and management will continue to look into opportunities for
further enhancing the effectiveness of the internal control system of the
Group in the years ahead.

Internal Audit

The Group regards internal audit as an important part of the Board and
Audit Committee’s oversight function. The principal objective of internal
audit, which is set out in an internal audit charter, is to provide the Board
and management with useful information and recommendations on the
adequacy and effectiveness of the internal control system of the Group.
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Authority and Accountability EE

Under the internal audit charter endorsed by the Audit Committee, the BEBELCEZZEENHENANIT BT RE EFSKR
internal audit function is authorized by the Board to have access to all BRI EETEFIAEG REB RN ET BB
records, people and physical properties relevant to the performance Bt AEREVPE NEBFAFETETLR
of internal audit. The internal audit manager has unrestricted access to REMEEZLZESGTIREHE TEERAEZEZE
the chairman of the Audit Committee and reports directly to the Audit TER BEXERLZEGRRAAAMEEE - FlllE
Committee for direction and accountability. This reporting relationship WARBANBETCER RN EEANEEZE R
enables internal audit manager to provide an objective assurance to the ML IR R ERIRE ©

effectiveness of the internal control system of the Group.

o

Duties B

The duties of the internal audit manager are described in the internal audit NBEFEENBETENATETRE  EPRTE
charter. It requires that (a) internal audits are conducted with proficiency, BN EFAN B E BMAAER - 55| RSFAIR
objectively and due professional care in compliance with the standards, SR BEBMEBEEERN AN ETABET:
b) A 7N 52 B N & B i\ BPPIHE AT B AT ORI G AR 5T -

—

—

guidelines, and the code of ethics of the Institute of Internal Auditors;

(b) audit testing and reviews are carried out at all levels of the Group NERANBEERGEECH AEBEESTE
to provide reasonable assurance as to whether the system of internal BE2RE -BELERESREBEASEBERET

control is adequate; the assets of the Group are properly safeguarded; the ARMBREERERINESBIOET  UREEE
operations are conducted effectively and efficiently in accordance with the UG EEE A RIEEHEBRE RONIE

Group's policies and procedures as well as relevant laws and regulations; R EEE BEREESRESTEERKEE
and the accounting records of the audited entities and operations are ITHIESER o

reliable and (c) special reviews are conducted by internal audit manager
when required by the management, the Audit Committee or the Board.

All above described duties may be adjusted depends on the resources L mERENRTRBETBENBANERM
availability to internal audit function. The management of the Group has EHRAE AEEEREFRETRETEANET
the responsibilities to keep reviewing the resources availability to internal BeErI g A EIR -

audit function.

Internal Audit Resources and Major Work Done in —E-tLtFRABETERREZTREET
2017 £

The internal audit function in financial year 2017 was maintained at the HRAPEFBEEEE  —_ T+ FHBRFED
minimum level since March 2017 due to the change of the internal audit NEFFT B E — T —tF = AR IFEREK
manager in charge. The Group searched continuously for a suitable person, FoREEFEME—FEEEANE RZZ—\F
and filled the position in February 2018. Going forward, the Group will “HERZBL REBK AEEBEERTE
keep reviewing the resources availability for the implementation of internal B R EB B I B AR B0 BRI 1B - I A R BB BE AR R
control function and will regulate the activities for internal control. BEFE-
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After the preliminary review of the existing internal audit system by the
new internal audit manager and considering his suggestions, the Group
plans to update its existing internal control in accordance with the
framework provided by COSO (updated model was released in September
2017) and its framework for risk management will refer to the guidance
from the Institute of Internal Auditors’ International Professional Practices
Framework whenever applicable for the implementation. Internal audit
manager had prepared and submitted the annual internal audit plan for
the financial year 2018 to the Audit Committee for approval.

Risk Management

The Board assists the Group in anticipating its risk exposure, putting
controls in place to counter threats, and pursuing its set objectives. After
the Board has identified the top risks of the Group, Directors will assess
how much risk the Board is faced with through the Group’s operation and
governance processes.

Based on the risk profile of each business unit, and taking into account
the management control and corporate oversight at Group level, the
Audit Committee and internal audit manager would map out a risk-based
internal audit plan each year.

Commercial Risk

Commercial risk refers to potential losses arising from inadequate gross
margins and/or non-performance of trading partners or counterparties
in the Middle East and India. It is important to ensure that our trading
partners or counterparties are reliable, financially healthy and willing to
subscribe for membership in pay television broadcasting programs.

Currently, the key commercial risks facing are decreasing funding for the
development of the Satellite Broadcasting Services Business Division and
insufficient or unstable subscriptions for memberships due to limited
customer bases and recorded segment loss from satellite TV broadcasting
segment. We manage our commercial risk by:—

a) identifying other potential business partners or investors to invest
in Satellite Broadcasting Services Business Division;

BB EFRENTRANBEBEANLBARELEZR
H%‘ﬁé AEBE TR B RIBECOSOREMIER (&
MRAEER T — tihﬂ?ﬁéﬁﬁ)ﬁ%ﬁfﬁﬁmﬁﬁﬁﬁ
2 AR RERERES2E N BB IS BB
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b) monitoring the subscription of membership procedures and b) ERGHIBEFIMEINER &
improving the payment system; and

0) diversifying our TV programs and increasing television content. Q) FERGHE LT REMEHRRIE -
Financial Risk B 7% [ B

Currency risk pgiyENy

For bank borrowings, the functional currency of each operating entity MBITEEMS SCLEEBNEEE —fREE
is generally matched with its liabilities. As such, management does not BEMICE - A BREERT S mER I EA
expect any significant foreign currency risk associated with the Group's EEEEFBENERINERR

borrowings.

Environmental and Social Responsibilities RERUTEER

The Directors believes that environmental protection and social EEHERERERCEETNAERREE A&
responsibilities represent an essential part of the Group's operations and RAtEAFEZERET AR 55 - AEBEH
the sustainable development of the Group and the community. The major T EMWBARICHET LR BEE TR A IR IR ER
subsidiaries of the Group have implemented relevant environmental B A M EEBEBERAS 2 [ 22—+ F
protection measures on energy saving and emission reduction, so as to RE - HEREARS ] HeRARELHRES
minimise the emission of pollutants during the production process. The I 18 A AN R 5 B R 1R — (8 A A -

“Environmental, Social and Governance Report 2017" will be reported
separately from this report and will be published within three months after
the publication of this report.

Directors’ Responsibility on the Consolidated ESHGREUBRRNEMR

Financial Statements

The Directors acknowledge their responsibility for preparing the EENMTBHARBETE L ERASELRRE
consolidated financial statements for the year ended 31 December 2017 EE+F T A=+ —HIFENGEETBR
which were prepared in accordance with statutory requirements and FoR EMBBFTERNER P HARELHEME
applicable accounting standards. The Board aims to present a balanced, BHEEF EEeRAEEMMRA LRI SRAOIED
clear and understandable assessment of the Group's position and T EMRA PEBNTE-

prospects in annual reports, interim reports and other financial disclosures
required by the Listing Rules.

The reporting responsibility of the external auditor of the Company RARINEZBRE A EBGRE VB HRRNBARE
on the consolidated financial statements of the Group is set out in the AEHRAFHREOBEF/8E MR AZEAIRE -

independent auditor’s report on pages 69 to 78 of this annual report.
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Communication with Shareholders

The Company considers effective communication with the Shareholders
are essential to enable them to have a clear assessment of the enterprise
performance as well as accountability of the Board. Major means of
communication with the Shareholders are as follows:

Information disclosure on corporate website

The Company endeavours to disclose all material information about
the Group to all interested parties as widely and as timely as possible.
The Company maintains a corporate website at http://www.sandmartin.
com.hk where important information about the Company's activities
and corporate matters such as annual reports and interim reports to
the Shareholders and announcements is available for review by the
Shareholders and other stakeholders.

When announcements are made through the Stock Exchange, the same
information will be made available on the website of the Company.

During 2017, the Company issued various announcements in respect of
financial and inside information, which can be reviewed on the website of

the Company.

General meetings with Shareholders

The annual general meeting of the Company provides a useful platform for

direct communication between the Board and the Shareholders. Separate
resolutions are proposed on each substantially separate issue at the
general meetings.
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CORPORATE GOVERNANCE REPORT (Continued)
RERRE (&)

Voting by poll RRERESAKRR

Resolutions put to vote at the general meetings of the Company (other RARBBREARE LREFAZAZR (BREFH
than on procedure matters) are taken by poll. Procedures regarding EHRBRBRIN ANRREEEAAR A -FH
the conduct of the poll are explained to the Shareholders at the ERBEEAARAZEFERENRERSHIE
commencement of each general meeting, and questions from the BMRRHA RERRAEFREZRETSE
Shareholders regarding the voting procedures are answered. The poll SR - RELERSTETRERAEB S AIEH
results are posted on the websites of the Stock Exchange and of the FOBES A2 P IR AR A B A8k o

Company respectively on the same day as the poll.

Investor relations REEBRE

The Company recognises its responsibility to explain its activities to those AARABRBES EREENATRIREEBLANR
with a legitimate interest and to respond to their questions. In addition, REERSRENOE T LI AAFNEREE
questions received from the general public and individual Shareholders BERABRRERNKRREZIZRE -EMBBELT &
are answered promptly. In all cases, great care is taken to ensure that no AEYERREERLRE BRIEFHHEET
inside information is disclosed selectively. When announcements are made AARBEE - NA B FE B XM A S - %
through the Stock Exchange, the same information will be made available ZEERTEEHNAR GBI -

on the website of the Company.

Constitutional Documents BEREXH

During the year ended 31 December 2017, there was no change in the HEZZT—+tF+_A=+—HLEFE ARFH
constitutional documents of the Company. ERXHWEES-
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BIOGRAPHIES OF DIRECTORS AND SENIOR MANAGEMENT

EENSREEECEE

Directors

Mr. Lau Yau Cheung, aged 57

Independent Non-Executive Director, Chairman of the Board, chairman of
Nomination Committee

Member of each of Audit Committee and Remuneration Committee

is an independent non-executive Director since 7 August 2017, and was
appointed as the Chairman of the Board with effect from 18 August 2017.
He holds a bachelor's degree in commerce from the University of Toronto
in Canada. Mr. Lau has over 23 years of experience in business strategies
and corporate finance and 6 years of experience in the securities trading
business. He has served in various senior management positions with
both private and public companies in Hong Kong and overseas. From
1999 to present, Mr. Lau serves as the managing director of BH Capitalink
Development Limited.

Mr. Hung Tsung Chin, aged 57
Executive Director, Authorised Representative

is the founder of the Group, which was founded in November 1989. He
was the Chairman of the Board until 18 August 2017. Mr. Hung acts as

an executive Director and authorised representative of the Company. He
is also the chief executive officer of several subsidiaries of the Company
which mainly are engaged in the Manufacturing and Trading of Electronic
Products Business Division.

Mr. Hung has over 28 years of management experience in the electronics
manufacturing industry. He graduated from the National Chengchi
University in Taiwan, with a bachelor’s degree in business administration.
He also completed the executives programme from the Graduate School of
Business Administration, National Chengchi University.

Mr. Hung is the husband of Ms. Chen Mei Huei, a former executive Director
and resigned as executive Director on 18 August 2017. Ms. Chen is
currently the director of several subsidiaries of the Company and the chief
executive officer of the Satellite Broadcasting Services Business Division.
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BIOGRAPHIES OF DIRECTORS AND SENIOR MANAGEMENT (Continued)
ESRENEEBZER (&)

Mr. Chen Wei Chun, aged 41 BREHEE 415

Executive Director, Chief Financial Officer HITEE HER

joined the Group in May 2015 and was appointed as an executive Director RZZE—RAFRAMNALREE UHRR=_F—H
and chief financial officer of the Company on 28 August 2015 and 30 FNAZFTN\BM=E—+F+—A=1+HEZ

November 2017, respectively. He is also the director and the chief financial EAERRBRITEERMBR -FMALRARER
officer of Pro Brand Technology, Inc., a non-wholly owned subsidiary of the & Bt )& 22 &) Pro Brand Technology, Inc. 89 2 % & B 75
Company. Mr. Chen graduated from National Chengchi University and Shih R-BRAEEEXERBVBUAREREBRANEZN 5 5

Chien University with a master degree in finance and a master degree in RIEHBERTRERERBRT -BRRSFTRER
business administration, respectively. He is well experience in accounting XEEEELH - MAREER - RAEESEEBR
and finance industries. Prior to joining the Group, Mr. Chen was the head BERFERIE(KR)AA Eﬁfii RIh 1
of finance department of TTY Biopharm Company Limited and head of BRAGR(BR)ARMBEEE

finance department of K.H.S. Musical Instrument Company Limited.

Mr. Kuo Jen Hao, aged 41 BAREE M1

Non-Executive Director HHITESE

was appointed as a non-executive Director on 18 August 2017. He RZZE—tFNATN\BEZEARIENTES-
graduated with a bachelor's degree in Business Administration from EERQEEEARS ESIBEESE TSN U
Aletheia University in Taiwan and holds a master degree of business RZEE-FREERMTAZ THEEBELS
administration from Pace University in 2003 in the United States. Mr. Lo RFTEAMETEZES ZAESA -
Kuo is a certified public accountant of the New Jersey State Board of

Accountancy.

He has several years of work experience in investment advisory, financial BB S ET RN E T AT - R EM K Private
advisory and corporate finance at PricewaterhouseCoopers, Bank of Equity Management Group 2 &1 F A FIE E B M
America Merrill Lynch and Private Equity Management Group and held VEBEEARPERE &R WERETLARLE
various key roles at several private and listed companies engaging in MAREETARNEERNG BEAATIIHEOIT
(i) the administrative and corporate business; (i) corporate finance; BEBRPEER: (MDERE K %ﬂﬂ??ﬂ?&
and (iii) general management in real estate development business, B MEBER TEEBRMYAEB 2 AEEL
shipping business, retailing business and logistics business. Mr. Kuo has L ERGIEEBRE RAIFE ﬁﬁﬁ%&ﬁ%;%&%
a wealth of experience in business strategy development and innovation o

management.
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BIOGRAPHIES OF DIRECTORS AND SENIOR MANAGEMENT (Continued)

ESENSNREEBECER (£)

He is the chairman and the general manager of First Steamship Company
Limited (“First Steamship”), a company listed on the Taiwan Stock Exchange
Corporation (“TWSE") (TWSE Stock Code: 2601). Mr. Kuo is also a director
and the chairman of Grand Ocean Retail Group Limited, a company listed
on the TWSE (TWSE Stock Code: 5907) and a subsidiary of First Steamship,
a director of Taiwan Environment Scientific Co., Ltd., a company listed on
the Taipei Exchange, a director of IRC Properties, Inc., a company listed on
the Philippine Stock Exchange, and non-executive director and chairman
of the board of Summit Ascent Holdings Limited (Stock Code: 102). First
Steamship is a substantial shareholder of the Company and through

its subsidiaries collectively holds 29% of the issued share capital of the
Company. Mr. Kuo is also a director of several subsidiaries of the First
Steamship including but not limited to Mariner Finance Limited, Morton
Securities Limited and First Steamship S.A..

Mr. Li Chak Hung, aged 53
Independent Non-Executive Director, chairman of Audit Committee
Member of each of Remuneration Committee and Nomination Committee

is an independent non-executive Director since September 2016. He

is graduated from The Chinese University of Hong Kong and holds a
Bachelor's Degree of Business Administration. He is a practicing Certified
Public Accountant of the Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public
Accountants and a Fellow of The Taxation Institute of Hong Kong. He has
over 27 years' experience in accounting, auditing, taxation and financial
management. Mr. Li is currently an independent non-executive director
of Dream€East Group Limited (formerly known as SkyOcean International
Holdings Limited) (Stock Code: 593) and an independent non-executive
director of AsiaSec Properties Limited (formerly known as Dan Form
Holdings Company Limited) (Stock Code: 271), both companies are listed
on main board of the Stock Exchange.

Mr. Wu Chia Ming, aged 49

Independent Non-Executive Director, chairman of Remuneration
Committee

Member of each of Audit Committee and Nomination Committee

is an independent non-executive Director since December 2014. He
has a master's degree in business administration from the Institute of
International Business, National Chen-kung University and a bachelor’s
degree in electronic engineering from Chung Yuan Christian University
in Taiwan. Mr. Wu has nearly 23 years of experience in financial analysis
and fund management. Currently, he is the chairman of Fortune-Future
Investment Co., Ltd. Prior to that, Mr. Wu was a fund manager of KGI
Securities Investment Trust Co., Ltd.

?B'ZZ% sSMRGOERAF([=min]) —FARZEFS
RS EEEEFZ %FﬁJJ:mZ A (EEES
RHFRMORSE : 2601) 2 EERFBLIE R4

MRRFAEESRERRAR (—HAREEZSFRS

FrEtmzRal (BEEEFEHFRZRMAIR :5907)

WREMIMBAR) CEFREEFR AR

BROBRAR (ZRARREEBFBEEEEFR L L

) Z E = IRC Properties, Inc. (:Z R FIRIEREFE

ERX G EM) 2 EE - Rl FFIZERER A (&M

ﬁﬁﬁ-102)23F#ﬂ/‘f§$%%$/\£f°/\ﬁn75'5$
RAIZEERR WEBEMMBRATGHBEALAR

AIEBITIRA 220% - HEENMABEmME THEAR

AZEE BEETERARKREHREBRAR:

& E B 5B PR A ) KFirst Steamship SA. ©

FEBRLE 538,

BUHPTEE FRLZREETE
HHWEEERIEELZREHEA
H-ZE-—RNFNLAREEBIFATEST -REX
EA%-?/%EPX?( TREIMEEELTEMN I/E

AT HESHIMLEEREESE RS
E\Wﬁﬁ/\\aﬁ Eit BHELMGSEBEI(EIEES

7FRBR - FRERRMIAEIR LT RARERT
SEARAR (AIEXFERZERAERAR) (K
MRS SN BUFATESTRTIMWERRA
A (AT FHEER AR AE) (RO : 2711058
MIEHITESE

REBLE 495
BUHPTEE FWEEET/E

FRZREORIELEZREMR
H-FT-ME+ - AREETBIFERTES 1&%

BERNAREREREAELBLNPRAEE T
BREBTEM - RELEBEOBFUHED *ﬁ&%
TEETEER -KEAMETHRRERODBAERA
FEFE A RELRIEEFREEERNE
RATBMNESEEA

Sandmartin International Holdings Limited 22 55 T EIBR = iR G BR A &
2017 Annual Report & 3§




BIOGRAPHIES OF DIRECTORS AND SENIOR MANAGEMENT (Continued)
ESRENEEBZER (&)

Senior Management EREEE

Ms. Chen Mei Huei, aged 55 REZ L+ 555

Director of several subsidiaries of the Company and Chief Executive Officer — Z(fH] K2\ a]H1/& 22 a] 4 F K 1 £ B /& IR I K 755D
of Satellite Broadcasting Services Business Division HIBTT R

is a co-founder of the Group in 1989. She is responsible for the BN/ NWFRAKREEBSRINA -KEERE
development of the Satellite Broadcasting Services Business Division and BERBEBHBEREAEEH (BE2IEHINFA
the overall management of the Group including all overseas offices. Ms. E)NEBREEE BRATEORHERGL2HEASETE
Chen has been actively engaged in the sales and marketing development BERERTIZHHE R EHERBIBSE WK
of the Group in Taiwan and the international markets for more than MFEREREINERP RN MSEE- T&%%E/\\\é\
28 years and has particular focus on new customers and new market EHKIRE BEANTXEREERESEE T2
development in recent years. She graduated from Tamkang University in e RETABAR 7$ﬂfiﬁ$%fx%ﬁi§//\ﬁ@ﬁ§'ﬁ
Taiwan with a dual bachelor degree in Spanish Literature and International ERZEF o RARENMRARREBHEFENERE
Trade. Ms. Chen is the wife of Mr. Hung Tsung Chin, an executive Director EESFEMFEBH LMBARI cHITR

and authorised representative of the Company. Mr. Hung is also the chief
executive officer of several subsidiaries of the Company which mainly are
engaged in the Manufacturing and Trading of Electronic Products Business

Division.

Mr. Frank Karl-Heinz Fischer, aged 58 Frank Karl-Heinz Fischer %t 4  585%

Director of several subsidiaries of the Company, Vice President of the AR REINE LI EE  NEFFBE &
Group, Chief Technology Officer of the Group B <

joined the Group in January 2008 and is responsible for the development RZZEZNEF—AMARER /\Eﬁfilgﬁﬁﬁﬁ%
of the Satellite Broadcasting Services Business Division and the global EBE R RSB DS R RN EBUM
marketing strategy of the Group. He has more than 29 years of experience HEEFE uuﬁﬁiﬂ#&@#F?ﬁ?"ﬁﬁ%ﬁﬁwi,%&
in hardware and software development for consumer electronic products B —NAMFHBERBEREIER OVB)FSG
in Europe and has been involved in Digital TV technologies since the LAZR —E 1t BEIE BAR T © Fischerst £ R 2B A
beginning of Digital Video Broadcasting Project (DVB) in 1994. Mr. Fischer Technical Umver5|ty LeizigBR 15 B B /b £ fily A 28 1] £
graduated as diploma degree engineer for automation technology and TERBEML

cybernetics from the Technical University Leizig in Germany.

Mr. Hsiao Yu Jung, aged 52 BERLE 528

Deputy General Manager of the Group’s cable division K5 [ 45 B Bl A A

is responsible for procurement, manufacturing and development of the BERE RERFAEAEREEER -REERN
Group's cable products. He obtained a diploma in mechanical design EEEVREMBARE BERMERGTIESE R
engineering from the National Formosa University in Taiwan. Mr. Hsiao BEERZTEE_FLtAMBAER-

joined the Group in July 2002.
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BIOGRAPHIES OF DIRECTORS AND SENIOR MANAGEMENT (Continued)

ESENSNREEBECER (£)

Mr. Su Jow Shi, aged 54
General Manager of the Group’s digital TV division

is responsible for manufacturing operations. He graduated from the San
Diego State University where he earned a Master of Public Administration
degree. Mr. Su joined the Group in September 1995.

Ms. Su Wan Ling (also named Ms. aka Julia Swen), aged 53
Director of Pro Brand Technology, Inc.

has been working in our Group since 2007 and is responsible for
promoting the cable products and digital television products in the market
of the United States. She graduated from the University of California, with
a bachelor’s degree in Biochemistry; a master’s degree in Environmental
Science and a master’s degree of Business Administration. Ms. Su has over
23 years of experience in research of biotechnology field and business
management.

Mr. Sven Willig, aged 45
General Manager of Intelligent Digital Services GmbH

has joined the Group since 2005 and is currently responsible for hardware
and software development and sales of Digital Video Broadcasting
Products. He has over 18 years of management experience in the
development and quality control of digital television technologies.
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REPORT OF THE DIRECTORS
EEEWE

The Board is pleased to present the audited consolidated financial EEEMAREREBEEE-_T—+tF+=H
statements of the Group for the year ended 31 December 2017. T HIEFENKCEZFRETBRE -
Principal Activities FEER
The Company acts as an investment holding company. The activities of its Z’KQ\\E%_FE'EJ REZBRRAR ﬁ\‘{%ﬁﬁ%ﬁﬂ GBS
principal subsidiaries are set out in note 46 to the consolidated financial BN A RE RS W15 A E46 o
statements of the Group.
An analysis of the Group's revenue and operating results for the year AEBEE-T—LF T A=+ HLEFEEE
N sz AL A = B A -
ended 31 December 2017 by principal activities is set out in note 7 to the é@}ﬁ’ﬂﬁlﬁﬁ&%&%%@ﬁﬁ%&ﬁ%ﬁ%%Téﬂﬁﬁ%#&
consolidated financial statements of the Group. REIPEET -
N
Results ES
The results of the Group for the year ended 31 December 2017 are set out AEBEE_T—LFT AT HLEFENX
== p Eoplarad It o) = Nz
in the consolidated statement of profit or loss and other comprehensive RBENATFREB7IAZFOAEMMKRE B LEAME
income on pages 79 to 80 of this annual report. R
Business Review EHERE
The business review of the Group for the year ended 31 December 2017 is $%§§:§*t¢+:ﬂ =T HLEFEMNX
set out as below: TEEREES AT
Page no. of the
Section(s) in this annual report annual report
TEH2ED AEHZEM
a. Fair review of the Company's business Business Overview and 7t0 13
Management Discussion and Analysis
RAREBHEERT EBHEREIRBEN REDN FE7TEEEI3E
b. Description of the principal risks and Chairman'’s Letter to Shareholders 5t06
uncertainties the Company is facing FEBRERSE FSHEF6R
LA RR I EEE X ZRE R K& Business Overview and 7to 13
TREHEZ Management Discussion and Analysis
EBHEREIBEN REDN E7TEESEI3E
C. Particulars of important events affecting  Business Overview and 7t013
the Company that have occurred since Management Discussion and Analysis
the year ended 31 December 2017 EBBEREEENmEDN F7/BEFI3H
BEHZ-ZFT—tF+-_A=+—HI Financial Review 14 to 23
FERBENTEARTNEZEE WHBLE BI4EEEBE
15
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REPORT OF THE DIRECTORS (Continued)
EEgWmE (4)

Section(s) in this annual report

REHEH

Page no. of the
annual report

REH A

Indication of likely future development
of the Company’s business

RRBERBARKAGEEROTR

Analysis using financial key
performance indicators

ERTHEERREFENDT

Discussion on the Company's
environmental policies and
performance

BREARRRRBERRRBN

An account of the Company's key
relationships with its employees,
customers and suppliers and others
that have a significant impact on the
Company and on which the Company’s
success depend

ARmEEEES FPMEEBUAK
HARABERTZERARAHKI
PR FE Y B b A £ 9 B R AU

Discussion on the Company's
compliance with the relevant laws
and regulations that have a significant
impact on the Company
RAREFHARRABERTED
MEBDER KR ERER

Business Overview and
Management Discussion and Analysis

EBBEREREN W EDT

Business Overview and

Management Discussion and Analysis
EBHMELRERE N mED T
Financial Review
1 75 [o] R
Financial Summary

MR

Corporate Governance Report

TEEREAME

Further information about the Company’s environmental
policies and performance will be disclosed in the
“Environment, Social and Governance Report 2017"
(a standalone report)

BRARAREBELRANE-—TERNBR[ZF
—tFRR HEREARE] (—HBELHRE)F
®E

Business Overview and

Management Discussion and Analysis
EBHMBENEIRE R wmE D
Report of the Directors

EE

Corporate Governance Report
rERERME
Report of the Directors

EE

7t013

FIEEHI3E
14 to 23
FU4EEEH
244

F2448

42
B0H
Not applicable

7to13

F7EEHI138
50 to 68
ES0EEF68H

24 10 44
FUBEEF44E
50 to 68
FS50B £ F68H
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REPORT OF THE DIRECTORS (Continued)
EEgWmE (4)

Final Dividend REAKRE

The Directors do not recommend the payment of a final dividend for the EETERREE S —+F+A=1T—HL*F
year ended 31 December 2017 (2016: Nil). ERERAKRE (ZE—RF £8) -

Property, Plant and Equipment NE BERRE

Details of the movements in property, plant and equipment during the TEEYE BEREEREEZE T —tF+=A
year ended 31 December 2017 are set out in note 14 to the consolidated = +t—BIFENEBFE %&ﬁ’\\$$lﬁ$éﬂﬁﬁ%#&
financial statements of the Group. FMIEE14 -

Investment Properties REW=

On 19 December 2017, the Group entered into the preliminary agreement RZZE—tF+ZA+hB AEBEEREXIRIKE
with Eastern Beauty Global Limited for the sale and purchase of the RARGIVERHBZESNESNRAENE K
office properties in Hong Kong at a consideration of approximately B /R#%997,396,0008 7T ([HEFIEH]) - HEFIED
HK$97,396,000 (the “Disposal”). Details of the Disposal are set out in the HEHNARARBHA T —tF+_A+ILAHN
announcement of the Company dated 19 December 2017. YN

Details of the movements in the investment properties of the Group AEBEBE_T—tFTA=1T—HLEFENKR
during the year ended 31 December 2017 are set out in note 17 to the BYEE n¥| HNAEBLGE B mMERMTT7 -

consolidated financial statements of the Group.

Borrowings BE

Details of the borrowings during the year ended 31 December 2017 are set AEBBEZE_T—tHF+-A=1+—H M:Eﬁl?l’ﬂ
out in note 31 to the consolidated financial statements of the Group. BHE %ZEAZ'VE 4 B T R M EE30

Share Capital g 2

On 20 March 2017, the Company announced the Open Offer of RZE—tEF=A=Z+H RARFAEMAREE
1,967,295,201 Open Offer Shares on the basis of three Open Offer Shares 1,967,295 201 IR AR EHERN - EEAR T —+tF

for every two shares of the Company then held on the 12 May 2017 at the EA+Z=H iﬁﬁﬂﬁﬂﬁﬂiﬁﬂﬁﬁﬁﬁﬁﬁﬁiﬁﬁﬂ
subscription price of HK$0.12 per Open Offer Share. The completion of the B ERMIZRBESRATERK0.128T - AFH

Open Offer took place on 19 July 2017. 1,967,295,201 Open Offer Shares BEER _TE—+tF LA+ HTEK > 1,967,295,201
were allotted and issued pursuant to the Open Offer and the net proceeds N 4h) E*ETF FEERERERET
after deduction of expenses from the Open Offer were approximately B 5 S 18 B9 2 B 356 P15 SOIEFEE A /3223,700,000
HK$223.7 million which was intended to apply such net proceeds as to B AR RBEZEMEHRIEFERHNERE
(i) HK$138.5 million for repayment of bank and other borrowings of the 2 BT & () 138,500,000/ 7T FAPME B AR B 2 IR1T K
Group; (i) HK$67 million for the development of the Direct-to-Home 1’@1ﬁff i (1) 67,000,000/ 7T A A TEMEMAEE & B ¢
satellite television service in MEMA; and (iii) HK$15 million for general )K):' B2 B/ R X (i) 15,000,00078 T HEAR S
working capital of the Group as set out in the Prospectus. Bz —REEES-
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REPORT OF THE DIRECTORS (Continued)
EEgWmE (4)

Details of the Open Offer were disclosed in the announcements of the
Company dated 20 March 2017, 15 June 2017 and 18 July 2017; the
circular of the Company dated 24 May 2017; and the Prospectus.

Details of the movements in the share capital of the Company during the
year ended 31 December 2017 are set out in note 34 to the consolidated
financial statements of the Group.

Equity Linked Agreements

Save as disclosed in the section headed “Share Option Scheme”, no equity
linked agreements were entered into during or subsisted at the end of the
year ended 31 December 2017.

Directors’ Right to Acquire Shares or Debentures

Save as disclosed in the section headed “Share Option Scheme”, at no
time during the year ended 31 December 2017 was the Company, any

of its subsidiaries, fellow subsidiaries or its holding companies a party to
any arrangements to enable the Directors to acquire benefits by means
of the acquisition of shares in or debentures of the Company or any body
corporate.

Distributable Reserves

As at 31 December 2017, the Company did not have the distributable
reserve (2016: approximately HK$81.86 million).

Details of the movements in reserves during the year ended 31 December
2017 are set out in note 47 to the consolidated financial statements of the
Group.

AABRENFBEREERARABRA-ZT—+tF
—AZ+A —E—+tFXRNAT+HREHERZZE—+tF
tA+TN\EHHAM ARAFBHA-_T—tFHA
T HEMBE RERER-

ARABE-F—LET-A=+—BILEENR
AR BEE RN A EE S B EEN 534 -

% RE 42 99 175 5

BRI [RERiERT & — S IEEIN RBE-F—+
FHoA=T—BLEFER BREFTIHFERE
A o
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F+_A=t—HALFE KAQF EEAHEL
Al R RNMEB AR SR A R ET L AE R RS

FEFAREBARBREAEAERE 2RO HE
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REPORT OF THE DIRECTORS (Continued)
EEgWmE (4)

Under the Companies Act 1981 of Bermuda (as amended), the contributed RIBERE-NN—FRaE (IBE]) » RARIH
surplus account of the Company is available for distribution. However, the BARREAAEDIK - AM £ TIERLT AR
Company cannot declare or pay a dividend, or make a distribution out of ATBUBARBRERIENREHEL DI :
contributed surplus if:

(a) it is, or would after the payment be, unable to pay its liabilities as (a) RSN R BEEASTNREAE 5k
they become due; or

(b) the realisable value of its assets would thereby be less than the (b) EEEMAEREESEMIREAFHEE
aggregate of its liabilities and its issued share capital and share BITIRA R = ERA B R -

premium accounts.

Donations B

The Group did not make any donation for the year ended 31 December REBEZE-_Z—LtFT_A=1+T—RHLFE F&£H
2017 (2016: Nil). WEFEREABR(ZF—REF &) -
Permitted Indemnity Provision EAETHREEMKX

The Bye-Laws provide that every Director is entitled to be indemnified out RIFMAA BRESHERUARAIEERRER
of the assets of the Company against all losses and damages which he BITRBSRSGETHEN B EMEEAEEX %
may sustain or incur in or about the execution of the duties of his office or Rz —tIEXREE-

otherwise in relation thereto.

The Group has taken out and maintained directors’ liability insurance Zlixgﬁiﬁqﬁﬁ%g&”ﬁ%%%ﬁﬁﬁ % RS
throughout the year, which provides appropriate cover for the Directors. B ERHEEMRE-

The permitted indemnity provision was in force during the year ended 31 REEZZ MG BETHNRERXNEZE
December 2017 for the benefit of the Directors. —tF+_A=T—HIEFEEK-
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Financial Summary

A financial summary of the Group is set out on page 240 of this annual
report.

Major Customers and Suppliers

For the year ended 31 December 2017, the aggregate sales attributable
to the Group's five largest customers amounted to approximately 52.8%
of the Group's total sales and the sales attributable to the Group's largest
customer were approximately 29.0% of the Group's total sales.

For the year ended 31 December 2017, the aggregate purchases
attributable to the Group's five largest suppliers amounted to
approximately 35.0% of the Group's total purchases and the purchases
attributable to the Group's largest supplier were approximately 13.8% of
the Group's total purchases.

None of the Directors, their close associates or any Shareholders (who to
the knowledge of the Directors own more than 5% of the issued shares of
the Company) had any interests in the five largest customers and suppliers
of the Group for the year ended 31 December 2017.

Management Contracts

No contracts other than employment contracts concerning the
management and administration of the whole or any substantial part of
the business of the Company were entered into or existed during the year
ended 31 December 2017.

Litigation

The details of the Group’s litigation proceedings are set out in note 48 to
the consolidated financial statements of the Group.

MBRE

REEB M BENAFRF240H

FTEEFRHER

REE-_Z—+F+-A=1t—HILEE KA&£H
MAKEFHBHEEBE LB A EEL528%"
mERARFEREEBOANEBEEEREL29.0% °

REBEE-_Z—+HE+-_A=+—HILFE K&
BErRRAAHEENAREBBMNAERLHEBEY
35.0% MRl i A4 B M RSB A S B B E T
#113.8%

RBE-_T—tF+T_A=+t—"BHLEFE EF-
BRENBTBHEARTMRR (RESHAANEE AR
REBHTHRM A L) MEREARAEERLATP
Ko A e (R eI M 25

EEEH
BREBaLON RBE-_T—+F+-A=+—H

I FERET IR FESNARB 2 MR L EF
EAEABOZEERITRAL

EETFA
AEEERFDZFBHNANEBEE M REKM
5F48 °
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Directors and Directors’ Service Contracts EEREENREESYD

The Directors during the year ended 31 December 2017 and up to the date REEZE—+tFT_A=+—HLEFERHER

of this annual report are: WMEHBBMNESOAT:
Executive Directors BITES
Mr. Hung Tsung Chin MR A
(resigned as Chairman but remained as an Executive Director (BEBEEIE BEETARITES
with effect from 18 August 2017) B —tFNA+NAHRED
Mr. Chen Wei Chun (appointed as Chief Financial Officer BREHTE(BEZARVBR
with effect from 30 November 2017) BT —tF+—H=THRBER)
Ms. Chen Mei Huei (resigned as an Executive Director and MEBZL (EFEHRTEERATR
Chief Executive Officer with effect from 18 August 2017) BE-Z—tFNA+TNAHRER)
Mr. Liao Wen | BXREE
(resigned with effect from 18 August 2017) (BEBE BZZT—tFN\ATN\BRER)
Mr. Frank Karl-Heinz Fishcer Frank Karl-Heinz Fischer4t £
(resigned with effect from 18 August 2017) (BEFE BZZT—tF A+ NBRER)
Non-Executive Director FHITES
Mr. Kuo Jen Hao (appointed with effect from 18 August 2017) FAREE(BEZFE BZZE—LF
NATNBRBER)
Independent Non-Executive Directors BYFHITES
Mr. Lau Yau Cheung (Chairman) RIhrERE (EF)
(appointed as an Independent Non-Executive Director (BRZERBIUFNTEE B_E—tF
with effect from 7 August 2017 and appointed as Chairman NATtBRBRER WEEZREAERE
with effect from 18 August 2017) BE-ZZ—tFNA+NHRED)
Mr. Li Chak Hung TR E
Mr. Wu Chia Ming REREE
Mr. Han Chien Shan BEFILEAE
(resigned with effect from 7 August 2017) (BB - BZZE—tFN\AEHRBEY)
In accordance with Bye-law 86(2) of the Bye-Laws, Mr. Kuo Jen Hao and RIEMAIE6Q) G BARTEERBIDFEREER
Mr. Lau Yau Cheung shall hold office only until the next following annual FBREARATERRBFRE  WARNERRE
general meeting of the Company and, being eligible, offer themselves for FRE(ZE-\FREBFRE]) LFEER
re-election at the forthcoming annual general meeting (2018 AGM"). BB o
In accordance with Bye-law 87 of the Bye-Laws, Mr. Chen Wei Chun shall RIEMAEe7E REAEEANR_ZE-NFRE
retire from office by rotation and, being eligible, offer himself for re- BERELHRERT WHAEERBERE T

election at the 2018 AGM.
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No Director proposed for re-election at the 2018 AGM has entered into
a service contract with the Company or any of its subsidiaries which is
not determinable by the employing company within one year without
payment of compensation other than statutory compensation.

Changes to Information in Respect of Directors

In accordance with rule 13.51B(1) of the Listing Rules, the changes

to information required to be disclosed by the Directors pursuant to
paragraphs (a) to (e) and (g) of rule 13.51(2) between 28 August 2017
(being the date of approval of the Company's interim report 2017) and up
to the date of this report are set out below:

1. The annual remuneration package of Mr. Chen Wei Chun for acting
as director of Pro Brand Technology, Inc. increased to NTD2,500,000
with effect from 1 January 2017.

2. The remuneration package of Mr. Hung Tsung Chin was adjusted
to include HKS$58,000 per month, RMB14,000 per month, NT$88,000
per month and HK$5,000 per month with effect from 18 August
2017.

3. The director fee of Mr. Wu Chia Ming increased to HK$6,000 per
month with effect from 18 August 2017.

4. The director fee of Mr. Chen Wei Chun for acting as Director
increased to HK$6,000 per month with effect from 1 September
2017.

5. Mr. Chen Wei Chun was appointed as Chief Financial Officer with

effect from 30 November 2017 and his remuneration package
for acting as Chief Financial Officer was a salary of HK$35,000 per
month with double pay on pro rata basis payable.

6. Mr. Kuo Jen Hao was appointed as a non-executive director and
chairman of the board of Summit Ascent Holdings Limited (Stock
Code: 102) with effect from 28 December 2017.

BEHN T \FRRBEFAG LEENEFH
ARRHEERAMBABRLERAARAE—F
ARMERE OXERERIN) MR ENRBEAL -

FHESENED

BIEETRAFEI35BOE RZFE—+EFNA

—+NB(AARQRR —Z— ti@ﬁﬂiﬁiﬁﬂtw@ta

ﬁﬁ)ﬁ£?ﬁ¢$ﬁﬂi@$ﬁ%ﬁﬁ% 135TQBF@QEEME
“%ﬁai%%wﬁaﬁméﬂ‘@qu-

1. PR (& $5 9% 4 #& T Pro Brand Technology, Inc. 2
B FE H AR B I E ¥ & 12,500,000
TCEZE—tF-A—HBRER

2. HIEEENTHSERARABESA
58,0008 7L« B A AR 14000 - F AT A
#88,0007T &2 & B 5000870 B -2 —+4F
ANB+N\BREAER-

3. REPLENEEELEINES A6,0008
T EZE—+tFNAT N BRBER-

4. BREHLEETIEENESHSENETA
600087 BT —+FNLA—BREARM-

5. BREHLEEZTAYER BT —+tF
+—A=Z+HBES HE TP BRI
8 AS A350008 7T W ER LB &
EO

6. BAREERZERITERERAF (B
R 102)FERTEEREFS IR 8
—tF+Z AT NABEER-

Sandmartin International Holdings Limited 22 55 T EIBR = iR G BR A &
2017 Annual Report & 3§



REPORT OF THE DIRECTORS (Continued)
EEgWmE (&)

Directors’ and Senior Management’s Emoluments EzkeAEEEMeRIEAREMEE
and Five Highest Paid Individuals Bl A x

Details of the remuneration of the Directors, together with those of the EERAEEREESHEEMNALTURSRER
five highest paid individuals of the Group and senior management for the BRBE-Z—tF+-_A=T—HLEFENMN:
year ended 31 December 2017 are set out in note 11 to the consolidated HIEDRER A EEGE Y HHREWIF NI REESE
financial statements of the Group and Corporate Governance Report on JR¥REEE35H o

page 35 respectively.

The emolument payable to the Directors (including salary and other ENEENHe (BEFEREMERN) THAR
benefits) are recommended by the Remuneration Committee of the RAFMZESK2ERAEELEER FARRR

Company for the Board's approval, having regard to the Group's operating AR mGHEEAEEERZTES2 A&
results, individual performance and comparable market statistics.

Directors’ Interests in Transactions, Arrangement or Contracts BEEREARS ZRESEGHNTHER
of Significance

No transactions, arrangements or contracts of significance in relation to REBEE_ZE—EF+T_A=T—"BLFE AR

the Company's business to which the Company, any of its subsidiaries, its AHAEMMEBEAR HRERMB AR EERA
fellow subsidiaries or its holding companies was a party and in which a AMEAIVAENESK B HEEERNE R EEN
Director or his or her connected entities had a material interest, whether MERAEE AR  BERNFRIAFRNERFRDA

directly or indirectly, subsisted at the end of or at any time during the year FE BRAARREBNEARS RHHEH -
ended 31 December 2017.

Directors’ and Their Associates’ Interests in Competing EERBEEHBEANRBREIEERPHES
Business

As at 31 December 2017, none of the Directors and their associates RZZE—tF+_A=1+—H MEBEESREFH
(as defined in the Listing Rules) were considered to be interested in ZA(CERL TR WEE AN TR EESKEE
any business which competes or is likely to compete, either directly or HREEEBEREF AR R TP
indirectly, with the business of the Group. Bz

Related Party Transactions BEALRS

A summary of significant related party transactions made during the year REE_E—tFT_A=+T—HIEFERNETZ
ended 31 December 2017 is disclosed in note 43 to the consolidated BAEBATRIMERREBLGE M B WEM T
financial statements of the Group. A3 HEFR o

The related party transactions did not constitute connected transactions/ ZEBBALRZUPEL EMRANIBTHREER
continuing connected transactions under the Listing Rules. 5/ FHEBHERS -
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Share Option Scheme

On 17 March 2005, the share option scheme (“Share Option Scheme”)
was approved and adopted by the then Shareholders. A summary of the
principal terms of the Share Option Scheme is set out as follows:

(i) Purpose of the Share Option Scheme

The purpose of the Share Option Scheme is to recognize the
contributions of the participants.

(ii)  Eligible Participants

The participants of the Share Option Scheme are directors or
employees, any business consultants, business partners, suppliers,
customers, agents, financial or legal adviser, debtors or creditors
who will contribute or have contributed to the Company or any of
its subsidiaries.

(iii)  Grant of Options
The Board shall be entitled at any time, within 10 years after the
date of adoption of the Share Option Scheme, to make an offer of
the grant of an option to any participant.

(iv) Payment on Acceptance of Option Offer
HKS$1.00 is payable by the participant to the Company on

acceptance of the option offer as consideration for the grant within
30 days from the date upon which the option offer is made.

B ESTE
R-TERF=A++R BRI ET TN
BEARAEET 2 ([BERRMESTR)) - B RESH B2 =
ERRMEHIMT :

(i) BREFSEEHN

BREGFIENARESZEANER -

iy BEERZHEHA

BREE2EASKEXUDKEYARAHK
HEMMBARMFHERNEFTHEER (£
MEBHAA EHBH HED TP K
MM GSOERER EEANERA -

(iiiy RHBRE
EF o/ ERRMEBARERT S B HE -+ F 5
e A0 ] el R B2 o () ] 22 B2 A 92 ) B S AE
HIEH -

(iv) ENEREZNNER
2 A ERERESHEREREZSNEL

EHBF =T BAmARRZF1.008 7T
ERERBRENNRE-
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(v) Subscription Price of Shares (v) BRPEBEE
The subscription price of an option to subscribe for shares granted IR IR AT S IR AR AR BB IR D 2 3R
pursuant to the Share Option Scheme shall be the highest of: BEAUTES
the closing price of the shares as stated in the Stock . AP EAEHEREZ LB
Exchange'’s daily quotations sheet on the date on which (BARE¥P)EMIMTARERA
an option offer is made to a participant, which must be a 5 2 Wi (E

business day;

the average of the closing price of the shares as stated in . BROREEELBREZNAMSIR
the Stock Exchange’s daily quotations sheets for the five fE& %P BRI MEARERMAT 2
business days immediately preceding the date on which an FHRTE &

option offer is made; and

the nominal value of a share. . {17 2 E &
(vi) Total Number of Shares Available for Issue (vi) A FRTHRGOEE
The Company had 3,026,400 shares available for issue under the RRRRIBEERERT BN TET 2R EE
Share Option Scheme, representing 0.09% of the issued share 733,026,4000% - HE R AR EBBAARFE
capital of the Company as at the date of this report. BITIRAN20.09% ©
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(vii)

(viii)

Maximum Entitlement of Shares of each Participant

The total number of shares issued and to be issued upon

exercise of all options granted under the Share Option Scheme
and any other share option scheme of the Company to each
participant (including both exercised and outstanding options)

in any 12-month period shall not exceed 1% of the total number
of shares in issue. Where shares issued and to be issued upon
exercise of all options already granted and to be granted under
the Share Option Scheme and any other share option scheme

of the Company (including options exercised, cancelled and
outstanding) to a participant who is a substantial Shareholder or an
independent non-executive Director, or any of his or her associate
in the 12-month period up to and including the date of grant, (1)
representing in aggregate more than 0.1% of the total number of
shares in issue; and (2) having an aggregate value, based on the
closing price of the shares at the date of each grant, in excess of
HKS$5 million, the proposed grant of option must be approved by
the Shareholders by poll in general meeting.

Time of Exercise of Option

The exercise period of any option granted under the Share Option
Scheme shall not be longer than 10 years from the date of grant of
the relevant option. The Board has the authority to determine the
minimum period for which an option must be held before it can be
exercised.

(vii)

(viii)

BESEATEZNRSROHUE

BR2H AETR121E A 2 RR R E R
BIRARNBE A EAM BT EERN 2
ERE(BEETERMARITENERE)
BT RITRAG T HITHROBERTEE
BEEITIRDEEN % - HE AFERFL
BYIEMITES TMHREIHEAZS
HAEEZREER B 2128 A HER
OB AE ST 8 R AN A B ] E b B AR A AT &
ERRBERNDIERE (BIECITE:
B R EARITERNBRE) BITFERRT
EigFEITHRMNEFTBRAEEITRMOE
,201% : ROBRBRORSEL B BT
Bt E R EEB1B50000008 T BIEZHE
HEERENASEIRERRERG IR
FORFAALAE -

TERE R R HIR

RIZ B B ET SR 0 (AT B B O 1T (2 2R
IR # f (AT AR R RE O X 2 B AERT NS B
BIOF -EFEAREEBEREN TITEZ
AL B R B B &2 AR -
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During the year, details of movements in the share options under the Share RER - BIRETEIETHEREZSFEOT
Option Scheme are as follows:

Options to subscribe for shares

TRBRG 2 ERE
Outstanding
Lapsed/ at
Outstanding Cancelled/ 31 December
at 1 January Expired
2017 Exercised Adjusted during % Exercise
Category and RZB-t% during during the year price  Date of Exercisable
name of grantees —-R-H the year theyear FRAXY/ pershare  grant Period
ARARRIRES R T FRTR FREE  ZH/ER WAITE EBROEE BREAH TEH
(Note 3) (Note 3)  (Note 5) (Note 4)
(H#3) (Wit3)  (Biits) (Hiit4)
Directors
E=
Ms. Chen Mei Huei
(Note 1) 2,000,000 = 328,000 = 2328000 HKS176187C 22102010 22.10.2012-21.10.2020
REBLL (Hiit1)
Mr. Frank Karl-Heinz
Fischer (Note 2) 500,000 = 82,000 = 582,000 HKS1761%87C 22102010 22.10.2012-21.10.2020
Frank Karl-Heinz Fischer
R (Wit2)
Sub-total 2,500,000 = 410,000 = 2,910,000
it
Employees of
the Group 100,000 = 16,400 (116,400) - HKS151287T  27.12.2007 27.12.2009-26.12.2017
AEEESR 100,000 = 16,400 - 116400  HKS0.957/87C  01.042009 01.04.2011-31.03.2019
Sub-total 200,000 = 32,800 (116,400) 116,400
it
Total 2,700,000 = 442,800 (116,400) 3,026,400
@zt
Notes: B sE -
1. Ms. Chen Mei Huei resigned as executive Director with effect from 18 August 2017. 1. BREBRLEREIRTEEF BT —tFNA TR

AR
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2. Mr. Frank Karl-Heinz Fischer resigned as executive Director with effect from 18 August
2017.
3. The exercise price of the outstanding share options and the number of shares to be

allotted and issued upon full exercise of the outstanding share options were adjusted
with effect from 19 July 2017 pursuant to the relevant terms of the Share Option
Scheme as a result of Open Offer.

4. These share options are exercisable in the following manner:

(i) on or after the second anniversary of the date of 50%

grant up to 10 years from the date of grant

(i) on or after the third anniversary of the date of grant remaining 50%

up to 10 years from the date of grant

5. The closing prices of the shares of 26 December 2007, 31 March 2009 and 21 October
2010 immediately before the date of grant were HK$1.76, HK$1.07 and HK$2.05

respectively.

The share options granted under the Share Option Scheme are not
recognised as share capital in the financial statements of the Company
until they are exercised.

The Share Option Scheme had expired on 16 March 2015. However, all the
outstanding share options are exercisable in accordance with the terms

of the Share Option Scheme and such other terms and conditions upon
which the share option was granted, at any time during the option period
after the share option has been granted by the Board but in any event, not
longer than ten (10) years from the date upon which the share option is
accepted or deemed to be accepted in accordance with the terms of the
Share Option Scheme.

During the year, the Company has adopted no new share option scheme.

2. Frank Karl-Heinz Fischer St A BB E#ITE S BT — L&
FNA+NEHRBRE -
3. MARITEBRENTEERMARTEERERAQMES

BARBTERETRERBITORNEE B REBRE
FREIMARRGRTUAR AT —tF LA+ AR

e
4. ZERBBETRATHRITHE:
() RELBHTMAFEARZEER 50%
BEL B HRI0F
(i) AELBBR-ATERRCERES Fl#r50%
BB ERI0F
5. BOREERHBSHITR -_ES+FE+_A=-+8"

—ETAFSAS+-BR-Z-TF+A-+—BH
B 5 Bl A1.7678 7T~ 1.0748 7T ;K 2.058 7T ©

RIBEEE SR ENBRENETERIRAR
A IR ER R

BREASER -_ZE-—HAF=A+BEM A

- AERRITEBRETNEREEESER N
1% B B P v BA R 19 fo) iy ) - 1 S G 20 ) T iR GB 8
P HRE AR 12 R R St 1) ) 1R SR 32 A Bl AR AR (R JE R A
ZHET0F  RIFERETBOGERER LB
P 48 PIT 40K 9 B0 L b MR SR R AR 1 T AT T (3 ©

REFER - KRB ISR AT RIS & -
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Directors’ and Chief Executive’s Interests and EERESTHRAERKRA HEBRH KR
Short Positions in Shares, Underlying Shares and BFEPHNEZRKXE

Debentures

The Directors and chief executive who held office at 31 December 2017 RZE—+F+ A=+ HEBNEEREST
had the following interests and short positions in the shares, underlying BMABRARNGI RABEEZE (ERRBSFRHE
shares and debentures of the Company and its associated corporation 180 ([F 2 RAREGA] ) EBXVED) Mkt - 1B AR
(within the meaning of Part XV of the Securities and Futures Ordinance DREFFHEECARBEBESF RBAEEAE352
("SFO") as recorded in the register required to be kept under Section BAETFEMNE LRSI IREEFELESTREANEARAQF]
352 of the SFO or as otherwise notified to the Company and the Stock REE R PTH s ROR BT -

Exchange pursuant to the Model Code:

(a)  Long positions in the shares, underlying shares and (@ REQXARG HBEROREZHNHER

debentures of the Company

Percentage of

the issued
share capital
as at
Number of 31.12.2017
underlying - Amount of
Number of shares held debentures
Name of Director Capacity shares held B MR E %?‘T}ﬁz’r‘ held
EspE &4 iR G EE e ¢E] it Bk FiBES S
Mr. Hung Tsung Chin Interest of controlled 507,188,592 - -
IR S A corporation
FREEm S
Interest of spouse - 2,328,000° -
Fic (B 12
Beneficial owner 2 = =
EmAA
Sub-total
INET 507,188,594 2,328,000 509,516,594 15.53% -

Notes: B 5 -

1. These shares represent shares held by Metroasset Investments Limited in 1. #Z % R 15 K &k Metroasset Investments Limited
which Mr. Hung Tsung Chin beneficially owns 45.09% of the issued share BRI - IR A B e HE B % A B1A945.09%
capital. BT -

2. The relevant interests are unlisted physically settled options granted 2. HEE D ARIEERETEIRENIELETEY
pursuant to the Share Option Scheme. Upon exercise of the share options HEE B - FIERER BB ZETE
in accordance with the Share Option Scheme, shares in the share capital of 1§ AR AR EI IR A] FEIT - ERIER S
the Company are issuable. The share options are personal to the respective EEAFAFTE - BRERE - FFBEHNEK
grantees. Further details of the share options are set out in the section Wt [EREE] —&-

headed “Share Option Scheme” of this report.
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(b) Long positions in the shares, underlying shares
and debentures of associated corporations of
the Company

Number of
shares held

PR 88

Name of Director

Capacity
Eg)

Mr.ghen Wei Chun Interest of controlled 350,000
BREHTE fcgrgo\ration 5
A E R R
Note:

1. These shares represent 350,000 shares of Pro Brand Technology, Inc, a non-
wholly owned subsidiary of the Company, held by Jun Zhong Investment
Limited in which Mr. Chen Wei Chun beneficially owns the entire issued share
capital.

Interests and Short Positions of Shareholders
Discloseable Under the SFO

As at 31 December 2017, according to the register kept by the Company
under Section 336 of the SFO, the following companies and persons,
other than the Directors and chief executive of the Company, had long
positions of 5% or more in the shares and underlying shares which fell to
be disclosed to the Company under Divisions 2 and 3 of Part XV of the SFO:

Long positions in the shares

Name of Shareholders

R &R

Metroasset Investments Limited

Capacity
514

Beneficial owner
EmEAA

Ms. Chen Mei Huei
REBLZ T ZPEHEE 8 =
Interest of spouse
BB m

Personal interest
NG &

Sub-total

It

First Steamship Company Limited

s AR A A RESEENERS
Mr. Fung Chuen Beneficial owner
BRTE BEHEAA

Number of
underlying
shares held

Interest of controlled corporation

Interest of controlled corporation

(b) KA

Percentage to
the issued

share capital

as at 31.12.2017
1R t& Amount of
debentures
Total _ held
it B8

350,000

FsE:

1. ZEROREBHIREFRDFAFENARAEF
% & [} B /2 &) Pro Brand Technology, Inc#J350,000
MRARG  BREHEEEREEHMHPREERA
RN R A B BEITIRA -

g%&%ﬁﬁﬂﬁ%ﬁﬁmﬁﬁﬁﬁ

RIE—+F+_A=+—H BELXQARIBEE
FH R HEIENEBETFENERM AT AR KA
T (BEERARAZETHRAERIN) BAIREE
HE R HEIEBIEXVELE 29 T M 3D S AR AL A
T R5%E A R D KRR G TR

RGO EFR

R’
)5

S

m%

N

Percentage of

Number of the issued share
shares and capital as at
underlying 31.12.2017
shares held =%

FERAR |_t—A=t—H
HERGEHE ERTREABTIL
507,188,592! 15.47%

507,188,592?

2

2,328,000°
509,516,594 15.53%
950,859,347* 29.00%
65,878,000° 5.02%
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Notes: Bt 5 -

1. These shares are held by Metroasset Investments Limited, 45.09% of the issued share 1. % % IR 15 B3 Metroasset Investments Limited#5 & - 1
capital of which is beneficially owned by Mr. Hung Tsung Chin. Metroasset Investments Limited#745.09% B, 2% 17 % 2% | 4

LA FEERES -

2. These shares are held by Metroasset Investments Limited, 44.38% of the issued share 2. Z Z B 15 B Metroasset Investments Limited$§ 5 +

capital of which is beneficially owned by Ms. Chen Mei Huei. Metroasset Investments Limited #744.38% 2 % 17 B 7K (3[R
FELLTEREAE -

3. The relevant interests are unlisted physically settled options granted pursuant to the 3. RS ARBEERETSELNFELTEDEEER
Share Option Scheme. Upon exercise of the share options in accordance with the o FFBRERRERES EETER  RARRERD
Share Option Scheme, shares in the share capital of the Company are issuable. The MRADA] T 817 - BIRER S AR ATAE < BRENE
share options are personal to the respective grantees. Further details of the share —HHBHARRE [HEAREE ] —&-
options are set out in the section headed “Share Option Scheme” of this report.

4. First Steamship Company Limited (“First Steamship”) is interested in 950,859,347 shares 4. wmROBRAR ([w=M])BRE2ENE R FFist
through First Mariner Holding Limited, a wholly-owned subsidiary of First Steamship, Mariner Holding Limited }z £ 3F 2 & I & A & Grand Citi
which holds 833,000,000 shares and Grand Citi Limited, a non-wholly owned subsidiary Limited 950,859,347 % % 17 2 ¥ /5 ## %5 - EL P First Mariner
of First Steamship, which holds 117,859,347 shares. Holding Limited#% 75 833,000,000% 8% % K& Grand Citi Limited

F58117,859,347 ML A 17
5. Disclosure of the percentage of the issued share capital held by Fung Chuen is made 5. FRBRFERTRAZAESEHBEREE AR -

as per the last disclosure of interests notice as at 31 December 2017 which was filed
on 2 June 2017.

Save as disclosed above, the Company has not been notified by any other

person (other than the Directors and chief executive of the Company) who
had an interest of 5% or more in the shares and underlying shares as at 31

December 2017 which fell to be disclosed to the Company under Divisions
2 and 3 of Part XV of the SFO.

Purchase, Sale or Redemption of the Company’s
Listed Securities

Neither the Company nor any of its subsidiaries has purchased, sold or

redeemed any of the Company’s listed securities during the year ended 31
December 2017.

Pre-Emptive Rights

There are no provisions for pre-emptive rights under the Bye-Laws or

the laws in Bermuda, being the jurisdiction in which the Company was

incorporated, under which the Company would be obliged to offer new

—+tFRAZBEFERRZE—+tF+A=+T—HZ&
IMHEB B BAMIEL -

B EXFrBEE N NRAR L BB EMAL
(BERARARBITBRAEBRINEMER-F
—tE T - A=T-BEARBEEFLRAE KIS
XVEBSR 270 B M 5630 BR BRI AR BB EEA5%EIA £
Betn S AR RE R 40 By #E 2

BE HEIHLEAQAFAzLTES
HE-Z—tF+-A=+—ALEE KRR
EMEIER TV EEME S REE AR

S

ERBRE

A ERE (AIARBEMKAERDAER)
EERDERRELCBRENG MEARBER
LHImRABRIEZHEHRRD -

shares on a pro-rata basis to the existing Shareholders.
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REPORT OF THE DIRECTORS (Continued)
EEgWmE (4)

Corporate Governance

Principal corporate governance practices adopted by the Company are set
out in the Corporate Governance Report contained in this annual report.

Sufficiency of Public Float

Based on the information that is publicly available to the Company and
within the knowledge of the Directors as at the date of this annual report,
the Directors confirmed that the Company has maintained the amount of
public float as required under the Listing Rules throughout the year.

Auditor

The consolidated financial statements for the year ended 31 December
2017 have been audited by BDO Limited. A resolution for the re-
appointment of BDO Limited as the auditor of the Company for the
ensuing year is to be proposed at the 2018 AGM.

Professional Tax Advice Recommended

If the Shareholders are unsure about the taxation implications of
purchasing, holding, disposing of, dealing in, or the exercise of any rights in
relation to the shares, they are advised to consult an expert.

EEER

ARTRAOEIECEEARRRNAFRARD

e s
BERRE -

RARNRERE

REARBAAFESHENEAEETRAFRA
HIFrA EFERAARBNFA—EAFT EHRA

MENRBIFRE -

B B Em

BE_T—tHFT-A=T"RLFENGEAUK
BARCKBEL GERRETMEHEMERQAE
B ARBHNR T \FRREFRELESR
BRAERBBU EERETMEFAERRFS
ARRF N —FE XA -

EREXBERER

HERRTHEEBE KA KE BEBROIITEE
MHERNOBRGEE FhAERER -
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REPORT OF THE DIRECTORS (Continued)
EEgWmE (4)

Closure of register of members EENERNBFERLFE

For the purpose of determining the eligibility of the Shareholders to ﬁﬁmﬁx%ﬁr —N\FREBFRgWNE L

attend, speak and vote at the 2018 AGM, the register of members of the BERRENER ZIS’A\ Al E T =R IERR 5

Company ("Register of Members") will be closed as set out below: PELZFE(IROHBPELRFE])  F1EH5 ZZD

T

Latest time to lodge transfer At 4:30 p.m. on B& 17 8 S R AR R A —E-N\FRAKXA
documents for registration with Wednesday, 6 June 2018 %5‘:* Wt 35)5 B EH=)
the branch share registrar DEMMEF TN HERR TFUK=T5

of the Company in Hong Kong

Record Date Wednesday, 6 June 2018 0 8% B EA —E—-N\FERANH
(EH=)

Closure of the Register of Members Thursday, 7 June 2018t EEHERMBFELFE —T—-/\FXALH
Tuesday, 12 June 2018 EHm)E

(both days inclusive) —E-NFARATZH

(E®Z)

(EEMABELEA)

For the purpose mentioned above, all properly completed transfer forms BEMBEH MBEZMAPRIEERBHEREER
accompanied by the relevant share certificates must be lodged for RERH&ERRA XERNAAIBEROBSE

registration with the branch share registrar of the Company in Hong Kong, RORBBRRELFERARMNERMNBFELF
Computershare Hong Kong Investor Services Limited, at Shops 1712-1716, BN REAEFERRERISIREMPO7E
17th Floor, Hopewell Centre, 183 Queen'’s Road East, Wanchai, Hong Kong 1712-1716F ©

no later than the aforementioned latest time.

For and on behalf of the Board REESES

Lau Yau Cheung *E

Chairman EIRk =

Hong Kong, 26 March 2018 B ZE-NF=ZHA=+H
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR'S REPORT
B R HET RS

Tel : +852 2218 8288
Fax: +852 2815 2239
www.bdo.com.hk

EEE : +852 2218 8288
{5H : +852 28152239
www.bdo.com.hk

TO THE SHAREHOLDERS OF
SANDMARTIN INTERNATIONAL HOLDINGS LIMITED
(incorporated in Bermuda with limited liability)

Opinion

We have audited the consolidated financial statements of Sandmartin
International Holdings Limited (the “Company”) and its subsidiaries
(together the “Group”) set out on pages 79 to 239, which comprise the
consolidated statement of financial position as at 31 December 2017, and
the consolidated statement of profit or loss and other comprehensive
income, the consolidated statement of changes in equity and the
consolidated statement of cash flows for the year then ended, and notes to
the consolidated financial statements, including a summary of significant
accounting policies.

In our opinion, the consolidated financial statements give a true and
fair view of the consolidated financial position of the Group as at 31
December 2017, and of its consolidated financial performance and its
consolidated cash flows for the year then ended in accordance with Hong
Kong Financial Reporting Standards issued by the Hong Kong Institute of
Certified Public Accountants ("HKICPA") and have been properly prepared
in compliance with the disclosure requirements of the Hong Kong
Companies Ordinance.

BDO Limited
BB EERSHMEBAERAR

25t Floor Wing On Centre
111 Connaught Road Central

Hong Kong
FEBATHED11158R
KZRHD251E

BESTERERARAAZEBKRR

(REREZEMAE L2 BERALE])

=R

ZEERINEIBEEZTFEBBEANMERT BK
IHXEBE A([ERADEEMRBAR (KEA
[EEE NGB HRE LEVBREREBER
—E—tEF+ A=+ BRSSP R RE
iaxﬁiﬁrmi?ATEﬁﬁ&ﬁ1ﬁiﬁuﬁlﬁﬁi§‘Z
B2 REGEEERER URKAVBHRE
WEI'“%IEEE‘HB( R E o

ERR ZEHEUBRRERBEBBGOA
(F%/amﬁrﬁﬂi NE)BEMNEFBM RS ER
BEEARFHRRT BSEER-_ZFT—tF+-A
=+ HNGEEMBRARBEZB LFENGE
BBRRREGEHESRE YERRBREBQFED
BEREZDRE-

BDO Limited, a Hong Kong limited company, is a member of BDO International Limited, a UK company limited by guarantee,

and forms part of the international BDO network of independent member firms.
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT (Continued)

B ZHEMRE (&)

Basis for Opinion

We conducted our audit in accordance with Hong Kong Standards on
Auditing ("HKSAs") issued by the HKICPA. Our responsibilities under those
standards are further described in the “Auditor’'s Responsibilities for the
Audit of the Consolidated Financial Statements” section of our report. We
are independent of the Group in accordance with the HKICPA's “Code of
Ethics for Professional Accountants” (the “Code”), and we have fulfilled
our other ethical responsibilities in accordance with the Code. We believe
that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to

provide a basis for our opinion.

Emphasis of Matter

We draw attention to note 48 to the consolidated financial statements,
which describes the details of litigations of the Company. Our opinion is
not modified in respect of this matter.

Material Uncertainty Related to Going Concern

We draw attention to note 3(b) in the consolidated financial statements,
which indicates that the Group incurred a net loss of HK$105,798,000
attributable to owners of the Company during the year ended 31
December 2017 and, as of that date, the Group’s current liabilities
exceeded its current assets by HK$62,241,000. As stated in note 3(b), these
conditions, along with other matter as set forth in note 3(b), indicate that a
material uncertainty exists that may cast significant doubt on the Group's
ability to continue as a going concern. Our opinion is not modified in
respect of this matter.

Sandmartin International Holdings Limited 2 5 T BEIFR 2 R H R A A
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT (Continued)

B ZHEMRE (&)

Key Audit Matters

Key audit matters are those matters that, in our professional judgement,
were of most significance in our audit of the consolidated financial
statements of the current period. These matters were addressed in
the context of our audit of the consolidated financial statements as a
whole, and in forming our opinion thereon, and we do not provide a
separate opinion on these matters. In addition to the matter described
in the "Material Uncertainty Related to Going Concern” section, we have
determined the matters described below to be the key audit matters to be
communicated in our report.

Impairment assessment of loan to and amount due from an
associate

(Refer to notes 5 and 21 to the consolidated financial statements)

As at 31 December 2017, the Group had several receivables from an
associate, Dish Media Network Limited, including (i) loan to an associate of
HK$25,304,000; and (ii) amount due from an associate of HK$46,140,000.

There is a risk that the carrying values of these receivables are not
recoverable. An impairment assessment judged by management with
reference to, among other things, (i) the evaluation of collectability and
aging analysis of receivables, including the current creditworthiness and
the past collection history of an associate; and/or (ii) the recoverable
amounts of the receivables, by using cash flow forecast for the year ending

1 December 2018 of the associate and applying an appropriate discount
rate.

After management'’s impairment assessment, no impairment loss on the
above balances with the associate is considered necessary.

RREEXRER

REBSNERHE BREZFEL/BEEINER
AHREAMBBRRTRA/EENETH BENE

RERAMBERRNAUERE RS EBREZS
B MAERREFTREBERER - [f [HIFEK
EHEENBEANTHBARE] — &R EEN FF
EEE NXMAERA/ARRER T AR AREZ
FIHe

BT HBBEQLTAMNESR
B B SR IE KV RLE R A

AR EW—BEE R

(F2H&EER R ERZ5R21)

RZEBE—tF+_A=+—8' BEEEEK—
RS B4 4% /A B]Dish Media Network Limited 897 T & Ik
FIEBIE: ,\u% ] B 25 /R B) 9 B 30 25,304,000
JC s R nﬁiuﬂz At & X B B9 F0IE 46,140,000 T ©

P iR T ) B T (B T e R IR Bl B LB - B ER B D
2B (EREHE) FH&Z K IR HY A] U B 1 RS KR
oM (BIEE S AR E AT (S B R Ma 1 WK E
£) 5 RGN EUGRIE Y AT Y B & B8 - JF {5 FR B
ARABE-ZT-N\F+_A=1T—HILEFENERSE
METER KR A BRI R - (I RE RS #

B EFLRMENGER R L
WMEBEDBTILE-
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR'S REPORT (Continued)
B ZHMBRE (&)

Our response EENEE

Our key procedures in relation to management's impairment assessment EHEERERETENERERF B

included:

- Reviewing the aging report and repayment history of the associate; —  EHZBERRNRE®RE MNERESL

- Checking, on a sample basis, settlements during the year and - ?Hﬂ’f* S MR EﬂX1¢£F' e R RIMNFE N
subsequent settlements from the associate to the relevant BNHBEEER

supporting documents;

BHENTNERER N

P

- Circularising direct confirmations of the associate; -

- Discussing with management of the associate to understand its - BZBE N R EEENwm NETHREER
business operations and development; EIERERARMN

- Assessing the reasonableness of the key assumptions of the cash - ERETERE BN wmMEREZRE
flow forecast based on the discussion with management and FHERERERA AREBRNESENL R
evidence provided; and

- Reconciling input data to supporting evidence and checking the - ZHEEASIBEE ST FREREIRRS R
mathematical accuracy of the discounted cash flows. SEMETERRM -

Impairment of goodwill, intangible assets and property, plant BE BFEERVE BERRBEZRE
and equipment

(Refer to notes 5, 14, 18 and 19 to the consolidated financial (FBBHEEHBEREN S 14188 19)
statements)

As at 31 December 2017, the carrying amounts of goodwill, intangible fﬁ(\\:g*tiﬂL*ﬂ =t+—R EHBEEERE
assets and property, plant and equipment are HK$108,297,000, RENBERFEERER I ENEE BEEE
HK$17,368,000 and HK$90,250,000 respectively related to the satellite TV &%% T N 5% 2 BR T & 58 9 Bl /108,297,000
equipment and antenna segment and satellite TV broadcasting segment B TT ~ 17,368,000/ 7T 590,250,000 7T + M TG F 13
and are assessed annually for impairment. The Group made losses for the TREF G BEEERAFEREFHESEE
current year and previous year. This situation increases the risk that the BeoltBERNIENZEEERAENES LR
carrying value of these assets may be impaired. (EE:o) e

Impairment tests require the estimation of recoverable amounts of the WENRERENMEREER L ERAMBERESR
relevant cash-generating units using a discounted cash flow, based on a ERFAEERSESSEMNTIRESE MRS
value in use approach, as detailed in note 18 to the consolidated financial TR M s 18F T FFAl o

statements.
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT (Continued)

B ZHEMRE (&)

We identified the impairment assessment as a key audit matter because of
its significance to the consolidated financial statements and as it involves a
significant degree of judgement made by management which includes:

- Preparing future cash flow forecasts for the relevant cash-
generating units; and

- Selecting and applying appropriate growth and discount rates.
The Group also engaged an independent external valuer to assist
management in assessing the recoverable amount of satellite TV
broadcasting segment.

Our response

Our key procedures in relation to management’s impairment assessment
included:

- Assessing the reliability of management'’s forecasts by comparing
previous budgets to actual results;

- Assessing the reasonableness of the key assumptions of the
forecasts based on our knowledge of the industry and evidence
provided;

- Reconciling input data to supporting evidence and checking the
mathematical accuracy of the value in use calculations; and

- Evaluating the independent external valuer's competence,
capabilities and objectivity.

BEEHREMNERESBREZZR WLIIANE
HEEVBHRREBEARSREREFLZERXR
HE - ER B

- mEERBRCELE
Al R

1LE}J$XEE§//\LE§E\
— EERERRAAHEERERANER
ERENMEREE NG EMRBEIRE (R R

EREENBZAIKREEEE-

EENEE

%

BREEEREMENEREFE2E:

-  ERLEBEEESR ?W%ﬁﬁﬁgﬁﬁﬁ

{/IEHZ'ITE\/E\UE)‘]—Jsﬂ

~  EREEHTERBRRERKOEE TG
TR BB RN AR

~ BRYBABBEIBEERREHEEDE
2 E R R

— FEBUNEGEEGA N RER
i o
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR'S REPORT (Continued)
B RHENRE (&)

Impairment assessment of trade and bills receivables FEWE 5 R EWRE 2R E
(Refer to notes 5 and 25 to the consolidated financial statements) EEMES B REMESR25)

As at 31 December 2017, the Group had trade and bills receivables of RZFE—+F+H=1T—H ' E&EzEKHE
HK$232,096,000. There is a risk that these receivables are not recoverable. 5 BR 5 % JE ZE 5 /5232,096,0000%8 TC © 3% & JE R
An impairment assessment judged by management with reference to, BEHREZWENERR EREDN2R (AR BE)
among other things, the evaluation of collectability and aging analysis of BEEBANFTREMTEREESN (REBAE
each debtor, including the current creditworthiness and the past collection ARS8 E KRBT UGRE S ) - B R E T I o
history of each debtor.

After management’s impairment assessment, impairment losses on trade EREFEHRBENGHE FARBREAER
receivables of HK$20,273,000 have been recognised in profit or loss during 20,273,000 T 2 FEWE S5 BR A Z BB K518 -
the year.

%

Our response EEWEOpE

Our key procedures in relation to management’s impairment assessment EHEEERENENEREFBE:

included:

- Reviewing the debtors aging report and debtors repayment - EREBACKRKRRSE REBAERESL
history;

- Checking, on a sample basis, settlements during the year and - ?Elﬂ’f?*ﬁﬁﬁ?ﬁ'ﬁEﬂX#L{E%k/\ﬁ'lilﬁi =
subsequent settlements from debtors to the relevant supporting MEBEEBR
documents;

- Reviewing management'’s assessment for receivables which are - FIZE 1R [E 5180 BB R 5 (8 FE W IB M) 5T 15
past due but not impaired and understanding the business natures R TSR 2 EBME RKIE &

and rationale for these receivables; and

- Circularising direct confirmations of debtors, on a sample basis, and — MRS BHEBANEERR RN RS R
performing alternative audit work on all non-replies by checking to BERAXHE DR EETEREERCE
the relevant supporting documents. ZIAE-
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT (Continued)

B ZHEMRE ()

Other Information in the Annual Report

The directors are responsible for the other information. The other
information comprises the information included in the Company’s annual
report, but does not include the consolidated financial statements and our
auditor’s report thereon. Prior to the date of this auditor's report, we have
obtained the chairman’s letter to shareholders of the annual report but
have not obtained the remaining other information included in the annual
report (the “Remaining Other Information”), which is expected to be made
available to us after that date.

Our opinion on the consolidated financial statements does not cover
the other information and we do not and will not express any form of
assurance conclusion thereon.

In connection with our audit of the consolidated financial statements,
our responsibility is to read the other information identified above and, in
doing so, consider whether the other information is materially inconsistent
with the consolidated financial statements or our knowledge obtained in
the audit or otherwise appears to be materially misstated. If, based on the
work we have performed on the other information that we obtained prior
to the date of this auditor’s report, we conclude that there is a material
misstatement of this other information, we are required to report that fact.
We have nothing to report in this regard.

When we read the Remaining Other Information, if we conclude that there
is @ material misstatement therein, we are required to communicate the
matter to the Audit Committee and take appropriate action considering
our legal rights and obligations.

FHRAHMER

%$//\ff ERAFAEMEMAS HMEHBREA
REFHAEER ETBEFEMBRERLZH
bR & - RAZHENRE B IR BEECBBAF
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR'S REPORT (Continued)
B ZHMBRE (&)

Directors’ Responsibilities for the Consolidated Financial ZEEMGAMERREAKENSE
Statements

The directors are responsible for the preparation of the consolidated EEABERBEEB LTINS HMENE BT BR
financial statements that give a true and fair view in accordance with HFRARBFBRARABGHNCEEZRE GEEEMA
Hong Kong Financial Reporting Standards issued by the HKICPA and the FHEeBmE WEBHEHRABRELE W TEH
disclosure requirements of the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance, and for KITWE 2 NEBEEYE - AMEAR & I SR T 1FE |
such internal control as the directors determine is necessary to enable the REFF SRR M B B E KRR R il

preparation of consolidated financial statements that are free from material

misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.

In preparing the consolidated financial statements, the directors are RRRGEEVBmEE EFEBHETE E5E
responsible for assessing the Group's ability to continue as a going SELENRN TEERBE T REEBFELE
concern, disclosing, as applicable, matters related to going concern and HENEIE WERBECERASHER KRIEE
using the going concern basis of accounting unless the directors either EHAEH BEEEBFLSIFILHEENAEEMER
intend to liquidate the Group or to cease operations, or have no realistic HBERATER

alternative but to do so.

The directors are also responsible for overseeing the Group's financial EENEEEE BEXECVBRBRETF BZE
reporting process. The Audit Committee assists the directors in discharging BEgmhESETLTECBE-

their responsibilities in this regard.

Auditor’s Responsibilities for the Audit of the Consolidated ZEMMBRGSUBBRRERENER
Financial Statements

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the EENEERBESVBRREEEL TN FEAK
consolidated financial statements as a whole are free from material SRR MER s EAMRFANEAEZE I
misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to issue an auditor’s HEBEEEERMNZEMBE - AfEDIKER
report that includes our opinion. This report is made solely to you, as a FE-NN—FRANEBE0KERS BT (EA—
body, in accordance with Section 90 of the Bermuda Companies Act 1981, B MmN - W AARAEREMRE - EE e
and for no other purpose. We do not assume responsibility towards or ZERN SRS AR MEAEMA T B EslFEE M
accept liability to any other person for the contents of this report. HfEe

Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance, but is not a guarantee EEZERRKENZE BETERFZBEEE
that an audit conducted in accordance with HKSAs will always detect a ZEREITHER EE —EARERRAFERR
material misstatement when it exists. Misstatements can arise from fraud BEBE IR o $H ER R il AT (A HRBF Sk B AR A= A - e A1) 3k
or error and are considered material if, individually or in the aggregate, BRTAEBEEHBEATAREERAERERZSRE
they could reasonably be expected to influence the economic decisions of ~ BF 5 ¥R 3& VB H AU AS B R SR IF - B IR B 8 KEE R PR

users taken on the basis of these consolidated financial statements. it o
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR'S REPORT (Continued)
B ZHMBRE (&)

As part of an audit in accordance with HKSAs, we exercise professional EERBEAEANEARITERZNIEZ — 2K
judgement and maintain professional skepticism throughout the audit. We ERNBARREREXAELRRBEERR -EFF
also: IR

identify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the
consolidated financial statements, whether due to fraud or error,
design and perform audit procedures responsive to those risks,
and obtain audit evidence that is sufficient and appropriate to
provide a basis for our opinion. The risk of not detecting a material
misstatement resulting from fraud is higher than for one resulting
from error, as fraud may involve collusion, forgery, intentional
omissions, misrepresentations, or the override of internal control.

obtain an understanding of internal control relevant to the audit
in order to design audit procedures that are appropriate in the
circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on
the effectiveness of the Group's internal control.

evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the
reasonableness of accounting estimates and related disclosures
made by the directors.

conclude on the appropriateness of the directors’ use of the going
concern basis of accounting and, based on the audit evidence
obtained, whether a material uncertainty exists related to events
or conditions that may cast significant doubt on the Group’s
ability to continue as a going concern. If we conclude that a
material uncertainty exists, we are required to draw attention in
our auditor’s report to the related disclosures in the consolidated
financial statements or, if such disclosures are inadequate, to
modify our opinion. Our conclusions are based on the audit
evidence obtained up to the date of our auditor’s report. However,
future events or conditions may cause the Group to cease to
continue as a going concern.

Rl R FHE RN RFF B R ME B A B
BHREBRFEEAH RN ER - 525
NAITERIE A B S 25 E R - LA R IEER
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BRI R BE B I R AR M SR AR R
) [ o
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT (Continued)

B ZHEMRE ()

evaluate the overall presentation, structure and content of the
consolidated financial statements, including the disclosures, and
whether the consolidated financial statements represent the
underlying transactions and events in a manner that achieves fair
presentation.

obtain sufficient appropriate audit evidence regarding the financial
information of the entities or business activities within the Group
to express an opinion on the consolidated financial statements. We
are responsible for the direction, supervision and performance of
the group audit. We remain solely responsible for our audit opinion.

We communicate with the Audit Committee regarding, among other
matters, the planned scope and timing of the audit and significant audit
findings, including any significant deficiencies in internal control that we
identify during our audit.

We also provide the Audit Committee with a statement that we have
complied with relevant ethical requirements regarding independence,
and to communicate with them all relationships and other matters that
may reasonably be thought to bear on our independence, and where
applicable, related safeguards.

From the matters communicated with directors, we determine those
matters that were of most significance in the audit of the consolidated
financial statements of the current period and are therefore the key audit
matters. We describe these matters in our auditor’s report unless law
or regulation precludes public disclosure about the matter or when, in
extremely rare circumstances, we determine that a matter should not be
communicated in our report because the adverse consequences of doing
so would reasonably be expected to outweigh the public interest benefits
of such communication.

BDO Limited

Certified Public Accountants

Yu Tsui Fong

Practising Certificate Number P05440

Hong Kong, 26 March 2018
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF PROFIT OR LOSS AND OTHER COMPREHENSIVE INCOME

GeBRmRkHEMEEWES

FORTHE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2017

2 3%

He—ZT—+F+-_A=+—HILFE
2017 2016
—ZE—-+tF —T—RF
Notes HK$'000 HK$'000
B & FHERT FAT
Revenue W &= 6 1,544,838 1,801,501
Cost of sales & B (1,468,119) (1,618,296)
Gross profit FE A 76,719 183,205
Other income, gains and losses HigA - Wz R EE 42,704 (50,408)
Increase in fair value of HEYER N TFEE N
investment properties 17 19,580 26,906
Impairment loss on goodwill ERESE 18 (28,000) -
Distribution and selling costs KB R B AR (44,113) (45,709)
Administrative and other expenses TEHEEMRAS (177,582) (155,417)
Research and development costs Tt 2% A AR (37,206) (41,595)
Share of profit of an associate FEAE — fAl e & 2 R] 008 7 20 8,088 4,931
Finance costs A& B 8 (27,223) (14,653)
Loss before income tax expense FrEfZHAEER (167,033) (92,740)
Income tax expense FriS %t i 9 (8,758) (14,618)
Loss for the year KEEFIE 10 (175,791) (107,358)
Other comprehensive income Hih2EWE
Item that will not be reclassified HETEEN 7 HEZ B
subsequently to profit or loss: #HEA -
— Re-measurement gain on —AEBAGFTENEN
defined benefit plan FrEWE 32 23 -
Item that may be reclassified Bt B D 18w
subsequently to profit or loss: :opz] 5 :
— Exchange differences on translation —BEBINEBIE R
of foreign operations =% (10,699) (6,624)
Other comprehensive income rEEHMEEKE
for the year (10,676) (6,624)
Total comprehensive income AEETEKRREE
for the year (186,467) (113,982)
Loss for the year attributable to: THREEERFERSE:
- Owners of the Company —KRBIEAB A (105,798) (77,655)
- Non-controlling interests — JE PR A (69,993) (29,703)
(175,791) (107,358)
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GeBakAtEAEWER (F)

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2017
BHE_ZT—tHF+-A=+—RHLFE

CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF PROFIT OR LOSS AND OTHER COMPREHENSIVE INCOME (Continued)

2017 2016
—E—+tF —E-RF
Notes HK$’000 HK$'000
s FTHET FHET
Total comprehensive income THEEEAZERAEE:
attributable to:
— Owners of the Company —ARRRHEBA (115,848) (84,503)
- Non-controlling interests —FEIER (70,619) (29,479)
(186,467) (113,982)
(restated)
(E5)
Loss per share SRER 13 HK cents HK cents
A4l AL
— Basic —H K (4.5) (5.3)
- Diluted —#F (4.5) (5.3)
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION
e BRI R

AS AT 31 DECEMBER 2017
RZF—tF+ZA=+—~H

2017 2016
—E—+F ZE-REF
Notes HKS$'000 HKS$'000
B 2 FET FHET
Non-current assets kRBEE
Property, plant and equipment Y- WE kA 14 149,844 142,554
Deposit paid to an associate B —fEBEA RN 15 - 46,306
Prepaid lease payments FENHEEKIE 16 5,037 4,859
Investment properties "EME 17 73,681 146,648
Goodwill (EES 18 108,297 134,874
Intangible assets mEEE 19 17,368 21,698
Interest in an associate R—EEE AR NER 20 59,325 4,931
Loan to an associate BT —MBERANER 20 - 25,309
Loan receivables FEU B 22 8,794 -
Deferred tax assets RERTEEE 23 6,438 9,134
Total non-current assets EREBEELT 428,784 536,313
Current assets RBEE
Inventories ey 24 258,428 267,095
Trade, bills and other receivables FEUE ZHRF ﬁ'@%%ﬁ&
H A fE KT 25 299,126 349,892
Prepaid lease payments B HEERE 16 163 152
Amount due from an associate JiE Ll — & B 2 B RO 3008 21 71,444 78,256
Pledged bank deposits BEFIRITFR 27 66 14,925
Bank balances and cash RITEGFE MRS 28 132,418 76,065
761,645 786,385
Assets classified as held for sale DEABIENENEE 29 97,396 -
Total current assets MENVEE®E 859,041 786,385
Current liabilities RBAE
Trade, bills and other payables EBRNESERER BRNEEK
H fh FE A FUIE 30 510,401 575,591
Tax liabilities MIEBE 16,973 18,071
Bank and other borrowings BITREMEER 37 392,022 390,433
Obligations under finance leases b & T E A IE 33 1,886 1,856
Total current liabilities mEN B EEE 921,282 985,951
Net current liabilities ;;.uiwﬁﬁi%@ (62,241) (199,566)
Total assets less current liabilities EEABERABARG 366,543 336,747
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION (Continued)
mEPBIRLR (&)

AS AT 31 DECEMBER 2017
RZF—tF+ZA=+—~H

2017 2016
—ZE—+tF —T—RF
Notes HK$'000 HK$'000
Bt THET FAT
Non-current liabilities REBEE
Bank and other borrowings RITREMEER 31 1,131 1,288
Deferred tax liabilities BIEHIAAE 23 41,142 44,155
Defined benefit obligation RERBNEME 32 103 -
Obligations under finance leases RE & A 33 7,375 9,186
Total non-current liabilities JEMEBELRTE 49,751 54,629
Net assets EEFE 316,792 282,118
Capital and reserves attributable to ARABRHEBEAEERERFEE
owners of the Company
Share capital &N 34 327,882 131,153
Reserves &t 156,548 245,435
Equity attributable to owners of RNARHE NEGER
the Company 484,430 376,588
Non-controlling interests FE 2 AR A 2 46 (167,638) (94,470)
Total equity EREE 316,792 282,118
On behalf of the directors RERES
Hung Tsung Chin Chen Wei Chun
M E BR{E S
Director Director
o EE
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CHANGES IN EQUITY
REEZBER
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2017

BHE-_ZT—tF+-_A=1+—HILFE

Non-
controlling
Attributable to owners of the Company interests Total
KREHEARE FERES &zt
Share Defined Property  Currency
Share Share option  Statutory benefit plan Special revaluation translation Accumulated
capital  premium  reserve  reserve  reserve  feserve  reserve  reserve losses Total
RERH nE L
R ROEE BRERE ZERE SHRE RURE ERRE RERE RHER @zt
HK$'000  HK$'000  HKS'000  HK$'000  HKS'000  HK$'000  HK$'000  HK$'000  HK$'000  HK$'000  HK$'000  HK$'000
TR TEn TR TExr Tz TER TEx TER TExr TR TEn  TEx
(note a) (note b) (note ¢)
(H&a) (WzEb) (Ko
Balance at 1 January 2016 R=B-RE-B-AzE4 104,586 391,869 7960 31,01 - 89,175 79,577 24828 (382,376) 346,630 35075 381,705
Loss for the year rEEER - - - - - - - - (s (7ESS) (9703)  (107358)
Other comprehensive income B2 ENE
- Exchange differences on translation of -RAZENEBHELS
foreign operations EFZE - - - - - - - (6,348) - (6,348) 24 (6,624)
Total comprehensive income for the year rEE2AREAR - - - - - - - (6848) (77655  (84503)  (29479) (113982
Issue of ordinary shares (note 34) BITEREM (Kis4) 26,567 87,804 - - - - - - - 114461 - 114461
Contributions by non-controlling bRl PNGE R A
interests of a subsidiary (note 46) HEH (Fike) - - - - - - - - - - 2149 21492
Acquisition of subsidiaries (note 35) Iiah B AR (H53s) - - - - - - - - - - (1215%8)  (121,558)
Transfer EE - - - 469 - - - - (469) - - -
Balance at 31 December 2016 and RZB-RE+ZA=+-8R
1 January 2017 “E-tE-B-H2&H 131,053 479763 7960 31,480 - 89,175 79577 17980 (4605000 376588 (94470) 282,118
Loss for the year rEEER - - - - - - - - (105798)  (105798)  (69993)  (175791)
Other comprehensive income B2 ENE
- Re-measurement gain on defined benefit plans  — RE BAIFHEIME 3T Bz - - - - 3 - - - - 3 - b
- Exchange differences on translation of -RAEENEHAELR
foreign operations ERZER - - - - - - - (1007 - (10,073) (626) (10,699
Total comprehensive income for the year FEE2ENEAE - - - - 3 - - (10073)  (105798)  (115848) (70619  (186467)
Issue of ordinary shares (note 34) BLAR (i) 196,729 26,987 - - - - - - - M6 - M6
Disposal of subsidiaries (note 36) HERBAR (Kikse) - - - (26) - - - - - (26) - (26)
Acquisition of non-controlling interest W S - - - - - - - - - - (4 )
Dividend paid to non-controling interest by~ AR A - B AR FEERER
a subsidiary of the Company ERBRE - - - - - - - - - - (2,507) (2507)
Transfer BT - - - 491 - - - - (491) - - -
Balance at 31 December 2017 RZB-tE+ZA=+-8
2t 327882 506,750 7960 31,945 23 89,175 79577 7907 (566,789) 484430 (167,638) 316,792
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CHANGES IN EQUITY (Continued)
RERBREER (A)

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2017

HE-T—tFT-A=T-ALFE

Notes: Bt 5 -
(@) The statutory reserve is required by the relevant law of The People’s Republic of China (@) EERETDBERARMIRPEARLME ([HE])HHE
(the “PRC") applicable to the subsidiaries in the PRC. The statutory reserve can be ARAWFREBEEERRTE EZEREAISBENLET
applied in conversion into PRC subsidiaries’ capital by means of a capitalisation issue. R P BB R R AR o
(b) The special reserve represents: (b) BRI E
(i) the difference between the nominal value of the shares of the acquired (i) gt B ARG M EmEEARARRG £
subsidiaries and the nominal value of the Company’s shares issued for the AETTEESERRMEEEAFTHALA
acquisition at the time of a group reorganisation prior to the listing of the BROBERBEERRBARBIEER (REE
Company's shares and the surplus arising pursuant to a capitalisation of BAN—BH)MELERBZEHERE:

advances from shareholders as part of the group reorganisation;

(i) the difference between the consideration for acquisition of a subsidiary (i) IA—RHEBRRMIBD S (W EBEESK
satisfied by way of partial interest of a subsidiary without the overall gain KEZHBDH LEM B ARSI ) B R UE
or loss of control in the partial disposed subsidiary and the fair value of net —RHNBARNRERAKBEFEEATFENE
asset acquired; and R

(iii) the acquisition of additional interest in a subsidiary without the overall gain (iii) Wi —RIM B AR EIMER (W mEBEESL
or loss of control in that subsidiary. KEZMBERRIBEGIE) -

() The property revaluation reserve is frozen upon the transfer of properties from (© MESHEEREVE BERREEBDEZREDY
property, plant and equipment to investment properties and will be transferred to ERERAE BREEEEMERERERHEBEE-
accumulated losses when the relevant properties are disposed of.
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS
SEHERER

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2017
HE-T—tFT-A=T-ALFE

2017 2016
—E—tF A
Notes HK$’000 HK$'000
B & FHERT FETT
Cash flows from operating activities REXKBEERE
Loss before income tax expense s iz AT E 1B (167,033) (92,740)
Adjustments for: B TIEL AR
Amortisation of intangible assets BV EE#EE 4,719 4,807
Depreciation of property, W -WE REETE
plant and equipment 29,154 27,851
Finance cost Bh & R AR 27,223 14,653
(Gain)/Loss on disposal of property, HEME - BE R&B (W)
plant and equipment /518 (1,225) 2,103
Impairment loss on trade and other FEUUE 5) BR 3R I E A i Y 3R IR
receivables WIEER 20,273 43,901
Impairment loss on inventory FERERE 20,474 5,165
Impairment loss on goodwill R REEE 18 28,000 -
Reversal of impairment loss on trade EWE 5 R R R ERREEE
and loan receivables &6 (32,199) -
Impairment loss on loan receivables FEUE SRR EE 18 - 39,155
Interest income FLE WA (2,057) (1,946)
Effective interest income on bond BEHERFIENE RS WA
receivables - (1,282)
Release of prepaid lease payments B EENHEENRE 156 160
Increase in fair value of investment TEMEN D TFEL M
properties (19,580) (26,906)
Interest income from an associate KE—EHE QAR EWA (1,598) (2,185)
Share of result of an associate e — B E R AN EE (8,088) (4,931)
Loss on disposal of subsidiary HEMNBARKNEE 157 -
Operating cash flows before LEECEPINLCERERE
working capital changes (101,624) 7,805
(Increase)/Decrease in inventories Fe Em,md (12,978) 11,755
Decrease/(Increase) in trade, JEUWE SRR FENZE K
bills and other receivables H e g sRER A (3 0) 45,240 (79,568)
Increase in defined benefit obligation RERFE ELE N 103 -
Decrease in trade, bills and other payables [EfTE 5 R - BN ZiE &
H At & A SR IR R (74,018) (169,789)
Decrease/(Increase) in amount due JE U — R B 2 R R Y SROEDRL A
from associate (3ghn) 16,987 (9,559)
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS (Continued)

SEBRTRER (F)

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2017
BHE-_ZT—tHF+-A=+—RHLFE

2017 2016
—E—tF —T-REF
Notes HK$’000 HK$'000
s FERT FAT
Cash used in operations KEEBMARS (126,290) (239,356)
Income tax paid B ATEH (11,391) (12,652)
Interest received 2 FE 2,057 3,199
Interest paid ERFE (27,223) (14,653)
Net cash used in operating activities RS RGBS 2 FE (162,847) (263,462)
Cash flows from investing activities REEKEERE
Decrease in pledged bank deposits EEBRITFROR D 14,421 4,115
Proceeds from disposal of property, LEWE - BREREZBEGEHIE
plant and equipment 11,789 13,361
Acquisition of subsidiaries WM B A A 35 - 8,759
Purchase of property, plant and EEWME WEREE
equipment (35,860) (33,254)
Net cash outflow arising from BEHE—HHBRRMELERE
disposal of subsidiary SN R 36 (154) -
Addition to intangible assets NEBVEE (120) (33)
Repayment from an associate — Mg A RER 11,670 -
Repayment of loan receivable EEERKER - 17,266
Receipts from the maturity of EEEWZHBI RS %HE
bond receivables - 60,000
Net cash from investing activities KERBHFHEFE 1,746 70,214
Cash flows from financing activities RETHRERE
New bank and other loans raised FERIT R AMER 493,073 597,198
Repayment of borrowings BEER (499,066) (554,091)
Repayment of obligations under BEREHEAE
finance leases (1,955) (183)
Contributions by non-controlling RE—EHBAREERERED
interests of a subsidiary =1 - 21,492
Dividend paid for non-controlling interest 2N /A &) — & MJ /& A B gk FE 42 B 4
by a subsidiary of the Company P Y R B (2,507) -
Acquisition of non-controlling interest U BE FEVE IR fE 2 (42) -
Net proceeds from issue of ordinary shares 277 & B FT1S F B F 58 223,716 114,461
Net cash from financing activities BETE R FE 213,219 178,877
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS (Continued)
MERETMER (A)

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2017

HE-_Z—+F+-A=+—BLFE

2017 2016
—E—+tF —E-RF
Notes HK$’000 HK$'000
s FERT FAT
Net increase/(decrease) in cash ReRBLEEYWEM OBD)
and cash equivalents FE 52,118 (14,371)
Cash and cash equivalents FUNREEECEED
at beginning of the year 76,065 93,236
Effect of foreign exchange rate changes — SMNE[E R g 8hF £ 4,235 (2,800)
Cash and cash equivalents FRASGERCEEYD
at end of the year 132,418 76,065
Analysis of the balances of cash ReRBReSEYEHRI T
and cash equivalents:
Bank balances and cash wITHEFRE® 132,418 76,065
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
SRR U

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2017
BHE_ZT—tH+-A=+—RHLFE

GENERAL INFORMATION

The Company is incorporated in Bermuda with limited liability and
its shares are listed on The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited
(the “Stock Exchange”). The address of the registered office and
principal place of business of the Company are disclosed in the
corporate information section to the annual report.

The Company and its subsidiaries (hereafter referred to as the
“Group”) principally engages in manufacturing and trading of
satellite TV equipment products and other electronic goods and
satellite TV broadcasting. The details of principal activities of its
subsidiaries are set out in note 46 to the consolidated financial
statements.

ADOPTION OF HONG KONG FINANCIAL
REPORTING STANDARDS (“HKFRSs”)

(a) Adoption of new/revised HKFRSs - effective 1
January 2017

Amendments to Disclosure Initiative
HKAS 7
Amendments to Recognition of Deferred Tax Assets

HKAS 12 for Unrealised Losses

Annual Improvements ~ Amendments to HKFRS 12,
to HKFRSs 2014-2016 Disclosure of Interests in
Cycle Other Entities

Amendments to HKAS 7 — Disclosure Initiative

The amendments introduce an additional disclosure
that will enable users of financial statements to evaluate
changes in liabilities arising from financing activities.

The adoption of the amendments has led to the additional
disclosure presented in the notes to the cash flow
statement, note 38 (b).
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)
LR ENEENE P

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2017
BHE_ZT—tH+-A=+—RHLFE

2. ADOPTION OF HONG KONG FINANCIAL

REPORTING STANDARDS (“HKFRSs") . HE

(Continued)

(a) Adoption of new/revised HKFRSs - effective 1 (a)
January 2017 (Continued)

Amendments to HKAS 12 — Recognition of Deferred Tax
Assets for Unrealised Losses

The amendments relate to the recognition of deferred tax
assets and clarify some of the necessary considerations,
including how to account for deferred tax assets related to
debt instruments measured at fair value.

The adoption of the amendments has no impact on these
financial statements as the clarified treatment is consistent
with the manner in which the Group has previously
recognised deferred tax assets.

Annual Improvements to HKFRSs 2014-2016 Cycle -
Amendments to HKFRS 12, Disclosure of Interests in Other
Entities

The amendments issued under the annual improvements
process make small, non-urgent changes to standards
where they are currently unclear. They include amendments
to HKFRS 12, Disclosure of Interests in Other Entities, to
clarify that the disclosure requirements of HKFRS 12, other
than the requirements to disclose summarised financial
information, also apply to an entity’s interests in other
entities classified as held for sale or discontinued operations
in accordance with HKFRS 5, Non-Current Assets Held for
Sale and Discontinued Operations.

The adoption of the amendments to HKFRS 12 has no
impact on the financial performance and the financial
position of the Group as the amendments affect only
disclosure. In addition there is no interests in other entities
classified as held for sale or discontinued operations at the
end of the reporting period.

F
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BB R R ML ()

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2017
BHE_ZT—tHF+-A=+—RHLFE

2. ADOPTION OF HONG KONG FINANCIAL
REPORTING STANDARDS (“HKFRSs")

(Continued)

(b) New/revised HKFRSs that have been issued but

are not yet effective

Annual Improvements
to HKFRSs 2014-2016
Cycle

Annual Improvements
to HKFRSs 2014-2016
Cycle

Amendments to
HKFRS 2

Amendments to
HKFRS 4

HKFRS 9
HKFRS 15

Amendments to
HKFRS 15

Amendments to
HKAS 40
HK(IFRIC) - Int 22

Amendments to
HKFRS 9

Amendments to
HKAS 28

Amendments to HKFRS T,
First-time adoption of
Hong Kong Financial
Reporting Standards'

Amendments to HKAS 28,
Investments in Associates
and Joint Ventures'

Classification and Measurement
of Share-Based Payment
Transactions'

Applying HKFRS 9 Financial
Instruments with HKFRS 4
Insurance Contract’

Financial Instruments'

Revenue from Contracts with
Customers'

Revenue from Contracts with
Customers (Clarifications to
HKFRS 15)'

Transfers of Investment Property’

Foreign Currency Transactions and
Advance Consideration’
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)
LR ENEENE P

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2017
BHE_ZT—tHF+-A=+—RHLFE

2. ADOPTION OF HONG KONG FINANCIAL 2. BRMBERMBHREED ([FERMEK
REPORTING STANDARDS (“HKFRSs") HWEER]) (&)
(Continued)
(b) New/revised HKFRSs that have been issued but (b) CEMHGEMRERZHT &5
are not yet effective (Continued) AIERBMEREER (&)
Annual Improvements ~ Amendments to: HKFRS 3, A %ﬁﬁ‘“iﬁ%’ 8] LATER] : BB 5K
to HKFRSs 2015-2017  Business Combinations; HKFRS —E-hEE AR ‘J EIREBE
Cycle 11 Joint Arrangements; HKAS —E—+F o BBMBRE
12, Income Taxes; and HKAS 23 BEEENE %R Jﬂ% IRBAER
Borrowing Costs? HF Bbg
F1RMET K
%/Eﬁﬁw%n
e B A
HKFRS 16 Leases? BRI BRSEEL HE
E16%5
HK(IFRIC)-Int 23 Uncertainty over Income Tax EE ( R MERERC TREN
Treatments? EREZE B &2
) REENB
HKFRS 17 Insurance Contracts BEANBREEY RRat
F17%
Amendments to HKFRS  Sale or Contribution of Assets BEAUBREER REEREMENAR
10 and HKAS 28 between an Investor and EAS RELEANE
its Associate or Joint Venture? Rl E ST E
F285E 2 7T
! Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 January 2018 ! R NE—A—BsZBEEYN
F[E B A3
2 Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 January 2019 2 R-ZE—HAhE—F—Bs®ZEREY
FEHMER
: Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 January 2021 3 N-ZE-——F— Bk BREEY
FFZ HAR AR
4 The amendments were originally intended to be effective for 4 ZEBIRER_E—XNE—F—H
periods beginning on or after 1 January 2016. The effective s 14 BA R EAR ARk - Ak B HATE B
date has now been deferred/removed. Early application of the WRIE, /B - 2R EAZS B E
amendments continue to be permitted. HEEF o

Sandmartin International Holdings Limited 22 55 T EIBR = iR IR A &
2017 Annual Report £ $§



NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)

BB R R ML ()

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2017
BHE_ZT—tHF+-A=+—RHLFE

2. ADOPTION OF HONG KONG FINANCIAL
REPORTING STANDARDS (“HKFRSs”)
(Continued)

(b)

New/revised HKFRSs that have been issued but
are not yet effective (Continued)

Amendments to HKFRS 2 — Classification and Measurement
of Share-Based Payment Transactions

The amendments provide requirements on the accounting
for the effects of vesting and non-vesting conditions on
the measurement of cash-settled share-based payments;
share-based payment transactions with a net settlement
feature for withholding tax obligations; and a modification
to the terms and conditions of a share-based payment that
changes the classification of the transaction from cash-
settled to equity-settled.

HKFRS 9 — Financial Instruments

HKFRS 9 introduces new requirements for the classification
and measurement of financial assets. Debt instruments
that are held within a business model whose objective is
to hold assets in order to collect contractual cash flows
(the business model test) and that have contractual terms
that give rise to cash flows that are solely payments of
principal and interest on the principal amount outstanding
(the contractual cash flow characteristics test) are generally
measured at amortised cost. Debt instruments that meet
the contractual cash flow characteristics test are measured
at fair value through other comprehensive income
("FVTOCI") if the objective of the entity’s business model is
both to hold and collect the contractual cash flows and to
sell the financial assets. Entities may make an irrevocable
election at initial recognition to measure equity instruments
that are not held for trading at FVTOCI. All other debt and
equity instruments are measured at fair value through profit
or loss (“FVTPL").
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)

BB R R ML ()

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2017
BHE_ZT—tHF+-A=+—RHLFE

2. ADOPTION OF HONG KONG FINANCIAL
REPORTING STANDARDS (“HKFRSs”)
(Continued)

(b)

New/revised HKFRSs that have been issued but
are not yet effective (Continued)

HKFRS 9 — Financial Instruments (Continued)

HKFRS 9 includes a new expected loss impairment model
for all financial assets not measured at FVTPL replacing the
incurred loss model in HKAS 39 and new general hedge
accounting requirements to allow entities to better reflect
their risk management activities in financial statements.

HKFRS 9 carries forward the recognition, classification and
measurement requirements for financial liabilities from
HKAS 39, except for financial liabilities designated at FVTPL,
where the amount of change in fair value attributable to
change in credit risk of the liability is recognised in other
comprehensive income unless that would create or enlarge
an accounting mismatch. In addition, HKFRS 9 retains the
requirements in HKAS 39 for derecognition of financial
assets and financial liabilities.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)

BRI R ML ()

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2017
BHE_ZT—tH+-A=+—RHLFE

2. ADOPTION OF HONG KONG FINANCIAL
REPORTING STANDARDS (“HKFRSs”)
(Continued)

(b)

New/revised HKFRSs that have been issued but
are not yet effective (Continued)

HKFRS 15 — Revenue from Contracts with Customers

The new standard establishes a single revenue recognition
framework. The core principle of the framework is that an
entity should recognise revenue to depict the transfer of
promised goods or services to customers in an amount that
reflects the consideration to which the entity expects to be
entitled in exchange for those goods and services. HKFRS
15 supersedes existing revenue recognition guidance
including HKAS 18 Revenue, HKAS 11 Construction
Contracts and related interpretations.

HKFRS 15 requires the application of a 5 steps approach to
revenue recognition:

Step 1: Identify the contract(s) with a customer

Step 2: Identify the performance obligations in the
contract

Step 3: Determine the transaction price

Step 4: Allocate the transaction price to each
performance obligation

Step 5: Recognise revenue when each performance

obligation is satisfied

HKFRS 15 includes specific guidance on particular revenue
related topics that may change the current approach taken
under HKFRS. The standard also significantly enhances the
qualitative and quantitative disclosures related to revenue.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)

BRI R ML ()

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2017
BHE_ZT—tH+-A=+—RHLFE

2. ADOPTION OF HONG KONG FINANCIAL
REPORTING STANDARDS (“HKFRSs”)
(Continued)

(b)

New/revised HKFRSs that have been issued but
are not yet effective (Continued)

Amendments to HKFRS 15 — Revenue from Contracts with
Customers (Clarifications to HKFRS 15)

The amendments to HKFRS 15 included clarifications on
identification of performance obligations; application of
principal versus agent; licenses of intellectual property; and
transition requirements.

The directors of the Company anticipate that the application
of HKFRS 15 in the future will not have a material impact
on the amounts reported in the consolidated financial
statements of the Group in the future, based on the existing
business model of the Group as at 31 December 2017.

Amendments to HKAS 40, Investment Property — Transfers
of Investment Property

The amendments clarify that to transfer to or from
investment properties there must be a change in use and
provides guidance on making this determination. The
clarification states that a change of use will occur when
a property meets, or ceases to meet, the definition of
investment property and there is supporting evidence that
a change has occurred.

The amendments also re-characterise the list of evidence in
the standard as a non-exhaustive list, thereby allowing for
other forms of evidence to support a transfer.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)

BRI R M AL ()

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2017
BHE-_ZT—tHF+-A=+—RHLFE

2. ADOPTION OF HONG KONG FINANCIAL
REPORTING STANDARDS (“HKFRSs”)
(Continued)

(b)

New/revised HKFRSs that have been issued but
are not yet effective (Continued)

Amendments to HKFRS 9 - Prepayment Features with
Negative Compensation

The amendments clarify that prepayable financial assets
with negative compensation can be measured at amortised
cost or at FVTOC! if specified conditions are met — instead of
at FVTPL.

HKFRS 16 — Leases

HKFRS 16, which upon the effective date will supersede
HKAS 17 “Leases” and related interpretations, introduces
a single lessee accounting model and requires a lessee to
recognise assets and liabilities for all leases with a term of
more than 12 months, unless the underlying asset is of low
value. Specifically, under HKFRS 16, a lessee is required to
recognise a right-of-use asset representing its right to use
the underlying leased asset and a lease liability representing
its obligation to make lease payments. Accordingly, a lessee
should recognise depreciation of the right-of-use asset
and interest on the lease liability, and also classifies cash
repayments of the lease liability into a principal portion
and an interest portion and presents them in the statement
of cash flows. Also, the right-of-use asset and the lease
liability are initially measured on a present value basis. The
measurement includes non-cancellable lease payments
and also includes payments to be made in optional periods
if the lessee is reasonably certain to exercise an option to
extend the lease, or not to exercise an option to terminate
the lease. This accounting treatment is significantly different
from the lessee accounting for leases that are classified as
operating leases under the predecessor standard, HKAS 17.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)

BRI R M AL ()

FORTHE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2017

HE—

=

tFE+_A=+—RHILFE

ADOPTION OF HONG KONG FINANCIAL
REPORTING STANDARDS (“HKFRSs”)
(Continued)

(b)

New/revised HKFRSs that have been issued but
are not yet effective (Continued)

HKFRS 16 — Leases (Continued)

In respect of the lessor accounting, HKFRS 16 substantially
carries forward the lessor accounting requirements in HKAS
17. Accordingly, a lessor continues to classify its leases as
operating leases or finance leases, and to account for those
two types of leases differently.

As at 31 December 2017, the Group's total future minimum
lease payments under non-cancellable operating lease
of HK$2,134,000 as disclosed in note 37. A preliminary
assessment indicates that these arrangements will meet the
definition of a lease under HKFRS 16, and hence the Group
will recognise a right-of-use asset and a corresponding
lease liability in respect of all the leases unless they qualify
for low value or short-term leases upon the application of
HKFRS 16. In addition, the application of new requirement
may result changes in measurement, presentation and
disclosure as indicated above.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)

BRI R ML ()

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2017
BHE_ZT—tH+-A=+—RHLFE

2. ADOPTION OF HONG KONG FINANCIAL
REPORTING STANDARDS (“HKFRSs”)
(Continued)

(b)

New/revised HKFRSs that have been issued but
are not yet effective (Continued)

Amendments to HKFRS 10 and HKAS 28 - Sale or
Contribution of Assets between an Investor and its
Associate or Joint Venture

The amendments clarify the extent of gains or losses to be
recognised when an entity sells or contributes assets to its
associate or joint venture. When the transaction involves
a business the gain or loss is recognised in full, conversely
when the transaction involves assets that do not constitute
a business the gain or loss is recognised only to the extent
of the unrelated investors’ interests in the joint venture or
associate.

The Group has already commenced an assessment of the
impact of adopting the above standards and amendments
to existing standards to the Group. Except as described
above, the directors of the Company anticipate that the
application of other new/revised HKFRSs will have no
material impact on the Group's financial performance and
financial position and/or the disclosures to the financial
statements of the Group.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)

BRI R ML ()

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2017
BHE_ZT—tH+-A=+—RHLFE

3.

BASIS OF PREPARATION

(a)

(b)

Statement of compliance

The consolidated financial statements have been prepared
in accordance with all applicable HKFRSs, Hong Kong
Accounting Standards ("“HKASs") and Interpretations
(hereinafter collectively referred to as the "HKFRS") and
the disclosure requirements of the Hong Kong Companies
Ordinance. In addition, the consolidated financial
statements include applicable disclosures required by
the Rules Governing the Listing of Securities on the Stock
Exchange.

Basis of measurement and going concern
assumption

The consolidated financial statements have been prepared
on the historical cost basis except for investment properties
which are measured at fair value, as explained in the
accounting policies below. Historical cost is generally based
on the fair value of the consideration given in exchange for
goods and services.

During the year, the Group incurred a net loss of
HK$105,798,000 attributable to owners of the Company and
at the end of reporting period, the Group had net current
liabilities of approximately HK$62,241,000. The Group
had bank loans and other loans of HK$163,529,000 and
HK$97,735,000 at 31 December 2017, which would request
consents from various banks and financial institutions on
the annual renewal of relevant facilities in the coming
twelve months. The Group is dependent upon the financial
support from the banks and financial institutions to meet
its financial obligations. There is no certainty that bank
loans and other loans of the Group will be renewed in
the future. These conditions indicate the existence of a
material uncertainty which may cast significant doubt on
the Group's ability to continue as a going concern and
therefore, that it may be unable to realise its assets and
discharge its liabilities in the normal course of business.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)

BRI R ML ()

FORTHE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2017
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BASIS OF PREPARATION (Continued)

(b)

Basis of measurement and going concern
assumption (Continued)

In view of these circumstances, the directors of the
Company have given consideration to the future liquidity
and performance of the Group and its available sources
of finance in assessing whether the Group will have
sufficient financial resources to continue as a going
concern. In particular, the directors of the Company have
considered the following: (1) the Group maintains good
relationship with major banks and financial institutions
providing finance or facilities to the Group and the Group
had successfully renewed its banking facilities based on
past experience. The Group has successfully renewed
its banking facilities and other loans of HK$15,600,000
and US$12,500,000 (equivalent to approximately
HK$97,735,000), respectively in February 2018 upon
their expiry; (2) as of 31 December 2017, the Group has
unutilised bank loan facilities totalling HK$247,465,000
available to finance its future operations and financial
obligations.

In the opinion of the directors of the Company, after taking
into account the financial performance, operation as well as
capital expenditure and the above financing arrangements
of the Group, the Group is expected to have sufficient
liquidity to finance its operations for the next twelve
months subsequent to the end of the reporting period.

Therefore, the consolidated financial statements of the
Group have been prepared on a going concern basis.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)

BRI R ML ()

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2017
BHE_ZT—tH+-A=+—RHLFE

3.

BASIS OF PREPARATION (Continued)

(b)

Basis of measurement and going concern
assumption (Continued)

Should the Group be unable to continue in business as a
going concern, adjustments would have to be made to
adjust the value of assets to their estimated net realisable
values, to reclassify non-current assets and liabilities as
current assets and liabilities respectively, and to provide
for any further liabilities which may arise. The effects of
these potential adjustments have not been reflected in the
consolidated financial statements.

Fair value is the price that would be received to sell an
asset or paid to transfer a liability in an orderly transaction
between market participants at the measurement date,
regardless of whether that price is directly observable or
estimated using another valuation technique. In estimating
the fair value of an asset or a liability, the Group takes into
account the characteristics of the asset or liability if market
participants would take those characteristics into account
when pricing the asset or liability at the measurement date.
Fair value for measurement and/or disclosure purposes in
these consolidated financial statements is determined on
such a basis, except for share-based payment transactions
that are within the scope of HKFRS 2 “Share-based
payment”’, leasing transactions that are within the scope
of HKAS 17 “Leases”, and measurements that have some
similarities to fair value but are not fair value, such as net
realisable value in HKAS 2 “Inventories” or value in use in
HKAS 36 “Impairment of assets”.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)

BRI R ML ()

FORTHE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2017

HE—

3.

=

tFE+_A=+—RHILFE

BASIS OF PREPARATION (Continued)

(b)

(c)

Basis of measurement and going concern
assumption (Continued)

In addition, for financial reporting purposes, fair value
measurements are categorised into Level 1, 2 or 3 based
on the degree to which the inputs to the fair value
measurements are observable and the significance of the
inputs to the fair value measurement in its entirety, which
are described as follows:

Level 1 inputs are quoted prices (unadjusted) in
active markets for identical assets or liabilities that
the entity can access at the measurement date;

Level 2 inputs are inputs, other than quoted prices
included within Level 1, that are observable for the
asset or liability, either directly or indirectly; and

Level 3 inputs are unobservable inputs for the asset
or liability.

Functional and presentation currency

The functional currency of the Company is United States
dollars ("USD"), while the consolidated financial statements
are presented in Hong Kong dollars ("HKD"). As the
Company is listed on the Main Board of the Stock Exchange,
the directors consider that it will be more appropriate to
adopt HKD as the Group's and the Company’s presentation
currency.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)
LR ENEENE P

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2017
BHE_ZT—tH+-A=+—RHLFE

4. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(a) Basis of consolidation and business combinations

(i)

Basis of consolidation

The consolidated financial statements incorporate
the financial statements of the Company and
entities controlled by the Company and its
subsidiaries. Control is achieved when the Company:

has power over the investee;

is exposed, or has rights, to variable returns
from its involvement with the investee; and

has the ability to use its power to affect its
returns.

The Group reassesses whether or not it controls
an investee if facts and circumstances indicate
that there are changes to one or more of the three
elements of control listed above.

Consolidation of a subsidiary begins when the
Group obtains control over the subsidiary and
ceases when the Group loses control of the
subsidiary. Specifically, income and expenses
of a subsidiary are included in the consolidated
statement of profit or loss and other comprehensive
income from the date the Group gains control until
the date when the Group ceases to control the
subsidiary.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)

BRI R ML ()

FORTHE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2017

HE—ZT—

tFE+_A=+—RHILFE

4, SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

(a) Basis of consolidation and business combinations
(Continued)

()

Basis of consolidation (Continued)

Profit or loss and each item of other comprehensive
income are attributed to the owners of the
Company and to the non-controlling interests. Total
comprehensive income of subsidiaries is attributed
to the owners of the Company and to the non-
controlling interests even if this results in the non-
controlling interests having a deficit balance. When
necessary, adjustments are made to the financial
statements of subsidiaries to bring their accounting
policies in line with the Group's accounting policies.

All intragroup assets and liabilities, equity, income,
expenses and cash flows relating to transactions
between members of the Group are eliminated in
full on consolidation.

In the Company’s statement of financial position,
investments in subsidiaries are stated at cost less
impairment loss, if any. The results of subsidiaries
are accounted for by the Company on the basis of
dividend received and receivable.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)

BRI R ML ()

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2017
BHE_ZT—tH+-A=+—RHLFE

4, SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

(a) Basis of consolidation and business combinations
(Continued)

()

(i)

Basis of consolidation (Continued)

Changes in the Group’s ownership interests in
existing subsidiaries

Changes in the Group's ownership interests in
existing subsidiaries that do not result in the Group
losing control over the subsidiaries are accounted
for as equity transactions. The carrying amounts
of the Group's interests and the non-controlling
interests are adjusted to reflect the changes in their
relative interests in the subsidiaries. Any difference
between the amount by which the non-controlling
interests are adjusted and the fair value of the
consideration paid or received is recognised directly
in equity and attributed to owners of the Company.

Business combinations

Acquisitions of businesses are accounted for
using the acquisition method. The consideration
transferred in a business combination is measured
at fair value, which is calculated as the sum of the
acquisition-date fair values of the assets transferred
by the Group, liabilities incurred by the Group
to former owners of the acquiree and the equity
interests issued by the Group in exchange for
control of the acquiree. Acquisition-related costs are
recognised in profit or loss as incurred.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)
R ENEENE P

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2017
BHE-_ZT—tHF+-A=+—RHLFE

4., SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES 4, BERGTEE (&)
(Continued)
(a) Basis of consolidation and business combinations (a) HMEAEEEREKRSH (E)

(Continued)
(ii) Business combinations (Continued) (i) EHBELG(E)
RUEE R HE AT 3R & E KT

EXRERNENRFER
R HETNSIIAEBRIN

At the acquisition date, the identifiable assets and
liabilities assumed are recognised at their fair values,
except that:

FEERTEEENBRER
HiEBEMNTHERN
BEXREESFIRES
BEETERIE 2% [T
BHIREEGEL
F1o[RERF ] #E

RBEETE:

deferred tax assets or liabilities, and liabilities
or assets related to employee benefit
arrangements are recognised and measured
in accordance with HKAS 12 “Income
taxes” and HKAS 19 “Employee benefits”
respectively;

liabilities or equity instruments related
to share-based payment arrangements
of the acquiree or share-based payment
arrangements of the Group entered into to
replace share-based payment arrangements
of the acquiree are measured in accordance
with HKFRS 2 “Share-based payment” at the
acquisition date; and

assets (or disposal groups) that are classified
as held for sale in accordance with HKFRS
5 “Non-current assets held for sale and
discontinued operations” are measured in
accordance with that standard.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)

BB IR R M AL ()

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2017
BHE-_ZT—tHF+-A=+—RHLFE

4, SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

(a) Basis of consolidation and business combinations
(Continued)

(i)

Business combinations (Continued)

Goodwill is measured as the excess of the sum of
the consideration transferred, the amount of any
non-controlling interests in the acquiree, and the
fair value of the acquirer’s previously held equity
interest in the acquiree (if any) over the net of
the acquisition-date amounts of the identifiable
assets acquired and the liabilities assumed. If, after
reassessment, the Group's interest in the fair value
of the acquiree’s identifiable net assets exceeds the
sum of the consideration transferred, the amount
of any non-controlling interests in the acquiree
and the fair value of the acquirer’s previously
held interest in the acquiree (if any), the excess is
recognised immediately in profit or loss as a bargain
purchase gain.

Non-controlling interests that are present ownership
interests and entitle their holders to a proportionate
share of the entity’s net assets in the event of
liquidation may be initially measured either at
fair value or at the non-controlling interests’
proportionate share of the recognised amounts of
the acquiree’s identifiable net assets. The choice of
measurement basis is made on a transaction-by-
transaction basis. Other types of non-controlling
interests are measured at their fair value or, when
applicable, on the basis specified in another
standard.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)

BB IR R M AL ()

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2017
BHE-_ZT—tHF+-A=+—RHLFE

4, SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

(a) Basis of consolidation and business combinations
(Continued)

(i)

Business combinations (Continued)

When the consideration transferred by the Group
in a business combination includes assets or
liabilities resulting from a contingent consideration
arrangement, the contingent consideration is
measured at its acquisition-date fair value and
included as part of the consideration transferred
in a business combination. Changes in the fair
value of the contingent consideration that
qualify as measurement period adjustments are
adjusted retrospectively, with the corresponding
adjustments made against goodwill. Measurement
period adjustments are adjustments that arise
from additional information obtained during the
“measurement period” (which cannot exceed one
year from the acquisition date) about facts and
circumstances that existed at the acquisition date.

The subsequent accounting for changes in the
fair value of the contingent consideration that do
not qualify as measurement period adjustments
depends on how the contingent consideration is
classified. Contingent consideration that is classified
as equity is not remeasured at subsequent reporting
dates and its subsequent settlement is accounted
for within equity. Contingent consideration that
is classified as an asset or a liability is remeasured
at subsequent reporting dates in accordance
with HKAS 39, or HKAS 37 “Provisions, contingent
liabilities and contingent assets”, as appropriate,
with the corresponding gain or loss being
recognised in profit or loss.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)

B RS RAR 5T (&)

FORTHE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2017

HE_FT—

tFE+_A=+—RHILFE

4, SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

(a)

(b)

Basis of consolidation and business combinations
(Continued)

(ii) Business combinations (Continued)

If the initial accounting for a business combination
is incomplete by the end of the reporting period
in which the combination occurs, the Group
reports provisional amounts for the items for which
the accounting is incomplete. Those provisional
amounts are adjusted during the measurement
period (see above), or additional assets or liabilities
are recognised, to reflect new information obtained
about facts and circumstances that existed at the
acquisition date that, if known, would have affected
the amounts recognised at that date.

Associates

An associate is an entity over which the Group has
significant influence and that is neither a subsidiary nor
a joint arrangement. Significant influence is the power to
participate in the financial and operating policy decisions
of the investee but is not control or joint control over those
policies.

The results and assets and liabilities of associate are
incorporated in these consolidated financial statements
using the equity method of accounting. The financial
statements of associate used for equity accounting
purposes are prepared using uniform accounting policies
as those of the Group for like transactions and events
in similar circumstances. Under the equity method, an
investment in an associate is initially recognised in the
consolidated statement of financial position at cost and
adjusted thereafter to recognise the Group's share of the
profit or loss and other comprehensive income of the
associate. When the Group's share of losses of an associate
exceeds the Group's interest in that associate (which
includes any long-term interests that, in substance, form
part of the Group’s net investment in the associate), the
Group discontinues recognising its share of further losses.
Additional losses are recognised only to the extent that
the Group has incurred legal or constructive obligations or
made payments on behalf of the associate.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)

B IR R ML ()

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2017
BHE-_ZT—tHF+-A=+—RHLFE

4.

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

(b)

Associates (Continued)

An investment in an associate is accounted for using
the equity method from the date on which the investee
becomes an associate. On acquisition of the investment in
an associate, any excess of the cost of the investment over
the Group’s share of the net fair value of the identifiable
assets and liabilities of the investee is recognised as
goodwill, which is included within the carrying amount of
the investment. Any excess of the Group's share of the net
fair value of the identifiable assets and liabilities over the
cost of the investment, after reassessment, is recognised
immediately in profit or loss in the period in which the
investment is acquired.

The requirements of HKAS 39 are applied to determine
whether it is necessary to recognise any impairment loss
with respect to the Group's investment in an associate.
When necessary, the entire carrying amount of the
investment (including goodwill) is tested for impairment
in accordance with HKAS 36 “Impairment of assets” as a
single asset by comparing its recoverable amount (higher
of value in use and fair value less costs of disposal) with its
carrying amount. Any impairment loss recognised forms
part of the carrying amount of the investment. Any reversal
of that impairment loss is recognised in accordance with
HKAS 36 to the extent that the recoverable amount of the
investment subsequently increases.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)

DR ETEINEENE Y

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2017
BHE-_ZT—tHF+-A=+—RHLFE

4.

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

(b)

Associates (Continued)

The Group discontinues the use of the equity method from
the date when the investment ceases to be an associate,
or when the investment (or a portion thereof) is classified
as held for sale. When the Group retains an interest in the
former associate and the retained interest is a financial
asset, the Group measures the retained interest at fair value
at that date and the fair value is regarded as its fair value
on initial recognition in accordance with HKAS 39. The
difference between the carrying amount of the associate
at the date the equity method was discontinued, and the
fair value of any retained interest and any proceeds from
disposing of a part interest in the associate is included in
the determination of the gain or loss on disposal of the
associate. In addition, the Group accounts for all amounts
previously recognised in other comprehensive income
in relation to that associate on the same basis as would
be required if that associate had directly disposed of
the related assets or liabilities. Therefore, if a gain or loss
previously recognised in other comprehensive income
by that associate would be reclassified to profit or loss on
the disposal of the related assets or liabilities, the Group
reclassifies the gain or loss from equity to profit or loss (as
a reclassification adjustment) when the equity method is
discontinued.

The Group continues to use the equity method when an
investment in an associate becomes an investment in a
joint venture. There is no remeasurement to fair value upon
such changes in ownership interests.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)

BB IR R M AL ()

FORTHE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2017
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

(b)

(c)

Associates (Continued)

When the Group reduces its ownership interest in an
associate but the investment continues to be classified
as an associate, the Group reclassifies to profit or loss the
proportion of the gain or loss that had previously been
recognised in other comprehensive income relating to that
reduction in ownership interest if that gain or loss would
be reclassified to profit or loss on the disposal of the related
assets or liabilities.

When a group entity transacts with an associate of the
Group (such as a sale or contribution of assets), profits and
losses resulting from the transactions with the associate are
recognised in the Group'’s consolidated financial statements
only to the extent of interests in the associate that are not
related to the Group.

Goodwill

Goodwill is initially recognised at cost being the excess of
the aggregate of the consideration transferred, the amount
recognised for non-controlling interests in the acquiree and
the acquisition date fair value of the acquirer’s previously
held equity interest in the acquiree over the fair value of
identifiable assets and liabilities acquired.

Where the fair value of identifiable assets and liabilities
exceed the aggregate of the fair value of consideration
paid, the amount of any non-controlling interest in the
acquiree and the acquisition date fair value of the acquirer’s
previously held equity interest in the acquiree, the excess is
recognised in profit or loss on the acquisition date, after re-
assessment.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)

B RS RAR 5T (&)

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2017
BHE-_ZT—tHF+-A=+—RHLFE

4.

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

(c)

Goodwill (Continued)

Goodwill arising on an acquisition of a business is carried at
cost as established at the date of acquisition of the business
(see the accounting policy above) less accumulated
impairment losses, if any.

For the purpose of impairment testing, goodwill arising
from an acquisition is allocated to each of the relevant
cash-generating units that are expected to benefit from
the synergies of the acquisition. A cash-generating unit
("CGU") is the smallest identifiable group of assets that
generates cash inflows that are largely independent of the
cash inflows from other assets or groups of assets. A CGU to
which goodwill has been allocated is tested for impairment
annually or more frequently when there is indication
that the unit may be impaired, by comparing its carrying
amount with its recoverable amount.

For goodwill arising on an acquisition in a financial year,
the CGU to which goodwill has been allocated is tested for
impairment before the end of that financial year. When the
recoverable amount of the CGU is less than the carrying
amount of the unit, the impairment loss is allocated to
reduce the carrying amount of any goodwill allocated to
the unit first, and then to the other assets of the unit pro-
rata on the basis of the carrying amount to each asset in
the unit. However, the loss allocated to each asset will not
reduce the individual asset’s carrying amount to below
its fair value less cost of disposal (if measurable) or its
value in use (if determinable), whichever is the higher. Any
impairment loss for goodwill is recognised in profit or loss
and is not reversed in subsequent periods.

On disposal of the relevant CGU, the attributable amount of
goodwill is included in the determination of the amount of
profit or loss on disposal.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)
LR EGEENE P

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2017
BE_Z—tHF+-A=+—RHILFE

4. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES 4, EBERETFBE(H)
(Continued)
(d)  Revenue recognition (d W=EER
Revenue is measured at the fair value of the consideration Wamke Wk ERREN R FER
received or receivable and represents amounts receivable 2 DERBBERBERMEEE
for goods sold in the normal course of business, net of R ET R PR E B 70 K
estimated customer returns, rebates, discounts and sales HERBEHIBEENERSE -

related taxes.

e

Revenue from the sale of goods is recognised when the HEEmWENE mNERAA %
goods are delivered and titles have passed, at which time all EBRER B T MEREEE
the following conditions are satisfied: X
the Group has transferred to the buyer the . AEEEREREBERER
significant risks and rewards of ownership of the 8 B KRS F B3
goods;
the Group retains neither continuing managerial . AEERERBIEE —AREGE
involvement to the degree usually associated with ERAENBETIELHE T
ownership nor effective control over the goods sold; BREEMESERNERZEG
¥
the amount of revenue can be measured reliably; . WA SEMhE 2
it is probable that the economic benefits associated . BZX S EN = R
with the transaction will flow to the Group; and REE: Rk
the costs incurred or to be incurred in respect of the . MRGEEIBRRIEED
transaction can be measured reliably. FXZNBER] SEMLET = ©
Service income is recognised when services are provided. Al 75 W 5 42 1L Bl 745 B 1 R o
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)

B IR R ML ()

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2017
BHE-_ZT—tHF+-A=+—RHLFE

4.

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

(d)

(e)

Revenue recognition (Continued)

Interest income from a financial asset is recognised when
it is probable that the economic benefits will flow to the
Group and the amount of income can be measured reliably.
Interest income is accrued on a time basis, by reference
to the principal outstanding and at the effective interest
rate applicable, which is the rate that exactly discounts the
estimated future cash receipts through the expected life of
the financial asset to that asset’s net carrying amount on
initial recognition.

The Group's accounting policy for recognition of revenue
from operating leases is described in the accounting policy
for leasing below.

Property, plant and equipment

Property, plant and equipment including land and
buildings held for use in the production or supply of goods
or services, or for administrative purposes (other than
properties under construction as described below) are
stated in the consolidated statement of financial position
at cost less subsequent accumulated depreciation and
amortisation and accumulated impairment losses, if any.

Properties in the course of construction for production,
supply or administrative purposes are carried at cost, less
any recognised impairment loss. Costs include professional
fees and, for qualifying assets, borrowing costs capitalised
in accordance with the Group’s accounting policy. Such
properties are classified to the appropriate categories of
property, plant and equipment when completed and ready
for intended use. Depreciation of these assets, on the same
basis as other property assets, commences when the assets
are ready for their intended use.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)

B RS RAR 5T (&)

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2017
BHE-_ZT—tHF+-A=+—RHLFE

4.

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

(e)

Property, plant and equipment (Continued)

Depreciation is recognised so as to write off the cost
of items of property, plant and equipment other than
properties under construction less their residual values over
their estimated useful lives, using the straight-line method.
The estimated useful lives, residual values and depreciation
method are reviewed at the end of each reporting period,
with the effect of any changes in estimate accounted for on
a prospective basis.

If an item of property, plant and equipment becomes
an investment property because its use has changed as
evidenced by end of owner-occupation, any difference
between the carrying amount and the fair value of
that item at the date of transfer is recognised in other
comprehensive income and accumulated in property
revaluation reserve. On the subsequent sale or retirement of
the asset, the relevant revaluation reserve will be transferred
directly to retained profits.

Freehold land is stated at cost less accumulated impairment
losses.

Assets held under finance leases are depreciated over
their expected useful lives on the same basis as owned
assets. However, when there is no reasonable certainty that
ownership will be obtained by the end of the lease term,
assets are depreciated over the shorter of the lease term
and their useful lives.

An item of property, plant and equipment is derecognised
upon disposal or when no future economic benefits are
expected to arise from the continued use of the asset. Any
gain or loss arising on the disposals or retirement of an
item of property, plant and equipment is determined as
the difference between the sales proceeds and the carrying
amount of the asset and is recognised in profit or loss.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)

BB IR R M AL ()

FORTHE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2017

BE-—T—

tFE+_A=+—RHILFE

4, SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

(f)

(9)

Investment properties

Investment properties are properties held to earn rentals or
for capital appreciation.

Investment properties are initially measured at cost,
including any directly attributable expenditure. Subsequent
to initial recognition, investment properties are measured at
their fair values. Gains or losses arising from changes in the
fair value of investment properties are included in profit or
loss for the period in which they arise.

An investment property is derecognised upon disposal or
when the investment property is permanently withdrawn
from use or no future economic benefits are expected from
its disposal. Any gain or loss arising on derecognition of
the property (calculated as the difference between the net
disposal proceeds and the carrying amount of the asset) is
included in profit or loss in the period in which the item is
derecognised.

Leasing

Leases are classified as finance leases whenever the terms
of the lease transfer substantially all the risks and rewards
of ownership to the lessee. All other leases are classified as
operating leases.

(i) The Group as lessor
Rental income from operating leases is recognised

in profit or loss on a straight-line basis over the term
of the relevant lease.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)

B IR R ML ()

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2017
BHE-_ZT—tHF+-A=+—RHLFE

4, SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

(9) Leasing (Continued)

(i)

The Group as lessee

Assets held under finance leases are recognised
as assets of the Group at their fair value at the
inception of the lease or, if lower, at the present
value of the minimum lease payments. The
corresponding liability to the lessor is included in
the consolidated statement of financial position as a
finance lease obligation.

Lease payments are apportioned between finance
expenses and reduction of the lease obligation
so as to achieve a constant rate of interest on the
remaining balance of the liability. Finance expenses
are recognised immediately in profit or loss, unless
they are directly attributable to qualifying assets, in
which case they are capitalised in accordance with
the Group's general policy on borrowing costs (see
the accounting policy below). Contingent rentals
are recognised as expenses in the periods in which
they are incurred. Operating lease payments are
recognised as an expense on a straight-line basis
over the lease term.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)

B IR R ML ()

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2017
BHE-_ZT—tHF+-A=+—RHLFE

4, SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

(9) Leasing (Continued)

(iii)

Leasehold land and building

When a lease includes both land and building
elements, the Group assesses the classification of
each element as a finance or an operating lease
separately based on the assessment as to whether
substantially all the risks and rewards incidental to
ownership of each element have been transferred
to the Group, unless it is clear that both elements
are operating leases in which case the entire lease
is classified as an operating lease. Specifically, the
minimum lease payments (including any lump-
sum upfront payments) are allocated between the
land and the building elements in proportion to the
relative fair values of the leasehold interests in the
land element and building element of the lease at
the inception of the lease.

To the extent the allocation of the lease payments
can be made reliably, interest in leasehold land that
is accounted for as an operating lease is presented
as “prepaid lease payments” in the consolidated
statement of financial position and is amortised
over the lease term on a straight-line basis except
for those that are classified and accounted for as
investment properties under the fair value model.
When the lease payments cannot be allocated
reliably between the land and building elements,
the entire lease is generally classified as a finance
lease and accounted for as property, plant and
equipment.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)

BB IR R M AL ()

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2017
BHE-_ZT—tHF+-A=+—RHLFE

4.

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

(h)

Foreign currencies

In preparing the financial statements of each individual
group entity, transactions in currencies other than the
functional currency of that entity (foreign currencies) are
recorded in the respective functional currency (i.e. the
currency of the primary economic environment in which
the entity operates) at the rates of exchanges prevailing on
the dates of the transactions. At the end of the reporting
period, monetary items denominated in foreign currencies
are retranslated at the rates prevailing at that date. Non-
monetary items carried at fair value that are denominated
in foreign currencies are retranslated at the rates prevailing
on the date when the fair value was determined. Non-
monetary items that are measured in terms of historical cost
in a foreign currency are not retranslated.

Exchange differences on monetary items are recognised in
profit or loss in the period in which they arise except for
exchange differences on monetary items receivable from
or payable to a foreign operation for which settlement is
neither planned nor likely to occur (therefore forming part
of the net investment in the foreign operation), which are
recognised initially in other comprehensive income and
reclassified from equity to profit or loss on disposal of the
foreign operation.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)

B RS RAR 5T (&)

FORTHE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2017

HE—

4.

=

tFE+_A=+—RHILFE

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

(h)

Foreign currencies (Continued)

For the purposes of presenting the consolidated financial
statements, the assets and liabilities of the Group's foreign
operations are translated into the presentation currency
of the Group (i.e. Hong Kong dollars) using exchange
rates prevailing at the end of the reporting period.
Income and expenses items are translated at the average
exchange rates for the year, unless exchange rates fluctuate
significantly during the period, in which case, the exchange
rates prevailing at the dates of transactions are used.
Exchange differences arising, if any, are recognised in other
comprehensive income and accumulated in equity under
the heading of currency translation reserve (attributed to
non-controlling interests as appropriate).

On the disposal of a foreign operation (i.e. a disposal of the
Group's entire interest in a foreign operation, or a disposal
involving loss of control over a subsidiary that includes
a foreign operation), all of the exchange differences
accumulated in equity in respect of that operation
attributable to the owners of the Company are reclassified
to profit or loss. In addition, in relation to a partial disposal
of a subsidiary that does not result in the Group losing
control over the subsidiary, the proportionate share of
accumulated exchange differences are re-attributed to non-
controlling interests and are not recognised in profit or loss.

Goodwill and fair value adjustments on identifiable assets
acquired and liabilities assumed through acquisition of
a foreign operation on or after 1 July 2005 are treated as
assets and liabilities of that foreign operation and translated
at the rate of exchange prevailing at the end of each
reporting period. Exchange differences are recognised in
other comprehensive income.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)

B IR R ML ()

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2017
BHE-_ZT—tHF+-A=+—RHLFE

4.

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

(i)

(J)

Borrowing costs

Borrowing costs directly attributable to the acquisition,
construction or production of qualifying assets, which are
assets that necessarily take a substantial period of time
to get ready for their intended use or sale, are added to
the cost of those assets until such time as the assets are
substantially ready for their intended use or sale. Investment
income earned on the temporary investment of specific
borrowings pending their expenditure on qualifying
assets is deducted from the borrowing costs eligible for
capitalisation.

All other borrowing costs are recognised in profit or loss in
the period in which they are incurred.

Retirement benefit costs
Defined contribution plans

Payments to defined contribution retirement benefit
plans, Hong Kong Mandatory Provident Fund Scheme (the
“MPF Scheme”) and the state-managed retirement benefit
schemes are recognised as expense when employees have
rendered service entitling them to the contributions.

Defined benefit plan

The Group operates defined benefit pension plan which
requires contributions to be made to a separately
administered fund for employees of the Group’s certain
entities which are operating in India. The benefits are
unfunded. The cost of providing benefits under the defined
benefit plan is determined using the projected unit credit
actuarial valuation method.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)

B IR R ML ()

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2017
BHE-_ZT—tHF+-A=+—RHLFE

4, SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

(J)

Retirement benefit costs (Continued)

Defined benetfit plan (Continued)

Re-measurements arising from defined benefit pension
plan, comprising actuarial gains and losses, are recognised
immediately in the consolidated statement of financial
position with a corresponding debit or credit to re-
measurement gains and losses on defined benefit plan
through other comprehensive income in the period in
which they occur. Re-measurements are not reclassified to
profit or loss in subsequent periods.

The Group recognises the following changes in the net
defined benefit obligation under “cost of sales” and
“administrative expenses” in the consolidated statement of
profit or loss by function:

- service costs comprising current service costs, past-
service costs, gains and losses on curtailments and
non-routine settlements; and

- net interest expense or income.

Past service costs are recognised in profit or loss at the
earlier of:

- the date of the plan amendment or curtailment; and

- the date that the Group recognises restructuring-
related costs.

Net interest is calculated by applying the discount rate to
the net defined benefit liability or asset.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)

B IR R ML ()

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2017
BHE-_ZT—tHF+-A=+—RHLFE

4.

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

(k)

Taxation

Income tax expense represents the sum of the tax currently
payable and deferred tax.

The tax currently payable is based on taxable profit for the
year. Taxable profit differs from 'profit before taxation” as
reported in the consolidated statement of profit or loss
and other comprehensive income because of income or
expense that are taxable or deductible in other years and
items that are never taxable or deductible. The Group's
liability for current tax is calculated using tax rates that have
been enacted or substantively enacted by the end of the
reporting period.

Deferred tax is recognised on temporary differences
between the carrying amounts of assets and liabilities in the
consolidated financial statements and the corresponding
tax base used in the computation of taxable profit. Deferred
tax liabilities are generally recognised for all taxable
temporary differences. Deferred tax assets are generally
recognised for all deductible temporary differences to
the extent that it is probable that taxable profits will
be available against which those deductible temporary
differences can be utilised. Such assets and liabilities are not
recognised if the temporary difference arises from goodwill
or from the initial recognition (other than in a business
combination) of other assets and liabilities in a transaction
that affects neither the taxable profit nor the accounting
profit.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)

B IR R ML ()

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2017
BHE-_ZT—tHF+-A=+—RHLFE

4.

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

(k)

Taxation (Continued)

Deferred tax liabilities are recognised for taxable temporary
differences associated with investments in subsidiaries
and interests in an associate, except where the Group is
able to control the reversal of the temporary difference
and it is probable that the temporary difference will not
reverse in the foreseeable future. Deferred tax assets arising
from deductible temporary differences associated with
such investments and interests are only recognised to
the extent that it is probable that there will be sufficient
taxable profits against which to utilise the benefits of the
temporary differences and they are expected to reverse in
the foreseeable future.

The carrying amount of deferred tax assets is reviewed at
the end of the reporting period and reduced to the extent
that it is no longer probable that sufficient taxable profits
will be available to allow all or part of the asset to be
recovered.

Deferred tax assets and liabilities are measured at the tax
rates that are expected to apply in the period in which the
liability is settled or the asset is realised, based on the tax
rates (and tax laws) that have been enacted or substantively
enacted by the end of the reporting period.

The measurement of deferred tax liabilities and assets
reflects the tax consequences that would follow from the
manner in which the Group expects, at the end of the
reporting period, to recover or settle the carrying amount of
its assets and liabilities.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)

B IR R ML ()

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2017
BHE-_ZT—tHF+-A=+—RHLFE

4.

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

(k)

Taxation (Continued)

For the purposes of measuring deferred tax liabilities or
deferred tax assets for investment properties that are
measured using the fair value model, the carrying amounts
of such properties are presumed to be recovered entirely
through sale, unless the presumption is rebutted. The
presumption is rebutted when the investment property
is depreciable and is held within a business model whose
objective is to consume substantially all of the economic
benefits embodied in the investment property over time,
rather than through sale. If the presumption is rebutted,
deferred tax liabilities and deferred tax assets for such
investment properties are measured in accordance with
the above general principles set out in HKAS 12 (i.e. based
on the expected manner as to how the properties will be
recovered).

Current and deferred tax is recognised in profit or loss,
except when they relate to items recognised in other
comprehensive income in which case the taxes are also
recognised in other comprehensive income or when they
relate to items recognised directly in equity in which case
the taxes are also recognised directly in equity.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)

B IR R ML ()

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2017
BHE-_ZT—tHF+-A=+—RHLFE

4, SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

)] Intangible assets

(i)

(i)

Intangible assets acquired separately

Intangible assets acquired separately and with finite
useful lives are carried at cost less accumulated
amortisation and any accumulated impairment
losses. Amortisation for intangible assets with finite
useful lives is recognised on a straight-line basis
over their estimated useful lives. The estimated
useful life and amortisation method are reviewed
at the end of the reporting period, with the effect
of any changes in estimate being accounted for
on a prospective basis (see the accounting policy
in respect of impairment losses on tangible and
intangible assets below).

Gains or losses arising from derecognition of an
intangible asset are measured at the difference
between the net disposal proceeds and the carrying
amount of the asset and are recognised in profit or
loss in the period when the asset is derecognised.

Research and development expenditure

Expenditure on research activities is recognised as
an expense in the period in which it is incurred.

An internally-generated intangible asset arising from
development (or from the development phase of
an internal project) is recognised if, and only if, all of
the following have been demonstrated:

the technical feasibility of completing the
intangible asset so that it will be available for
use or sale;

4.

EREFEE (&)

U)

14

b3

(i)

(i)

FEE

1615 8 B9 T2 &

ERIYE B BB R A ERF
HIME B E R AR R #
R RERERBEDIR -
AEBERAERFHNELE
EREE A R FEHUERE
FERE I - (AR Al E A F AR
B TEAR B E R (E
BEERE-LIEIEZ - e Sl
EANR(BREVRETLEE
HMEBBRNEFRRINT
X) e

RILERBLEEME LR
s B RIZ N EMSRIRFE
HEERESREENZ/RET
B THEBERIEERHPBR

B R o
& A

B9 00 B O ST FE B A B P
REFAX -

M (RABEEERER)
PR E E WA
B R T HA R T
"R

SERC R B E RO BT A]
T - fE T R A GE A =k
HE

Sandmartin International Holdings Limited 22 55 T EIBR = iR IR A &

2017 Annual Report £ $§




NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)
LR EGEENE P

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2017
BHE-_ZT—tHF+-A=+—RHLFE

4. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES 4, BARGTBEX (&)
(Continued)
() Intangible assets (Continued) ()] BELEE (&)
(i) Research and development expenditure (i)  HEZH(E)

(Continued)

the intention to complete the intangible
asset and use or sell it;

the ability to use or sell the intangible asset;

how the intangible asset will generate
probable future economic benefits;

the availability of adequate technical,
financial and other resources to complete
the development and to use or sell the
intangible asset; and

the ability to measure reliably the
expenditure attributable to the intangible
asset during its development.

The amount initially recognised for an internally-
generated intangible asset is the sum of the
expenditure incurred from the date when the
intangible asset first meets the recognition criteria
listed above. Where no internally-generated
intangible asset can be recognised, development
expenditure is charged to profit or loss in the period
in which it is incurred.

Subsequent to initial recognition, internally-
generated intangible asset is measured at cost
less accumulated amortisation and accumulated
impairment losses (if any), on the same basis as
intangible assets acquired separately.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)
LR EGEENE P

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2017
BHE-_ZT—tHF+-A=+—RHLFE

4.

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

U

(m)

Intangible assets (Continued)

(iii) Intangible assets acquired in a business
combination

Intangible assets acquired in a business
combination and recognised separately from
goodwill are initially recognised at the fair value
at the acquisition date (which is regarded as their
cost).

Subsequent to initial recognition, intangible assets
acquired in a business combination are reported
at costs less accumulated amortisation and any
accumulated impairment losses, on the same basis
as intangible assets that are acquired separately.

(iv) Derecognition of intangible assets

An intangible asset is derecognised on disposal, or
when no future economic benefits are expected
from use or disposal. Gains and losses arising from
derecognition of an intangible asset, measured
as the difference between the net disposal
proceeds and the carrying amount of the asset,
are recognised in profit or loss when the asset is
derecognised.

Inventories

Inventories are stated at the lower of cost and net realisable
value. Cost of inventories is determined on a first-in, first-
out method. Net realisable value represents the estimated
selling price for inventories less all estimated costs of
completion and costs necessary to make the sale.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)

B IR R ML ()

FORTHE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2017

BH=E

4.

—
—=

tFE+_A=+—RHILFE

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

(n)

Financial instruments

Financial assets and financial liabilities are recognised
when a group entity becomes a party to the contractual
provisions of the instrument.

Financial assets and financial liabilities are initially measured
at fair value. Transaction costs that are directly attributable
to the acquisition or issue of financial assets and financial
liabilities (other than financial assets and financial liabilities
at fair value through profit or loss) are added to or deducted
from the fair value of the financial assets or financial
liabilities, as appropriate, on initial recognition. Transaction
costs directly attributable to the acquisition of financial
assets or financial liabilities at fair value through profit or
loss are recognised immediately in profit or loss.

(i) Financial assets

The Group's financial assets are classified as loans
and receivables. The classification depends on the
nature and purpose of the financial assets and is
determined at the time of initial recognition. All
regular way purchases or sales of financial assets
are recognised and derecognised on a trade date
basis. Regular way purchases or sales are purchases
or sales of financial assets that require delivery
of assets within the time frame established by
regulation or convention in the marketplace.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)
LR EGEENE P

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2017
BHE-_ZT—tHF+-A=+—RHLFE

4, SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

(n) Financial instruments (Continued)

(i)

Financial assets (Continued)

Loans and receivables

Loans and receivables are non-derivative financial
assets with fixed or determinable payments that
are not quoted in an active market. Subsequent to
initial recognition, loans and receivables (including
trade, bills, and other receivables, loan receivables,
loan to an associate, amount due from an associate,
pledged bank deposits and bank balances and cash)
are measured at amortised cost using the effective
interest method, less any impairment.

Interest income is recognised by applying the
effective interest rate, except for short-term
receivables where the recognition of interest would
be immaterial.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)

B IR R ML ()

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2017
BHE-_ZT—tHF+-A=+—RHLFE

4, SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

(n) Financial instruments (Continued)

(i)

(iii)

Effective interest method for financial assets

The effective interest method is a method of
calculating the amortised cost of a debt instrument
and of allocating interest income over the relevant
period. The effective interest rate is the rate that
exactly discounts estimated future cash receipts
(including all fees paid or received that form
an integral part of the effective interest rate,
transaction costs and other premiums or discounts)
through the expected life of the debt instrument,
or, where appropriate, a shorter period, to the net
carrying amount on initial recognition.

Interest income is recognised on an effective
interest basis for debt instruments.

Impairment of financial assets

Financial assets, other than those at fair value
through profit or loss, are assessed for indicators
of impairment at the end of the reporting period.
Financial assets are considered to be impaired
when there is objective evidence that, as a result of
one or more events that occurred after the initial
recognition of the financial asset, the estimated
future cash flows of the financial assets have been
affected.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)
LR EGEENE P

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2017
BHE-_ZT—tHF+-A=+—RHLFE

4. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES 4, BARGTBEX (&)
(Continued)
(n)  Financial instruments (Continued) (n) S@IE(E)
(i) Impairment of financial assets (Continued) Gi) = EERE ()

Objective evidence of impairment could include:

significant financial difficulty of the issuer or
counterparty; or

breach of contract, such as default or
delinquency in interest or principal payments;
or

it becoming probable that the borrower will
enter bankruptcy or financial re-organisation.

For certain categories of financial asset, such as
trade receivables, assets that are assessed not to be
impaired individually are, in addition, assessed for
impairment on a collective basis. Objective evidence
of impairment for a portfolio of receivables could
include the Group's past experience of collecting
payments, an increase in the number of delayed
payments in the portfolio past the average credit
period of 60 to 120 days, and observable changes in
national or local economic conditions that correlate
with default on receivables.

For financial assets carried at amortised cost, the
amount of the impairment loss recognised is the
difference between the asset’s carrying amount and
the present value of the estimated future cash flows
discounted at the financial asset’s original effective
interest rate.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)

B IR R ML ()

FORTHE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2017

HE_FT—

tFE+_A=+—RHILFE

4, SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

(n) Financial instruments (Continued)

(iif)

(iv)

Impairment of financial assets (Continued)

The carrying amount of the financial asset is
reduced by the impairment loss directly for
all financial assets with the exception of trade
receivables and loan receivables, where the carrying
amount is reduced through the use of an allowance
account. Changes in the carrying amount of the
allowance account are recognised in profit or loss.
When a trade receivable is considered uncollectible,
it is written off against the allowance account.
Subsequent recoveries of amounts previously
written off are credited to profit or loss.

For financial assets measured at amortised cost, if,
in a subsequent period, the amount of impairment
loss decreases and the decrease can be related
objectively to an event occurring after the
impairment losses were recognised, the previously
recognised impairment loss is reversed through
profit or loss to the extent that the carrying amount
of the asset at the date the impairment is reversed
does not exceed what the amortised cost would
have been had the impairment not been recognised.

Financial liabilities and equity

Debt and equity instruments issued by a group
entity are classified as either financial liabilities or
as equity in accordance with the substance of the
contractual arrangements and the definitions of a
financial liability and an equity instrument.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)
LR EGEENE P

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2017
BHE-_ZT—tHF+-A=+—RHLFE

4, SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

(n) Financial instruments (Continued)

(iv)

Financial liabilities and equity (Continued)

Equity instruments

An equity instrument is any contract that evidences
a residual interest in the assets of an entity after
deducting all of its liabilities. Equity instruments
issued by the Group are recorded at the proceeds
received, net of direct issue costs.

Financial liabilities

Financial liabilities including trade, bills and other
payables and bank and other borrowings are
subsequently measured at amortised cost, using the
effective interest method.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)

B IR R ML ()

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2017
BHE-_ZT—tHF+-A=+—RHLFE

4, SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

(n) Financial instruments (Continued)

(v)

(vi)

Effective interest method of financial liabilities

The effective interest method is a method of
calculating the amortised cost of a financial liability
and of allocating interest expense over the relevant
period. The effective interest rate is the rate that
exactly discounts estimated future cash payments
through the expected life of the financial liability,
or, where appropriate, a shorter period, to the net
carrying amount on initial recognition. Interest
expense is recognised on an effective interest basis.

Financial guarantee contracts

A financial guarantee contract is a contract that
requires the issuer to make specified payments to
reimburse the holder for a loss it incurs because a
specified debtor fails to make payment when due
in accordance with the original or modified terms
of a debt instrument. A financial guarantee contract
issued by the Group and not designated as at fair
value through profit or loss is recognised initially at
its fair value less transaction costs that are directly
attributable to the issue of the financial guarantee
contract. Subsequent to initial recognition, the
Group measures the financial guarantee contract
at the higher of: (i) the amount determined in
accordance with HKAS 37 Provisions, Contingent
Liabilities and Contingent Assets; and (ii) the
amount initially recognised less, when appropriate,
cumulative amortisation recognised in accordance
with HKAS 18 Revenue.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)
LR EGEENE P

FORTHE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2017

HE -+ +-_A=1t—"HIFE
4. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES 4, BARGTBEX (&)
(Continued)
(n)  Financial instruments (Continued) (n) S@IE(E)
(vii)  Derecognition i) ARIETEER

The Group derecognises a financial asset only
when the contractual rights to the cash flows from
the asset expire, or when it transfers the financial
asset and substantially all the risks and rewards
of ownership of the asset to another entity. If the
Group neither transfers nor retains substantially all
the risks and rewards of ownership and continues to
control the transferred asset, the Group continues to
recognise the asset to the extent of its continuing
involvement and recognises an associated liability.
If the Group retains substantially all the risks and
rewards of ownership of a transferred financial asset,
the Group continues to recognise the financial asset
and also recognises a collateralised borrowing for
the proceeds received.

On derecognition of a financial asset in its entirety,
the difference between the asset's carrying amount
and the sum of the consideration received and
receivable and the cumulative gain or loss that had
been recognised in other comprehensive income
and accumulated in equity is recognised in profit or
loss.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)

B IR R ML ()

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2017
BHE-_ZT—tHF+-A=+—RHLFE

4, SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

(n) Financial instruments (Continued)

(vii)

Derecognition (Continued)

On derecognition of a financial asset other than
in its entirety, the Group allocates the previous
carrying amount of the financial asset between the
part it continues to recognise, and the part it no
longer recognises on the basis of the relative fair
values of those parts on the date of the transfer.
The difference between the carrying amount
allocated to the part that is no longer recognised
and the sum of the consideration received for the
part no longer recognised and any cumulative gain
or loss allocated to it that had been recognised
in other comprehensive income is recognised in
profit or loss. A cumulative gain or loss that had
been recognised in other comprehensive income
is allocated between the part that continues
to be recognised and the part that is no longer
recognised on the basis of the relative fair values of
those parts.

The Group derecognises financial liability when, and
only when, the Group’s obligations are discharged,
cancelled or expire. The difference between
the carrying amount of the financial liability
derecognised and the consideration paid and
payable is recognised in profit or loss.

Sandmartin International Holdings Limited 2 5 T BEIFR = R H R A &

2017 Annual Report 4 %§

4.

EREFEE (&)

(n)

TR TR (&)

(vif)

U HERR (48

B2 EBUBRERIN  RBURIE
ReEMEER AEEEK2
MEEZBEREE BRRE
EAHZ SR ERERER
RERZH 2 B R TBER
ZEbn RE R DB o 7 B
ETBERED 2 REEER
THEERBDAERERER
Hih 2 AR 2 DB
EARFH R E R EE 2
ZRODORERAER 2R
Hip 2w AMER 2 Rt

HEE SIREBRER )
KA BHERZ#B1 2 HE AF
BEMEFEL DA -

AEEEERERABNRET
EFETT - BUB k& i B 4% L T
REBFRE - RIEINDT R
BERESRED N MEMK
ERZRNIEEER -



NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)

B IR R ML ()

FORTHE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2017

HE—

4.

=

tFE+_A=+—RHILFE

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

(o)

Equity-settled share-based payment transactions

Share options granted to employees

The fair value of services received determined by reference
to the fair value of share options granted at the grant date
is expensed on a straight-line basis over the vesting period,
with a corresponding increase in equity (share option
reserve).

At the end of the reporting period, the Group revises its
estimates of the number of options that are expected to
ultimately vest. The impact of the revision of the estimates
during the vesting period, if any, is recognised in profit or
loss such that the cumulative expense reflects the revised
estimate, with a corresponding adjustment to the share
option reserve.

At the time when the share options are exercised, the
amount previously recognised in the share option reserve
will be transferred to share premium. When the share
options are forfeited after the vesting date or are still
not exercised at the expiry date, the amount previously
recognised in the share option reserve will continue to be
held in the share option reserve.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)

B IR R ML ()

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2017
BHE-_ZT—tHF+-A=+—RHLFE

4.

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

(p)

Impairment on tangible and intangible assets
other than goodwill (see the accounting policy in
respect of goodwill above)

At the end of the reporting period, the Group reviews
the carrying amounts of its tangible and intangible assets
with finite useful lives to determine whether there is any
indication that those assets have suffered an impairment
loss. If any such indication exists, the recoverable amount
of the asset is estimated in order to determine the extent
of the impairment loss, if any. When it is not possible to
estimate the recoverable amount of an individual asset,
the Group estimates the recoverable amount of the
cash-generating unit to which the asset belongs. When
a reasonable and consistent basis of allocation can be
identified, corporate assets are also allocated to individual
cash-generating units, or otherwise they are allocated to
the smallest group of cash-generating units for which a
reasonable and consistent allocation basis can be identified.

Recoverable amount is the higher of fair value less costs
of disposal and value in use. In assessing value in use, the
estimated future cash flows are discounted to their present
value using a pre-tax discount rate that reflects current
market assessments of the time value of money and the
risks specific to the asset for which the estimates of future
cash flows have not been adjusted.

If the recoverable amount of an asset (or a cash-generating
unit) is estimated to be less than its carrying amount, the
carrying amount of the asset (or a cash-generating unit) is
reduced to its recoverable amount. An impairment loss is
recognised immediately in profit or loss.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)

B IR R ML ()

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2017
BHE-_ZT—tHF+-A=+—RHLFE

4.

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

(p)

(a)

Impairment on tangible and intangible assets
other than goodwill (see the accounting policy in
respect of goodwill above) (Continued)

Where an impairment loss subsequently reverses, the
carrying amount of the asset (or cash-generating unit) is
increased to the revised estimate of its recoverable amount,
but so that the increased carrying amount does not exceed
the carrying amount that would have been determined
had no impairment loss been recognised for the asset
(or a cash-generating unit) in prior years. A reversal of an
impairment loss is recognised immediately in profit or loss.

Provisions and contingent liabilities

Provisions are recognised for liabilities of uncertain timing
or amount when the Group has a legal or constructive
obligation arising as a result of a past event, which it is
probable will result in an outflow of economic benefits that
can be reliably estimated.

Where it is not probable that an outflow of economic
benefits will be required, or the amount cannot be
estimated reliably, the obligation is disclosed as a
contingent liability, unless the probability of outflow
of economic benefits is remote. Possible obligations,
the existence of which will only be confirmed by the
occurrence or non-occurrence of one or more future
events, are also disclosed as contingent liabilities unless the
probability of outflow of economic benefits is remote.
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B IR R ML ()

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2017
BE_Z—tHF+-A=+—RHILFE

4, SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

(r) Related parties

(a) A person or a close member of that person’s family
is related to the Group if that person:

(i) has control or joint control over the Group;
(i) has significant influence over the Group; or

(iii) is a member of key management personnel
of the Group or the Company's parent.

(b) An entity is related to the Group if any of the
following conditions apply:

(i) The entity and the Group are members of
the same group (which means that each
parent, subsidiary and fellow subsidiary is
related to the others);

(i) One entity is an associate or joint venture
of the other entity (or an associate or joint
venture of a member of a group of which the
other entity is a member);

(iii) Both entities are joint ventures of the same
third party;

(iv) One entity is a joint venture of a third entity
and the other entity is an associate of the
third entity;
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)
LR EGEENE P

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2017
BHE-_ZT—tHF+-A=+—RHLFE

4.  SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES 4. EBEREFEE (&)
(Continued)
(r)  Related parties (Continued) (n EBBAL (&)
(b)  (Continued) b (#&)
(v The entity is a post-employment benefit (v) ZERHANEE S EAR
plan for the benefit of the employees of the SEEHEBNERNE
Group or an entity related to the Group; BB EENE:
(vi)  The entity is controlled or jointly controlled vi) ZEBX@BRZAL
by a person identified in (a); B 122 1) ok £ R 2R
(vii) A person identified in (a)(i) has significant Vi) @OBANZATEHZE
influence over the entity or is a member of BAEERTENIZA
key management personnel of the entity (or TAZER (KZEE
of a parent of the entity); or MERAE)NEEER
BRCE 2 — 3k
(viii)  The entity, or any member of a group of (vii) FZEBIARQREAE
which it is a part, provides key management E K B RALEL AR
personnel services to the Group or to the AN ARREEIES
parent of the Company. BERK B R
Close members of the family of a person are those family S—AATHERREKEZEAH
members who may be expected to influence, or be ATHERERZ SR FEHAI 25
influenced by, that person in their dealings with the entity XRATHENREBKE 25
and include:
(i) that person’s children and spouse or domestic (i ZAN T B F 2 R ELAB AL
partner; ;
(i) children of that person’s spouse or domestic (ii) ZATH B A 8T
partner; and 7 R
(i) dependents of that person or that person’s spouse (i) ARATEATHERBRAM
or domestic partner. REFHRE o
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)
LR EGEENE P

FORTHE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2017

HE—

T—t+F+_A=+—HILFE

CRITICAL ACCOUNTING JUDGMENTS AND KEY
SOURCES OF ESTIMATION UNCERTAINTY

In the application of the Group's accounting policies, the directors
are required to make judgments, estimates and assumptions
about the carrying amounts of assets and liabilities that are not
readily apparent from other sources. The estimates and associated
assumptions are based on historical experience and other factors
that are considered to be relevant. Actual results differ from these
estimates.

The estimates and underlying assumptions are reviewed on an
ongoing basis. Revisions to accounting estimates are recognised
in the period in which the estimate is revised if the revision affects
only that period, or in the period of the revision and future periods
if the revision affects both current and future periods.

Critical judgements in applying accounting policies

The following is the critical judgement, apart from those involving
estimations (see below), that the directors have made in the
process of applying the Group's accounting policies and that
has the most significant effect on the amounts recognised in the
consolidated financial statements.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)
LR EGEENE P

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2017
BHE-_ZT—tHF+-A=+—RHLFE

CRITICAL ACCOUNTING JUDGMENTS AND
KEY SOURCES OF ESTIMATION UNCERTAINTY
(Continued)

Critical judgements in applying accounting policies
(Continued)

Deferred taxation on investment properties

For the purposes of measuring deferred tax liabilities or deferred
tax assets arising from investment properties that are measured
using the fair value model, the directors of the Company have
reviewed the Group's investment property portfolios and concluded
that the Group's investment properties situated in the PRC with
carrying amount of HK$73,681,000 as at 31 December 2017 (2016:
HK$69,648,000) are held under a business model whose objective
is to consume substantially all of the economic benefits embodied
in the investment properties over time, rather than through sale;
therefore, the directors of the Company have determined that
the presumption that the carrying amounts of such investment
properties are recovered through sale is rebutted. As a result, the
Group has not recognised any deferred taxes on land appreciation
tax on changes in fair value of these investment properties but has
only recognised deferred taxes on enterprise income tax.

The remaining investment properties located in Hong Kong with
carrying amount of HK$97,396,000 has been recognised as assets
classified as held for sale as at 31 December 2017. There is no
investment properties located in Hong Kong as at 31 December
2017 (2016: HK$77,000,000). Investment properties located in
Hong Kong are held under a business model whose objective is to
recover entirely through sale, rather than to consume substantially
all of the economic benefits embodied in the investment
properties over time. Therefore, in measuring the Group’s deferred
taxation on such investment properties, the directors have
determined that the presumption that the carrying amounts of
investment properties measured using the fair value model are
recovered entirely through sale is not rebutted. As a result, the
Group has not recognised any deferred taxes on changes in fair
value of investment properties as the Group is not subject to any
income taxes on disposal of its investment properties in Hong
Kong.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)
LR EGEENE P

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2017
BHE-_ZT—tHF+-A=+—RHLFE

CRITICAL ACCOUNTING JUDGMENTS AND
KEY SOURCES OF ESTIMATION UNCERTAINTY
(Continued)

Key sources of estimation uncertainty

The following are the key assumptions concerning the future,
and other key sources of estimation uncertainty at the end of the
reporting period, that have a significant risk of causing a material
adjustment to the carrying amounts of assets within the next
financial year.

Impairment loss on receivables, deposit and advance

The assessment of the impairment loss on trade receivables,
loan receivables, loan to an associate and amount due from an
associate of the Group is based on the evaluation of collectability
and aging analysis of accounts and on management’s estimate.
In determining whether impairment is required, the Group takes
into consideration the aging status, creditworthiness and the past
collection history of each counterparty. Specific allowance is made
for receivables if objective evidence of impairment exists and is
recognised as the difference between the estimated future cash
flow expected to receive discounted using the original effective
interest rate and the carrying value. If no objective evidence
exists that receivables are impaired on an individual basis, trade
receivables are included in a collective assessment of impairment.
If the financial conditions of counterparties of the Group were
to deteriorate, resulting in an impairment of their ability to make
payments, additional allowances may be required.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)
LR EGEENE P

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2017
BHE-_ZT—tHF+-A=+—RHLFE

5. CRITICAL ACCOUNTING JUDGMENTS AND 5 EHESTHEHERGEFTHBAREN

KEY SOURCES OF ESTIMATION UNCERTAINTY FERR (&)
(Continued)
Key sources of estimation uncertainty (Continued) B THBRENETERR (&)
Impairment loss on receivables, deposit and advance (Continued) TEYFTE ~ 5T R BB 8 (B E 8 (48 )
As at year end date, the carrying values on receivables are as RER BWRFIENER@ERT
follows:
2017 2016
—E—+tF AN
HK$'000 HK$'000
FET FAETT
Trade and bills receivables EWE SRR R EREE 232,096 297,633
Loan receivables FEUE X 8,794 -
Loan to an associate LY —HEEEQFTNER - 25,309
Amount due from an associate JE U — e Bt 2 A R A9 FR0R 71,444 78,256
312,334 401,198
These balances were net of allowance for doubtful debts of ZEEFEMBRRER 147,778,000 T
HK$147,778,000 (2016: HK$145,157,000) and impairment of loan ZEF— X4 145,157,000/ 7T ) & FEUR B 3k
receivable of HK$50,713,000 (2016: HK$59,507,000). Details of the 850,713,000 7T ( =F —7<4F : 59,507,000
movement of allowance for doubtful debts are disclosed in notes BIL) c REFBEZ M F BN M sE22%25
22 and 25. No impairment loss has been recognised for loan to an BT -BHRARAEERRNAIYE S /MR
associate and amount due from an associate in both years as the HefE WZMEFEITEig T —MiE
directors of the Company considered the carrying amounts still RNEMER R ER—EEE QR R FIERER
recoverable. BEEE -
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)
LR EGEENE P

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2017
BHE-_ZT—tHF+-A=+—RHLFE

CRITICAL ACCOUNTING JUDGMENTS AND
KEY SOURCES OF ESTIMATION UNCERTAINTY
(Continued)

Estimated impairment of goodwill, intangible assets,
and property, plant and equipment

Determining whether goodwill, intangible assets and property,
plant and equipment are impaired requires an estimation of
the value in use of the CGUs of (1) the business of satellite TV
equipment and antenna conducted by Pro Brand Technology, Inc.
("PBT") and (2) the business of satellite TV broadcasting conducted
by My HD Media FZ LLC ("MyHD"), to which goodwill, intangible
assets, and property, plant and equipment have been allocated.
The value in use calculation requires the Group to estimate the
future cash flows expected to arise from the CGUs and a suitable
discount rate in order to calculate the present value. The discount
rate represents rate that reflects current market assessments of the
value of money and the risks specific to the assets for which future
cash flows estimates have not been adjusted. Where the future
cash flows are less than expected, a material impairment loss may
arise. As at 31 December 2017, the carrying amount of goodwill
was HKS$108,297,000 (2016: HK$134,874,000), net of accumulated
impairment loss of HK$111,744,000 (2016: HKS$83,744,000) and
the carrying amount of related intangible asset and property,
plant and equipment for these CGUs were HK$17,368,000 (2016:
HK$21,698,000) and HK$90,250,000 (2016: HKS$75,365,000),
respectively. Details of the recoverable amount calculation are
disclosed in note 18.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)
LR EGEENE P

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2017
BHE-_ZT—tHF+-A=+—RHLFE

CRITICAL ACCOUNTING JUDGMENTS AND
KEY SOURCES OF ESTIMATION UNCERTAINTY
(Continued)

Write-down of inventories

Provision for slow-moving inventories is made based on estimated
net realisable value of inventories. The assessment of the provision
amount required involves management judgment and estimates
in identifying obsolete and slow-moving inventories and estimate
relevant market values for those inventories identified. Where
the actual outcome or expectation in future is different from the
original estimate, such differences will impact the carrying value
of inventories and provision charge/written back in the period in
which the estimate has been changed. As at 31 December 2017,
the carrying amount of inventories was HK$258,428,000 (2016:
HK$267,095,000), and accumulated allowance of inventories of
HK$46,691,000 (2016: HK$24,374,000) was recognised as at 31
December 2017.

Income taxes

Determining income tax provisions involves significant judgement
in determining the amount of the provision and the timing of
payment. There are many transactions and calculations for which
the ultimate tax expense is uncertain during the ordinary course
of business. The Group recognises taxes based on estimates of the
likely outcome with reference to current tax laws and practices.
Where the final tax outcome of these transactions is different
from the amounts that were initially recorded, such difference
will impact the income tax and deferred tax provisions in the
year in which such determination is made. Deferred tax assets
relating to certain deductible temporary differences and tax losses
will be recognised when management considers it is probable
that future taxable profit will be available against which the
deductible temporary differences or tax losses can be utilised.
Where the expectation is different from the originally estimate,
such differences will impact the recognition of deferred tax assets
and income tax expense in the period in which such estimate is
changed.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)
LR EGEENE P

FORTHE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2017

HE—

T—t+F+_A=+—HILFE

REVENUE

Revenue represents the amounts received and receivable for
goods sold, less returns and discounts, and services provided by
the Group to outside customers during the year. An analysis of the
Group's revenue is as follows:

Wy &=

Yo zs ?aﬁﬁlﬁifﬁﬁl\ﬁﬁg)f'% B n
REREMEW R EROKIE (EHBRRE
K)o ZIKEIE’MZA’WEQDT

2017 2016

—E—+tF —E-RF

HK$'000 HK$'000

FTEx FET

Sales of goods HEEm 1,477,757 1,788,490
Service income AR 75 W A 67,081 13,011
1,544,838 1,801,501

SEGMENT INFORMATION

The segment information reported externally was analysed on
the basis of their goods and services delivered or provided by the
Group's operating divisions which is consistent with the internal
information that are regularly reviewed by the executive directors
of the Company, the chief operating decision maker, for the
purposes of resource allocation and assessment of performance.
This is also the basis of organisation in the Group, whereby the
management has chosen to organise the Group around different
products and services.

Specifically, the Group's operating segments under HKFRS 8 are as
follows:

(i) Media entertainment platform related products

Trading and manufacturing of media entertainment

platform related products

- which are mainly used for satellite products
equipment.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)

B IR R ML ()

FORTHE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2017

BH=E

—
—=

tFE+_A=+—RHILFE

SEGMENT INFORMATION (Continued)

(ii)

(iii)

(iv)

(v)

Other multimedia products

Trading and manufacturing of other multimedia products
- components of audio and video electronic products
such as cable lines.

Integration of signal system and traffic
communication network

Integration of signal system and traffic communication

network

- provide installation and integration of signal system
and traffic communication network.

Satellite TV equipment and antenna

Trading and manutacturing of satellite TV equipment and
antenna.

Satellite TV broadcasting
Provision of Direct-to-Home services for satellite TV

broadcasting in the areas of Middle East, Mediterranean and
Africa.

TEEFR (F)

(ii)

(iii)

(iv)

(v)

HittZHBER
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)

B IR R ML ()

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2017
BHE-_ZT—tHF+-A=+—RHLFE

Sandmartin International Holdings Limited 2 5 T BEIFR = R H R A &

SEGMENT INFORMATION (Continued) 7. 2EER(E)
Segment revenue and results TERERESE
The following is an analysis of the Group's revenue and results by RAZ2REEEDEIMIANEBRE R
reportable and operating segments: BT
Year ended 31 December 2017 BE-_Z—tF+-A=+—HLEFE
Integration of
Media signal system
entertainment Other and traffic Satellite TV
platform related multimedia ~ communication  equipment and Satellite TV
products products network antenna broadcasting Total
RERATE Hft BEAKRAR HEER
HHER SREER  REBARSL RERXE HEBLER @
HK'000 HK'000 HK'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
TERL TR TER TERT TR TERL
Revenue Yz
External sales HinEE 237,214 260,280 1219 980,263 65,862 1,544,838
Results *#
Segment results PEEE 30,868 18,335 80 106,425 (147,971) 7,737
Other income, gains and losses EfolN hERkER 39,573
Increase in fair value of REMENDTEEM
investment properties 19,580
Research and development costs TN (37,206)
Administrative and other expenses THRABAR (177,582)
Share of profit of an associate JE (G — R A RA R F 8,088
Finance costs BERK (27.223)
Loss before income tax expense FERTLAEE (167,033)
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)
LR EGEENE P

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2017
BHE-_ZT—tHF+-A=+—RHLFE

7. SEGMENT INFORMATION (Continued) 7. oEER(#&)
Segment revenue and results (Continued) THEWERES (HF)
Year ended 31 December 2016 He—_Z—RF+-_A=+—H81tFE

Integration of

Media signal system
entertainment Other and traffic Satellite TV
platform related multimedia ~ communication equipment and Satellite TV
products products network antenna broadcasting Total
BERETE Eth BAARELR BEER
BEER SEEER  RBEASS RERXE  HEEREAE @t
HK'000 HK'000 HK'000 HKS'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
THT TER THT THT TAT THT
Revenue W&
External sales HIMEE 379652 239353 1430 1,169,525 11,541 1,801,501
Results E3
Segment results PEEE 12325 23973 (162) 104407 (69,670) 70873
Qther income, gains and losses B KB R BB 16,215
Increase in fair value of REMENATEEM
investment properties 26,906
Research and development costs MR (41,595)
Administrative and other expenses THREMES (155417)
Share of profit of an associate Bl —EBEARMEF 4931
Finance costs BERK (14653)
Loss before income tax expense FERTLAEE (92,740)
The accounting policies of the operating segments are the same as K D SR & R IERUR BN & B RO B sE4 R At
the accounting policies of the Group described in note 4. Segment JEETECRAR - S EEIES D ERER
results represent the profit earned/loss suffered by each segment BEF SRMER HE A EITREE
without allocation of administrative and other expenses, research M FE S R A B A - S R EE
and development costs, other income, gains and losses (except (FEWE 5 BR R & B JE W SR IE R B B 1
impairment loss on trade and other receivables and reversal of 10 e W B 5 BR SR K LA JE W IR R B S 1R
impairment loss on trade and other receivables), changes in fair BN IEWMEN DN FEEE - FE(L— R
value of investment properties, share of profit of an associate and ERTAR RN RE AR o I E RS B
finance costs. This is the measure reported to the chief operating EERBFERAEEEEIARERENTES
decision maker for the purposes of resource allocation and = °

performance assessment.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)
LR EGEENE P

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2017
BHE-_ZT—tHF+-A=+—RHLFE

7. SEGMENT INFORMATION (Continued) 7. DEEHR(R)
Segment assets and liabilities PHEERAE
The following is an analysis of the Group’s assets and liabilities by RAZREEEDEINMNAEEBEERE
reportable and operating segments: BT :
At 31 December 2017 R-ZE—+tHF+=-A=+—8
Integration of
Media signal system
entertainment Other and traffic Satellite TV
platform related multimedia ~ communication  equipment and Satellite TV
products products network antenna broadcasting Total
RERYTE it BAARRER HEER
HEER SREER  REBARSL RERKE  EEERER @it

HK'000 HK'000 HK'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000

TER TET TEL TET FET TER
Assets EE
Segment assets PEEE 136,981 84,674 881 472,031 115,266 809,833
Bank balances and cash BOgERES 132,418
Pledged bank deposits BRBRIER 66
Unallocated corporate assets AORDAEE 345,508
Consolidated assets GREE 1,287,825
Liabilities B
Segment liabilities HERE 84,253 75,624 7,902 202,943 105,598 476,320
Bank and other borrowings ROREMREE 393,153
Obligations under finance leases BEHEAL 9,261
Unallocated corporate liabilities KAEAFEE 92,299
Consolidated liabilties FaBfE 971,033
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)
LR EGEENE P

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2017
BE_Z—tHF+-A=+—RHILFE

7. SEGMENT INFORMATION (Continued) 7. SEER (&)
Segment assets and liabilities (Continued) THEEEREEB (H)
At 31 December 2016 RZE—RF+-_A=+—H

Integration of

Media signal system
entertainment Other and traffic Satellite TV
platform related multimedia ~ communication equipment and Satellite TV
products products network antenna broadcasting Total
gpieTs 6 BANBRER  HE2EH
AEER SREER xLLuﬂ%M% RERKE  HRIRER it
HK'000 HK'000 HK'000 HKS'000 HK$'000 HKS'000
ThET Fian FhT Fan FhT FhET
Assets BE
Segment assets PEAE 151,156 103,549 172 502,337 138326 897,005
Bank balances and cash RTEERRS 76,065
Pledged bank deposits BEAFAER 14,925
Unallocated corporate assets FPEAREE 334613
Consolidated assets GAEE 1322,698
Liabilities afk
Segment liabilties HEAME 109978 98311 8205 25,716 101,594 543,804
Bank and other borrowings ROREREE 391,721
Obligations under finance leases rﬂ!ﬁf %K}f‘ 11,042
Unallocated corporate liabilities AAE B 94013
Consolidated liabilties %%éil%fﬁ 1,040,580
For the purpose of monitoring segment performances and BERSBRANROBERSEER:
allocating resources between segments:
all assets are allocated to operating segments other than . BRETYE BEARE BB
certain property, plant and equipment, deposit paid to an BMERANE 2 REVE HBAR
associate, investment properties, assets classified as held for FIELEMNEE LT HBEAF
sale, loan to an associate, amount due from an associate, Y E R UL — B R B 5B
interest in an associate, deferred tax assets, loan receivables, R—REBE QA R ﬁkﬁlﬁﬁ
certain other receivables, bank balances and cash and EEWER /T H A E R
pledged bank deposits; and fEﬁ,‘uT&iﬁiLA&ETEHEﬁfEﬁﬁm

INVFTBEESRESRKEDR R

all liabilities are allocated to operating segments other than . BETHMEMNKIE HEAE &
certain other payables, tax liabilities, deferred tax liabilities, EHBEEE RITREMEE L/(&zvaj‘l
bank and other borrowings and obligations under finance BHEAEN FIBEESEESLE
leases. =R
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)
LR EGEENE P

FORTHE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2017

BHE_ZT—tF+-A=1+—HIFE
7. SEGMENT INFORMATION (Continued) 7. 2EER(E)
Other segment information HttnBEHR

Amounts included in the measure of segment profit or loss or

segment assets:

Year ended 31 December 2017

BERGANDER:

BE-_Z—tHF+-A=+—HLFE

Media Integration of
entertainment signal system
platform Other and traffic Satellite TV
related multimedia  communication equipment and Satellite TV
products products network antenna  broadcasting Unallocated Total
45
BRRETE B ARRER HEER #E
HEER SEERER REBABL RBERAR ERESR ROE @t
HK'000 HK'000 HK'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HKS'000 HK$'000
TR TERL TERL TERL TERL TERL TERL
Addition to non-current assets REFRDEE 434 1,636 - 31,581 2,245 84 35,980
Depreciation and amortisation FEREHR 3,733 217 - 26,132 758 1,079 33,873
Release of prepaid lease payments  HEEFNBEHE 156 - - - - - 156
Impairment loss on trade EREB R R A
and other receivables ERFERERSE 18912 - - 1,361 - - 20,273
Reversal of impairment loss REENEFEH
on trade receivables REERE (23,405) - - - - - (23,405)
Write-down of inventories HFEH 20,474 - - - - - 20,474
Year ended 31 December 2016 BHE_Z—R"E+_A=T—HLFE
Media Integration of
entertainment signal system
platform Other and traffic Satellite TV
related multimedia ~ communication  equipment and Satellite TV
products products network antenna broadcasting Unallocated Total
ﬂ(/\
ReRgTE B ABESR HEER g
HEER  SREER XBBABE  RERXE ERER v &t
HK'000 HK'000 HK'000 HKS'000 HKS'000 HKS'000 HK$'000
TR TR TR TR TR TR TR
Addition to non-current assets REXRDEE 7995 610 - 24121 2 541 33,287
Depreciation and amortisation FEREH 7,500 749 268 23137 407 597 32658
Release of prepaid lease payments B BB EFHIE 160 - - - - - 160
Impairment loss on trade e E SR R E A ek
and other receivables FERESSE 21901 22,000 - - - - 43901
Write-down of inventories FEWH 5,165 - - - - - 5,165
Geographical information ith 35 & B

The Group's operations are mainly located in the PRC (country of
domicile), Taiwan, Europe, North America, Middle East, Africa and

South America.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)
LR EGEENE P

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2017
BHE-_ZT—tHF+-A=+—RHLFE

SEGMENT INFORMATION (Continued) 7. oEER(E)
Geographical information (Continued) MigER (&)
The Group's revenue from external customers, based on location AEBREINFEE (RIEZFTEH) A
of customers, and information about its non-current assets by W R BB EEMEMESE D EIERE
geographical location of the assets are detailed below: BEMERFIWET :
Revenue from external customers Non-current assets (Note)
RENBEFEH KR FRBEE (H:F)
2017 2016 2017 2016
“E-tfE NS “E-+F —E-R
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HKS'000
BT TEL T TEL
Asia ol
- Taiwan -2 8,897 33,101 105 904
~ Nepal -EHR 6,468 71,739 59,325 4,931
~ PRC (country of domicile) -HE (REREH) 94,367 30,756 219,412 208,236
- India ~HE 53,763 91,189 - 7,002
- Singapore i 2,696 30992 - -
- Others —Hf 10,061 10,707 6,801 77,061
Europe B
- Germany —-1= 60,332 30,102 747 67
- Italy =Y 30,347 25,147 - -
- Spain —EF 24,376 60,636 63 430
- Portugal -B8F 11,922 248 - -
- France —%=E 2,906 4372 - -
- Poland - K& 9,145 9,013 - -
- Denmark -fE 1,899 8314 - -
- Moldova ~-ER%ER 23,923 - - -
- Malta -5Bf 7,724 - - -
- Russia ~HES 6,813 - - -
- Others -Efp 18,968 19,449 - -
North America SIS
- United States of America ("USA") -EFZERE ([XE]) 940,956 1,083,839 27,996 31342
- Canada IIEYN 33,284 23,007 - -
- Mexico —EMF 24,026 38443 - -
- Others —Hft 1,784 3418 - -
Middle East
— United Arab Emirates("UAE") —MuABAERE
(TPEEes]) 89,376 53676 99,103 125,591
- Others —Eft 6,715 8,846 - -
Africa FEM
- Algeria —P & R A B 4,522 16,569 - -
- Morocco —[E R 3,074 47,943 - -
- Others —Ef 5,377 7,282 - -
South America EES
~ Brazil -Bf 7,169 11,280 - -
- Chile — &7 3,340 2,355 - -
- Argentina — PRz 20,296 29424 - -
- Columbia -SSRt e 15,546 37118 - -
- Ecuador -eL%@ 800 813 - -
- Others —Eft 12,340 9,374 - -
Other regions Hipit R 1,626 2,349 - -
1,544,838 1,801,501 413,552 455,564
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)
LR EGEENE P

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2017
BHE-_ZT—tHF+-A=+—RHLFE

7. SEGMENT INFORMATION (Continued) 7. oEER(#&)
Geographical information (Continued) Mg E R (48)

Miex: SERBAETERECHRAEE N i

Note: Non-current assets exclude deferred tax assets, deposit paid to an associate

and financial instruments. ERAIMITERemMIA-

Information about major customers FERFER

Revenue from customer contributing over 10% of the total sales of BREBNEEBAZETEI B0 B R
the Group is as follows: fad ENE

2017 2016
—E—+tF —E—RF
HK$’000 HK$'000
THET THET
Customer A BEFA 447,676 573,797
Note:  Revenue from the above customer is from the satellite TV equipment and Hizr: NERPHNERAGEESERERRENE-

antenna segment.

8. FINANCE COSTS 8. ®ERA&
2017 2016
—Z—+t#F T —RF
HK$'000 HKS$'000
FTET FAT
Interest on bank and other borrowings WITREMEERNS 27,141 14,552
Finance leases BMEEE 82 101
27,223 14,653
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)
LR EGEENE P

FORTHE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2017

BH=E

—EtF+A=1t—HILFE

9. INCOME TAX EXPENSE 9. FEHXH
2017 2016
—E—+F —E—RF
HK$’000 HK$'000
FET FHT
The tax charge comprises: MIEF X B 1E
Current tax: ARERFEIE -
PRC s 1,240 7,112
Jurisdictions other than the PRC and FEEEE LI TEER
Hong Kong 9,127 10,995
10,367 18,107
(Over)/Under-provision in prior years: BEFE (BEEE) BETR:
PRC A (77) 62
Jurisdictions other than the PRC and PR REBAING EEE R
Hong Kong 3 (850)
(74) (788)
Deferred taxation: IEETIE
Current year KEE (1,535) (3,113)
Provision for withholding tax TEHB - 412
(1,535) (2,701)
8,758 14,618
The tax rates applicable to the Group's principal operating HE_Z—+tHFR-_Z—R"F+ZA=+—
subsidiaries for the years ended 31 December 2017 and 2016 are HIEFE ZISEIEE ZIEME A RER
as follows: WEMT:
(i) PRC (i) H

RIEFRBEBEASFRIERLER +
BT /E A AR @A R R EMESRM
R ED5% o

The applicable PRC enterprise income tax rate of the PRC
subsidiaries is 25% in accordance with the relevant income
tax law and regulations in the PRC.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)

B IR R ML ()

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2017
BHE-_ZT—tHF+-A=+—RHLFE

9.

INCOME TAX EXPENSE (Continued)

(ii)

(iii)

(iv)

(v)

(vi)

Hong Kong

Hong Kong Profits Tax is calculated at 16.5% of the
estimated assessable profits.

No tax is payable on the profit arising in Hong Kong as the
entity operating in Hong Kong incurred tax losses for both
years.

United States of America

The Group's subsidiaries in USA are subject to United States
Federal Income Tax at 34% and States Income Tax at 6%.

Europe

The Group's European subsidiaries are subject to profit tax
rates at a range of 21% to 33%.

Macau

As stated in the Decree Law No. 58/99/M, Chapter 2,
Article 12, dated 18 October 1999, the Macau subsidiary is
exempted from Macao Complementary Tax since its income
is generated from business outside Macau.

Others

Other subsidiaries operating in other jurisdictions are
subject to applicable tax rates in the relevant jurisdictions.
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(ii)

(iii)

(iv)

(v)

(vi)
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)
LR EGEENE P

FORTHE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2017

HE-_ZT—+tHF+-A=+—"BLFE
9. INCOME TAX EXPENSE (Continued) 9.

FrE®ix i ()

AEEHRAX ARG E B MEMEEK
WARMMEH AT EREERMAT

The tax charge for the year can be reconciled to the loss before
income tax expense per the consolidated statement of profit or loss
and other comprehensive income as follows:

2017 2016
—E—tF —ET-RF
HK$'000 HKS$'000
FERT FHET
Loss before income tax expense s iz A& e (167,033) (92,740)
Tax at the applicable rate of 25% (2016: 25%) & i@ Fi #% & 25%
(ZT—"F:25%) 5T ERI IR (41,758) (23,185)
Tax effect of expenses not deductible PAHMAT BB E
for tax purpose 64,068 43,065
Tax effect of income not taxable for BERBRMBANB LT E
tax purpose (22,533) (16,484)
Tax effect of deductible temporary differences 7 52 B 7] 30 51 2] B 2= 58 HY
not recognised M E (53) (46)
Tax effect of different tax rates of subsidiaries  FH fh BlA#E & 48 & K9
operating in other jurisdictions B A TR EL
misE & 5,197 10,771
Tax effect of tax loss not recognised AEZNH BB BN E T E 3,911 873
Deferred taxation arising from KRB fx S TE I 89 IR E B 18
dividend withholding tax - 412
Over-provision in prior years BEFEHEBEREE (74) (788)
Tax charge for the year REFEHRIAX N 8,758 14,618

Details of deferred taxation for the year are set out in note 23.

AERIELEH AR FISHNME -
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)
LR EGEENE P

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2017
BE_Z—tHF+-A=+—RHILFE

10. LOSS FOR THE YEAR 10. AFEFE
2017 2016
—E—tF ZE—RF
HK$’000 HKS$'000
FHT FH&IT
Loss for the year has been arrived at after ERAFEEER
charging/(crediting): Bk (5TA) -
Directors’ emoluments (note 11) E=Me (M) 4,206 5,051
Other staff costs /H\ﬁﬂé\lﬁfﬂi 209,586 193,558
Retirement benefit scheme contributions, RKBFETEHER(ESKRIN)
excluding directors 9,405 9,086
Defined benefit obligation expenses AERNEEMAX 123 -
Total employee benefit expenses EERFHXBHE 223,320 207,695
Auditor's remuneration ZER & 2,515 2,673
Depreciation of property, W BELREITE
plant and equipment 29,154 27,851
Amortisation of intangible assets (note i) B EE#EN (M) 4,719 4,807
Release of prepaid lease payments BEEMNHEERIE 156 160
Carrying amount of inventories sold HEFEMERE 1,447,645 1,613,131
Write-down of inventories (note i) FEHUR (HIaEi) 20,474 5,165
Cost of inventories recognised as expenses BEERAEAYMFERAK 1,468,119 1,618,296
(Gain)/Loss on disposal of property, HEME  BEREED
plant and equipment (note ii) (Wezs) /B8 (I aEii) (1,225) 2,103
Impairment loss on goodwill ERESE 28,000 -
Impairment loss on trade and other FEWE 5 BR 3R % Ho At FE YR IB /Y
receivables (note ii) BEEE (M) 20,273 43,901
Reversal of impairment loss on BOERRERE S ERIZAE
loan and trade receivables (note ii) 518 (P aEii) (32,199) -
Impairment loss on loan receivables (note ii)  EWE ZUREE B (M aLii) - 39,155
Loss on disposal on subsidiaries (note ii) HENE R R EE (M) (157)
Interest income (note ii) FB A (Bt 5Tl (2,057) (1,946)
Interest income from an associate (note ii) KE—HEE QMR EMRA
(B =Eii) (1,598) (2,185)
Effective interest income on bond & %5 FE W R IE 1) B IR A1 B A
receivables (note ii) (B &Fin) - (1,282)
Property rental income (note ii) WEREW A (i) (11,621) (11,505)
Scrap and sample sales (note ii) B b AN E (FEEi) (375) (498)
Net foreign exchange gain (note ii) SNEE TR H e F 78 (B 5Tl (10,756) (3,761)
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)
LR EGEENE P

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2017
BHE-_ZT—tHF+-A=+—RHLFE

10. LOSS FOR THE YEAR (Continued) 10. XNFEEFE (&)
Note i:  Included in cost of sales ME: BEREERARN
Note ii: Included in other income, gain and losses Mt BEREMEA - WEREBRR
Included in the total employee benefit expenses is an aggregate EBEBANMAXEETBEEHATHNRE
amount of HK$9,432,000 (2016: HK$9,115,000) in respect of expense BB 7 48 %8 59,432,000 7L ( — & — N
for defined contribution plans. 9,115,000/ 7T ) °

11. DIRECTORS’ EMOLUMENTS AND FIVE HIGHEST 11. EEMERITEHESMSERI AL
PAID INDIVIDUALS

(a) Directors’ emoluments (@ EEW2
The emoluments paid or payable to each of the directors ENSENSESHNS0NT:

were as follows:

Year ended 31 December 2017 BE-Z—tF+-A=+—HLEFE
Mr. Hung Mr. Frank Mr. Han Mr. Wu Mr.Li Mr. Lau
Tsung Mr.liao  Karl-Heinz Chien Chia Ms. Chen Mr. Chen Chak Yau Mr. Kuo
Chin Wenl Fischer Shan Ming Mei Huei Wei Chun Hung Cheung Jen Hao Total
Frank
Karl-Heinz

ARE BX& Fischer &7 258 RXE ki 3 ok IR

pid:3 i3 i3 i3 i3 7t i3 i3 b3 P it
HKSO00  HKS000  HKS000  HKS000  HKS000  HKS000  HKSO00  HKS000  HKS'000  HKS000  HK$'000
TR TR TR T TER TER TER TER TER TER TER

(note i) (note v) (note iv) (note vii) (note iii) (noteii) (note vi)
(Mrti) (W) (W&v) (i) (W) (Waki) (Wi
Fees 64 38 36 36 64 38 66 70 4 7 486
Other emoluments:
- Salaries and other benefits 1312 26 832 - - 850 673 - - - 3,693
- retirement benefits schemes
contributions 12 9 - - - 6 - - - - 7
Total emoluments Hesg 1,388 i3 868 36 64 894 739 70 4 bl 4,206
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)
LR EGEENE P

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2017
BHE-_ZT—tHF+-A=+—RHLFE

11. DIRECTORS’ EMOLUMENTS AND FIVE HIGHEST 11. EEMEREEREESMEBAIAL

: =
PAID INDIVIDUALS (Continued) (&)
(a) Directors’ emoluments (Continued) (@) EE=M<e (&)
Year ended 31 December 2016 HE_Z—R"EFTA=1T—ALFE
Mr. Hung Mr. Frank Mr. Yip
Tsung Mrliao  KarlHeinz ~ Mr.Chen Chung Mr.Lee Mr. Han Mr. Wu Mr.Ko Meli Ms.Chen
Chin Wen! Fischer ~ WeiChun ~ WaiDavid ~ ChienKuo ~ ChienShan  Chia Ming YenHui  Chak Hung Mei Huei Total
Frank
Karl-Heinz

ARE  BXR R REH  RER FRE BTL RE® AAE FEE RXE

i3 i3 iid id ir:a R rE rE i3 i3 It gt
HKSODD  HKSO00  HKSOD  HKSOOD  HKSOD  HKSOOD  HKSOD SO0 HKSOMD  HKSOO0  HKSOMO  HKSO00
TEr TR TEr  TEm  TEr  THn  TEr TR TExr TR TER TR

Fees ok 60 60 60 60 60 3 60 60 8 20 60 543
Other emoluments: EfhAg:
- Selaries and other benefits - 5% REMET 1363 7 1251 516 - - - - - - 1322 4479
- retirement benefits schemes - RIVERIET 8t R
contributions 12 8 - - - - - - - - 9 9
Total emoluments Hessm 1435 9% 131 576 60 3% 60 60 8 20 1391 5051
Notes: B ot
0) Mr. Hung Tsung Chin has resigned as the Chairman of the Company 0] HBELEEE - Z—FN\ATABR
but remained as an executive Director with effect from 18 August BEARBER BERETRMNITES-
2017
(i) Mr. Lau Yau Cheung has been appointed as an independent non- (ii) BIhetkER T —+F N\AtHE
executive Director of the Company from 7 August 2017 and has ZERARABBUIFRTEERN
been appointed as the Chairman of the Company from 18 August T—+FENA+NAEZETEAEEAT
2017 TEe
(i) Ms. Chen Mei Huei has resigned as an executive Director and chief (iii) MEBZTHR=_ZT—+tFNA+NAH
executive officer of the Company from 18 August 2017 BHIARRIMITEERWITR
(iv) Mr. Frank Karl-Heinz Fischer has resigned as an executive Director of (iv) Frank Karl-Heinz Fischerfe &£ =& —+
the Company from 18 August 2017 FNATN\HEBERRRBITES-
(v) Mr. Liao Wen | has resigned as an executive Director of the (v) BEXBAER=_T—CFNATNB
Company from 18 August 2017 HERABIRITES -
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)

B IR R ML ()

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2017
BHE-_ZT—tHF+-A=+—RHLFE

11. DIRECTORS’ EMOLUMENTS AND FIVE HIGHEST
PAID INDIVIDUALS (Continued)

(a) Directors’ emoluments (Continued)
Notes: (Continued)

(vi) Mr. Kuo Jen Hao has been appointed as a non-executive Director of
the Company from 18 August 2017

(vii) Mr. Han Chien Shan has resigned as an independent non-executive
Director of the Company from 7 August 2017

(b) Five highest paid individuals

Of the five individuals with the highest emoluments in
the Group, one (2016: two) was a director of the Company
whose emoluments is included in the disclosure set out
above. The emoluments of the remaining four (2016: three)
individuals are as follow:

11. EEMERLBERESMEERAL
(%)

a) EEM< (&)
GEINCD

(vi) BAREER-_ZE—LFNAA+N\H
BEZERARBFNTES

(vii) BFLEER-_T—LFNALHB
EARRBBILIERITES -

(b) HEEESMEMEBAL

AEERERSMEENAL —%
(Z2—RFE MB)REARAES
FRMeCHN EX-EHIEHE (=
E-AFZR)ATHBEHT:

2017 2016
—E—+tF /AN

HKS$’000 HKS$'000

FHET FAT

Salaries and other benefits e kHEMmEF 7,266 7475
Retirement benefit schemes IRORARFET & 3K

contributions 270 216

Total emoluments B <& 4B %8 7,536 7,691
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)
LR EGEENE P

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2017
BHE-_ZT—tHF+-A=+—RHLFE

11. DIRECTORS’ EMOLUMENTS AND FIVE HIGHEST 11. EEMEREEREESMEBAIAL

PAID INDIVIDUALS (Continued) (%)
(b)  Five highest paid individuals (Continued) b) HEE=EMESERAL(E)
The emoluments were within the following bands: e n FUTEER:
2017 2016
—E—+tF —E-RF
No. of employees  No. of employees
EE#A EEHE
Nil to HK$1,000,000 = £ 1,000,000 7T - -
HKS$1,000,001 to HK$1,500,000 1,000,001/ 7T £ 1,500,000/ 7T 1 -
HKS$ 1,500,001 to HK$2,000,000 1,500,001/ 7T £ 2,000,000/ 7T 2 -
HK$2,000,001 to HK$2,500,000 2,000,001 7T £2,500,0007% 7T 1 2
HK$3,500,001 to HK$4,000,000 3,500,001 7T £4,000,0007% 7T - 1
During each of the years ended 31 December 2017 and HE-ZT—+tFR-ZZT—X"F+=A
2016, no emoluments were paid by the Group to any of the ST —HIESFE - AEELERT
directors and top paid employees as an inducement to join MEEkEaHFEEXNME ER
or upon joining the Group or as compensation for loss of TR o A2 B N B8R AN &R [ ) BN 2 ok B B
office. No director waived any emoluments for each of the HE-BE_ZE—TtHER-T—RF
years ended 31 December 2017 and 2016. TZA=T—HBLEEFE BEES
WEEAME -
12. DIVIDENDS 12. BRE
The directors do not recommend the payment of a dividend for the ERVIMEEREBEEZE_T—LtFT A
year ended 31 December 2017 (2016: Nil). S+ -—BLEFERNBRE(ZE—XREF:
;) o
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)
LR ENEENE P

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2017
BHE_ZT—tH+-A=+—RHLFE

13. LOSS PER SHARE 13. BRER
The calculation of the basic and diluted loss per share attributable RRRHA NEEEREARREEEE TR
to the owners of the Company is based on the following data: THEEE -
2017 2016
—E—+tF —E-RF
HK$’000 HKS$'000
FHET FAT
Loss for the purposes of basic and diluted REAESRERLEEEE
loss per share &5 18
Loss for the year attributable to owners RArEB ANBIRARFEER
of the Company (105,798) (77,655)
(restated)
(geE5)
2017 2016
—E—+F —E—RF
Number of Shares izt 8 B
Weighted average number of ordinary shares % 38 i% hn# <7 15 £k 2,352,317,330 1,457,505,237
Effect of dilutive potential ordinary shares BELTBENESZE (W)
(Note) . _ _
Weighted average number of ordinary shares  FB{E&T 5 & IS E 18 40 X B AR
for the purpose of diluted loss per share In#EFg 8 2,352,317,330 1,457,505,237
Note:  The weighted average number of shares adopted in calculation of basic ME: RAEFEBEZE_Z— X F(K&FI)R=F—+
loss per share for the years ended 31 December 2016 (restated) and 2017 F+Z A=+ HLFESRERNEBOKRD
has been adjusted to reflect the impact of the open offer shares by issuing IEEFBEIERE  UARBER_FE—tF+A
1,967,295,201 ordinary shares at an offer price of HK$0.12 completed on 19 + N B FERCIR B & (B0.1278 T8 171,967,295,201
July 2017. REBRZ ARABEEROITE -
The computation of diluted loss per share does not assume the exercise ARZERRITENERENTEERRRS
of the Company’s outstanding share options as the exercise price of those BT TH5E M EEREEE BRI AR
options is higher than the average market price for shares. RATE AR A 18 AR AT A BE AR A o
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)
LR ENEENE P

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2017
BHE_ZT—tHF+-A=+—RHLFE

14. PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT 14. ¥R -BERRHE
Freehold Leasehold Furniture,
land outside  land outside Leasehold Plantand fixtures and Motor  Computer
HongKong  Hong Kong Building improvements  machinery  equipment vehicles  equipment Total
nER RER
BRHHAA R BENE BER HH-BE
$Ei®  HELH 2 %8 BE RERRHE RE  BERE @t

HKS000  HKS'000  HKS'000  HKS$'000  HKS'000  HKS$'000  HKS'000  HKS$'000  HK$'000
TER TERL TER TER TER TER TER TER TER

Cost KA
At 1 January 2016 RZZT-"5-A—H 3543 339% 99,248 11,906 228,106 24,844 3736 18,556 393335
Exchange adjustments [ 3§ 3% 2 2 (4719) (630) (5,468) (1923) (755) (1,827) (15318)
Additions HE - - - 5621 24399 1,250 359 1,625 33254
Acquisition of a subsidiary Y — I B2 A
(note 35) (Fr33s) - - - - - 287 41 646 974
Disposals e - - (13,778) (1,771) (12,324) (9.718) (1,250) (4,767) (43,608)
At 31 December 2016 RZB-1R%F
t-A=+-AH 3,545 3398 80,751 15,126 234,713 14,740 2131 14233 368637
Exchange adjustments  [E 5% 2 2 6,044 567 10567 1,704 109 4123 23170
Additions AE - - - 2078 29919 2958 73 832 35,860
Disposal of a subsidiary ~ HE—HHBAR - - - - - (3261) - - (3261)
Disposals HE - - - (2611) (46,614) (4874) (516) (9472) (64,087)
At 31 December 2017 S 3
+ZA=1-H 3573 3426 86,795 15,160 228,585 11,67 1,797 9716 360,319
Depreciation and RERBH
amortisation
At 1 January 2016 RZE-~E-A-H - - 33,394 8097 158926 19,066 3425 13,381 236,289
Exchange adjustments B % - - (1,772) (594) (3,702) (1619) (634) (1,593) (9913)
Provided for the year TEERE - - 3673 537 19534 1341 154 2612 27851
Eliminated on disposal & ¥4 - - (3,162) (1,114) (9892) (8,829) (1,022) (4125) (28144)
At 31 December 2016 RZB-—NF
T-A=+-H - - 32133 6926 164,866 9960 1,923 10275 226,083
Exchange adjustments  [E J35% - - 2632 652 5231 926 (22) 1731 11,150
Provided for the year FEERE - - 3579 2001 19,560 1,850 167 1,997 29,154
Eliminated on disposal i & ¥ 34 - - - (2,563) (39,299) (@771) (317) (6,579) (53523)
Eliminated on disposal of 1% — R B2 Rl
a subsidiary E3f - - - - - (2.389) - - (2,389)
At31December2017  RZZE—+%
+=B=1-8 - - 38,344 7016 150358 5576 1,757 7424 210475
Carrying values REE
At 31 December 2017 RZE—+#&
+=A=1-H8 3573 3426 48451 8144 78227 5,691 4 2292 149,844
At31 December 2016 RZE-RF
+=A=1-H 3545 3398 48618 8200 69,847 4780 208 3958 142,554
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)

BB R R ML ()

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2017
BHE_ZT—tHF+-A=+—RHLFE

14. PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT 14.

(Continued)

The above items of property, plant and equipment, except for
construction in progress, are depreciated on a straight-line basis at

the following rates per annum:
Freehold land outside Hong Kong
Leasehold land in Hong Kong
Leasehold land outside

Hong Kong
Buildings

Leasehold improvements

Plant and machinery
Furniture, fixtures and equipment

Motor vehicles
Computer equipment

Nil

2%
Over the term of finance lease

50 years or over the term of
lease or land use rights,
whichever is shorter

20% or over the term of lease,
whichever is shorter

10% - 33'/3%

20%

20% — 33'/3%
20% — 33'/3%

The carrying values of leasehold land outside Hong Kong and
buildings include amounts of HK$3,426,000 (2016: HK$3,398,000)
and HK$9,226,184 (2016: HKS$9,335,000) respectively in respect
of assets held under finance leases. Certain leasehold land and

building is pledged to a bank to secure a mortgage loan and

general banking facilities granted to the Group (note 44).

ME - BWERRE (&)

it BERRERE (ERIERIN)
BTIFERABEREAERE

REBEING piia
KA FERE T
REBNHEE L 2%
REBRING MmEMAEHR
HE L
EF S04F s M & sk L it
FREFHA
(ARG & B%E)
HEWERE 20%3% 1 & Bf A
(A H BE)
TR 5 N i B8 10% —33'/3%
R BEEE 20%
B
T 20%—33/3%

BB 20%—33/3%
NEBBIINHEE L EEFNEREESD
153,426,000/ 7T ( ZF — 754 3,398,000/
J0) 59,226,184 7L ( =& — 75 4F 1 9,335,000
B EERERERERENEENS
B AEECHBHHEE L MEFIET
EBMERITEENIERE (M 5E44) ©
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)
LR ENEENE P

FORTHE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2017

BH=E

15.

—EtF+A=1t—HILFE

DEPOSIT PAID TO AN ASSOCIATE

On 10 May 2013, the Group entered into a conditional agreement
in respect of the subscription of 6,195,652 new shares in Dish
Media Network Limited (“Dish Media”), an associate of the
Group, for a subscription price of US$7,289,002 (equivalent to
HK$56,489,765) (the “Share Subscription”). Dish Media is principally
engaged in the provision of Direct-To-Home service for satellite
TV broadcasting. Details of the transaction are set out in the
announcement of the Company dated 10 May 2013. Directors
of the Company expected that the associate would become a
subsidiary of the Group after issuance of the new shares.

During the year 2016, the Company entered into an agreement
with Dish Media to revise the terms of the Share Subscription
(the “Revised Share Subscription”). Pursuant to the Revised Share
Subscription, Dish Media will issue new shares to all existing
shareholders and the Company will subscribe 5,468,513 new shares
by utilising the deposit paid to an associate. According to the
Revised Share Subscription, there is no change in the Company'’s
shareholding percentage and Dish Media is continued to be
an associate of the Group. As at 31 December 2016, the Group
had deposit paid to Dish Media of US$5,972,000 (equivalent to
HK$46,306,000).

The share subscription has been completed on 7 August 2017.
Deposit paid to an associate amounted to US$5,972,000 (equivalent
to HK$46,306,000) has been recognised as interest in an associate.
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15.

EN-—EBEQITNITE

RZE—=ZFRA+H AEBETLEIK
1% WA A R EEDish Media Network
Limited ([Dish Media | A& B ME 2 D
7))6,195,6520% # A% 17+ REE(E 57,289,002
7T (FH & 156,489,765 7T) ([0 RIEE
1B ]) ° Dish MediaE B BB EEARE
EEREERS X HFBHNART A
AT ZFAATHENRAERN -ARAE
ETEEIR M EITR BE RN ATE
B EQR -

T —RENRN AR A EDish Mediag] 3 %
FOMERTR MR ETE 25 ([EEET
MRBEE]) - BELCETRMNBESE
Dish Media#§ M FT B IR B R EEITH KRG -
RABEBEBFARBE QAT NNETER
BE5,468 513 AR 17 - IRIB LB R IR 15 R 8
FIE - RR AL 030 £ 24t - Dish Media
BEAAEBZHBERNT -R_E—RF
FTZA=1+—H A&EBEZ{IDish MedialZ &
5,972,0003 7t ( #8& 746,306,000/ 70 ) °

BHRBEHEER_ZE—tFNALBR
X o B 5 — & Bt & 2 8] 5] & 45,972,000 7T
(#8 & 746,306,000/ 70 ) B HER AR — BB
BRRIHERS-



NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)
LR ENEENE P

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2017
BHE_ZT—tHF+-A=+—RHLFE

16. PREPAID LEASE PAYMENTS 16. FENHERE
2017 2016
—E—tF —EREF
HK$’000 HKS$'000
FHBT FH& T
At beginning of the year REH] 5,011 5512
Exchange adjustment PE H FE B 345 (341)
Released to profit or loss BEigs (156) (160)
At the end of the year RER 5,200 5,011
Analysed for reporting purposes as: MERAEIWE:
Current asset MBEE 163 152
Non-current asset EMBNEE 5,037 4,859
5,200 5,011
17. INVESTMENT PROPERTIES 17. BEYE

HKS$'000
T
At January 1,2016 RZZE—-RF—H—H 124,241
Exchange adjustments ME 3 B (4,499)
Changes in fair value recognised in profit or loss R IEZSFERH A FEE 26,906
At 31 December 2016 R-E—RFET-A=1+—H 146,648
Exchange adjustments ME 3 B 4,849

Transfer to assets classified as held for sale EEREHSBEABELNENEE (H529)

(note 29) (97,396)
Changes in fair value recognised in profit or loss 1825 HE R A F(E & 19,580
At 31 December 2017 R-ZE—tF+-_A=+—H 73,681
Note: B o

The fair values of the Group's investment properties at 31 December 2017 and 2016
have been arrived at on the basis of valuations carried out by RHL Appraisal Limited,
an independent qualified professional valuers not connected to the Group and
possess appropriate qualifications and experience in the valuation of properties in the
relevant locations. All of the Group's investment properties were valued with reference
to valuation by the valuer considering the market evidence of transaction prices
for similar properties in similar locations and conditions, or on the basis of income
approach where appropriate.

AEBREMER-_ZT—LFR-_FT—X~"F+=A
=+ —HNRAFERKFITHFEEBBR AR (AHEX
SEMERENB LA EREXGEM B YHERE
Y FEETHENBEERIER) ETHHAEREE
B ANEEMBEREMENEEOHHEEM2 SR
ARRART A B E R TIS KR BREIIRBAE (]
BRI ) EB e
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)

BRI R ML ()

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2017
BE_Z—tH+-A=+—RHILFE

17. INVESTMENT PROPERTIES (Continued) 17.

Note: (Continued)
In arriving at the valuation on the basis of income approach, the fair value is
determined by capitalising the net rental income derived from the existing tenancies

with due allowance or provision for the reversionary potential of the properties.

In estimating the fair value of the properties, the highest and best use of the
properties is their current use.

Following are the key inputs used in valuing the investment properties as at 31
December 2017 and 2016:

Fair value at Fair value at

REWE (#)

fEE: (#)

BWAEERGER DEREHEEHEMEENFE
SWABHEER UM ENAEREAENHREE
BEmERIFE.

REZEMENRTER DENRR RKEREE
HBERB

E’\\:? tERZE-RET AT -HRREMHE
ETHERAANEIRRABNT

Range or weighted  Relationship of unobservable

Category Fair value hierarchy 31 December 2017 31 December 2016 Valuation techniques Key unobservable inputs average inputs to fair value

Ro®-tE  AoT- Aﬁ
t=A=t-8  t2A=t-

bl RYERE HRTE GO 1 hEHR TEFUBEAAE BEINETHE FUBRRBAEEATENBR
HK$'000 HKS'000
TER FEL
Office properties in Level 3 97,396 77,000 Comparison Adjusted transaction price 3.8% (2016:3.8%) The higher the adjusting factor,
Hong Kong (to reflect location, size, the lower the fair value
age and maintenance)
REENHAZNE E=4 HBE BRERSHE (RBLE BE- REZHER RTEME
BRR&E)
Industrial properties in Level 3 73,681 69,648 Comparison/Income  Reversionary yield 6% (2016: 6%) The higher the reversionary yield,
the PRC (derived from monthly market rent) the lower the fair value
RbENIENE E=H LEE/MAE  TEERA(RPETEHE) AEEUAER A TEME
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)
LR ENEENE P

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2017
BHE_ZT—tH+-A=+—RHLFE

17. INVESTMENT PROPERTIES (Continued) 17. REYXE (&)

Note: (Continued) MsE: (#8)

BREMENRATERE=ZREFTUERTEFE HOK
MR R FEHRBHENT

The fair value of investment properties is a level 3 recurring fair value measurement. A

reconciliation of the opening and closing fair value balance is provided below:

2017 2016

—E—+tF —T—RF

HK'000 HK'000

FHET FET

Opening balance B9 EREE 146,648 124,241

Exchange adjustments [E &A% 4,849 (4,499)

Reclassification* bk i - -

Transfer to assets classified as held for sale (note 29) WERESBERFELENEE (H:E29) (97,396) -

Changes in fair value recognised in profit or loss RIEEERNAFLEZ 19,580 26,906

Closing balance (level 3 recurring fair value) HABE (FZAEEERTE) 73,681 146,648
* There was no transfer amongst levels during the year * FERNEEE R e ERE -

Investment property is pledged to a bank to secure a mortgage loan and general

REVEBEMTRIT EARTAKEEMRERE —
RRERITE R AR (M 5E44) »

banking facilities granted to the Group (note 44).
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BRI R M AL ()

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2017
BHE-_ZT—tHF+-A=+—RHLFE

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)

18. GOODWILL 18. B8

2017 2016
—E—tF —E-REF
HK$’000 HKS$'000
FET FAET

cosT R
At beginning of the year RE A 218,618 92,267
Acquisition of subsidiaries (note 35) U g B B8 A &) (B 5E35) - 125,004
Exchange adjustments b S 1,423 1,347
At the end of the year RER 220,041 218,618

IMPAIRMENT BAE
At beginning of the year RE A 83,744 83,744
Provision for impairment loss VEREN SRR = 28,000 -
At the end of the year RER 111,744 83,744

CARRYING AMOUNTS BREEEE

At the end of the year RER 108,297 134,874

For the purposes of impairment testing, goodwill has been
allocated to the following CGUs and the carrying amounts of
goodwill allocated to these CGUs are as follow:

SRRERRNS HEEIEENTHREE
B EEARTREELEUNBEN
FREESBMT:

2017 2016
—E—tfF —E-RF
HK$'000 HKS$'000
FHT FHET
Satellite TV equipment and antenna FEEBRBERRE
- PBT CGU —PBTIRE EA HfL 10,654 9,870
Media entertainment platform HEIRGE L S E M
related products
- IDS CGU —IDSHEEHE BN - -
Satellite TV broadcasting HEERER
- MyHD CGU —MyHDIR & ZE & B 1 97,643 125,004
108,297 134,874
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)
LR EGEENE P

FORTHE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2017

B=E

18.

—EtF+A=1t—HILFE

GOODWILL (Continued) 18. BE (&)
During the year ended 31 December 2017, the management RBEZZ—+F+-_A=1+—HLFE"
assessed the expected recoverable amount based on the higher of B f@ﬁz,ﬂf\ﬁﬁﬁ BERAFEREHSEKA
value in use and fair value less cost of disposal and determined that MEsETHERTRESRE  TRARS
the higher amount would be based on the cash flow projections of SEEARBRESSMMERRETEA
the relevant CGUs. RE
The recoverable amount of these CGUs have been determined ZEReELENNAINESECIREAE
based on the value in use calculations, covered a detailed budget BEBFtEREABEE %A EREFRNEES
plan, have followed by an extrapolation of expected cash flows at £ jﬂﬁ—rtiﬁﬁ‘_?ﬁ%i‘ﬁ FTIREMEfF
the growth rates stated below. The key assumptions used for value REBAEREZNEEREZOT
in use calculations are as follows:
PBT CGU MyHD CGU
PBTRESELEN MyHDR & B4 E{L
2017 2016 2017 2016
—E—+F ZE-RF “E-t% —E-RF
Budget plan TEE A& 5 years 5 years 5 years 5 years
ka3 HF kg3 AF
Growth rate BRX 2% 2% 3% 3%
Discount rate Prig = 12.14% 15% 19.85% 22%

The growth rate is based on the relevant industry growth forecasts
and does not exceed the average long-term growth rate for the
relevant industry. The cash flow projections are from the most
recent financial budget approved by the management. Other key
assumptions for the value in use calculation are budgeted gross
margin and budgeted revenue, which are determined based on the
unit's past performance and management’s expectations regarding
market development.

An impairment loss on goodwill HK$28,000,000 (2016: Nil) was
recognised for MyHD CGU for the year ended 31 December
2017. As the carrying amount of the CGU has been reduced to its
recoverable amount of HK$97,643,000, any adverse change in the
key assumptions used to calculate the recoverable amount would
result in further impairment losses.

ZEERARBITRNERAENSER T
SHBHEBTENFORRERX-RER
zﬁwuaﬁﬁﬂﬁﬂﬁﬁ%%ﬁﬁgﬁ%
E-EREEFENENEMTIERRRE
%ﬂfﬁﬁ%% WRIR IR B EMA
MBERRREEERHMSERNBNE

iE °

REZE_ZE—tF+_A=+—HILFE"
EﬁE%\MyHDfﬁiEEEMZ?ﬁﬁiﬂ’]mﬁ)ﬁéﬁ
18/528,000,0008 7 (ZF—RNF ) -
ReELE usﬁﬁﬁﬁﬁaﬂd\iﬁﬂ&@%
897,643,000/ 7T  (EM AR T E ] Ik Bl £ X8
ZEIZRVLEBEEHKEBE—FHRE
E518 -
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)
LR ENEENE P

FORTHE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2017

HE—

19.

Sandmartin International Holdings Limited 2 5 T BEIFR 2 R H R A A

T—+F+_A=+—HLEFE
INTANGIBLE ASSETS 19. BFEE
Product Customer
technology relationship Others Total
EmBE il EFBF Ht #mat
HK$'000 HK$’000 HK$'000 HK$'000
THERT THERT FTHET TET
(Note a) (Note b) (Note ¢)
(FMfzEa) (FzEb) (MfzEc)
Cost X AR
At 1 January 2016 RZZE—RF—HA—H 29,487 35,223 5,727 70,437
Addition NE 33 - - 33
Disposals & (877) - - (877)
Exchange adjustments [ i F5%& (45) 20 1 (24)
At 31 December 2016 ~ R ZZ—X4F
+-A=+—H 28,598 35,243 5,728 69,569
Addition A= - - 120 120
Disposals e - - (279) (279)
Exchange adjustments  [& i, F§ %8 1,690 286 373 2,349
At 31 December 2017 R -ZT—+F
+=ZA=+— 30,288 35,529 5,942 71,759
Amortisation and #5E MORE
impairment
At 1 January 2016 RZZE—-RF—H—HA 26,749 13,336 3,883 43,968
Exchange adjustments [ i 55 % (33) 5 1 (27)
Provided for the year REERME 522 4,178 107 4,807
Eliminated on disposals 1 & B ¥ § (877) - - (877)
At 31 December 2016 AT —/X4F
+=ZA= 26,361 17,519 3,991 47,871
Exchange adjustments (& 5 3% 1,863 154 63 2,080
Provided for the year NEERME 247 4,193 279 4,719
Eliminated on disposals & B ¥ §4 - (279) (279)
At 31 December 2017 R -ZT—+4F
+-—RA=+—H 28,471 21,866 4,054 54,391
Carrying values REE
At 31 December 2017 R T —+4F
+-—A=+—H” 1,817 13,663 1,888 17,368
At 31 December 2016 R ZE—XF
+=—HA=+—~H 2,237 17,724 1,737 21,698
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)
LR ENEENE P

FORTHE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2017

HE—

19.

20.

T tE+ZAS+—AILER

INTANGIBLE ASSETS (Continued) 19.
Notes:
(a) Product technology represents software acquired from independent third

parties for the development of TV set top box. Amortisation is provided on a
straight-line basis over 3 years.

(b) Customer relationship represents contracted and non-contracted customer
relationship arising from the acquisition of Pro Brand International, Inc
("PBI") during the year ended 30 June 2013. The amount is amortised over its
estimated useful life of 7.5 years on a straight-line basis.

(c) Other mainly represents the fair value of the research and development team
of PBT, a subsidiary of the Group acquired during the year ended 30 June
2013. The mature research and development team is separately recognised
based on the fair value at the date of acquisition. It can support the Group
for further expansion. Amortisation is provided on a straight-line basis over
7.5 years.

@ EnEfiasREBagRamaBLE=7
WENEG - BEN=FANUNERE R

(b) EPBARBEREE - —=F~A=1+HLHF
A ULEEPro Brand International, Inc ([PBI]) i
EERNEHNRIENEPHAR ZETUARIS
FREFT AR AFRANRES R

(© HEMEIrZ2EAKEARBE_T—=F<A=+
B IEFE RS A9 [T S A RIPBTEY A 3 BB A9 2
FE-RANTEERDREBERESEANOQT
EEE®RR ZMEEARUXHAKELE S
B MR SFERIABERE R

INTEREST IN AN ASSOCIATE/LOAN TO AN 20, R—EESATHERS BF—
ASSOCIATE RS B 4 2\ = B 2k
2017 2016
—E—tF —E—RF
HK$'000 HKS$'000
FET FAT
Share of net assets of associate FEfh — 2 R A E’]x?é% 59,325 4,931
Loan to an associate LT —HEBERRNER - 25,309
59,325 30,240
Movement of interest in associate is as follows: RS NEINESEENT
2017 2016
—E—tF —E—RF
HKS$’'000 HK$'000
FET FAET
At the beginning of the year REF] 4,931 -
Capital contributions &R 46,306 -
Share of profit of an associate FEAG — B & A 5 A s 5 8,088 4,931
At the end of the year RER 59,325 4,931
Note: 3 -
Loan to an associate is unsecured, repayable on demand and bearing fixed interest ST —REBE AR ER AERKE - /E}g%i Et&}ﬁ.
rate at 4.75% (2016: 4.75%) per annum. As at 31 December 2017, the loan to associate FEMRL7E(ZFE—RNF 475B)ft B - R T —+

is classified as current assets as it is wholly repayable within one year (note 21).

F+-A=+—8" %A%H”L"TE’J%TJX%iEﬁ//@Ué
E-EAEATR-FRTEER (K21 -
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)
LR ENEENE P

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2017
BHE_ZT—tH+-A=+—RHLFE

20. INTEREST IN AN ASSOCIATE/LOAN TO AN 200 A—REBELNIANERS HF—
ASSOCIATE (Continued) MBEANTINER (&)

fEE: (#)

Note: (Continued)

RZF—tFR_E-—RF+A=1t—H FA&EER
THIE S AT R

As at 31 December 2017 and 2016, the Group had interests in the following associate:

Form of business Place of Place of held by
Name of entity structure incorporation operation Class of shares the Group Principal activities
EREE EBEBER MR R s R AEEFE FEEK
Dish Media Limited company Nepal Nepal Ordinary 47.12%  Provision of Direct-To-Home
service for satellite TV
BRAA IEREL] DL il REREBRIEHEE A AERS
Summarised financial information: M ERBE
2017 2016
—E—tF T —RF
HK$'000 HK$'000
FHET FHET
As at 31 December R+=ZA=+-—H
Current assets MEBEE 72,823 53,293
Non-current assets EMENE E 334,985 272,871
Current liabilities mEEE (278,915) (314,667)
Non-current liabilities FERBEE (2,993) (1,033)
Year ended 31 December BE+=-B=+—HLEFE
Revenue Wz 217,339 117,520
Profit for the year REFHF 17,165 48,598
Total comprehensive income for the year REEE2EKREHE 17,165 48,644

Reconciliation of the above summarised financial information to the carrying amount

of the interest in an associate recognised in the consolidated financial statements:

PREBENBRRAR AR BREMERR —RBEERQ

A EEM IR S A E R

2017 2016

—E—tF S ANCS

HK$’000 HK$'000

FERT FHET

Net assets BEFHE 125,900 10,464
Proportion of the Group'’s ownership interest NEBE A EERD LA 47.12% 47.12%
Carrying amount of the Group's interest in an associate AEER—HBE RN ERNEESE 59,325 4,931
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)
LR ENEENE P

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2017
BHE_ZT—tH+-A=+—RHLFE

21. AMOUNT DUE FROM AN ASSOCIATE 21. B —BEBERANNRE
2017 2016
—E—tF —E—RF
HK$'000 HKS$'000
FET AT

Current BIVEA 71,444 78,256

Amount due from an associate include: FEU — & R A HFRIB B IE -

(i) amount of HK$41,355,000 (2016: HKS$63,419,000) being (i) 41,355,000/ 7T ( ZZF— 755 163,419,000
unsecured, interest-free and the Group allows a credit B EEARAR S AREEG
period of 360 days to its associate which is trade in nature; FHEEZENRNEERA6B  BE

SEE

(ii) amount of HKS$25,304,000 (2016: HKS$11,664,000) is (i) 25,304,000/ 7T ( —ZF—754F : 11,664,000
unsecured, bearing fixed interest rate at 4.75% per annum; D) - Ty IR B TE R E475E
and e R

(iii) amount of HK$4,785,000 (2016: HKS$3,173,000) of interest (iii) 4,785,000/ 7T ( ZZF—754F 3,173,000
receivables from the loan to an associate. BIL)IRABG T —EHELANE

2 YRS,

The following is an aged analysis of trade receivables from an JER—HEBEARNERESERER (BES

associate, which is trade in nature, presented based on the invoice ME)RRERRIZEZEABMEN MR
date at the end of the reporting year: ST :

2017 2016

—E—tF —E-RF

HK$’000 HK$'000

FHERT FHET

0 - 30 days 0230H - 5,409

31 - 90 days 31290H - 7,003

91 - 360 days 91&360H 5,640 51,007

More than 360 days #BiE360H 35,715 -

41,355 63,419
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)
LR ENEENE P

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2017
BHE_ZT—tH+-A=+—RHLFE

21. AMOUNT DUE FROM AN ASSOCIATE 21, BER—EHERATNRE (&)
(Continued)
Aging of amount due from an associate which are past due but not 48 BB SRR (B B PR U — A B i A B IE A
impaired: BREQINT -
2017 2016
—E—tF —T—RF
HK$'000 HK$'000
FET FHE T
Less than 3 months past due B3 E A 12,287 -
3 to 6 months past due BHI3Z6fE A 23,428 -
35,715 -
22. LOAN RECEIVABLES 22. EWER
2017 2016
—E—+F —E—REF
HK$'000 HK$'000
FET FHTT
Loans receivables (note i and ii) FEUE R (M aEifkii) 59,507 59,507
Less: allowance for doubtful debts (note iii) B REREAE (BIRE) (50,713) (59,507)
8,794 -
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)
LR ENEENE P

FORTHE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2017

BH=E

22.

—
—=

tFE+_A=+—RHILFE

LOAN RECEIVABLES (Continued)

Notes

@)

(ii)

As at 31 December 2017, the Group had loan receivable amounting to
HK$12,989,000 (2016: HK$12,989,000) granted to a third party. The amount
was unsecured and bore interest at 1.2% (2016: 1.2%) per annum. This loan
receivable was fully impaired as at 31 December 2016 and 2017.

As at 31 December 2017, the Group had loan and trade receivables due from
two customers (the “Debtors”) with gross amount of HK$46,518,000 (2016:
HK$46,518,000) and HK$39,273,000 (2016: HK$56,459,000) respectively (the
"Receivables”) which had been fully provided as at 31 December 2016. The

Debtors were engaged in the operation of cable television in Nepal.

The Group further advanced a loan of HK$14,491,000 to the Debtors during
the year ended 31 December 2016 to support the development of the
debtors in view of its long term growth potential and the repayment of loan
and trade receivables as a result. These loan receivables bore interest at 5%
(2016: 5%) per annum. Pursuant to an agreement dated 25 March 2016, the
80% equity interest in one of the Debtors was pledged for part of the loan
receivables of HK$43,803,000 (“Share Pledge”). In the event that the Debtors
fails or defaults to settle such loan, the Group shall have the right but not the
obligation to possess the pledged share.

Provision of impairment loss was determined by the directors of the
Company based on the credit worthiness and the past collection history of
the Debtors. Also, the directors of the Company assessed that the value of
the Share Pledge to be insignificant as at 31 December 2016.

On 29 December 2017, the Group entered into an agreement (the
"Agreement”) with an independent third party (the "Purchaser”), pursuant
to which the Group have conditionally agreed to sell and assign, and the
Purchaser has conditionally agreed to purchase and be assigned, the rights,
titles and benefits of the Receivables and Share Pledge at a consideration
of US$4,000,000 (equivalent to approximately HK$31,275,000) (the
"Consideration”).

22. BWER(E)
b 5

(i) RZZ—+tF+ A=+ AEEEAR
FE = HEIE 012,989,000 7T ( ZF — X
£F :12,989,000/8 7T ) © Z AN IB R EE I R FF|
R12% (ZF—RE12%) 5t B - ZEWER
ERZE—tFRZE-R"F+A=+—H
T RIRE

(ii) RZZTE—+tF+-A=+—H AEEEKM
ERP ([BHAD ZERRERE 5 EH
7 Bl 546,518,0007% 7T ( =& — 73 4F 1 46,518,000
P& TT) %39,273,0007 7T ( ZZ — /X4 © 56,459,000
Br) ([EBREXR]) R=ZT—XF+=A
=+ HAEREHRE-BEHEALERIRAR
BERMEE

REBAZRERERSRNERRELKE S
ERERME AKERBEE-_ZT— X F+=
ﬂ:+—E¢$Eﬁ—ynﬁﬁA%ﬁ%%
14,491,000 70 - AR ERE - ZZRBRHIR
FEFRswst B (ZF—NF15%) - RIE—MHA
AT AE-A-_T+THBNHE Hh—
Z B A Z80%MR 7 # 25 B B # 1E /43,803,000
B2 B EREER ([ROER]) - WEEB
ANEREB SR ZEER A EE & A EF
MIEREHBZERRG -

HEBRBHERARRNESEREBAZE
m%ﬁ&ﬁ&%%@ﬁ%i°$ﬁﬂ§$ﬁﬁ
BRNERR-Z—RF+-A=+—RZE
BERTEKX-

R-Z—tH+-A-tHhB AEEE—ZF
SNE=H (TERD I (Tha]) it
AEBEEKHRAEHEREE MESHER
1R = B B R i B R AR R R BB A9 ' 3 2 4
B B #E A 2= - KB B4,000,000% T (FHE
7 #931,275,00057T) ([HRE]) »
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)

B RS R I T ()

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2017
BHE_ZT—tH+-A=+—RHLFE

22. LOAN RECEIVABLES (Continued)

Notes (Continued)

(i)

(Continued)

According to the Agreement, the Consideration shall be paid by the
Purchaser by cash in the following manner:

(a) US$200,000 shall be paid on or before 31 March 2018;

(b) US$300,000 shall be paid on or before 30 June 2018;

() US$750,000 shall be paid on or before 30 September 2018;

(d) US$750,000 shall be paid on or before 31 December 2018;

(e) US$500,000 shall be paid on or before 31 March 2019;

(f) US$500,000 shall be paid on or before 30 June 2019;

(9) US$500,000 shall be paid on or before 30 September 2019; and
(h) US$500,000 shall be paid on or before 31 December 2019;

Notwithstanding the above, the Purchaser has agreed to use his best
endeavours to pay the Consideration in full to the Group within one year

from the date of the Agreement.

Subject to the payments of the Consideration by the Purchaser in full
and upon the Group having obtained all necessary internal and external
authorisations, consents and approvals from all relevant governmental or
regulatory authorities, agencies or bodies, the date of completion of the
Agreement (“Completion Date") is 31 December 2019 or fifth days after the
payment of the Consideration in full.

At completion, the Group and the Purchaser shall execute an assignment of
the Receivables, relevant loan agreements and Share Pledge.
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22.

FEWER (%)

fEE ()

(i)

(%)

B REGEETETHNIAARE X
i

(@) 200,000 TR = —N\NF=A
=t+—Hagzaxf:

(b) 300,000 TR T —NFA=+
Az A

© 750000 TR T —NFENLA=
EEwA-ISEEE

(d) 750,000 TR = —\F+=A
=+—H%zaxf:

(e) 500,000 X TR =T —NF=A
=+—Bskzaxft:

(f) 500,000X TR —FE—NFA=+
EEPA-ISEEE

(@ 500,000 TN —E—NFLA=+
Bz At &

(h) 500,000 TN —_E—h&E+ A
=t+—BkZATx e

BELXMA - EHERBERERAEIRG
@ ASR —FRARAARE T2 E8AE.

BAFENXN2ERERAEED TG — 18
BZ AR BEE  RERILE (2IEHEREK
Ak EE A BPTakAM) 12 HR 2 ek B
BH(IZkBE®H)A=—T—NFEF+=-A=+—H
HETEEXARERERLEEEA-

RFEMREF - A KB R B 7 A HETT RURER SR - 48R
ERpERROERz EE-



NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)
LR ENEENE P

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2017
BHE_ZT—tH+-A=+—RHLFE

. == ﬁ
22. LOAN RECEIVABLES (Continued) 22. BWENR(E)
Notes (Continued) B sk ()
(ii) (Continued) (if) (#)
On 20 March 2018, the Group received the first instalment of US$200,000 RZE-N\F=ZA=+H AEEEEH KT
(equivalent to approximately HK$1,564,000) from the Purchaser. 2 — HAZI8200,000% 7T (48 & 7 491,564,00078
TT) e
Management has performed an impairment assessment on the Receivables EEEEETER=_ZE—+tF+=A=+—
as at 31 December 2017. Taking into consideration of the probability of H 2 e IR R E AT ik - B 18 W 38 Se AR A9 7T
the completion of the Agreement, management estimates the recoverable BEE— Ot E B BIE B A 5T WUR A ) T U [El
amount of the Receivables would be approximately HK$16,220,000. The DEA /3162200008 7T AR EHE R ARFERE
Group has recognised a reversal of provision for impairment loss on the 1 W BR R 2 R 1 IS 98 #4781 6 816,220,000
Receivables amounting to HK$16,220,000 for the year, which represented HIT 0 D Bl 8,794,000 T HY FE U E TR 2 B E B
by reversal of provision for impairment loss on loan receivables and trade BEER B 7,426,000/ TR EWE 5 ERK 2
receivables of HK$8,794,000 and HK$7,426,000 respectively. BEBEBREREDNRR-
(iii) Allowance for doubtful debts (iii) REREH
2017 2016
—ZE—tF —E-REF
HK$'000 HK$'000
FER FAET
At beginning of year REF 59,507 109,515
Acquisition of subsidiaries U B8 B BB A 7] - (89,163)
Allowance for impairment loss BB E B - 39,155
Reversal of impairment loss on loan receivables & [Bl FEU & 5 2 B B 1B (8,794) -
At the end of year RER 50,713 59,507
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BB IR R M AL ()

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2017
BHE-_ZT—tHF+-A=+—RHLFE

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)

23. DEFERRED TAXATION 23. EZERHIE
The following are the major deferred tax assets/(liabilities) LT RASERAFEBRRNEZRLERIE
recognised by the Group and movements thereon during the year: BE/ (BE)ARHEE
Fair value Provision
adjustment  Revaluation forPRC  Accelerated
onintangible of investment  withholding tax Provision
asset properties tax  depreciation and others Total
BV EE H ik

LYERE REWEER RNNEE RERE BERAM @t

HK'000 HK'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000

THER THER THER THER THET THET

At 1 January 2016 RZF-RE-A-H (10,143) (24379) (5794) (682) 2063 (38735)

Exchange adjustments EHEE () 1,043 - 3 (57) 1013

Credit (charge) to profit or loss for the year — RAEEBEFTA (11B) 1,670 (5485) (412) - 6928 2,701
At 31 December 2016 RIE-1%

+-A=+-H (8478) (28821) (6,200) (650) 9134 (35,021)

Exchange adjustments EHEE (61) (1216) - - 59 (1218)

Credit (charge) to profit or loss for the year ~ RAEERF:TA (H1B) 1677 2613 - - (2,755) 1,535
At 31 December 2017 RIF-t%

tZA=t-H (6862) (27424) (6.206) (650) 6438 (34,704)
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)

BB IR R M AL ()

FORTHE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2017

HE—

23.

T tE+ZAS+—AILER

DEFERRED TAXATION (Continued)

The following is the analysis of the deferred tax balances for
financial reporting purposes:

IEAERE ()

AT 2 MAB B ELIREHIAESR DT
T

2017 2016

—E—+tF —E-RF

HK$'000 HK$'000

FERT FET

Deferred tax assets EETIRE E 6,438 9,134
Deferred tax liabilities BEEFIEEE (41,142) (44,155)
(34,704) (35,021)

At 31 December 2017, the Group had unrecognised tax losses of
HK$121,422,000 (2016: HKS111,678,000) available for offset against
future profits due to the unpredictability of future profit streams.

Included in the unrecognised tax losses are losses of HK$12,029,000
(2016: HKS$12,027,000) that will expire between 2033 and 2036
(2016: expire between 2032 and 2035). Other tax losses may be
carried forward indefinitely.

Under the Law of the PRC on Enterprise Income Tax, withholding
tax at 10% is imposed on dividends declared in respect of profits
earned by PRC subsidiaries from 1 January 2008 onwards. Deferred
taxation has been provided for in full in respect of undistributed
profits retained by PRC entities in the consolidated financial
statements.

At 31 December 2017, the Group had deductible temporary
differences of HKS$29,506,000 (2016: HK$28,824,000). No deferred
tax asset has been recognised in relation to such deductible
temporary differences as it is not probable that taxable profit will
be available against which the deductible temporary differences
can be utilised.

RZZE—+tF+-A=+—H BARKERE
FARBCEF R ANEEEE RAERBIES
121,422,000 7T ( ZZF — 734 1 111,678,000
&L ) Al BRI SH R s Al o

RERMBEEBIER %%F‘%ZZiE—
E=RNFRE(ZE—RF ZE=_F%

= :ﬂi?ﬂ EN RN EN ) Eick 2029000,%75
—E— N4 112,027,0005 7T ) o H b FEIAE

?ET?ME,HH%LO

BIBEFRMCEMGERE BTN NF—A
—HRBRHPBREBA 7@5@23’3/@%%*,&%
B8 B FHMNI0%TEINH - 1P B E 2R A
RO ENEBANELERIBES 28N GE0
SRR P B -

MN-ZE—+F+-_A=+—H KEEAN
5 B &= %8 529,506,000 7T ( —ZF— /K F
28,824,000/ 70 ) e AN A A g IR A] &)
A E R ERERERTOER M ERE

RN E R ZRRRRENAEE -
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BB IR R M AL ()

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2017
BHE-_ZT—tHF+-A=+—RHLFE

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)

24. INVENTORIES 24, FE
2017 2016
—E—tF —E-REF
HK$’000 HKS$'000
FET FAT
Raw materials JR 55,406 45,892
Work in progress TR 42,397 58,756
Finished goods BIAK 160,625 162,447
258,428 267,095
25. TRADE, BILLS AND OTHER RECEIVABLES 25, BUWESER BREERAEMENK
IR

2017 2016
—E—tF —E—RF
HK$'000 HK$'000
FHET FAT
Trade and bills receivables e E 5 BR R K B I R 15 379,874 442,790
Less: allowance for doubtful debts B RERE (147,778) (145,157)
232,096 297,633
Other receivables E b JE WGRIR 67,030 52,259

Total trade, bills and other receivables EUWE SR EWRE R
H b & W R IE 42 5 299,126 349,892

AEEGETRESEFPNEERTY/60H
EN0R -NER BUESERAREREE
(MBEREBEFHR)ZEZAHMZIINK

The Group allows an average credit period of 60 to 120 days to its
trade customers. The following is an aged analysis of trade and bills
receivables, net of allowance for doubtful debts, presented based

on the invoice date at the end of the year:

BEOMmT

2017 2016

—E—t% —EFAF

HK$’000 HKS$'000

FHT THT

0 - 30 days 0%Z30H 157,804 133,369
31 -90 days 31290H 45,542 117,738
91 - 180 days 912 180H 21,171 33,368
More than 180 days tBiE180H 7,579 13,158
232,096 297,633
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)
R ENEENE P

FORTHE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2017

HE—

25.

T—t+F+_A=+—HILFE

TRADE, BILLS AND OTHER RECEIVABLES
(Continued)

During the year ended 31 December 2017, 75% (2016: 67%) of the
trade and bills receivables that are neither past due nor impaired
are due from diversified customers with no recent default payment
history.

Included in the Group's trade and bills receivable balance are
debtors with an aggregate carrying amount of HK$56,970,000
(2016: HK$96,648,000) which was past due at the end of the
reporting period but for which the Group has not provided
for impairment loss because management believes that the
fundamental credit quality of the relevant customers has not
deteriorated.

Aging of trade and bills receivables which are past due but not
impaired:

25.

EWE 5 RN BRRER A EK
R (8])

HE2-_Z—+tF+-_A=t+—HILEFE"
75% ( ZF— 7N 1 67%) R AR B HR I R R (B FE
e B 8RN K JEUR =4 BT B P 3 K
REEk e

REBEEREDRAMEREELEHBEIER
WEHRE B E - BRTE 488 56,970,000/ 7T
T X5 196,648,000/ 7T ) HY FE UK BR X
HEHREEERAEEEFPNERNEEE
W= NS B E BB E RS B

e

EEfERRENEKE SERREREE
REBRER T -

2017 2016

—E—tfF —E—REF

HK$’000 HKS$'000

FET FAET

Less than 3 months past due wmEI DR =R 36,680 57,984
3 to 6 months past due mEI=ZNER 8,650 17,313
More than 6 months past due BHIZ RN E A 11,640 21,357
56,970 96,648
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)
LR EGEENE P

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2017
BHE-_ZT—tHF+-A=+—RHLFE

25. TRADE, BILLS AND OTHER RECEIVABLES 25. BUWEZRNR BUEBEREMER
(Continued) FIE (#])
Movement in the allowance for doubtful debts: REEHEES:
2017 2016
—E—tF —E-RF
HK$’000 HK$'000
FERT FAT
Balance at beginning of the year FHE 145,157 102,293
Impairment loss recognised EHERREEE 20,273 42,484
Reversal of impairment loss 2 B HERRR (B B B |
previously recognised (23,405) -
Bad debt written off 2 AR 85 (876) (2452)
Exchange realignment P& 3B 6,629 2,832
Balance at the end of the year FRE 147,778 145,157

The Group recognised impairment loss based on the accounting
policy stated in Note 4(n)(iii). The allowance for doubtful debts
at the end of the reporting period represents allowance on
individually impaired trade and bills receivables with an aggregate
balance of HKS$147,778,000 (2016: HK$145,157,000), which have
been outstanding for more than one year. Management considered
they are unlikely to be collected. The Group does not hold any
collateral over these balances.

Included in trade and bills receivables, as at 31 December 2017,
the Group had trade receivables due from the Debtors (as
stated in note 22) with gross amount of HK$39,273,000 (2016:
HK$56,459,000) of which the amount had been fully impaired
during the year ended 31 December 2016. Refer to note 22 (ii) for
details.
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7N = B AR 15 M 2 4(n) (i) BT 31 B9 & 51 B SR W 3R
BEBE RNBEHRKRERERERE
RIFEUNE 58RI FE I R R A R (B B A

4845 B4 R147,778,00008 7 ( ZF — K4

145,157,000/ 70) ' BB R —F - TEE
REZEEFREER TS ERD - RNEE
WEpZEEBFEEEWERR-

BEREREZEFREREEF R=2F
—+tE+ - A=Z+—R AEERWER
AR ENE SR (B 52203 ) 4B 58 =
39,273,000 7T ( =& — 7N F £ 56,459,000/
) AR ZEBEREE T —AF 1+ =
A=t BLFEZ2RE -FEFL2HH
FE22(i) ©



NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)

DR ETEINEENE Y

FORTHE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2017

BH=E

26.

—EtF+A=1t—HILFE

BOND RECEIVABLES

On 12 January 2015, the Group entered into bond subscription
agreement with National United Resources Holdings Limited
("NUR"), a company with its shares listed on the Main Board of
the Stock Exchange. Pursuant to the subscription agreement,
the Company conditionally agreed to subscribe for the bonds
to be issued by NUR (2015 Bond") in the principal amount of
HK$80,000,000 for a term of one year with a coupon rate of 6%
per annum, payable quarterly in arrears. The Company may, (i)
on or after 30 September 2015 serving at least two days' prior
written notice to NUR, request NUR to redeem HK$20,000,000 of
the 2015 Bond at 100% of its principal amount; and (i) on or after

1 January 2016 serving at least four days’ prior written notice
to NUR, request NUR to redeem HK$30,000,000 of the 2015 Bond
at 100% of its principal amount. Unless previously redeemed
or cancelled, NUR shall redeem the 2015 Bond at 100% of its
principal amount together with any accrued interest and unpaid
interest calculated up to (and including) the maturity date. The
subscription was completed in April 2015. HK$20,000,000 of 2015
Bond was redeemed during the year ended 31 December 2015, the
remaining balance of HK$60,000,000 was fully repaid during the
year ended 31 December 2016.

26.

B EWRE

RW-ZE—HFE—A+=-H" Nilaéﬁiﬁ
BEBEREBRERAR ([ERBEEIR]
HEHBROREBRAMERETHAG)ELES
REWZ - REREDRE ~EEEBHEMN
RAEREAS %E/*ferOOOOOOO‘}%fE**iﬁﬁ
NERBEZTEEREINEBTF B X H6%
HERBAEERETZES ([ ZE—HEF
BEH]) AEEAL: WRZE—HF A
—THINEMBERESERELT DR
AMEEMBA ZERERBEEERAEHFR
% %8 2 100%f8 [8120,000,000 712 —E—H
FEE LR ZZE—ANE—A+—B&;MN
BRBRRBAEEREHTORNRANEmMR
M ERERBESERAEHFRSEE 2100%
fEE130,0000008 T2 —E—RAFEHF Bz
BIE R EHEN BREEEREZENE
HIHBOASE 100 —E—AFEENAL
HE (R EEMSTRZSHF
B -ZRBEEEN - ZT—AFMATK-
200000008 L2 —E—AFEBEHEREZRE

—EF+-A=+—HLFEER: &%

T60,000000B TEREBEE S —~"F+=
A=+—HLFEE2HEE-
The movement of bond receivables is set out below: BHREWFIBEREEEIWNT
2017 2016
—E—+tfF —E—REF
HKS$'000 HKS$'000
FET FAET
As at beginning of year REH - 59,971
Repayment settlement during the year FRNERGEE - (60,000)
Effective interest income credited to BEEFAEZMERFBMA
profit or loss - 1,282
Coupon interest received B EmEF.E - (1,253)
As at end of year RER - -
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)
R ENEENE P

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2017
BHE-_ZT—tHF+-A=+—RHLFE

27.

28.

PLEDGED BANK DEPOSITS

The amounts represent deposits pledged to banks to secure short-
term bank borrowings granted to the Group (note 44). The deposits
carry fixed interest rates ranged from 0.85% to 1.75% (2016: 0.3%
to 1.65%) per annum. The pledged bank deposits will be released
upon the settlement of short-term bank borrowings.

BANK BALANCES AND CASH

Bank balances and cash of the Group comprise bank balances and
cash held and short-term bank deposits with original maturity
of three months or less. The bank balance are interest bearing
at floating interest rate and short-term bank deposits carry fixed
interest rates ranging from 0.01% to 0.77% (2016: 0.3% to 2.35%)
per annum.

As at 31 December 2017, cash and bank balances denominated
in RMB amounted to approximately HK$5,710,000 (2016:
approximately HK$21,643,000). RMB is not freely convertible into
foreign currencies in the PRC. Under the PRC's Foreign Exchange
Control Regulations and Administration of Settlement and Sale and
Payment of Foreign Exchange Regulations, the Group is permitted
to exchange RMB for foreign currencies through banks authorised
to conduct foreign exchange business.
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27.

28.

EEFRTER

REFEERANEEERNEHETEER
MR FRITHF R (KIsE44) - ZETFR
BN F085EE175E (ZE—NF:03EE
1658 ) ZEMEEFFEG L - IEFIRTT
FREREEEITIEESERRER -

RITHEERRS

AEBNRITET MBS OIEMBRITE
GEReEURRITR=ZEAx PR =@A
FEREHRIT R  BITEFIRFE X
B MEHRITHERIZN T001EE0.77E
(ZZ—XNF:03EE235F) WE T FFI=R
e

RZEBE—+E+-A=+—8 UAR®E:
BEMIRE RIRITEFH A57100008 7T (=
T — N #921,643,00006 7T ) © AR FE
BISE AW TEEE B ERAINE - RIEH R A
INE B IRIEHIMAETE E0E REE R
EALEEATBRARERTIBARES
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)
R ENEENE P

FORTHE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2017

HE—

29.

30.

T—t+F+_A=+—HILFE

ASSETS CLASSIFIED AS HELD FOR SALE 29. ZTHEABFHENEE
Included in assets classified as held for sale as at 31 December RZE—tF+ZA=+—H B8ERSE
2017, which were presented separately in the consolidated BEELNENEE (REHZEAMFEHRE
statement of financial position at that date, are: DHEEHWNT

HK$'000

FHET

Investment properties (note 17) wEWME (W&E17) 97,396
The Group entered into sales and purchase agreements during the AEEHEZE-_T -+ A=1+—HL
year ended 31 December 2017 to dispose of certain investment FEFTLEE W - AR E97,396,000/ 7T HH
properties to independent third parties with a consideration EETREMETEIUE=-F ZZERKEY
of HK$97,396,000. The investment properties, which had been X (E2ZEREREUGFTEERTE)HED
fair valued with reference to the disposal considerations, were HARBIEHENEEMR ZZE—+tF+=A
classified as assets held for sale and presented separately in the =t —BZEEMBIRABRESFHZEY] -
consolidated statement of financial position as at 31 December
2017.
The directors expect this disposal transaction will be completed EEHHLHER SR MERLERES
within 6 months from the end of the reporting period. &8 B mFERK
TRADE, BILLS AND OTHER PAYABLES 300 BENESER EBNEERAEMENS

IE

2017 2016

—Z—+t#F ZT—RF

HK$'000 HK$'000

FTET FET

Trade payables FERTE 5 8RN 326,036 424,264
Bills payables AN 314 11,089
Other payables and accruals (note) E M FIE R ERIEE (M) 184,051 140,238
510,401 575,591
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)
LR EGEENE P

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2017
BHE-_ZT—tHF+-A=+—RHLFE

30. TRADE, BILLS AND OTHER PAYABLES 30. ERESZERIR ENEBRHEMES

(Continued) MIHE (&)
The following is an aged analysis of trade and bills payables, RBERAR BENEIERRENZERZE
presented based on the invoice date at the end of the reporting SHEMZFIHRE T -
periods:
2017 2016
—E-+tF —E-REF
HK$’000 HKS$'000
FET T
0 - 30 days 0£30H 209,629 239,087
31 - 90 days 31290H 42,877 67,798
91 - 360 days 912360H 67,560 121,082
More than 360 days B iAE360H 6,284 7,386
326,350 435,353
The average credit period for purchases of goods is 90 days. BEEMMTHEERR0A -
Note:  An amount due to a director of HK$13,308,000 (2016: HK$14,254,000) which MisE: H AT BE—Z & EF5KIH13,308,000
was included in other payable which term is unsecured, interest free and BT (ZF — 75 114,254,00075 70 ) * W RIB B
repayable on demand. EER 2LEFRERER-
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)

B IR R ML ()

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2017
BHE-_ZT—tHF+-A=+—RHLFE

31. BANK AND OTHER BORROWINGS 31. ROUKHMEER
2017 2016
—E-+tF ZT—RF
HK$’000 HKS$'000
FTET FHT
Bank loans RITER 278,286 328,246
Other loans H i & 5% 114,867 63,475
393,153 391,721
Analysed as: BEIVE
Secured BHEM 281,015 308,683
Unsecured A 112,138 83,038
393,153 391,721
Carrying amount repayable: AR T EEEEMREE :
On demand or within one year RERFEN—FRN 347,455 330,712
In more than one year but not more than A —FETZHNMF
two years 1,131 1,288
348,586 332,000
Carrying amount of bank loans that contain 3 A AR B KB E KA ERIT
a repayment on demand clause BEXHREE 44,567 59,721
393,153 391,721
Less: Amount due within one year shown BRRBEEE IR —FA
under current liabilities B HAFIR (392,022) (390,433)
Amount due after one year —F i B FIE 1,131 1,288
The range of the effective interest rates on the Group's bank and AEFERTRAMBENER A EZEEE N
other borrowings are as follows: I
2017 2016
—E—tF —T—F

Variable interest rate borrowings

2.16% - 13.95% 1.90% — 12.00%

The security of bank borrowings is set out in note 44.

RITHEE E IR 44 o
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)
R ENEENE P

FORTHE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2017

HE—

32.

T—t+F+_A=+—HILFE

DEFINED BENEFIT OBLIGATION

The Group have defined benefit pension plan, covering
substantially all of its qualified employees in India. The amounts
of employee benefit obligation recognised in the statement of
financial position represent the present values of the unfunded
obligation.

The defined benefit obligation was determined based on actuarial
valuation performed by Charan Gupta Consultants PVT LTD, an
independent actuary, whose registered office is located at B-40,
Sector-52, Noida-201 307.U.P, using the projected unit credit
method.

The components of net benefit expenses in profit or loss and the
amounts recognised in the statement of financial position are
summarised as follows:

32.

REBAMERE

Kﬁl*ﬁaﬁmﬁmﬂ RIKE T8 R EB A
PRHENGEREER - R BIRNRER
MEBRNETSREAPREENRE

AERBINECEDHREB LB EMCharan
Gupta Consultants PVT LTDER A TEFHE {5
EXETHNRBEMEEE - Charan Gupta
Consultants PVT LTDH) 7t 3% =5 & 7 74 B-40
Sector-52, Noida-201 307.U.P. ©

RIBEIE NEVF RN R AR EE DA K& E
MBEARRPERO SRR T :

(@) The provisions for defined benefit obligation recognised in (@ REaUBRAXERNATENE
the consolidated statement of financial position are shown R EERT
as follows:
2017 2016
ZE—tF —T—RF
HKS$'000 HK$'000
FERT T
Present value of unfunded obligation REREEHIRE 103 -
Portion classified as current liabilities SEARBBENLS - -
Non-current portion SEMBE D 103 -
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)

BB IR R M AL ()

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2017
BHE-_ZT—tHF+-A=+—RHLFE

32. DEFINED BENEFIT OBLIGATION (Continued) 32. RERBHNEME (&)
(b)  The movements of the defined benefit obligation are as (b) REBMEENESHHT
follows:
2017 2016
—E—tF —E-REF
HK$'000 HKS$'000
THET FAT
At beginning of the year REA) - -
Current service costs BIVHA AR 75 X 7R 119 -
Interest cost on benefit obligations BN EEBF BB AR 4 -
Re-measurement gain recognised in REMEEWEERLY
other comprehensive income EFTENE (23) -
Exchange realignment ME 3, B 3 _
103 -
(0) The net expenses recognised in the consolidated profit or (@) RiFEEERBEROFRISTW
loss are analysed as follows: ™
2017 2016
—E-+tF —T—-R
HK$'000 HKS$'000
TERT T
Current service costs BV ER AR 75 A AR 119 -
Interest cost on benefit obligations &M E R F B AR 4 -
Net benefit expenses FEREAMAX 123 -
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)
LR EGEENE P

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2017
BHE-_ZT—tHF+-A=+—RHLFE

32. DEFINED BENEFIT OBLIGATION (Continued) 32. RERAMNEME (&)
d HEREE
PR ER

(d) The principal actuarial assumptions used in valuing the
provisions for defined benefit obligation at the end of the

K )RR B (R
REBRRMT

reporting period are as follows:

2017 2016
—E—+tF —E—X
% %
Discount rate AL 3R = 7.60 N/AAS 3 FR
Rate of salary increase HoEREX 11.00 N/AT 38 A

& ¥ E HIR H 57TE 48 A B A 0 7 15 4 I 40

The average duration of the provision for defined benefits

at the end of the reporting period is as follows: ™
2017 2016
—E—+tF —E-RF
Number of employee EE#A 169 N/A i A
Average past service (years) YRR (F) 1.53 N/AAS 3 FR
Average age (years) FEHEF# (5R) 31.08 N/AZT 35 F3
Average remaining working life (years) FHFBTIEFE (F) 26.92 N/A-3E
Weighted average duration (years) IniEFISFE (F) 4.40 N/AA 58
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)
LR EGEENE P

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2017
BHE-_ZT—tHF+-A=+—RHLFE

32. DEFINED BENEFIT OBLIGATION (Continued) 32. RERBHNEME (&)
()  The quantitative sensitivity analysis of the provisions for (e) MREEHRNATENBENESLH
defined benefits as at the end of the reporting period is as REDTWT
follows:
2017
—E—tF
Decrease in Increase in
provisions for provisions for
Increase in defined benefit Decrease in defined benefit
rate obligation rate obligation
RE RE
BRERE BRAEME
BR=E BERD TRE®E B g
% HK$000 % HK$000
Aokt FHET ERae FHET
Discount rate AhIR & 0.5 (4) 0.5 4
The sensitivity analysis above has been determined based PSR E ST IRE E ZE/RIZA W
on a method that extrapolates the impact on the provisions EMREECREYRHRATREANE
for defined benefits as a result of reasonable changes in key HRTEHEEmETE -

assumptions occurring at the end of the reporting period.

33. OBLIGATIONS UNDER FINANCE LEASES 33. BMEMHEERE

2017 2016
—E—tF ZT—RF
HK$’000 HKS$'000
FTET FHT

Analysed for reporting purposes as: MERAEIWA:
Current liabilities nEBE 1,886 1,856
Non-current liabilities FnBAE 7,375 9,186
9,261 11,042
It is the Group's policy to lease certain of its land and buildings AEENHREREEREHEHEEET -
under finance leases. The average lease term is 10 years. Interest HMEREF - FHBEBRROF - FERENRE
rate underlying all obligations under finance leases is fixed at the EENHRBANERGNBEHERETFSE %
contract date at 5% per annum. These leases have no terms of EHETRERERUBERE B -

renewal or purchase options and escalation clauses.
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BB IR R M AL ()

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2017
BHE-_ZT—tHF+-A=+—RHLFE

33. OBLIGATIONS UNDER FINANCE LEASES

(Continued)

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)

33. mEHERE(H)

Minimum lease payments

Present value of
minimum lease payments

BEEERE BERERERE
2017 2016 2017 2016
Pl o3 ZTRE “E-tf ZTRE
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
TER FHT TET TAT
Amounts payable BEBERER—FR
under finance leases within one year JER #9308 1,955 1,939 1,886 1,856
In more than one year but BB—FETSHME
not more than two years 1,955 1,939 1,902 1,871
In more than two years but BREMEFETEZRAF
not more than five years 5,538 5816 5,473 5,706
In more than five years HARF - 1616 - 1,609
9,448 11,310 9,261 11,042
Less: future finance charges W ARREE (187) (268) - -
Present value of lease obligations AERERE 9,261 11,042 9,261 11,042
Less: Amount due for settlement within 35 : A —F N E| HE B KB
one year (shown under current liabilities) (A EEI&EE TFIR) (1,886) (1,856)
Amount due for settlement after one year R —F & E| M5 EM A 7,375 9,186
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)
R ENEENE P

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2017
BE_Z—tH+A=+—RHILFE

34. SHARE CAPITAL 34, BRAE
Number of
shares Amount
Ko &R 8
HKS$'000
FAET
Ordinary shares of HK$0.10 each FREEE T E B
Authorised: ERE
At 1 January 2016, 31 December RZE—RF—H—8/"
2016 and 1 January 2017 —E-RF+ZA=+—H
k—_ZF—+%—H—H 3,000,000,000 300,000
Increase in authorised share capital (note a)  #HISAFE A (M 7¥a) 7,000,000,000 700,000
At 31 December 2017 R-F—tF+-_A=+—H 10,000,000,000 1,000,000
Issued and fully paid: E?é‘ﬁ&@ﬁ :
At 1 January 2016 RZZE-—RF—H—H 1,045,862,134 104,586
Issue of shares upon subscription (note b) HREMmEEITIRG, (MsEb) 86,168,000 8,617
Issue of shares upon placing (note c) E il m e TR M (M FEc) 179,500,000 17,950
At 31 December 2016 RZZE-—RF+-A=+—H 1,311,530,134 131,153
Issue of shares upon open offer (note d) NAZEEMEITRG (MFEd) 1,967,295,201 196,729
At 31 December 2017 R-ZE—tF+-_A=+—H 3,278,825,335 327,882
Note: B 5
(@) Pursuant to the ordinary resolution approved by the shareholders on (a) BERRR-_T—tFAATHEARBHER
15 June 2017, the authorised share capital of the Company increased RERR BB IE R FEHN7,000,000,0000% K B 1T E
from HK$300,000,000 divided into 3,000,000,000 ordinary shares to R - A B89 TE AR 2K £3300,000,000% 7T © 9
HK$1,000,000,000 divided into 10,000,000,000 ordinary shares by the creation /%3,000,000,000/% & 3@ - ¥ 1 Z1,000,000,0007%
of an additional 7,000,000,000 unissued ordinary shares. JT 9 /10,000,000,000% 8B A% o
(b) On 21 January 2016, 48,000,000 shares have been subscribed by the (b) RZBE-RE-AZ+—B REARNRE
subscriber at the subscription price of HK$0.50 per share. Details of the 48,000,0008% i 15 + FRIBE AT 7H0.505 7T ©
subscription are set out in the announcement of the Company dated 21 REFENFBEE RN ARFABERLE TR
January 2016. ¢ AZ+—HHRAER-
On 31 August 2016, 38,168,000 shares have been subscribed by the RZT— /\ﬁ/\ﬁ +—8 REAKNRE
subscriber at the subscription price of HK$0.262 per share. Details of the 38,168,000/ iz 15 - REBEE A TR IR 19026278
subscription are set out in the announcement of the Company dated 31 ToRBFENFBEHEHNEARFTBESNAZ
August 2016. Z-RFNRB=+T—HOHRER-
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)
LR EGEENE P

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2017
BHE-_ZT—tHF+-A=+—RHLFE

34. SHARE CAPITAL (Continued)

Note: (Continued)

(0)

On 13 January 2016, the Group had completed placing of new shares. A
total of 104,500,000 placing shares had been placed at the placing price of
HKS$0.50 per share. Details of the placing are set out in the announcement of
the Company dated 13 January 2016.

On 14 June 2016, the Group had completed placing of new shares. A total of
75,000,000 placing shares had been placed at the placing price of HK$0.40
per share. Details of the placing are set out in the announcement of the
Company dated 14 June 2016.

On 19 July 2017, the Group had completed an open offer by issuing
1,967,295,201 ordinary shares at an offer price of HK$0.12. Detail of the open
offer are set out in the prospectus of the Company dated 28 June 2017.

All new shares issued rank pari passu in all respect with the then existing
shares.
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(0)

(%)

RZZE—RNF—A+=H AEEEEXEE
R - AREUREESRBRMDSOBITEREE
& 3£104,500,0000R BL & f& 19 - FRE FEAFHIBE
THRAQATEHA T E—A+=HK

DER-

RZZE—RNEANA+THB ALECEKES
R c AEB AR EEEFRRND040E TR E
& #£75,000,0000R B E & 17 - BL & FEM B

HBRRARTAMA=E—AFAA+mAL
DER-
RoB—tFLATAE AREEBEE
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)
LR EGEENE P

FORTHE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2017

BH=E

35.

—EtF+A=1t—HILFE

BUSINESS COMBINATION

On 16 May 2016, the Group entered into an agreement with
a shareholder of Ocean Oasis International Limited (“Ocean
Oasis BVI") to capitalise a debt of US$11.2 million (equivalent
to HK$87,155,000) owed by Ocean Qasis BVI to the Group by
subscribing 8,165 new ordinary shares to be issued by Ocean
Oasis BVI. The transaction was completed on 5 July 2016 and the
Group's shareholding of Ocean Qasis BVI increased from 11% to
51%. Since then, Ocean Oasis BVI became a non-wholly owned
subsidiary of the Group. Ocean Oasis BVI and its subsidiaries,
Ocean Qasis International Limited and My HD Media FZ LLC
("MyHD"), limited companies incorporated in United Arab Emirates,
engaged in the business of provision of Direct-to-Home services
for satellite television broadcasting in 22 countries in Middle East,
Mediterranean and Africa ("MEMA”"). The directors considered
that the subscription would enhance the chance for the Group
to recoup its investments in MyHD by (i) strengthening MyHD's
financial viability by reducing its debt burden; and (ii) enabling the
Group to consolidate its control over MyHD, in particular its future
development strategies. In addition, the subscription would also
provide a strategic platform for the Group to explore and develop
the market of set top boxes and other digital media equipment
in MEMA, which is in line with the Group's strategy to continue
investing resources for the transformation from an integrated
device designer and manufacturer to a multimedia platform owner.

35.

EBEH

RZE—RNFRATRAE  AEEEOcean
Oasis International Limited ([Ocean Oasis
BVIDK — BRI — 0 iH# ERRE
8,1650% Ocean Oasis BVIi& 21T H 3T & @ A% -
#&Ocean Oasis BVIEE R NERE K — £ A #
11,200,0002 7T ( F8E 787,155,000 7T ) B f&
BERML - Z RGN _E—"FLtARBRE
ik B AN E2 B 72 Ocean Oasis BVIFY A #1191
Z51% o L1 » Ocean Oasis BVIAK A AN 5 B IF
2 E KB A E] > Ocean Oasis BVIKR E KB A
7] ~ Ocean Oasis International Limited &2 My HD
Media FZ LLC ([MyHD J) (33 &5 BRI {RHE
EERBGFMKZ AR  RPR - HHE
& R IEM (TMEMA D) 22E BT RIBHEHE A
EGFEERERERG - EFRA RESHE
1 (i) 7 8% EL(E 7% B & 38 58 MyHD#) B 7% 7]
T KRR EEGZEES HEMyHDR B
LHRHEARERERRR o AEE L H
FMyHDIZ & B H# 5 o k51 - SREEEIE NS &
AEERFLRERNAMEMARNEIES R E M
HrHEERENTSRHEBB TS TR
REBABEKRBHRTERYEEET A
ZHRBTaBAEMERRANERNE IR
_ﬁo

Sandmartin International Holdings Limited 22 55 T EIBR = iR IR A &

2017 Annual Report £ $§




NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)
LR EGEENE P

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2017
BHE-_ZT—tHF+-A=+—RHLFE

35. BUSINESS COMBINATION (Continued) 35. EKEH (&)

Details of fair value of identifiable assets and liabilities acquired s ARl EERBEN A TESFBR

were as follows: Nk
HKS$'000
FAT
Property, plant and equipment M WE REE 974
Inventories FE 3,169
Trade, bills and other receivables FEUE 5 8RN - B IR R 15 I EL {0 JiE O GRIR 11,577
Bank balances and cash WRITHGFTRIAS 8,759
Trade and other payables FETE 5 Bk SR % B JE A R IE (132,677)
Amount due to shareholders JE T IR BR BUIE (138,364)
Net liabilities acquired Frik s & & 55 (246,562)
Non-controlling interests FE1E I 121,558
Net identified liabilities acquired Frik B ] 4 Rl B B F 5 (125,004)
Goodwill on acquisition LAt fi ey g 125,004
Total consideration BRE -

Satisfied by: LALAT =41
Available-for-sale investments* AP ERE” -
Loan receivables capitalised* BERNE 2 EIE K> -
* The original amount of the available-for-sale investments and loan * AHEEEREREEN ZERERNR S
receivables capitalised were HK$40,573,000 and HK$87,155,000 respectively, 2 Bl 540,573,000/ 7T K2.87,155,0007 7T ' 2 H &
which were fully impaired as at 31 December 2015 and date of acquisition. FR-_T-—AFt+-_A=+—BRKEBHE
TEME
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)

B IR R ML ()

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2017
BHE-_ZT—tHF+-A=+—RHLFE

35. BUSINESS COMBINATION (Continued)

An analysis of the net inflow of cash and cash equivalents in
respect of the acquisition of subsidiaries was as follows:

EBE o (R

WENRBRARMNE S MRS EEYNRAF
BEAOMWT

HKS$'000
FAET
Cash and cash equivalents acquired PRECZHEeRREEEYD 8,759
Cash and cash equivalents paid EXHzReRREEED -
Net inflow of cash and cash equivalents ReRRSFEMRAFRE 8,759

Since the acquisition date, Ocean Oasis BVI and its subsidiaries had
contributed HK$11,586,000 and HKS$87,065,000 to Group's revenue
and loss for the year ended 31 December 2016. If the acquisition
had occurred on 1 January 2016, Group revenue and loss would
have been HK$1,812,890,000 and HK$165,985,000 respectively for
the year ended 31 December 2016. This pro forma information is
for illustrative purpose only and is not necessarily an indication
of revenue and results of operations of the group that actually
would have been achieved had the acquisition been completed
on 1 January 2016, nor is it intended to be a projection of future
performance.

The goodwill arose from the acquisition of Ocean Oasis BVI and
its subsidiaries represented future prospect of MyHD and synergy
effect of the newly acquired business with the existing set top
boxes and other digital media equipment business.

B Y B B H - Ocean Oasis BVIKR E B A 7
EMAKEEHEE_ZT—"F+=-A=+H
IEFERWE R BEEE1,586000% 7T &
87,065,000/ Lo B EEE R T — <
F-A—B¥B4E AEBEEE_Z—F
FTZA=THELEFEREREBERD A
1,812,890,0007% 7T M 165,985,00058 Jr © % 5 &
BERHMEERB R WIEEAMBEEERD
MR- RNF—A—HxK AEBREER
BRI EREEEEIEZ NEEER
RIRFIR 218

i Y B Ocean Oasis BVIN E M B A &) B E 4
K7 2 T BMyHDR) R R B 5 DA R 373 e B8
¥BERAERES RHEMBTEBREED
BT 2= A 9 153 [B) 8 E -
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)

B IR R ML ()

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2017
BHE-_ZT—tHF+-A=+—RHLFE

36. DISPOSAL OF SUBSIDIARIES

36. HEHEBLQF

(@) During the year ended 31 December 2017, the Group @ BHBEZ—+F+-A=+—HLHF

disposed of the entire equity interest in Into-Ad. Company
Limited. The net assets of Into-Ad. Company Limited at the

B -AEECHELEREARAAN
EER AR - EEEAR QAR

date of disposal were as follows: ERMMFEENT
HK$'000
FHERT
Property, plant and equipment W BB REE 872
Trade receivables FEWE 5 BRI 439
Cash and bank balance RekB1THEF 145
Trade payables ETE SRR (601)
Other payables and accruals H b e RRIA R ERTIEE (1,669)
Tax payable FET I8 (24)
Net liability disposed of T EMFEaE (838)
Releases of statutory reserve BOMmEFE (10)
Gain on disposal of subsidiaries included in HEMRBERRNKEBENRERA
profit or loss 848
Total consideration BB -
Net cash outflow arising on disposal HEEENRESRE FE
Cash consideration ReRE -
Bank balance and cash disposed of FTHERITEFRRS 145
145
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)
LR EGEENE P

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2017
BHE-_ZT—tHF+-A=+—RHLFE

36. DISPOSAL OF SUBSIDIARIES (Continued) 36. HEMBLAR (&)

(o)  During the year ended 31 December 2017, the Group (b) BEZZ—+F+-A=+—HILHF
disposed of the entire equity interest in Proteam Consulting E-ASEEHESHIEMEERD
Company Limited. The net assets of Proteam Consulting ERATMNE MR AR -EHIER
Company Limited at the date of disposal were as follows: FERBERABNHEBBHEE

ENT:
HK$'000
FET

Prepayment, deposits and other receivables FENFIE 5Te REMEWKFIE 1,012
Bank balances and cash WITHFRRS 9
Net assets disposed of FTERFEE 1,021
Releases of statutory reserve BEUEERE (16)
Loss on disposal of subsidiaries included in FFABERNEENERARMNER

profit or loss (1,005)
Total consideration BmRE -
Net cash outflow arising on disposal HEEEMB SR FH
Cash consideration ReRE -
Bank balance and cash disposed of FrHERITEFMIAS 9

9
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)
LR ENEENE P

FORTHE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2017

BH=E

37.

—EtF+A=1t—HILFE

OPERATING LEASES
The Group as lessee

Minimum lease payments paid under operating leases during the

37. MEMRAE
AEBEEREBEA

FRERKEHEXNNRERERE:

year:
2017 2016

—E—tHF —F—R

HK$'000 HK$'000

FET FHETT

Premises EE 4,038 3,823

At the end of the reporting period, the Group had commitments
for future minimum lease payments under non-cancellable
operating leases in respect of rented premises which fall due as

RBERAR AEBERBETITFHELER
E pHEFEAN T HBIIHRRE
B EREAENT

follows:

2017 2016
—E—+tF AN

HK$’000 HKS$'000
FET FAET
Within one year —F K 1,373 538
In the second to fifth year inclusive E_FE2ENF (BREEEMSE) 761 62
2,134 600
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)

BRI R ML ()

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2017
BHE_ZT—tH+-A=+—RHLFE

37. OPERATING LEASES (Continued) 37.

The Group as lessor

Property rental income earned during the year was HK$11,621,000
(2016: HK$11,505,000) with negligible outgoings. All of the
investment properties held have committed tenants for the next
one to five years.

At the end of the reporting period, the Group had contracted with
tenants for the following future minimum lease payments:

MERE (&)
AEEESEHAA

FRRIAYERS WA A11,621,0008 7T
(ZZ — 7<% : 11,505,000/ 70 ) * 3 & J5 4
TREB-FIEHEPRENERRKR—ZERF

ERRIHNEE-

R|RERR AEEDHERTONRKE

EEERBEHNT:

2017 2016

—E—+iF —E—RF

HK$’000 HKS$'000

FET THET

Within one year —F R 6,651 3,887
In the second to fifth year inclusive E_FEELF (BEEEME) 6,880 2,924
Over five years BREAF 43 _
13,574 6,811
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)
LR ENEENE P

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2017
BHE_ZT—tHF+-A=+—RHLFE

38. NOTES SUPPORTING CASH FLOW STATEMENT 38. RERERZIFME

(a) Cash and cash equivalents comprise: (a) BHERBSEEYWHUTHER:
2017 2016
—E-tF —T—RF
HKS$’'000 HKS'000
FERT T
Cash available on demand REKARRE® 132,418 76,065
Significant non-cash transactions are  E AR SR FUT
as follows:
Investment activities KEZE
Transfer from investment propertiesto B EMEHEBREHIELEEE
assets held for sale 97,396 -
(b)  Reconciliation of liabilities arising from financing (b) BRETBELENAEEYHIRKR:
activities:
Bank and other Obligations under
borrowings finance leases
RITRHEMEER RERERE
HK$'000 HK$’000
FERT FHE T
(note 31) (note 33)
(M3t 31) (B3 33)
At 1 January 2017 RZE—+tF—H—H 391,721 11,042
Changes from cash flows: REREREZE
Proceeds from new bank loans FERITERMENIE 493,073 -
Repayment of bank loans EERITER (499,066) -
Repayment of obligations under EERENEEAE
finance leases - (1,955)
Exchange adjustments P& 3 & 7,425 174
At 31 December 2017 R-ZE—tF+-_A=+—H 393,153 9,261
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)
LR ENEENE P

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2017
BHE_ZT—tHF+-A=+—RHLFE

39.

40.

CAPITAL RISK MANAGEMENT

The Group manages its capital to ensure that the Group will be
able to continue as a going concern while maximising the return
to stakeholders through the optimisation of the debt and equity
balance. The Group's overall strategy remains unchanged from
prior year.

The capital structure of the Group consists of debt, which includes
the borrowings disclosed in note 31, equity reserves attributable
to owners of the Company, comprising issued share capital and
various reserves and retained profits.

The directors of the Company review the capital structure on a
regular basis. As part of this review, the directors of the Company
consider the cost of capital and the risks associated with each class
of capital. Based on recommendations of the directors, the Group
will balance its overall capital structure through new share issues
and the issue of new debt or the redemption of existing debts.

FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT

(a) Categories of financial assets and financial

39.

40.

EXERER

AEEERHERUBRASE A LS
R RBBRICE REREREBIRE
e ARBEMBRRME FFEHLRERFTD

“=%

& o

A S 60 7 AR S (AR O 331
BB B A0S ) AN FIBE S A BEA O 2
(B BT A B S TR LA R AR
WF) -

RRAREETE W EAERE - F R
—HMD  ARPEFEBEAKA R EEZLE
BIEAMBNER REEFNHEZ A%
BB B A ) BT KRBT ES S EE R
BEEBFOEBRENERE

MEEREE
a) THMEERTMEBENESR

liabilities
2017 2016
—E—+tF —E—RF
HK$’000 HK$'000
FHET FATT
Financial assets SEEE
Loans and receivables (including B EWRIE
cash and cash equivalents) (BiEReRBESEED) 458,552 492,340
Financial liabilities cRARs
Amortised cost B SE A AR 912,815 978,354
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)
LR ENEENE P

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2017
BE_Z—tH+-A=+—RHILFE

40. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (Continued) 40. MEBEEBRERE (K)
(b)  Financial risk management objectives and policies (b) HERBREEEERBEX
The Group’s major financial risk management include AEENEFENBRERREREDIEE
trade, bills and other receivables, loan receivables, loan WE SRR FEUL IR K H A MR
to an associate, amount due from an associate, pledged B RBREFR BT —HEE QAR
bank deposits, bank balances and cash, trade, bills and EXER—HEBELATINFTIE B
other payables, obligation under finance leases and ERBITFR RITEFTRES E
bank and other borrowings. Details of these financial risk Hfﬁ%ﬁ%y’ JE A~ R 9% T2 EL i JE < 3K
management are disclosed in respective notes. The risks BB M E A RTT R E S
associated with these financial risk management and the B - ZEMBRAREENFBENIAH
policies on how to mitigate these risks are set out below. BIEEdR e o T X E Y EZE M KRR
The management manages and monitors these exposures BB RN ERE )SUZD ] B (K Eifﬁﬂ
to ensure appropriate measures are implemented on a R - EREEERREERSE
timely and effective manner. B - AWRIR R BB RO B EUE & E’JTE
B ©
Market risk 7745 2] [
(i) Currency risk (i) B R
The Company's subsidiaries have foreign currency ERAR QT KB T #EITI
sales and purchases, which expose the Group to e B & - ol As 5 (3 O E R
foreign exchange risk. B o
The carrying amounts of the Group's foreign R EBR - NE B AN
currency (as in relation to the functional currency of (HENEHEEEERNEE
the relevant group entities) denominated monetary EmME)itENEBEERE
assets and monetary liabilities at the end of the EeaEMERAAEDT:

reporting period are as follows:

Assets Liabilities
BE 8

2017 2016 2017 2016
ZE—+tF —Z—REF —E-tE —E-RE
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
TER AT TER FET
Renminbi ("RMB") ARB(TARE]) 475 579 28,519 61,855
usb ey 36,271 40,545 205,103 185,195
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)

BB R R ML ()

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2017
+FE+ZRA=+—HILFE

HE—

40.

=

FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (Continued) 40. MBEARER (&)
(b)  Financial risk management objectives and policies (b) HERBREEBZERBEE (&)
(Continued)
Market risk (Continued) e E b (&)
(i) Currency risk (Continued) (i) EER (8)
Sensitivity analysis BRERE ST
The Group is mainly exposed to USD and RMB AEBEFZEHHEEEEEE
relative to the functional currency of the relevant BHIEEE (225 R/A
group entities, which are mainly RMB and USD RERET)BEANETRA
respectively. The Group does not have a formal RERR - BAREEWEE
foreign currency hedging policy. But management AHNEE PR BEREESR
monitors the Group's foreign currency exposure ﬁk*kKE.E’JM\EJ—WAIEAE
and enters into forward contracts when movements TR B E IR E TR 0 E
in the exchange rates are outside management's nTIi,Hﬂ 29 LA B 1K B 3 @
expected range in order to minimise the exchange % o
rate risk.
The following table details the Group's sensitivity TERFVNAEERSEEER
to a 5% increase and decrease in functional Mg B HETRARE LA
currency of respective group entities against K T FE5%H) 8 R & o 5% 4 P
USD and RMB. 5% is the sensitivity rate used and FANGRE RREIBEY
represents management’s assessment of the SNESTE R AT ge S I F B M 1E
reasonably possible change in foreign exchange H R Rl - GURE S TR 6
rates. The sensitivity analysis includes both USD ?EE"i&iHHEELA%E&/\Eﬁ%
and RMB monetary assets and liabilities at the end NENEEEERAE-
of the reporting period. A negative number below ﬁﬁa’fé%ﬁ(?b%m&}\ﬁﬁ%
indicates an increase in loss where USD and RMB Nee EME EF 5%k L EHEIE
strengthen 5% against the functional currency. me=RETRARERINEE
For a 5% weakening of USD and RMB against the BT FE50% - BIAT 8 ¥T$¢
functional currency, there would be an equal and EEBEEERERARTE-
opposite impact on the loss for the year.
2017 2016
—E-+tF —T—RF
HK$'000 HKS$'000
THET T
Increase in loss for the year: REZ BN :
- RMB — AR (1,049) (2,292)
- USD = (8,515) (5424)
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)

BRI R ML ()

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2017
BHE_ZT—tH+-A=+—RHLFE

40. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (Continued)

(b)  Financial risk management objectives and policies
(Continued)

Market risk (Continued)

(i)

Interest rate risk

The Group is exposed to fair value interest rate risk
in relation to fixed-rate loan to an associate, loan
receivables and pledged bank deposits set out in
notes 20, 22 and 27.

The Group is also exposed to cash flow interest rate
risk in relation to variable-rate bank balances and
bank and other borrowings as set out in notes 28
and 31 respectively. It is the Group's policy to keep
the majority of balances and borrowings at floating
rate of interest so as to minimise the fair value
interest rate risk.

The Group currently does not have any interest rate
hedging policy in relation to interest rate risk. The
directors of the Company monitor the exposure
on an ongoing basis and will consider hedging
significant interest rate risk should the need arise.

The Group's cash flow interest rate risk is mainly
concentrated on the fluctuation of LIBOR arising
from the Group's USD borrowings.

Sensitivity analysis

The bank balances of the Group carry floating-rates
of interest and have exposure to cash flow interest
rate risk. The directors of the Company consider the
exposure is insignificant and therefore no sensitivity
analysis is presented.
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40.

MEERER (&)

(b)

BEEREEREREGE (&)

TS ER (&)

(i)

) R B

e Bt3720 ~ 22 27 P &
BY-—HEBERANERE
FoERERRBEIFRTE
M A FEF R R o

REE TS BIE M FF28 %31F7
HEEBRTHEFHEARITRE
HEEMEEREREFNER
R AEBENREESEEHRT
FREFREEUREAFE
) 2 @ B o

R ER B35 B X B BN KR R B T
REEAFEERBER - A D
FAEERHEERARINTE

ReZEEhERMERR-

AEERSRENXEARTIE
STFRAKENXTEERE
R BRTT R I B AR E)

BRRESM

AEBRITHEFRFBH X
R YEHRSRENEME
R-ARBEFTRR ZAR
WAEK B2 HEAIE
RE DT



NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)
LR ENEENE P

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2017
BE_Z—tH+-A=+—RHILFE

40. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (Continued)

40.

MEERER (&)

(b)  Financial risk management objectives and policies (b)) HMEERKREEEEREE (&)
(Continued)
Market risk (Continued) AR (E)
(ii) Interest rate risk (Continued) (ii) MR (&)

Sensitivity analysis (Continued)

The sensitivity analyses below have been
determined based on the exposure to interest
rates for variable-rate bank and other borrowings.
The analysis is prepared assuming the amount of
liabilities outstanding at the end of the reporting
period was outstanding for the whole year. A

BREDH (B)

BB AT AL B R AT
R E 1 B T E S R B T

T AW BRI E WA
RAEEEBLEARERE
MSEmIEL - SOAEB A
HENESE REEREY

50 basis point change is used and represents FIRM IS IEE B M IEL &
management’s assessment of the reasonably FrAl o

possible change in interest rates.

A summary of the Group's monetary liabilities at RBEHR AEEEEEE
the end of the reporting period that carried variable BESANT:
interest rate is as follows:
Note: B 5
2017 2016
S e
HK$'000 HK$'000
FHERT FHET
Liabilities BfE 393,153 391,721
Based on the above summary, if interest rates had R HR B 2 - i F R 38 SO

been 50 basis points higher or lower and all other
variables were held constant, the Group's loss for
the year ended 31 December 2017 would increase

SOfE 2k - T B A H Aty 7 4 A
=T AAEERE T
—tE+-—A=+—ALEE

or decrease by HK$1,520,000 (2016: HK$1,469,000). E’JJE%TEAHJDMW\ 1,520,000
BT (ZZF — 7545 11,469,000
/%713)
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)

BRI R M AL ()

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2017
BHE-_ZT—tHF+-A=+—RHLFE

40.

FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (Continued)

(b)

Financial risk management objectives and policies
(Continued)

Credit risk

The Group's maximum exposure to credit risk in the event
of counterparties’ failure to perform their obligations as at
31 December 2017 in relation to each class of recognised
financial assets is the carrying amount of those assets as
stated in the consolidated statement of financial position.
In order to minimise the credit risk, management of the
Group has delegated a team for determination of credit
limits, credit approvals and other monitoring procedures
to ensure that follow-up action is taken to recover overdue
debts. In addition, the Group reviews the recoverable
amount of each individual trade debt at the end of the
reporting period to ensure that adequate impairment losses
are made for irrecoverable amounts. During the year ended
31 December 2017, impairment losses of HK$20,273,000
(2016: HK$42,484,000) had been made for the long
outstanding customers, representing the full irrecoverable
amount of those customers. In this regard, the directors of
the Company consider that the Group's credit risk in other
debts is significantly reduced.

The credit risk on liquid funds is limited because the
counterparties are banks with good reputation.

The Group has concentration of credit risk in respect of loan
receivables. As at 31 December 2017, the loan receivables
were mainly provided to several overseas customers who
have long business relationship with the Group. During the
year ended 31 December 2017, no impairment losses had
been made for the loan receivables (2016: HK$39,155,000).
The management of the Group continuously monitors
the level of exposure to ensure that follow up actions and
collection actions are taken promptly to lower exposure.
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40.

MEEREE (&)

(b)

BHEAREEERERBE (&)

=B/ E

RZE—+F+_A=+—H0 K&
EFAHNEAEERREESED
BREMEEMNHF A REETE
T EREEALZRE B RERAAT
NEBEENREE - AREEER
b ALEEERECIER—HASE
EETEER EEHZRKEMER
F2FF  DARER RN BR 3#E 77 ) Uk [0 36 2R
B b AEBERRE BRBF
ZIEMERE SHEBEMATUE S
TR B~ A Uk 2] & 28 VE R SR (B A5
B-Hz—_T—+tF+-_A=1+—H
HFER RREAGEEEFIEHD
SHAE B8 520,273,000 7T ( — & —7%
F 142,484,000 70) ' HHE R ZE

FRIZ A U E ZIE - stk = -
RRREFREASENEMEBLE
ERBE AR R -

HRHFTEREERFNRT &
AEBENRBHESEERRER-

AEERERKEFRAEEPEER
e —_T—tF+-_A=+—8"
EWERDEESL THEARAERZ M
ERPEFHENTDEINEFE - #H
E-TE—+FE+-_A=+—HILFE
A ER R E SED 2R EE B
TE— X4 139,155,000/ 7T ) o ANEE
BB AR ERKTE - AR
MBS REVR T KK ITE R
[R B



NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)

BRI R M AL ()

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2017
BHE-_ZT—tHF+-A=+—RHLFE

40.

FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (Continued)

(b)

Financial risk management objectives and policies
(Continued)

Credit risk (Continued)

The Group is also exposed to concentration of credit
risk through its loan to an associate and amount due
from an associate. Because of the Group's involvement
in the management of the associate, the Group is in a
position to monitor its financial performance. Accordingly,
management believes that the Group’s exposure in this
regard is significantly reduced.

The Group has concentration of credit risk as 4% (2016:
14%) and 12% (2016: 45%) of the total trade and bills
receivables was due from the Group’s largest customer
and the five largest customers respectively. The directors of
the Company considered that the receivable balance from
these customers do not represent a significant credit risk
based on past collection experience and no bad debts have
been recognised against trade and bills receivables due
from these customers. Other than that, the Group has no
other significant concentration of credit risk.

Liquidity risk

In the management of the liquidity risk, the Group monitors
and maintains a level of cash and cash equivalents deemed
adequate by the management to finance the Group's
operations and mitigate the effects of fluctuations in cash
flows.

The following tables detail the Group’s remaining contractual
maturity for its non-derivative financial liabilities. The tables
have been drawn up based on the undiscounted cash flows
of financial liabilities based on the earliest date on which the
Group can be required to pay. The maturity dates for other
non-derivative financial liabilities are based on the agreed
repayment dates.

40.

MEEREE (&)

(b)

BREABEEZBEEREE (&)

=FEmEE (%)

AEBE TR T —HEEQRFHNER
Ko JiE Ui — [ Bt % ) ) RO T 0 9 =
REERR - BRAEES R E
NRAEAIMER @AEEAERENE
=B AL BEEEMREARE L
EH R R E KERE -

REEERKE SRR MEWZE L8
MEFREERR A4% (ZT—RF:
14% ) }12% ( ZZF—7RF 145%) + Jb
DRREAEENERAEFPRAERE
F-ARNBEERE BEFEATIEE
KE o EWZERFERGEL®
IS K= B R - MO P UGZ
ERFPNENE ZER L ERZERE
RAEAER B 2 o0 ANEE I &
HthEAREFEERR-

R EEER

REERDESRAR T @ NRBEE
EREBEEBRREHKINRE
MEEEEY UBNASEEER
BRMRSRENBNTE -

TRFANAEKEFTESRAENF
BEWBHBR - TRERAEET
EEARERNRNREEH HER
BENAFTRRSRERE - HA3E
TEE BB ENIEA RERE N
EREHME
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)
LR ENEENE P

FORTHE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2017

HE-_Z—+F+-_A=t+—BHLFE
40. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (Continued) 40. BMBERER (&)
(b)  Financial risk management objectives and policies (b)) HMEERKREEEEREE (&)
(Continued)
Liquidity risk (Continued) mEBEwEE (&)
The tables include both interest and principal cash flows. ZEVRBENE &K%fﬁﬁﬁ%o

1ﬁﬂ p//\b%%»(/?r@%”ﬂ-ﬂ‘f‘ Jﬁk
Tﬁﬁi%ﬁhﬁ“&iﬁﬂﬁiﬁ’ﬁuﬂ C

To the extent that interest flows are variable rate, the
undiscounted amount is derived from interest rate at the
end of the reporting period.

Liquidity risk tables mEE e R K
Weighted Less than 1 Total
average month or 1-3 3 month undiscounted Carrying
interest rate on demand months to1 year Over 1 year cash flows amount
i —-BART =f8R FERE
FUFE FREXE -E=f8R B-F BB-F REER REE
% HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
ARl TR TET TER TET TER TER
31 December 2017 ZE-tEtZAZt-R
Non-derivative financial liabilities FTESBAR
Trade, bills and other payables ENEZER ENEER
EtENTE - 279,218 231,183 - - 510,401 510,401
Bank and other borrowings ROREMEE 6.15 13,741 207,704 94,732 1,165 417,342 393,153
Obligation under finance lease RERERE 162 326 1,467 7,493 9,448 9,261
393,121 439,213 96,199 8,658 937,191 912,815
31 December 2016 “E-REtZA=+-R
Non-derivative financial liabilities ¥ ?Ti@ﬂﬁ/
Trade, bills and other payables ﬁ‘éj%g'? EREER
& R - 379325 67,798 121,082 7,386 575,591 575591
Bank and other borrowings iEﬂ Siﬁf - 568 141,717 191,344 75033 - 408,094 391,721
Obligation under finance lease BEARERE 162 323 1463 9,645 11,593 11,042
521,204 259,465 197,578 17,031 995,278 978,354

Sandmartin International Holdings Limited 2 5 T BEIFR 2 R H R A A
2017 Annual Report £ %§



NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)

BRI R ML ()

FORTHE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2017

HE—

40.

=

tFE+_A=+—RHILFE

FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (Continued)

(b)

Financial risk management objectives and policies
(Continued)

Liquidity risk (Continued)
Liquidity risk tables (Continued)

Bank loans with a repayment on demand clause are
included in the “less than 1 month or on demand” time
band in the above maturity analysis. As at 31 December
2017, the aggregate undiscounted principal amounts
of these bank loans amounted to HK$44,567,000 (2016:
HK$59,721,000). Taking into account the Group's financial
position, the directors do not believe that it is probable
that the banks will exercise their discretionary rights to
demand immediate payment. The directors believe that
such bank loans will be repaid within one year after the end
of the reporting period in accordance with the scheduled
repayment dates set out in the loan agreements. At that
time, the aggregate principal and interest cash outflows
will amount to HK$44,567,000 and 1,906,000 (2016:
HK$59,721,000 and HK$1,862,000) respectively.

40.

MEERER (&)

(b)

BHREARBEEZBEEREE (&)

ﬂ/ui@ﬁf” (,55)

nBELERRK (B)

BEREREERXNBITERR
Fai BB TR A T —@EA ATk
AERF I WSEEE R —+
FH-_A=Z+—H ZERTERN
RITIE A S 4258 544,567,000 7T (=
T — N4 59,721,000 70 ) ° K& E
REBMBFEAR R EETHEERIT

KA RETT R £ ERAK N RN EIE
B-BERE REBEERBHEMEAN
BrEEFRY RERTEFERRE

HRE—FREE- B &2 &F
BR&mLBEED T 7%44 567,000
7 7T 121,906,000 7L (Z & — /RN F
59,721,0007% 7T }.1,862,000/8 7T ) °
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)

BRI R ML ()

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2017
BHE_ZT—tH+-A=+—RHLFE

40.

FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (Continued)

(c)

Fair value measurement

This note provides information about how the Group
determine fair values of various financial assets and
liabilities.

The directors of the Company consider that the carrying
amounts of financial assets and financial liabilities that are
recorded at amortised cost in the consolidated financial
statements approximate their fair values.

The fair values of the financial assets and liabilities recorded
at amortised cost have been determined in accordance
with generally accepted pricing models based on a
discounted cash flow analysis, with the most significant
inputs being the discount rate that reflects the credit risk of
counterparties.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)
LR ENEENE P

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2017
BHE_ZT—tH+-A=+—RHLFE

41.

SHARE-BASED PAYMENT TRANSACTIONS

Pursuant to a share option scheme approved by a written resolution
passed by the shareholders of the Company on 17 March 2005
(the "Option Scheme”) which has a term of 10 years, the Company
may grant options to the directors or employees, any business
consultants, business partners, suppliers, customers, agents or
financial or legal advisers of the Company or any of its subsidiaries,
for the recognition of their contributions, to subscribe for shares in
the Company with a payment of HK$1.00 upon each grant of options
offered.

The exercise price of the share option will be determined at the
highest of:

(i) the closing price of the Company’s shares on the Stock
Exchange on the date of grant;

(i) the average of closing prices of shares on the Stock
Exchange on the five trading days immediately preceding
the date of grant of the option; and

(iii) the nominal value of the shares.

The share options are exercisable at any time during a period of not
more than 10 years from the date of grant, subject to the terms and
conditions of the Option Scheme, or any conditions stipulated by
the board of directors.

The maximum number of shares in respect of which options may
be granted shall not exceed 10% of the number of shares of the
Company in issue from time to time. Unless further shareholders’
approval has been obtained pursuant to the conditions set out in
the Option Scheme, no person shall be granted an option which,
if all the options granted to the person (including both exercised
and outstanding options) in any 12 month period up to the date of
grant are exercised in full, would result in such person’s maximum
entitlement exceeding 1% of the number of issued shares of the
Company.

41.

UROGRERARNRS

BREARFBRRN_ZTRF=A+LAA
BEMRZRMENERE S (THBRE
&) A EMHRA0F AR A A A
ARBIEERMMBRANESHEES  E
RIEBHAAN EBHBHE HED TP K
BRPBIEREBERRDBRENRELAR
ARG ERREHAEEERMMNEE -5
FIRERFTIZ 2B A 1.008 T

BRETEEER NI =ZENRSE

(i) ARE R R B BB A0 I
miE:

(i)  BORBERBRERHASNAER
5 BB R ) U (E : )2

(i) PREDEME -

EBBEBMER R IGE HEETERTE
AR AT ARR T - BB AT NX 1 B 1
AT IB10F NBER T L

AR AR E B AR PSR BB ERR A
SBRBARB TR HITRMDEEA10% -
B EARIB BRSSPI IME M S TTES R
HOESN REBER D A B L ER1208 A #E
NIRRT —BALTORBERERE (2B
TERBRITENBRE) B2HITESE
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)
LR ENEENE P

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2017
BHE_ZT—tH+-A=+—RHLFE

41. SHARE-BASED PAYMENT TRANSACTIONS 41. LUBRHBEBNSRHOXRS (&)

(Continued)
The following table discloses movements of the share options of TEREBRFRNARFEFTHIEEFNBARAF
the Company entitled by the Company's directors or employees BRENSZ ) :

during the year:

Number of share options EBREHE
Adjusted Outstanding
exercise price at 1 January, Adjustment
Exercise with effect 2016 and due to the Lapsed Outstanding
price to open offer 31 December open offer duringthe  at31 December
Date of grant (Note b) (Note a) (Note a) 2016 (note 34) year 2017
RZB-RE
BARBER -A-BkK =)
¥ RER “E-R% NHBE RZB—+F
TEE 1% +=A=t-H [k +=ZRA=+-H
R AH (KEb) (Mata) (WzEa) i R AT B (M&34) RERBEX i R AT
Type of grantee
ESL NVl
Directors (Note d) 22 October 2010 HK$2.05078 T HKS1.76178 T 2,500,000 410,000 - 2,910,000
BZ (ititd) “E-ZE+ACTCH
Employees 27 December 2007 HKS1.76078 7T HKS1.5127 T 100,000 16,400 (116,400) -
B8 “ERLE+CAC LA
Employees 1 April 2009 HKS 11143 7T HKS0.957% 7T 100,000 16400 - 116,400
EE —ZENEMA-R
Total 2,700,000 442,800 (116,400) 3,026,400
@5t
Weighted average
exercise price 2 1.78 1.79
MEFHITREE
(@) The closing prices of the Company's shares immediately (@) RATRMREE-"ZTTLF+=
before 27 December 2007, 1 April 2009 and 22 October AZ++tB ZZFNAFNA-—B K
2010, the dates the options were granted, were HK$1.76, ZE-EFETAT A (BRER
HK$1.07 and HK$2.05 respectively. Immediate after the HAE) B TmE S R A1.7677T
completion of the open offer on 19 July 2017, the exercise 1078 T R2058 T BEE T —tF
price of the share option granted on 27 December 2007, 1 tAT BN ARBEERKE K
April 2009 and 22 October 2010, were adjusted to HK$1.512, EZ+HFFT A= +ER -ZTEAN
HK$0.957 and HK$1.761 respectively. FOMA—AR=-_Z—ZEF+A=1+=

AERHMERETEEE S IAERE
1512870~ 0.9578 7T & 1.76 178 7T
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BRI R ML ()

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2017
BHE_ZT—tH+-A=+—RHLFE

41.

SHARE-BASED PAYMENT TRANSACTIONS
(Continued)

Number of share options (Continued)

(b)

The share options are vested in stages as follows:

On or after the second anniversary of
the date of grant 50%.

On or after the third anniversary of

the date of grant remaining 50%.
Options granted on 27 December 2007, 1 April 2009 and 22
October 2010 are exercisable until 26 December 2017, 31
March 2019 and 21 October 2020, respectively.

All the share options has been vested and no share options
expenses recognised during the years ended 31 December
2017 and 2016 in relation to share options granted by
the Company. The share option scheme was expired on
16 March 2015, however, all outstanding share options
are exercisable until relevants dates detailed in note (b).
The Company has no new share option scheme as at 31
December 2017 and 2016.

These directors represented Ms. Chen Mei Huei and
Mr. Frank Karl-Heinz Fischer who resigned as executive
Directors with effect from 18 August 2017 but remain as
employees of the Company.

URODRERARORS (F)

BRERE (&)

(b)

BEREIEEEBNT

% H B H#E
F_HEFRZE 50%

FRI%H A HAE
F-RAFH % £ T50%
RN-ZEEL+FE+_A-++RH =F
ZANFNA—BRE_ZTE—ZF+ A
THZHEEEERES RIATRN =
E—+tHF+ZA=Z+ B ZE—AN
FZA=Z+—BER=-ZE_ZTF+A
—+—HAiTfE-

BEAARQERHERE  FTAERE
EFB BEE-_ZT—tFRk=_F
—RNFE+_AZ+—HLFE ITE
HRERERT - ERESERN
E—RF=ZA+BRE®R A F
BRERITEERERTREZMNZ0)
o EE B BRI - ARRIRZE
—tFR=E—ARF+=-A=+—H
7 495 4 {r] 7 B AR A AT & ©

% EEE AR EE I KFrank Karl-
Heinz FischersE £ MAER ZZ—+t
FNATNBRBENTES B
RBRNNENEES -
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)
LR ENEENE P

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2017
BHE_ZT—tH+-A=+—RHLFE

42.

RETIREMENT BENEFIT PLANS

The Group operates a MPF Scheme for all qualifying employees in
Hong Kong. The MPF Scheme is held separately from those of the
Group in funds under the control of an independent trustee. Under
the rules of the MPF Scheme, the employer and its employees
are each required to make contributions to the scheme at rates
specified in the rules. The only obligation of the Group with respect
to the MPF Scheme is to make the required contributions under
the scheme. No forfeited contribution is available to reduce the
contribution paid and payable in the future years.

The retirement benefit scheme contributions arising from the MPF
Scheme charged to the consolidated statement of profit or loss
and other comprehensive income represent contributions paid and
payable to the funds by the Group at rates specified in the rules of
the scheme.

The employees employed by the operations in the PRC are
members of the state-managed retirement benefit schemes
operated by the PRC government. The PRC operations are required
to contribute a certain percentage of their payroll to the retirement
benefit schemes to fund the benefits. The only obligation of the
Group with respect to the retirement benefit schemes operated by
the PRC government is to make the required contributions under
the schemes.

In addition, a subsidiary of the Company, Aggressive Digital
Systems Private Ltd., operates a defined benefit plan in India (Note
32) and certain subsidiaries of the Company in foreign countries
are required to contribute amounts based on employees’ salaries
to the retirement benefit schemes as stipulated by the relevant
local authorities. The employees are entitled to those subsidiaries’
contributions subject to the regulations of the relevant local
authorities.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)
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FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2017
BHE_ZT—tH+-A=+—RHLFE

43.

RELATED PARTY DISCLOSURES

(i)

(ii)

(iii)

43. BEBALIHEERER

Transactions M X%
The Group had the following related party transaction: K& EITUATEBALRS:
Relationship Nature of transaction 2017 2016
B 1% XEME —Z—-+tF b ANCS
HK$’000 HKS$'000
FET THET
Associate Sales of goods 5,824 71,777
FA NG HESMm
Interest income 1,598 2,185
B A

Balances

Details of the Group’s balances with related party are set
out in the consolidated statement of financial position and
in notes 20, 21 and 30.

Compensation of key management personnel

The remuneration of directors and other members of key

(i) &8k
ANEB EEH A TSR BHNE
BB ISR R R A BT FE20 ~ 21 %30 ©
(i) TEEBEAESNEE

FRAEEREZEIREH M S B

management during the year was as follows: ST
2017 2016
—E—+tfF —E-REF
HK$'000 HK$'000
FET FAT
Short-term benefits % HAtE 7 11,445 12,497
Post-employment benefits 1 BRIKEH 297 244
11,742 12,741

In the opinion of the directors, the remuneration of
directors and key executives is determined having regard to
the performance of individuals and market trends.

EERR EFTRETETHRABHE
CREEBEBRRETHBEME

iE °
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)
R ENEENE P

FORTHE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2017

BH=E

44,

45.

—EtF+A=t—HILFE

PLEDGE OF ASSETS 44, EEEKHE
At the end of the reporting period, the following assets were REmERR AEBEEHTIEERR 1
pledged to secure banking facilities granted to the Group: RFFERITEESNER:
2017 2016
—E—+tHF —E-RF
HK$'000 HK$'000
FHERT FAT
Bank deposits RITF R 66 14,925
Trade receivables & W E F BR K 131,610 104,626
Property, plant and equipment Y BB MEE 123,043 44,658
Investment properties A 73,681 146,648
Assets classified as held for sale DEARIELHENEE 97,396
Inventory FE 206,407 103,082
Note:  Banking facilities also secured by pledge of the Company’s interest in Pro Mist: SRITEEINEBEBA R R Pro Band Technology,
Brand Technology, Inc. Inc. B9 4 23 5 17
ARBITRATION 45. HE

On 29 September 2011, the Group entered into a conditional
agreement (the "Agreement”) with an independent individual third
party (the "Original Shareholder”) and Technosat Technology JLT
FZE (“Technosat’,
wholly owned by the Original Shareholder), to subscribe for 375
new shares in Technosat at a cash consideration of US$7,500,000
(equivalent to HK$58,170,000), amounting to
enlarged capital. Technosat is set up to be engaged in operation of
digital TV and radio platform, pay TV channel, and sales and supply
of TV set top boxes.

a company incorporated in Dubai, which was

15% of Technosat's

As at 30 June 2012, the Group had paid a deposit of US$2,500,000
(equivalent to HK$19,467,000) to Technosat to acquire new shares
in Technosat which was fully provided for impairment in the prior
year. Pursuant to the terms of the Agreement, the Group is required
to pay a further US$5,000,000 in relation to the subscription of
this 15% equity interest in Technosat. The subscription has not
yet been completed up to the date of approval of this report as
the conditions precedent of the subscription of new shares in
Technosat including the consent and approval by government
authority in Dubai has not been fulfilled.

Sandmartin International Holdings Limited 2 5 T B2 =R G R A 7
2017 Annual Report 4 %§

RZEBE——FNAZ+NB TEHEHE—
FZEULBERIZE =7 ([RARE]) KTechnosat
Technology JLT FZE ([Technosat ] * — R £t
FaAMA LA a AREREEEHEB)E]

—BERGnHE ([ZiHz]) - LEBEeR
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BH=E

45.

—EtF+A=t—HILFE

ARBITRATION (Continued)

Despite the Group's repeated requests for information, there has
been were no satisfactory response from the Original Shareholder
or Technosat (“Counterparties”) regarding the current status and
the procurement of obtaining government approval from the
government authority in Dubai. The Group has engaged legal
counsel to act for the Group and started dispute resolution
proceedings against the Original Shareholder and Technosat.

On 21 January 2013, the legal counsel of the Original Shareholder
and Technosat served a notice on the Group's legal counsel for a
claim on the further payment of US$5,000,000 in relation to the
subscription of 15% equity interest in Technosat.

The Group's legal counsel replied on behalf of the Group on 11
February 2013 in response to the claim of the Original Shareholder
and Technosat defending the claim as the directors of the
Company consider such claim invalid, as the conditions precedent
of the subscription of new shares in Technosat had not been
fulfilled and constituted a breach of the Agreement.

The Group's legal counsel had repeatedly requested the Original
Shareholder and Technosat to commence the next step of the
mediation process, but there has been no satisfactory response
from the legal counsel of the Original Shareholder and Technosat
up to the deadline set by August 2014. At the date of approval of
this report, the Group's legal counsel is in the process of arranging
the submission for the next step on the arbitration proceedings.

45.

hE ()

BEAEE—BZE KRR R KTechnosat
(€ F 77 ) R A B R Bkt FE BT 36 P #E
ERER R EERSHBEIE  BHF R
BSAMERNDE AEEDZEEZEEMN
AR ANEEBITE « Wit ¥ R A% 3 & Technosat
RAEMHDAERE -

RZE—=F—A=-+—HB BERERK
TechnosatA) A& 2 B [ A A 52 B A& 2 B ik
E—BA - BRA R Technosat 15%%
7R 23 HY 3E — 2P FIE 5,000,000 T °

NEEREREBERR -_S—=F_A+—8
REAREE O E R R K TechnosatA) AR -
RERREENE RRALRRRESRAR
A FR B8 Technosat 3T I B 70 )R 6 14 8 R K -
AN ERZE NZEREBEES -

AEBNZZENEZABLARFERE R
Technosatig (iR T — HHBREFHEK
HHE—ZT—NFN\ARNETERE  HRE
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)
R ENEENE P

FORTHE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2017

HE-_Z—+tF+-A=1+—HLFE
46. PRINCIPAL SUBSIDIARIES OF THE COMPANY 46. FARWETEMELF
Details of the Company’s principal subsidiaries at 31 December RZBE—+FRFE—ARF+A=1+—
2017 and 2016 are as follows: = ZIS’A AIXEMBARMEFBNT:
Issued and
Place of incorporation/ fully paid share
establishment/ capital/registered Proportion of nominal value of issued share/
Name of company operations Class of shares held capital registered capital held by the Company Principal activities
AREL/ BRIRAE AAABECRTRAER/
NAER RY/EEny BERHER B /ERER ERERNL A TEXE
2017 20 6
ZE-tF ZE-RE
Directly  Indirectly Directly  Indirectly
Ef A% E# &
Top Peaker Group Limited British Virgin Islands Ordinary USS10000% T 100% 100% Investment holding
("Top Peaker’) ('BVI")/Hong Kong
EBERRHE BBk REBR
([#BExEE])/
i
Sandmartin (Zhong Shan) PRC Registered capital US$19,500,000% T 100% 100%  Manufacture of electronic goods
Electronic Co, Ltd.
PLESTEFLHERRA & HHAR BEETEM
SMT Hong Kong Limited Hong Kong Ordinary HKS27 T 100% 100%  Trading of electronic goods
EENBRERAF i3 Bk 57ERES
SMT Electronic Technology Limited ~ Cayman Islands/Taiwan ~ Ordinary USSIETT 100% 100%  Trading of electronic goods
Reks/ /21 EBk 51ERES
SMT (Macao Commercial Offshore) ~ Macau Quota capital MOP100,000£F3 72 100% 100%  Trading of electronic goods
Limited
05 (RPEERZRE) BRAT &R RERA EFEME
TRT Business Network Solutions, Inc. -~ USA Ordinary US$100000% 7 100% 100%  Trading of electronic goods
*H LEk ETHRE
PBT Cayman Islands/USA Ordinary/Preference  USS20,000000% 70/ | 59.1% 59.1% Investment holding and trading of
15$9,759.203% 7T satellite TV equipment and antenna
RekE/%8 LRk EER REBRIREEERZERRERS
PBI USA Ordinary USSI T 59.1% 59.1%  Trading of satellite TV equipment
and antenna
%8 Rk BEERRBRREES
Sksteck Inc. Taiwan Ordinary NTW225,000,000 59.1% 59.1%  Design, manufacture and trading of
HEY satellite TV equipment and antenna
KRBHRHERAA B EER BEERRERRERT LERES
FLT Hong Kong Technology Limited  BVI/Hong Kong Ordinary US$450000% T 100% 100%  Trading of optical fibre products
ARARBE/BE  LER rEERES
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)
R ENEENE P

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2017
BHE-_ZT—tHF+-A=+—RHLFE

46. PRINCIPAL SUBSIDIARIES OF THE COMPANY 46. ZXQARWNFTEME LT (&)

(Continued)
Issued and
Place of incorporation/ fully paid share
establishment/ capital/registered Proportion of nominal value of issued share/
Name of company operations Class of shares held capital registered capital held by the Company Principal activities
e/ BRTRAR ANIREEROTRAEE/
REER RY/ ety BERGES Ra/ERER EREARH LA IEER
2017 2016
Z2-tF “ERF
Directly  Indirectly Directly  Indirectly
Ef [ B fi%
BCN Distribuciones, SA. Spain Ordinary EUR412,102BX T 100% 100%  Research and development and
trading of electronic goods
AT EfiD STHLHERES
DS Germany Ordinary EUR31,25008X 7T 100% 100%  Design and manufacture of
electronic goods
e EER FFEmka RE
Sino Light Enterprise Limited Hong Kong/PRC Ordinary HK$ 12,6007 7T 64% 64%  Inactive
EBCEERAA &5/ 18 EER TEzhk
E-passing Co, Ltd. Taiwan Ordinary NTW100,000,000 100% 100%  Service of integration system of
HER public program
RARRHERAR g2 EfiD RREERREELZRRE
Aggressive Digital Systems India Ordinary INR30,000,000 51% 51%  Manufacture of electronic goods
Private Ltd. OEEL
9E EER HEETAm
MyHD United Arab Emirate Ordinary AED 5000033118 51% 51%  Satellite TV broadcasting
MARERERE Rk BERRER
The above table lists the subsidiaries of the Company which, in the EERRERITHARGMBERREHARE
opinion of the directors, principally affected the results or assets ENEEREERBBEYEER-EFRAE
and liabilities of the Group. To give details of other subsidiaries HIRHMHBARNFEEERAT BRI
would, in the opinion of the directors, result in particulars of o
excessive length.
None of the subsidiaries had any debt securities outstanding at any FNEMREIR T —tFR T —RF
time of the year or at 31 December 2017 and 2016. TZA=T+—BMERBAREE T

TTEMES -
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)
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FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2017
BHE-_ZT—tHF+-A=+—RHLFE

46. PRINCIPAL SUBSIDIARIES OF THE COMPANY 46. ZXQATWNFTEME LT (&)

(Continued)

During the year ended 31 December 2016, PBT issued its share RBEZZ—R"FT-A=1+—HLFE"
capital of approximately HK$52,548,000 to its existing shareholders PETREBERRUBRER EHEEERD
in the same proportion of their existing ownership interest. 8 [E) B 51 8% 77 #952,548,0007% JT K B AR o
Therefore, proceeds of approximately HK$21,492,000 were received It + #921,492,0008 LW FT 1S IB B B 3R
from the non-controlling interest holders. The issue of share capital w15 H AR o 51T PRTAR AN /% 20 B 5 iR
of PBT did not change the proportion of ownership interest of REBREEZMOLOIR ARG RZESE B
each shareholder and control of the company and there was no IR ERNAESEERE KRENATE
difference between the amount by which the non-controlling 2B mAESRE -

interests were adjusted and the fair value of consideration received.

Details of non-wholly owned subsidiaries that have BEEXRFEZEREENIFZENBE LT
material non-controlling interests B3
The table below shows details of non-wholly owned subsidiaries of TRHEHEBEEAREERESNHAEEIFSE
the Group that have material non-controlling interests: BB ARMEE:
Place of incorporation Proportion of ownership
and principal place of interest and voting rights held Profit (Loss) allocated to Accumulated non-controlling
Name of company business by non-controlling interest non-controlling interests interests
AR AR MBI E R FERBZFENERR PEREFERERN
TREXBE BERREENLH wA (EE) Rt FERER
2017 2016 2017 2016 2017 2016
“E—tF ZE-RF “E-tF N3 “E-tF 3
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
TET THEL TET FiET TER TET
PBT Cayman Islands/USA 40.9% 40.9% 13,155 16,567 96,270 82,536
Mers /%8
Ocean Oasis Group United Arab Emirate 49% 49% (77,822) (42,453) (243,752) (163,966)
P (R A 2 R E
Individually immaterial subsidiaries (5,326) (3,817) (20,156) (13,040)
ERFEAMBAR
Total (69,993) (29,703) (167,638) (94,470)
@t
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FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2017
BHE-_ZT—tHF+-A=+—RHLFE

46. PRINCIPAL SUBSIDIARIES OF THE COMPANY 46.
(Continued)

Details of non-wholly owned subsidiaries that have
material non-controlling interests (Continued)

Summarised financial information in respect of PBT and Ocean
Oasis Group that have material non-controlling interests are set
out below. The summarised financial information below represents
amounts before intergroup eliminations.

RARWEEMBLR (&)

BAEEARFERESNHFZENBELT
=15 ()

A E K IFIERS#E 2= AIPBT & Ocean Oasis
GroupH) I F E R a0 T - LA N B 75 & &
MEDAEEBARRIBEENSEE-

PBT Ocean Oasis Group

2017 2016 2017 2016

—E—+tF —E-RF —E—+E —E-RF

HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000

TR FET TR FET

Current assets MBEE 486,528 497,326 33,132 13,481
Non-current assets ERDEE 111,604 110,926 2,243 698
Current liabilities nEEE (353,833) (390,542) (532,816) (348,789)
Non-current liabilities E e N=Ry (14,108) (17,536) - -
Net assets/(liabilities) EE/ (BE)FE 230,191 200,174 (497,441) (334,610)
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)
R ENEENE P

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2017
BHE-_ZT—tHF+-A=+—RHLFE

46. PRINCIPAL SUBSIDIARIES OF THE COMPANY 46. ZXQARWNFTEME LT (&)

(Continued)
Details of non-wholly owned subsidiaries that have BEERFERESENIZERB LA
material non-controlling interests (Continued) 1B (H#E)
PBT Ocean Oasis Group
For the period
For the year from 5 July
ended 2016 to
For the year ended 31 December 31 December 31 December
2017 2016 2017 2016
—E-RF
+tARRZE
BE ZE-RE
—E-tF +t=A
BE+-A=t—-LFE +=A=+-A =+—AH
—E—+tF —E-RF LFEE LFHARE
HK$'000 HKS'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
TERT TAT TET TAT
Revenue Yezs 995,309 1,193,787 65,862 11,586
Profit/(Loss) for the REE /AHEAE
year/period wH, (EE) 32,147 40,486 (158,820) (87,065)
Total comprehensive income 2 E YK &% 36,991 40,486 (162,827) (87,065)
Dividend paid to B FE 1R AR 2 O BB
non-controlling interests 2,507 - - -
Net cash inflow/ RENTSENNRS
(outflow) from A (R 8
Operating activities REEE 71,737 (72,587) (160,234) (134,365)
Investing activities REEE (25,904) (31,559) (2,254) (249)
Financing activities BMEEE (21,838) 125,653 168,903 188,972
23,995 21,507 6,415 54,358
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)
R ENEENE P

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2017
BHE-_ZT—tHF+-A=+—RHLFE

47. STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION OF THE 47. ZAQRB#ERRE

COMPANY
2017 2016
—E—+tF —E—RF
HK$’000 HKS'000
FET FHET
Investments in subsidiaries REARIBNKRE 197,818 197,818
Deposit paid to an associate EN—EBE AN 2 - 46,306
Interest in an associate R—EEE AR NER 59,325 4,931
Amount due from an associate FE U — e Bt 2% 2 Bl A SRR 41,727 40,128
Amounts due from subsidiaries FEWLH B A Bl HY FRIE 108,565 116,025
Other receivables E A jE W 5008 2,617 3,464
Bank balances and cash RITEFARES 1,754 206
Total assets BEBE 411,806 408,878
Other payables B b jE& ~F RRIE (67,818) (65,568)
Borrowings BE (97,735) (46,535)
Amount due to a subsidiary JER — M B A R8I 5RIR (170,578) (83,766)
Total liabilities BE#RE (336,131) (195,869)
Net assets BEFHAE 75,675 213,009
Capital and reserves IR A K (5
Share capital &N 327,882 131,153
Reserves (note) e (BsE) (252,207) 81,856
Equity attributable to owners of the Company 77 R A& A JE(L 1 &5 75,675 213,009
On behalf of the directors RERES
Hung Tsung Chin Chen Wei Chun
B E B {2 £5
Director Director
EZE EZE
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)
LR EGEENE P

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2017
BHE-_ZT—tHF+-A=+—RHLFE

47. STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION OF THE 47. ZAAABHEMRR®T (&)

COMPANY (Continued)
Note:  Reserves of the Company et AREFEE
Contributed  Share option Accumulated
Share premium surplus reserve  Special reserve losses Total
R EE BABH BRERE R RHER @t
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
TR TR TR TER TER TER
At 1 January 2016 R-Z—R"E—A—H 391,869 181,788 7,960 79,900 (219,790) 441,727
Loss and total comprehensive income  AEEBERZENZLE
for the year - - - - (447,765) (447,765)
Issue of share EGLY) 87,894 - - - - 87,894
At 31 December 2016 RZB-RE+-A=+-H 479,763 181,788 7,960 79,900 (667,555) 81,856
Loss and total comprehensive income ~ AEEERREZERFLEE
for the year - - - - (361,050) (361,050)
Issue of share BIIRMA 26,987 - - - - 26,987
At 31 December 2017 RZZB—t5+-A=+—H 506,750 181,788 7,960 79,900 (1,028,605) (252,207)
The contributed surplus represents the difference between the consolidated B BERIETop Peakert AR A IR R E & BB F
shareholders’ fund of Top Peaker and the nominal value of the Company’s EEESERARRFRWETop PeakeriM B 1TH)
shares issued to acquire Top Peaker at the time of a group reorganisation in RO EEMAZERE-
prior years.
The special reserve represents the surplus arising pursuant to the HRFEESRR2RBEER(REEEMR
capitalisation of advances from shareholders as part of the group B — 510 ) FTEERN &

reorganisation.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)
LR EGEENE P

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2017
BHE-_ZT—tHF+-A=+—RHLFE

48.

LITIGATIONS

HCA 2948/2016

On 29 November 2016, the Company was served a writ of
summons (“Writ 1") taken out by Zhi, Charles, as the Plaintiff (the
“Plaintiff”) against (i) Mr. Hung Tsung Chin (an executive director),
(i) Ms. Chen Mei Huei, (iii) Mr. Liao Wen 1, (iv) Mr. Akihiro Nagahara
("Mr. Nagahara”), (v) Mr. Sia Meow Leng, (vi) the Underwriter
and (vii) the Company (collectively “Writ 1 All Parties”) as the
defendants under action number HCA 2948/2016 in the High Court
of Hong Kong (the “Court”). Details of Writ 1 are set out in the
announcement of the Company dated 29 November 2016.

On 17 May 2017, the Company’s legal representative received a
facsimile from the Official Receiver's Office informing the Company
that the Plaintiff was adjudged bankrupt (the “Bankrupt”) on
26 April 2017 in HCB No. 5395/2016 and the Official Receiver
was appointed as the provisional trustee of the property of the
Bankrupt. The Official Receiver stated that under section 12(1)
and 58(1) of the Bankruptcy Ordinance (Cap 6), on the making
of a bankruptcy order, all the property of a bankrupt including
all things in action shall vest in the Official Receiver. The effect of
the bankruptcy order is that the Bankrupt was divested of and
ceased to have any interests in either his assets or his liabilities.
The Bankrupt would have no locus to commence or proceed with
the Proceedings unless the Official Receiver agreed to assign the
right of action to him. The Official Receiver also stated that, after
considering all of the relevant documents, it would not adopt the
proceedings under action number HCA No. 2948/2016 in the Court.

At the hearing held on 19 May 2017, after considering the
notice of discontinuance filed by the Bankrupt, the stance of the
Official Receiver and the submissions of the Company's legal
representatives, the Court dismissed the court action under
action number HCA 2948/2016 against the Company, Hung Tsung
Chin, Chen Mei Huei and Liao Wen | with costs to be paid by the
Bankrupt.

48.

e
HCA 2948/2016

NZB—RE+—A=Z+AAB &XOFWE
FZhi, CharlestEBRE A (TTRE AL) ()
BB A (ITES)  (IREELZ L
(IEXREEE  (WRRELEE([RRE
A1) BB AE D VB RV
AR (A TEMSHR A AL EAK
SN BREESE AR (DER])FRR
5% AHCA 2948/2016K)E 2 AR ([1FR =K
1) ERSIZHFBHRARR A A
E-—RE+—AZ+hhBZRfo

RZE—tFRATEH AALEERRK
WE—HEFEEEREEERMNRE AR
T—+F YA =+ 75BFHCB 5395/20165% 1
HEWE(IREA]) BEEEEERW
ZERABBEATENBREZTA - BEE
BEERATREBWEGRDN (F6XE) F12(1)
Mssig EEHEESE BHREANE
B EREEFATHEGERETEESE
R-WESHTERREANEELAED
WHERTBEBEAERS RIERETE
EERAEMMBEFLE  SABEEAT
SHIRTETEMFR - EERBMEBBAX
Hig BEEEEFERNERRINRIVAR
SR AR SR HCA 2948/20168 | 2 #F A ©

R_E—tFRATIABNERAMT EEE
WEAEEZHPILBANE WEEREE
EHNERRARREEZRENERE A
BETHEARE HEE REEREX
AR 2 AP SR A MR 57 HCA 2948/2016 +
B EASZMT-
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)
R ENEENE P

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2017
BHE-_ZT—tHF+-A=+—RHLFE

48.

LITIGATIONS (Continued)
HCA 3346/2016

On 22 December 2016, the Company was served a writ of
summons (“Writ 2") taken out by the Plaintiff against (i) Mr. Hung
Tsung Chin, (i) Ms. Chen Mei Huei, (iii) Mr. Liao Wen |, (iv) Mr.
Frank Karl-Heinz Fischer, (v) Mr. Chen Wei Chun (an executive
director), (vi) Yuming Investment Management Limited and (vii) the
Company (collective “Writ 2 All Parties”) as the defendants under
action number HCA 3346/2016 in the Court. Details of Writ 2 are
set out in the announcement of the Company dated 22 December
2016.

The Company has been notified by the Company's legal
representative that on 20 September 2017, the Court made an
order by consent that, among other things, the proceedings
against the Company, Hung Tsung Chin, Chen Mei Huei and Liao
Wen | be dismissed with costs of the proceedings be paid by the
Plaintiff, to be taxed if not agreed.

HCMP 284/2017

On 11 February 2017, the Company was served a writ of summons
("Writ 3") taken out by the Plaintiff, Kim Sungho, Kim Kyungsoo,
Lim Hang Young and Joung Jong Hyun as the plaintiffs (the “Writ
3 Plaintiffs") against the Company, the executive directors of the
Company, the auditor of the Company and other party as the
defendants (the “Writ 3 Defendants”) under action number HCMP
284/2017 in the Court. Details of the Writ 3 are set out in the
announcement of the Company dated 13 February 2017.

On 10 April 2017, the Company was served a summons under
action number HCMP No0.284/2017 taken out by the Writ 3
Plaintiffs against the Writ 3 Defendants (“Summons”). Details of the
summons are set out in the announcement of the Company dated
11 April 2017.
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EETRE (&)
HCA 3346/2016

RZZE—RNF+ZA=Z+=8 AR aKE
HREALO®EELSE: (REER L
(i) B SR LA ¢ (iv) Frank Karl-Heinz Fischer%t
E(vRESHRE (ITES) : (vi) Yuming
Investment Management Limited : K& (vii)ZX 22
A (A EISHEBE AL EARE
A v B AR SR FA R 5% AR HCA 3346/2016H)1F
M2k (TEM2MR2]) - E KM EH
RARBIRAA-_ZE—RF+A=-+=H
Z N e

ARBR_F—EFNA-+RAEEEENK
REM OERELRERS AR EERE
STHARTEHBE REBREXEREDL
ZRA FRABRARE A (T EK
ek A OABE B E ) ©

HCMP 284/2017

RZT—tF A +—RB AAFRIHR
& A~ Kim Sungho * Kim Kyungsoo * Lim Hang
Young M Joung Jong HyuntE & R4 A ([E&T
THM3READEARRE RRRIZHITE
FARRBZREE REMATIERBE
A(MERLMIWEALD) - BEHIER FRR
5% AHCMP 2847201789 @AM ([EFR SR
3]) EASHINFBHNRARRBEH R
Z—tF_A+T=HNRMm-

RZZT—+FWA+H AQRAKEEMS
IR E AMEM MM E A HFARR
ABHCMP 284/2017 2 BE ([BX]) - BEEH
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)
R ENEENE P

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2017
BHE-_ZT—tHF+-A=+—RHLFE

48.

LITIGATIONS (Continued)
HCMP 284/2017 (Continued)

At a Court hearing held on 13 April 2017, the application by
Zhi Charles (“1st Plaintiff”) for an injunction order pursuant to
Summons was dismissed by the Court with costs payable by the
Tst Plaintiff to the Writ 3 Defendants, including the Company, who
were present at the hearing.

HCCW 90/2017

On 23 March 2017, the Company was served a winding-up
petition (the “Petition”) dated 23 March 2017 filed by Zhi, Charles
("Petitioner”) against the Company, directors of the Company and
other party (“Respondents”) in the proceedings in HCCW 90/2017.
Details of the Petition are set out in the announcement of the
Company dated 24 March 2017.

On 29 March 2017, a striking-out summons was filed by the
Company to apply for an order to strike out the Petition in the
Court. On 21 April 2017, the Petition was struck out and the
proceedings therein was dismissed by the Court.

HCMP 1044/2017

The Company was served an originating summons under section
740 of the Companies Ordinance (Cap.622) (“Summons 2") on
5 May 2017 filed by Fung Chuen as the plaintiff ("Summons 2
Plaintiff") against the Company as the defendant under action
number HCMP No0.1044/2017 in the Court. Details of Summons
2 are set out in the announcement of the Company dated 5 May
2017.

48.

EETREA ()
HCMP 284/2017(#&)

R-ZE—+FMA+=HRT2EREM
Zhi Charles ([ —REA) REBERZREE
HLHRBERERERD THCE-RE
AR ERANERS MBS A (BIFEX
RAE)XNRE-

HCCW 90/2017

N_EBE—+HE=A-+=H AREIEER
Zhi, Charles ([RE AR ZZFE—+F = A
—t+=HREZERRERE  HARE ARRE
EREMA([HEADBLNBERERSE
([2FE])HCCW 90/2017 - LFEEW B
HAARAREHA—E—+E=F_+mWA
B Ao

R-E—tF=A-+tNB ARRZHH
FEFREAHSRRXEZ R —tFN
AZ+—8B 2FEERERBERELER
HADBOER R

HCMP 1044/2017

R-ZE—+EFRARRAB ARAFRWE HE
FWEABBREAN [EE2EEA])BEARAT
(TEB#H 5 A) B LA SF AR 5 BHCMP
1044/20178) A B 16 5] ( 55622F ) 57401678
TZRHFEE ([HEE2]) -EE 2B EHR
RAAFIBHA-_ZE—+tERARRZAMH-
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)
LR EGEENE P

FORTHE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2017

HE—

48.

T tE+ZAS+—AILER

LITIGATIONS (Continued)
HCMP 1044/2017 (Continued)

In the Summons 2, the Summons 2 Plaintiff applied to the Court
for, among others, the following orders (the “Application”):

(i) The Summons 2 Plaintiff and/or his authorized agent be
authorized to inspect and make copies of the documents in
relation to the investment in Dish Media and the Debtors;

(i) The Summons 2 Plaintiff and/or his authorized agent be
authorized to inspect and make copies of the documents in
relation to the investment in MyHD; and

(iii) The Summons 2 Plaintiff and his authorized agent be
authorized to inspect and make copies of the documents in
relation to the open offer announced by the Company on
24 October 2016 and the Open Offer.

The Company was advised by its Hong Kong legal advisers
in relation to the aforesaid litigation of the Group that if the
Application is granted by the Court, the likely orders which would
be made by the Court are that the Summons 2 Plaintiff and its
authorised agent will be entitled to inspect and make copies of
the requested documents (in full or in part), and that the Company
shall pay costs of the Application to the Summons 2 Plaintiff (to be
taxed if not agreed).

Pursuant to the order of the Court dated 17 October 2017 (the
“Order dated 17 October 2017"), it was ordered that the Company
shall produce to the Summons 2 Plaintiff those documents listed in
the schedule of the Order dated 17 October 2017. On 27 October
2017, the Company filed a notice of appeal (“Notice of Appeal”) to
the Court for a stay of execution of the Order dated 17 October
2017 pending the final determination of the appeal.
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EETREA ()
HCMP 1044/2017 (#&)
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)
LR EGEENE P

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2017
BHE-_ZT—tHF+-A=+—RHLFE

48.

LITIGATIONS (Continued)
HCMP 1044/2017 (Continued)

On 15 December 2017, the Court held that the appeal had no
reasonable prospect of success and ordered that the Company'’s
application for stay be refused but that the time for the Company
to comply with the Order dated 17 October 2017 be extended to 5
January 2018.

On 22 December 2017, the Company amended its Notice of
Appeal and applied to the Court of Appeal of Hong Kong for a stay
of execution of the Order dated 17 October 2017 pending final
determination of the appeal (“Stay Application”). Pursuant to order
dated 22 December 2017, an interim stay of the Order dated 17
October 2017 pending determination of the Stay Application was
granted.

The Stay Application is now scheduled to be heard on 17 April
2018.

HCCW 207/2017

On 6 July 2017, the Company was served a petition for winding-
up dated 5 July 2017 (“Winding-Up Petition”) filed by Fung Chuen
("Winding Up Petitioner”) against the Company (“1st Winding-Up
Respondent”), Mr. Hung Tsung Chin (“2nd WindingUp Respondent”)
and Ms. Chen Mei Huei (“3rd Winding-Up Respondent”) in the
proceedings HCCW No0.207/2017.

48.

EETREA ()
HCMP 1044/2017 (&)

R-ZE—tHE+-_A+HB ERRBRLF
BEAREBHRRE WHESARFZHERB
wRE - BEARAETFT_E—tF T A+t
A S HREAEEE —T— N\F—H
fAH-

RZE—tF+=-—A=+=8 XRAIEFT
FHRBAE WAEBLFEARABEHENR
T-ZE—+tF+A+EBEREDS HEEL
FERKRERABLE ([HEBRE]) - BEAH
AZE—+F+ A+ ZHEER®S
ERBE_ZT—+tF+ATEEERDS
EHERETRALESI &

BEFRBRIR_Z-N\FHATLESHE
Ho

HCCW 207/2017

RZZE—tFLtARA ARAREERAKR
(IMBERBRREAR-_ZE—tFLARAM
bR AR ([F—F8WEAL)
HEEEE([EFBREAI)RRE
BRE(IE=ZFBWEANBELNERE
FE(BBEFE])  FRRE BHCCW
207/2017 ©
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48.

LITIGATIONS (Continued)
HCCW 207/2017 (Continued)

Pursuant to the Winding-Up Petition, the Winding Up Petitioner
petitioned for (i) an order that the Company be wound up by the
Court under section 327(3)(c) of the Companies (Winding-Up and
Miscellaneous Provisions) Ordinance (Cap.32) of the Laws of Hong
Kong; (i) an order that a liquidator be appointed by the Court to
investigate into the affairs of the Company upon the winding-up
of the Company; (iii) an order that the 2nd and/or 3rd Winding-
Up Respondents do account to the Company for such payments
or dispositions which they had procured to be made for their own
benefit and/or for the benefit of entities substantially owned or
controlled by them and or other than for the Company’s proper
purpose and operation of its business; (iv) an order that costs of the
Petitioner and the Company be paid by the 2nd and 3rd Winding-
up Respondents and (v) such other order as the Court thinks fit and
appropriate.

On 10 July 2017, a summons to apply for a validation order was
issued by the Company, 2nd and 3rd Winding-Up Respondents. At
the hearing held on 17 August 2017, a validation order was granted
by the Court on the terms as follows: the following disposition of
property and transfer of shares of the Company shall not be void by
virtue of the provisions of section 182 of the Companies Ordinance
(Cap 32) of Laws of Hong Kong: (a) payment made (or to be made)
into and out of the Company's bank account in the ordinary course
of business of the Company between the date of presentation of
the Winding-Up Petition and the date of judgment on the Winding-
Up Petition; (b) disposition of property of the Company made (or
to be made) in the ordinary course of business for proper value
between the date of presentation of the Winding-Up Petition and
the date of judgment on the Winding-Up Petition; and (c) allotment
and issuance of 1,967,295,201 shares of the Company pursuant to
the Open Offer and use of the proceeds from the Open Offer by
the Company. The Court has also ordered the WindingUp Petitioner
to pay the costs of the validation order to the 1st, 2nd and 3rd
Winding-Up Respondents.
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EETREA ()
HCCW 207/2017 (#&)
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48.

49.

LITIGATIONS (Continued)
HCCW 207/2017 (Continued)

On 30 August 2017, the Company applied for another validation
order under section 182 of the Companies Ordinance (Cap 32) of
Laws of Hong Kong, which provides that any transfer of the shares
of the Company shall not be void by virtue of the said section. The
validation order was also granted by the Court on 25 October 2017.
On 4 December 2017, the Company filed and served its points of
defence (“Points of Defence”) of the 1st Winding-Up Respondent.
On 11 December 2017, the 2nd and 3rd Winding-Up Respondents
filed and served the Points of Defence of the 2nd and 3rd Winding-
Up Respondents. Pursuant to a consent order dated 31 January
2018, the Winding-Up Petitioner should file and serve his points
of reply (“Points of Reply”) to the Company’s Points of Defence on
5 February 2018. As at the date of approval of the consolidated
financial statements, the Winding-Up Petitioner has yet to file and
serve his Points of Reply and has yet to apply for a time extension
for the same to be filed out of time.

The case management hearing is now scheduled to be heard on
25 April 2018, during which the Court will set down the procedural
timetable for the parties to comply with under the Winding-Up
Petition. It is expected that it would take approximately 1-2 years
(depending upon the Court’s schedule) before the Winding-Up
Petition would be set down for the substantive hearing.

APPROVAL OF THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL
STATEMENTS

The consolidated financial statements were approved and
authorised for issue by the board of directors on 26 March 2018.

48.

49.

EETREA ()
HCCW 207/2017 (#&)
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FINANCIAL SUMMARY
MBERE

Six months
Year ended ended Year ended Year ended Year ended
June 30, December 31, December 31, December 31, December,
2014 2014 2015 2016 2017
—Z-\mF —E-\mF “E-hfF —ERF “E-tF
ANA=TH +:HE‘+75 +-A=+—-8 +=ZA=+—-H +=ZB=+-8H
HFE EA1EA EFE EFE LEE
HK'000 HK'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK'000
TET TET TET FiET THER
RESULTS |
Revenue W 1,664,111 785,081 1627,889 1,801,501 1,544,838
Loss before taxation PR A& 18 (87,110) (256,403) (97,936) (92,740) (167,033)
Income tax expense FEHRX (14,458) (14,191) (10,976) (14,618) (8,758)
Loss for the year/period AEE/AHEESR (101,568) (270,594) (108912) (107,358) (175,791)
Attributable to: Bfh:
Owners of the Company KAAEAEA (101,432) (264,543) (103,162) (77,655) (105,798)
Non-controlling interests S (136) (6,051) (5,750) (29,703) (69,993)
(101,568) (270,594) (108,912) (107,358) (175,791)
At At At At At
June 30, December 31, December 31, December 31, December,
2014 2014 2015 2016 2017
—E-mF —E-mF —E-hF —E—RF —E—+F
~NA=tH +ZA=+-8 +-A=t—-8 +-A=ft—-8 +=ZHA=+-H
HK'000 HK'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK'000
FTET TET TET FiET TR
ASSETS AND LIABILITIES BAELEE
Total assets EERS 1,563,576 1,402,281 1,282,857 1.322,698 1,287,825
Total liabilities BEREE (846,408) (989,958) (901,152) (1,040,580) (971,033)
717,168 412,323 381,705 282,118 316,792
Equity attributable to owners of AL EHEH AEHES
the Company 663,595 372,314 346,630 376,588 484,430
Non-controlling interests FiE s 53573 40,009 35,075 (94,470) (167,638)
717,168 412,323 381,705 282,118 316,792
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